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About LifePoint LifePoint Hospitals® is a leading hospital company focused on providing quality healthcare services close to home.

Through its subsidiaries, LifePoint operates 52 hospital campuses in 17 states. With a mission of “Making Communities Healthier,”

LifePoint is the sole community hospital provider in the majority of the communities it serves. All references to “LifePoint,” “LifePoint

Hospitals,” or the “Company” used in this Annual Report refer to LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. or its affiliates. More information about the

Company, which is headquartered in Brentwood, Tennessee, can be found on its website, www.LifePointHospitals.com.

Alabama

Andalusia,Andalusia Regional Hospital
Haleyville, Lakeland Community Hospital
Russellville, Russellville Hospital
Selma,Vaughan Regional Medical Center
Winfield, Northwest Medical Center

Arizona

Lake Havasu City, Havasu Regional Medical Center

Ft. Mohave,Valley View Medical Center

Colorado
Fort Morgan, Colorado Plains Medical Center

Florida
Palatka, Putnam Community Medical Center

Georgia
Conyers, Rockdale Medical Center

Kansas
Dodge City,Western Plains Medical Complex

Kentucky

Georgetown, Georgetown Community Hospital
Lebanon, Spring View Hospital

Mayfield, Jackson Purchase Medical Center
Maysville, Meadowview Regional Medical Center
Paris, Bourbon Community Hospital

Russellville, Logan Memorial Hospital

Somerset, Lake Cumberfand Regional Hospital
Versailles, Bluegrass Community Hospital
Winchester, Clark Regional Medical Center

Louisiana

Eunice,Acadian Medical Center

LaPlace, River Parishes Hospital

Minden, Minden Medical Center

Morgan City, Teche Regional Medical Center
Ville Platte, Mercy Regional Medical Center

Mississippi
Cleveland, Bolivar Medical Center

Nevada
Elko, Northeastern Nevada Regional Hospital

New Mexico )
Los Alamos, Los Alamos Medical Center
Las Cruces, Memorial Medical Center

Tennessee
Athens,Athens Regional Medical Center
Carthage, Riverview Regional

Medical Center North and South
Gallatin, Sumner Regional Medical Center
Hartsville, Trousdale Medical Center
Lawrenceburg, Crockett Hospital
Livingston, Livingston Regional Hospital
Pulaski, Hillside Hospital
Winchester, Southern Tennessee Medical Center
Winchester, Emerald-Hodgson Hospital

Texas

Ennis, Ennis Regional Medical Center
Palestine, Palestine Regional Medical Center
Mexia, Parkview Regional Hospital

Utah
Price, Castleview Hospital
Vernal, Ashley Regional Medical Center

Virginia

Danville, Danville Regional Medical Center

Martinsville, Memorial Hospital of Martinsville
and Henry County

Richlands, Clinch Valley Medical Center

Wytheville, Wythe County Community Hospital

West Virginia
Beckley, Raleigh General Hospital
Logan, Logan Regional Medical Center

Wyoming
Lander, Lander Regional Hospital
Riverton, Riverton Memorial Hospital



To Our Shareholders:

2010 was a strong year for LifePoint Hospitals. Ve successfully executed our strategy to drive-
growth through recruiting needed physicians and investing in facilities, entering new markets
through selective acquisitions, delivering consistent high quality care in the most cost-efficient way
and developing exceptional, high performing talent within our organization. h

We are proud of the solid financial results we delivered in spite of the economic
recession and ongoing challenges that community hospitals typically face, which is
a testament to how effectively the LifePoint team maintained its strategic focus.
In 2010, revenues from continuing operations increased to $3.3 billion, up 10%
over the previous year. Income from continuing operations attributable to
LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. rose to $155.6 million, or $2.91 per diluted share,an
increase of 2% from 2009.

We operate in an environment that presents both challenges and opportunities.
The economic recession, which led to higher unemployment across the nation,
had a dampening effect on patient volumes. At the same time, as a result of
health reform, we expect to see an increase in patient volume and a reduction in
the number of uninsured patients who self-pay. Overall, our adjusted admissions
(measuring both inpatient and outpatient volume) were strong in 2010. More
importantly, we believe that well funded, well managed, innovative and integrated
health care systems, like LifePoint, will be best positioned to thrive in the new era
of healthcare.

Driving Organic Growth

. One of the main tenets of our strategy over the last several years has been to
grow organically and iricrease our market share in each of our communities. As
the sole provider in most of our communities, our goal is to offer the highest
quality care so that patients elect to obtain their care locally, instead of traveling
to more distant urban facilities. To meet that goal, we must offer a broad array of
healthcare services and achieve a high rate of satisfaction among both patients
and physicians. In 2010, we took major steps to improve our core measures, ED
satisfaction and other quality indicators.

Physicians are a hospital’s lifeblood, especially in the communities we serve. As a
result, physician recruitment has always been an essential piece of our strategy to
grow and increase market share. Ve have always followed a rigorous, nationwide
approach, not only to find physicians, but to ensure that we find the right
physicians for our communities — doctors who are the right fit and who practice
the medical specialties that will help us maintain or improve our services in each
hospital. In addition, in a number of our larger hospitals, we now have in place a
Chief Medical Officer to further strengthen physician relations. The success of

. these efforts is made evident by our 95% physician retention rate. Strong
retention, in turn, makes it easier for us to reach our company-wide goal of
increasing the net number of physicians in our markets by 5% each year. For the
past three years, including 2010, we have met or surpassed that goal.

*Our relationship
with our communities,
our patients and our staff
goes beyond owning
hospitals and managing employees.

In 52 communities from Wyoming to Virginia, our
staff and our patients are also our neighbors.”

Bill Carpenter

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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Growing Through Acquisitions

Our industry continues to face the challenge of increasing
admissions while high unemployment rates persist. Ve are
living in a time of dynamic change as health reform takes shape,
and we are taking steps to mitigate the effects of the
economic environment and to prepare for the future. In that
regard, relationships we are building at a local and regjonal
fevel are important elements for success. Selective
acquisitions have always been a key element of our long-term
strategy. In 2010, we added five hospitals to the LifePoint
family through two acquisitions. In fact,in the last 18 months,
we have added more than $300 million in annual revenues,
including the acquisition of Rockdale Medical Center in 2009.

In May 2010, we completed the acquisition of Clark Regional
Medical Center in Winchester, Kentucky, where we committed
to build a new, state-of-the-art replacement facility. In
September 2010, we acquired Sumner Regional Health
Systems, which includes a [55-bed hospital and three smaller
facilities. The four hospital system, which we renamed
HighPoint Health System, serves | | counties in the northern
Middle Tennessee region.

These acquisitions were also notable because they reflect our
focus on markets that are faster growing and slightly larger
than our traditional markets, such as 138-bed Rockdale
Medical Center, outside of Atlanta, Georgia. Clark Regional
Medical Center and Sumner Regional Medical Center (part of
HighPoint Health System) are close to larger cities (Lexington,
Kentucky, and Nashville, Tennessee, respectively). We will
continue to look for opportunities in faster growing markets,
which we believe offer excellent potential for us to increase the
community hospital’s. market share. Importantly, our strong
balance sheet and low leverage give us the financial flexibility
to pursue our acquisition strategy without delaying or reducing
targeted investments to improve our existing hospitals.

The acquisition environment is opportunity rich,and we are
well-positioned to capitalize on transactions that meet our
criteria. We will stay disciplined and strategic in our approach
as we continue to aggressively seek to acquire hospitals in
areas with faster population growth, a diversified employment
base and a favorable payor mix.

Strategic Partnerships

We believe that we have just begun to tap the potential we
see in strategic relationships to further drive growth. In
January 201 |, we announced a joint venture with Duke
University Health System, one of the preeminent academic
medical centers in the country. This joint venture is an exciting
new undertaking for us and one that we think has tremendous
potential to add value. It underscores our commitment to
quality care and the innovative opportunities that our strong
operational foundation makes possible.

We are confident that with Duke University Health System,
we will strengthen and improve healthcare delivery
throughout North Carolina and the surrounding regions by
creating flexible affiliation options for community hospitals.
The unique joint venture, named DLP Healthcare, LLC
(Duke/LifePoint), combines LifePoint’s extensive operational
resources and experience in successfully managing community-
based hospitals with Duke’s renowned expertise and
leadership in the development of clinical services and quality
systems. Ve have an exciting opportulrzfifym to build a hospital
system that will transform healthcare in this region.

Dukel/LifePoint is one of the first joint ventures between an
academic health system and a hospital operations company
formed for the purpose of developing affiliations with
community-based hospitals. Its mission is to own and operate
a system of highly functioning community hospitals. It will
provide local hospitals with extensive clinical and operational
support, quality measurement tools and resources to
effectively grow and expand services to better serve their
communities.

LifePoint will provide the partnership with a range of financial
and operational resources, including access to capital for
ongoing investments in new technology and facility
renovations. Duke will offer guidance in clinical service
development and support for enhancing quality systems as
well as access to highly specialized medical services to help
meet communities’ needs. The Duke/LifePoint joint venture
also will have the ability to share best practices with hospitals,
clinics and healthcare providers throughout the Duke and
LifePoint systems.

LifePoint entered into another strategic partnership recently
through its investment with two other hospital companies and
two major non-profit hospital systems in the Heritage
Healthcare Innovation Fund, located in Nashville, Tennessee.
The Fund will invest in businesses that deliver improved quality,
service and efficiency to healthcare systems. We expect that
health reform will generate many opportunities and new
strategies that the fund would view as attractive investment
considerations. Ultimately, LifePoint and the other investors
should benefit from this unique undertaking as the healthcare
industry continues to evolve.

Achieving Consistent High Quality Care

We have always been focused on delivering high quality and
cost efficient care. With that goal in mind, we have introduced
various initiatives designed to incorporate proven best
practices throughout our state-of-the-art system. Expert
operational assessment teams at our home office work closely
and effectively with our hospitals throughout the country.
Under the leadership of Dr. Lanny Copeland, our Chief
Medical Officer, we are using technology to improve clinical



We strive to make every LifePoint hospital a place where physicians want to practice. We offer unique and
rewarding opportunities for physicians to practice medicine in great communities across the country. We are
committed to providing physicians with environments where they can enjoy a high quality of practice and quality
of life. We offer physicians the chance to make a real difference in people’s lives and provide personal and
compassionate patient care, supported by state-of-the-art technology, modern facilities and caring staff.




documentation and reduce variation in practice patterns
across our company. This not only improves patient care, but
it also saves money. Thanks to these and other efforts, we
have achieved best-in-class margins — and will continue
working to improve them.

We also continue to enhance selected service lines, especially
inpatient and outpatient surgery and cardiology services.

Over the past two years, we have recruited a net of 25 new
cardiologists and invested more than $30 million in expanding
our cardiac cath labs. YWhere we've applied resources, we are
getting results. These investments have increased market share
for our cardiac service lines — cardiac catheterization
procedures are up more than 18% over 2009.

At the same time, given that emergency room visits account
for approximately 60% of our hospital admissions, we have
worked hard to strengthen our emergency departments. We
are improving charge and coding accuracy, which directly
impacts reimbursement collection, and leveraging our
technology platform to improve results from clinicians in our
emergency departments. In addition, we are working to
reduce wait times and to ensure proper placement of patients
through better case management. We are pleased that these
improvements are increasing patient and physician satisfaction
and enhancing the overall performance of our hospitals.

Building from Within

For any company that seeks to achieve long-term growth, the
development of high-performing, “homegrown” individuals for
leadership is a strategic imperative. Accordingly, we are
investing in our people to cultivate leaders at every level, from
managers who move up to corporate level positions, to the
leaders of our regional divisions, to CEOs who build the skills
to oversee larger hospitals in our system, to those who can
grow into CEOs at our hospitals. | could not be more proud
of the people who make up LifePoint today. It is because of
their leadership, abilities and commitment that we expect a
bright future for our company.

In keeping with our philosophy, we were pleased to announce
in January 2011 that David Dill was promoted to President
and Chief Operating Officer. Having served as COO and CFO,
David has a unique grasp of all aspects of our business. David
has been instrumental in developing and implementing our
strategic plan, improving the quality of care across our
hospitals, recruiting the right physicians to communities where
they are needed, and improving and strengthening our service
lines. This was a well-deserved promotion that will benefit our
company for years to come.

This is my first letter to you in my new capacity as both Chief
Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board. Effective
December 15,2010, Bob Shell, who previously served as non-
executive Chairman of the Board, assumed the role of Lead
Director. | look forward to continuing to work with Bob and
the entire Board to grow this great company and provide
critically important services to the patients in our hospitals
across the country.

A Strong Position in a Changing?E?wéronment

The outcome of health reform is still evolving, and it is our job
to ensure that we are well positioned to take advantage of the
change as it happens. We are veteran hospital operators,
executing a focused plan, with a strong balance sheet that gives
us the flexibility to fund our growth through acquisitions and
investments in new services, technologies, facilities and
physicians. We like how we are positioned in our markets and
look forward to continuing to fulfill our mission of Making
Communities Healthier by providing quality healthcare close
to home.

Our relationship with our communities, our patients and our
staff goes beyond owning hospitals and managing employees.
In 52 communities from Wyoming to Virginia, our staff and our
patients are also our neighbors. We believe that what we do
has lasting value, and we remain profoundly grateful for your
support. As we look ahead, we are confident in our continued
ability to grow and deliver enhanced value for shareholders.

Sincerely,

WA A

William F. Carpenter il
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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PART I
Item 1. Business. _ '
Overview of Our Company

LifePoint Hospitals, Inc., a Delaware corporation, acting through its subsidiaries, operates general acute -
care hospitals in non-urban communities in the United States. Unless the context otherwise requires, LifePoint
and its subsidiaries are referred to herein as “LifePoint,” the “Company,” “we,” “our’-or “us.” At
December 31, 2010, we operated 52 hospital campuses in 17 states, having a total of 5,915 licensed beds. We
generate reverue primarily through- hospital services offered at our facilities. We generated $3,262.4 million,
$2,962.7 million and $2,700.8 million in revenues from continuing operations during 2010, 2009 and 2008,
respectively. : . CoE— :

We seek to fulfill our mission of Making Communities Healthier® by striving to (1) improve the quality
and types of healthcare services available in our communities; (2) provide physicians with a positive
environment in which to practice medicine, with access to necessary equipment and resources; (3) develop
and provide a positive work environment for employees; (4) expand each hospital’s role as a community asset;
and (5) improve each hospital’s financial performance. We expect our hospitals to be the place where patients
choose to come for care, where physicians want to :practic'e medicine and where employees want to work.

Business Strategy
Opportunities in Existing Markets _

We believe that growth opportunities remain in our existing markets. Growth at our hospitals is ,
dependent in part on how successful our hospitals are in their efforts to recruit physicians to. their respective
medical staffs, whether those physicians are active members of their respective medical staffs over a long
period of time and whether and to what extent members of our hospitals’ medical staffs admit patients to our
hospitals. We continue to refine our recruiting process in an effort to better identify and focus on those
physicians most likely to desire to practice in our communities and to better tailor our communications to the
physicians who want to practice in non-urban communities.

Additionally, we believe that growth can be achieved by demonstrating the quality of care provided in
our facilities, adding new service lines in our existing markets and investing in new technologies desired by
physicians and patients. The quality (both actual and. perceived) of healthcare services provided at our
hospitals is an increasingly important factor to patients when deciding where to seek care, to physicians when
deciding where to practice and to:governmental and private third party payors when determining the
reimbursement that is paid to our hospitals. Because in virtually every case the Centers for Medicare and
Medicaid Services (“CMS”) core measure scores ascribed to our hospitals is impacted by the practice
decisions of the physicians on our medical staffs, we have implemented new strategies to work with medical
staff members to improve scores at all of our hospitals, especially those that are below our average or below
management’s expectation. Recently, we have seen improvements in.our CMS core measure scores and
Hospital Consumer Assessment of Healthcare Providers & Systems scores, an important measure of patients’
perspectives of hospital care. We are committed to further improving our hospitals’ scores through targeted
strategies, including increased education, when necessary, awareness campaigns and hospital specific action
plans.

In many of our markets, a significant portion of patients who require the services available at acute care
hospitals leave our markets to receive such care. ‘We beliéve this fact presents an opportunity for growth, and
we are working with the hospitals in communities where this phenomenon exists to implement new strategies
or enhance existing strategies. ' : T

We continually conduct operating reviews of our hospitals to pinpoint new service lines that could reduce
the outmigration of patients leaving our markets to receive healthcare services. Where needed service lines
have been identified, we have focused on recruiting the physicians necessary to correctly operate such service
lines. For example, our hospitals have resp_ohded to physician interest in requests for hospitalists by
introducing or strengthening hospitalist programs where appropriate. Our hospitals have taken other steps,
such as structured efforts to solicit input from medical staff members and to respond promptly to legitimate
unmet physicians needs, to limit or offset the impact of outmigration and to achieve growth.



While responsibly managing our operating expenses, we have also made significant, targeted investments
in our hospitals to add new technologies, modernize facilities and expand the services available. These
investments should assist in our efforts to attract and retain physicians, to offset outmlgratlon of patients and
to make our hospitals more desirable to our employees and potential patlents

We-also contmue to strive to 1mprove our operating performance by improving on our revenue cycle
processes, r_naklng an even higher level of purchases through our group purchasing organization, operating
more efficiently and effectively, and working to appropriately standardize our policies, procedures and \
practices across all of our affiliated hospitals. We also believe that our:position as the sole acute care hospital .
in virtually all of our communities has allowed us, and will continue. to allow -us, in 1many cases to negotiate
preferred reimbursement rates with commercial insurance payors. —

Acquisitions

Our intention is to acquire well- pos1t10ned hospitals in growing areas of the United States that we believe
are fairly priced and that could benefit from our management and strategic initiatives. We believe that strategic
acquisitions can supplement the growth we ‘believe we can generate orgamcally in our existing markets. We
believe that our acquisition of Sumner Regional Health Systems, subsequently renamed nghPomt Health
Systems (“HighPoint”), effective September 1, 2010 and our acquisition of Clark Regional Medical Center-
(“Clark”) effective May 1, 2010, along with our commitment to build and equip a replacement hospital
facility for Clark, are consistent with our acquisition strategy. Additionally, on January 31, 2011, we
announced the formation of DLP Healthcare, LLC (“DLP”), a joint venture between the Company and Duke
University Health' System, with a mission to own and operate community hospltals in North Carolina and the
surrounding area. Also on January 31, 2011, we announced that DLP had signed a memorandum of
understandmg with Maria Parham Medical Center, a pnvate non-profit, hospital located in Henderson North‘
Carohna to make it the first hospital in DLP’s network ’

Operations

We seek to operate our hospitals in a manner that positions them to compete-effectively and to further
our mission of making communities healthier. The operating strategies of our hospitals, however, are -
determined largely by local hospital leadership and are tailored to each of their respective communities.
Generally, our overall operating strategy is to strive to: (1) expand the breadth of services offered at our
hospitals — by adding equipment and seeking to attract specialty and primary care physicians — in an effort
to attract community patients that might otherwise leave their community for healthcare; (2) recruit, attract
and retain physicians interested in practicing in the non-urban-communities ‘where our hospitals are located;
(3) recruit, retain and develop hospital executives interestéd in working and living in the non-urban
communities where our hospitals are located; (4) negotiate favorable, facility-specific contracts with managed
care and other private-pay payors; ‘and (5)'eﬂicieht1y leverage resources across all of our hospitals. In -
appropriate circumstances, we may selectively acquire hospltals or other healthcare fa0111t1es where our
operatmg strategies can improve performance.

Our hospitals typically provide the range of medical and surgical services commonly available in
hospitals in non-urban markets. These services include general surgery, internal medicine, obstetrics, .
emergency room care, radiology, oncology, diagnostic care, coronary care, rehabilitation services',‘pediatric
services, and, in some of our hospitals, specialized services such as open-heart surgery, skilled nursing,
psychiatric care and neuro-surgery. In many markets, we also provide outpatient services such as same-day
surgery, laboratory, x-ray, respiratory therapy, imaging; sports medicine'and lithotripsy. Like most hospitals
located in non- -urban markets, our hospltals do not engage in extensive medical research and medical =
education programs. However, three of our hospitals have an affiliation with medical schools, including the
clinical rotation of medical students, and one of our hospitals owns and operates a school of health
professions with a nursing program and a radiologic technology program.




With the exception of Bluegrass Community Hospital, which is designated by CMS as a critical access
hospital, all of our hospitals are accredited by the Joint Commission or the Healthcare Facilities Accreditation
Program (“HFAP”).. With such accreditation, our. hospitals are deemed, to meet the Medicare Conditions .of
Participation and are, therefore, eligible to participate in government-sponsored provider programs, such as the
Medicare and Medicaid programs. Bluegrass Community Hospital participates in the Medicare program by
otherwise meeting the Medicare Conditions of Participation. - . - -~ - :

The range of services that can be offered at any of our hospitals depends significantly on the efforts,
abilities and experience of the physicians on the medical staffs of our hospitals, most of whom have no-long-
term contractual relationship with us. Our hospitals are staffed by licensed physicians who have been admitted
to the medical staffs of individual hospitals. Under state laws and other licensing stan®ards, hospital medical
staffs are generally self-governing organizations subject to ultimate oversight by the hospital’s local governing
board. Each of our hospitals has a local board of trustees. These boards generally include members of the
hospital’s medical staff as well as community leaders. These boards establish policies concerning medical,
professional and ethical pra_ctices, monitor these practices, and are responsible for reviewing these practices in
order to determine that they conform to established standards. We maintain quality assurance programs to
support and monitor quality of care standards and to meet accreditation and regulatory requirements. We also
monitor patient care evaluations and other quality of ¢aré assessment activities on a regular basis.

Members of the medical staffs of our hospitals are free to serve on the medical staffs of hospitals not
operated by LifePoint. Members of our medical ‘staffs are free to terminate their affiliation with our hospitals
or admit their patients to competing hospitals at any time. Although we own some physician practices and,
where permitted by law, employ some physicians, the majority of the physicians who practice at our hospitals
are not our employees. It is essential to our ongoing business that we. attract and retain skilled employees and
an appropriate number of quality physicians and other healthcare professionals. in all specialties on our
medical staffs. . :

In our markets, physician recruitment and retention are affected by a shortage of physicians in certain
sought-after specialties, the difficulties that physicians are experiencing in obtaining affordable malpractice
insurance or finding insurers willing to provide such insurance, and the challenges that can be aSSOCiated with
practicing medicine in small groups or independently. In order for our hospitals to be successful, we must
recruit and retain a sufficient number of active, engaged and successful physicians.

In connection with our efforts to responsibly manage purchasing costs, we participate along with other
healthcare companies in a group purchasing organization, HealthTrust Purchasing Group, which makes certain
national supply and equipment contracts ayailable to our facilities. We owned an approximate 4.1% equity
interest in this group purchasing organization at December 31, 2010. :

Availability of Information

Our website is www.lifepointhospitals.com. We make available free of charge on this website under
“Investor Information — SEC Filings” our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q,
current reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports filed or furnished as soon as reasonably
practicable after we electronically file such materials with, or furnish them to, the United States Securities and
Exchange Commission (“SEC”).



Sources of Revenue

Our hospitals receive payment for patient services from the federal government primarily under the ‘ -
Medicare program, state governments under their respective Medicaid programs, health maintenance
organizations (‘“HMOs”), preferred provider organizations (“PPOs”) and other private insurers, as well as "
directly from patients (“‘self-pay”). The approximate percentages of total revenues from continuing operatlonsv
from these sources during the years specified below were as.follows: : -

. p . 2010 - 2009 2008
.Medicare . ..................... R 30.2% 301% - 31.7%-
Medicaid . . .. . ... PP 11.8 . 10.6 9.7
HMOs, PPOs and other pnvate insurers .. ........... C 424 751 453
Self-pay. ........... ... . SN 146 - 132 ©o 1241
Other. .. ....... A 1010 1.2

100 0% 100 0% 100 0%

Certain changes have been made to our historical sources of revenues table above Spec1ﬁcally, we
previously classified our revenues related to our owned physician practices as other revenue. In 2010 and for
all previously reported periods, we changed the classification of our revenues for our owned physman
practices from other to the respective payor classifications, as appropriate. This change had no impact on our
historical results of operations. These reclassifications reduced other revenue as a percentage of total revenues
and increased Medicare, Medicaid, HMOs, PPOs and other private insurers and self-pay as a percentage of
total revenues. We have determined that it is more appropriate to classify our owned: physician practices
revénue by their respective payor classification.

Patients generally are not responsible for any difference between customary hospital charges and amounts
reimbursed for the services under Medicare, Medicaid, private insurance plans, HMOs or PPOs, but are
responsible for services not covered by these plans, exclusions, deductibles or co-payment features of their -
coverage. The amount of exclusions, deductibles and co-payments generally has been increasing each year as
employers have been shifting a higher percentage of healthcare costs to employees. In some states, the
Medicaid | program budgets have been cut, which has resulted in limiting the enrollment of participants. This,

along with increasing self-pay revenue, has resulted in hlgher bad debt expense at many of our hospltals in
the past few years.

Medicare

Our revenues from Medicare were appr0x1mate1y $983.7 miillion, or 30.2% of total revenues for the year
ended December 31, 2010 Medicare pr0v1des hospital and medical insurance benefits, regardless of income,
to persons age 65 and over, some disabled persons and persons with end-stage renal disease. All of our
hospitals are currently certified as providers of Medicare services. Amounts received under the Medicare
program are often significantly less than the hospital’s customary charges for the services provided. Since
2003, Congress and CMS have made several sweeping changes to the Medicare program and its
reimbursement methodologies, such as the implementation of the prescription drug benefit that was created by
the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement, and Modemlzatlon Act of 2003 (the “MMA”), and a number
of additional changes will be required in the future as the prov1s1ons of the Patient Protection and Affordable
Care Act and the Health Care and Educatlon Reconciliation Act of 2010 (collectlvely, the “Aﬁordable Care
Act”) are implemented.

Medicare Inpatient Prospective Payment System

Under the Medicare program, hospitals are reimbursed for the costs of acute care inpatient stays under an
inpatient prospective payment system (“IPPS”). Under the IPPS, our hospitals are paid a prospectively
determined amount for each hospital discharge that is-based on the patient’s diagnosis. Specifically, each
discharge is assigned to a diagnosis related group, commonly known as a “DRG,” which groups patients that
have similar clinical conditions and that are expected to require a similar amount of hospital resources. Each
DRG is, in turn, assigned a relative weight that is prospectively set and that reflects the average amount of
resources, as determined on a national basis, that are needed to treat a patient with that particular diagnosis,
compared to the amount of hospital resources that are needed to treat the average Medicare inpatient stay. The




IPPS payment for each discharge is based on two national base payment rates or standardized amounts, one
that covers hospital operating expenses and another that covers hospital capital expenses. The base DRG
payment rate for operating expenses has two components, a labor share and a non-labor share. Although the
labor share is adjusted by a wage index to reflect geographical differences in the cost of labor, the base DRG
payment rate does not consider the actual costs incurred by an individual hospital in providing a partlcular
inpatient service.

The base DRG operating expense payment rate that is used by the Medicare program in the IPPS i is
adjusted by an update factor on an annual basis. The index used to adjust the base DRG payment rate, which
is known as the “‘hospital market basket index,” gives consideration to the inflation experienced by hospitals
in purchasmg goods and services. For federal fiscal years (“FFYs”) 2011, 2010, and 2009, the hosprtal market
basket index increased 2.6%, 2.1%, and 3.6%, respectively. Generally, however, the percentage increase in the
DRG payment rate has been lower than the projected increase in the cost of goods -and services purchased by
hospitals. In addition, as mandated by the Affordable Care Act, the hospital market basket increase for FFY
2010"was reduced by CMS on June 2, 2010, by 25 basis points (“bps”) (from 2.1% to 1.85%) for discharges .
occurring on or- after April 1, 2010, and the hospital market basket increase for FFY 2011 Wthh began on
October 1 2010, was reduced by 25 bps (from 2.6% to 2.35%). :

From FFY 2005 through 2007 the MMA requrred all acute care hospitals to part1¢1pate in CMS s
Hospital Inpatient Quality Reporting Program (the “IQR.Program™) in order to receive. the full hospital
market basket update. Beginning in FFY 2007, the Deficit Reduction Act of 2005 (the “DRA”) expanded the
number of quality measures that were requlred to be reported. and increased the reduction. in reimbursement to
hospitals that do not participate in the IQR Program from 0.4% to 2.0%. For FFY:2011, our hospitals reported
all quality measures required by CMS and received the full market. basket update.

Prior to- October ‘1, 2007, CMS had established 538 DRG classifications. However, on October 1, 2007,
CMS replaced the existing 538 DRGs with 745 new severity-adjusted diagnosis related groups. (“Medlcare
Severity DRGs” or “MS- -DRGs”). The new MS-DRGs are intended to more accurately reflect the cost of -
prov1d1ng inpatient services and eliminate any incentives that hospitals may have to only treat the healthlest N
and most profitable patients. The MS-DRGs were phased-in over a two year period, with FFY 2009, which"
began -6n October 1, 2008; bemg the first year that IPPS payments to hospitals were based entirely on the new
MS-DRGs. CMS' antlcrpates that the ¢onversion to MS-DRGs will result in an increase in payments to
hospitals that serve more severely ill patlents and a decrease to hospltals that serve patrents who are less
severely ill. '

To offset the effect of the coding and discharge classification changes that CMS believed would occur as
hospitals implemented the MS-DRG system CMS established prospective documentation and coding :
ad]ustments to the national standardized amounts of (1.2%) in FFY 2008 and (1. 8%) in both FFYs 2009 and
2010: However, the Transitional-‘Medical Assistance, Abstinence Ediication; and Qualifying Individuals
Programs Extension Act of 2007 (the “TMA Act™), which was enacted on September 29, 2007, effectively
decreased the reductions for FFYs 2008 and 2009 to (0.6%) and (0.9%), respectively. In addition, the TMA
Act required CMS to conduct a “look-back” beginning in FFY 2010 and make appropriate changes to the
reduction percentages based. on actual FFY 2008 and 2009 claims data. Based-on its evaluation, CMS
determined that IPPS payments increased by 2.5% in FFY 2008 and 5. 4%.in FFY 2009 due solely to the
implementation of the MS-DRG System. The increases exceeded the. cumulative prospective adjustments by ‘
5.8% for FFYs 2008 and 2009. The TMA Act requires CMS to recoup the increase in spending in FFYs 2008
and 2009 by FFY 2012. In the IPPS final rule for FFY 2011, CMS reduced the standardized amount by
(2.9%), which represented half of the required adjustment. The remaining (2.9%) reduction will be
implemented in FFY 2012. However, the (2:9%) reduction that was made in FFY 2011 will be restored in
FFY 2012, which essentially means that the adjustments in FFY 2012 will cancel each other out. The (2.9%)
reduction made in FFY 2012 will be restored in FFY 2013. The TMA Act also requires CMS to make an
additional cumulative adjustment to future payments, which CMS.believes will be a reduction of 3. 9%, but it
does not specify when or how CMS must apply the adjustment. The cumulative ad]ustment will further reduce
IPPS payments to hospitals and could adversely impact our Medicare revenues.



The following tables list our historical Medicare MS-DRG and capital payments for the years presented
(in millions): - . . v -

Medicare Medicare
MS-DRG Capital
C . : . . : Payments . Payments
2010 . o $481.4 $40.5
2009 . .. P 460.6 38.9
2008 . ... e I I B 4_53.7 39.6

In addition to MS-DRG and éapital payments, hospitals may qualify for outlier payménts for cases
involving patients whose treatment costs are extraordinarily high when compared to the costs of treating an
average patient in the same DRG. ' '

" Hospitals may also qualify for Medicare disproportionate share hospital (“DSH”’) payments, if they treat
a high percentage of low-income patients. The adjustment is generally based on the hospital’s disproportionate
patient percentage (“DPP”), which is the sum of the number of inpatient days for patients who were entitled
to both Medicare Part A and Supplemental Security Income benefits, divided by the total number of Medicare
Part A inpatient days and the number of inpatient days for patients - who were eligible for Medicaid (but not
Medicare) divided by the total number of hospital inpatient days. Hospitals whose DPP meets or exceeds a
specified threshold amount are-eligible for a DSH payment adjustment. Medicare DSH payments received in
the aggregate by our hospitals for 2010, 2009 ‘and 2008, were approximately $65.0 ‘million and $58.3 million -
and $55.3 million, respectively. However, the Affordable Care Act does generally requite Medicare DSH
payments to providers.to be reduced by 75% beginning in FFY 2014, subject to adjustment if the Affordable
Care Act does not decrease uncompensated care to the extent anticipated. e

Medicare Hospital Outpatient Prospective Payment System

The Balanced Budget. Refinement Act of 1999 (“BBRA”) established a prospective payment system.for
outpatient hospital services that commenced on August 1, 2000. Under Medicare’s hospital outpatient
prospective payment system (“OPPS”), hospital outpatient services are classified into groups called -
ambulatory payment classifications (“APCs”). Services in each APC are clinically similar and are similar in
terms of the resources they require. Depending on the services provided, a hospital may be paid for more than
one APC for an encounter. CMS establishes a payment rate for each APC by multiplying the scaled relative
weight for the APC by a conversion factor. The payment rate is further adjusted to reflect: geographic wage
differences. The APC conversion factors for calendar, years (“CYs”) 2011, 2010, and 2009 were $68.876,
$67.241 and $66.059, respectively, after the inclusion of the 25 bps reduction for CYs 2011 and 2010 required
by the Affordable Care Act. APC classifications and payment rates are reviewed and adjusted on an annual
basis, and, historically, the rate of increase in payments for hospital outpatient services has been higher than
the rate of increase in payments for inpatient. services.. To receive the full increase, hospitals must satisfy the
reporting requirements of the Hospital Outpatient Quality Data Reporting Program (the “HOPQDRP”’).
Hospitals that de not satisfy the reporting requirements of the HOPQDRP are subject to a reduction of 2.0%
from the fee schedule increase factor, which in CY 2011, would result in a conversion factor of $67.530. For
CY 2011 our hospitals reported all quality measures required by CMS and received the full market basket
update.

In addition to establishing the OPPS, BBRA eliminated the anticipated average reduction of 5.7% for
various Medicare outpatient payments under the Balanced Budget Act of 1997. Under BBRA, outpatient- -
payment reductions for non-urban hospitals with 100 beds or less were postponed until December 31, 2003.
Several of our hospitals qualified for this “hold harmless” relief. Payment reductions under Medicare OPPS
for non-urban hospitals with greater than 100 beds and urban hospitals were mitigated through a corridor
reimbursement approach, pursuant to which a percentage of such reductions were reimbursed through
December 31, 2003. Substantially all of our remaining hospitals qualified for relief under this provision.
MMA extended. the hold harmless provision for non-urban hospitals ‘with 100 beds or less and expanded the
provision to include sole community hospitals for cost reporting periods beginning in 2004 until December 31,
2005. DRA extended these payments for three years but at a reduced amount. Payments for 2007 and 2008
were 90% and 85%, respectively, of the hold harmless amount. On July 15, 2008, Congress enacted the
Medicare Improvement for Patients and Providers Act-(“MIPPA”), which included a provision, extending hold



harmless payments through 2009 at the 85% rate for both small rural hospitals and sole community hospitals.
The Affordable Care Act and the Medicare and Medicaid Extenders Act of 2010 (the “MME Act”) extended
these payments through December 31, 2011.The following table lists our historical Medicare outpatient
payments for the years presented (in millions): . .

) Medicare
. L L . : Outpatient Payments
2000 ... B ' $248.6
2009 . ... B 216.6
2008 o 190.5

: Me&icare 'Bad Debt Reimbursément
Under Medicare, the costs:‘attrjbutable to the deductible and coinsurance amounts that remain unpaid by
Medicare beneficiaries can be added to the Medicare share of allowable costs as cost reports are filed.

Hospitals generally receive interim pass-through payments during the cost report year which were determined
by the fiscal intermediary from the prior cost report filing.

Bad debts must meet the following crjteria to be allowable: .
E the ‘debt rbnust" be felated to covered services and derived from deductible and coinsurance amounts;
* the provider must be able t'o'jestabli_s‘h that reasonable collection efforts were made;
: ;‘ the debt -wasvactually uncblléctible When claimed as worthléss; and

*  sound busihess judgment established that there was no likelihood of fécovery at'any time in the
future. ’ ‘

The amounts uncollectible from specific beneficiaries are to be charged off as bad debts in the accounting
period in which the accounts are deemed to be worthless. In some cases, an amount previously written off as
a bad debt and allocated to the program may be recovered in a subsequent accounting period. In these cases,
the recoveries must be used to reduce the cost of beneficiary services for the period in which the collection
is made. In determining reasonable costs for hospitals, the amount of bad debts otherwise treated as allowable
costs is reduced by 30%. Under this program, our hospitals received an aggregate of approximately
$17.5 million, $17.0 million and $16.4 million for 2010,. 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Physician Services )

Physician services are reimbursed under the Medicare physician fee schedule (“PFS”) system, under
which CMS has assigned a national relative value unit (*RVU”) to most medical procedures and services that
reflects the various resources required by a physician to provide the services relative to all other services.
Each RVU is calculated based on a combination of work required in terms of time and intensity of effort for

the service, practice expense (overhead) attributable to the service and malpractice insurance expense
attributable to the service. These three elements are each modified by a geographic adjustment factor to

growth rate (“SGR”)) to arrive at the payment amount for each service. While RVUs for various services may -
change in a given year, any alterations are required by statute to be virtually budget neutral, such that total

payments made under the PFS may ‘not differ by more than $20 million from what payments would have been
if adjustments were not made. A . ’ ‘ ‘ '

SGR to the PFS. For CY 2011, CMS issued a final rule that would have applied the SGR and resulted in an
aggregate reduction of 24.9% to all physician payments under the PFS for FFY 2011. The MME Act delayed
application of the SGR until January 1, 2012. We cannot predict whether Congress will intervene to prevent
this reduction to payments in the future. ’ ‘ :




Medicaid

Medicaid programs are funded by both the federal government and state governments to provide
healthcare benefits to certain low-income individuals and groups. These programs and the reimbursement
methodologies are administered by the states and vary from state to state and from year to year. Amounts
received under the Medicaid programs are often significantly less than the hospital’s customary charges for the
services provided. Most state Medicaid payments are made under a prospective payment system, fee schedule,
cost reimbursement programs, or some combination of these three methods.

Our revenues under the various state Medicaid programs, including state-funded managed care programs,
were approximately $386.3 million, or 11.8% of total revenues for the year ended December 31, 2010. - -
These payments are typically based on fixed rates determined by the individual states. Included in these
payments are DSH payments received under various state Medicaid programs. For 2010, 2009 and 2008, our
revenue attributable to. DSH. payments and other supplemental payments was approximately $61.1 million,
$25.1 million, $19.8 million, respectively.. The increase in revenue from DSH payments and other ,
supplemental payments is-primarily attributable to additional funding provided by certain states, which was.
made available in part by additional annual state prov1der taxes.on certain of our hospitals and changes in
classification of state programs.

Many states in which we operate are facing budgetary challenges that pose a threat to Medicaid funding
levels to hespitals and other providers. We expect these challenges to continue and, perhaps, to intensify.
Many states have adopted, or are considering, legislation designed to reduce coverage, prov1der
reimbursements and program ehglblhty, enroll Medicaid recipients in managed care programs and/or i lmpose
additional taxes on hospitals to help finance or expand the states’ Medicaid systems. Such:budget cuts, federal
or state legislation, or other changes in the administration or interpretation of government health programs
could have a material adverse effect on our financial position and results of operations. Congress made an
effort to address the financial challenges Medicaid is facing by increasing the amount of Medicaid funding
available to states through the: American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (the “ARRA”) and the
Education, Jobs, and Medicaid Assistance Act (the ““Assistance Act’), which increased federal ‘“matching -
fund” payments to state Medicaid programs through June 30, 2011. : o

Annual Cost Reparts

Hospitals participating in the Medicare and some Medicaid programs, whether paid on a reasonable cost
basis or under a prospective payment system, are required to meet certain financial reporting requirements.
Federal and, where applicable, state regulations require submission of annual cost reports identifying medical
costs and expenses associated with the services provided by each hospital to Medicare beneficiaries and
Medicaid recipients. :

Annual cost reports required under the Medicare and some Medicaid programs are subject to routine
governmental audits. These audits may result in adjustments to the amounts ultimately determined to be
payable to us under these reimbursement ‘programs. Finalization of these audits often takes several years.
Providers may appeal any ﬁnal deterrmnatmn made in connection with an aud1t

Recovery Audit Contractors

In 2005, CMS began using recovery audit contractors (“RACs”) to detect Medlcare overpayments not
identified through exrstlng claims review mechamsms The RAC program relies on private companies to
examine Medicare claims ﬁled by healthcare providers. RACs perform post-discharge audits of medical
records to identify Medicare overpayments resulting from incorrect payment amounts, non-covered services,
medically unnecessary services, incorrectly coded services, and duplicate services and are paid on a
contingency basis..CMS has given RACs the authority to look back at claims up to three years old, provided
that:the claim was paid on or after October-1, 2007. Any claims identified as overpayments will be subject to
a RAC program appeals process. The RAC program began as a demonstration project in five states and was
made permanent by the Tax Relief and Health Care Act of 2006. The permanent RAC program was gradually
expanded across the United States in 2008 and 2009 and is currently operating in all 50 states. The Affordable
Care Act has further expanded the use of RACs and required each state to establish a Medicaid RAC. program .
in 2011. Although we believe our claims for reimbursement submitted to the Medicare and Medicaid programs



are accurate, many of our hospitals have had claims audited by the RAC program. While most of our.
hospitals have successfully appealed any adverse determinations raised by these audits, we cannot predict if
this trend will continue or the results of any future audits.” - : ' S

HMO&, PPOs and Other Private Irisure}'s

In addition to government programs, our hospitals are reimbursed by differing types of private payors
including HMOs, PPOs, other private insurance companies and employers. Our revenues from HMOs, PPOs
and other private insurers were approximately $1,384.6 million, or:42.4% of total revenues for the year ended
December 31, 2010. To attract additional volume, most of our hospitals offer discounts.from established
charges to certain large group purchasers of healthcare services. These. discount programs often.limit our
ability to increase charges in response to increasing costs., Generally, patients covered by HMOs, PPOs and .
other private insurers will be responsible for certain co-payments and deductibles.

Self-Pay and Charity/lndigent Care

Self-pay revenues are derived from patients who do not have any form of healthcare coverage. Our
revenues from self-pay patients were- approximately $475.1 million, or 14.6% of total revenues for the year
ended December 31, 2010. The revenues associated with self-pay patients are generally reported at our.gross -
charges. We evaluate these patients, after the patient’s medical .condition is determined to be stable, for
qualifications of Medicaid or other governmental assistance ‘programs, as well as our local hospital’s policy for
charity/indigent care. A significant portion of self-pay patients are-admitted through the emergency department
and often require high-acuity treatment. High-acuity treatment is .more costly to provide and, therefore,.results
in higher billings. Over the past few years, we have seen an increase in the amount of self-pay revenues at

)

our hospitals,"whjch are the least collectible fo all accounts.

We provide care- to certain patients that qualify under the local charity/indigent care policy at each of our
hospitals. We discount a charity/indigent care patient’s charges against our revenues, therefore, we do not
report such discounts in our provision for doubtful accounts as it is our policy not to pursue collection of
amounts related to these patients. . - . : _ . L

“The following table lists our Self—p_ay revenues and charity/indigent care write-offs from continuing
operations for the years presented (in millions): o : ' s '

~, Charity/Indigent

o : : Self-Pay - Care Combined
e g , ] .- . Revenues Write-Offs Total
2010 ....... e e e e ©$4751 - . $62.3 $537.4
2000 ... . 390.1 - 58.5 448.6
2008 .. 3258 53.7 : 379.5

Health Care Reform -

The Affordable Care Act was signed into law, in two parts, on March 23, 2010 and March 30, 2010. The
Affordable Care Act dramatically alters the United States healthcare system and is intended to decrease the
number of uninsured Americans‘:an,‘d reduce the overall cost of healthcare. The Affordable Care Act attempts to
achieve these goals by, among other things, requiring most Americans to obtain health insurance, expanding
Medicare and Medicaid eligibility, reducing Medicare and Medicaid payments, including DSH payments; to
providers, expanding the Medicare program’s use of value-based purchasing programs, tying hospital
payments to the satisfaction of certain quality criteria, bundling payments to hospitals and other providers, and
instituting certain private health insurance reforms. Although a majority of the measures contained in the
Affordable Care Act do not take effect until 2013, certain of the reductions in Medicare spending, such as
negative adjustments to the Medicare hospital inpatient and outpatient prospective payment system market
basket updates and the incorporation of productivity adjustments to the Medicare program’s annual inflation
updates, became effective in 2010 or will be implemented in 2011 and 2012. In addition, there have been a
number of challenges to the Affordable Care Act; and some courts have ruled that the requirement for
individuals to carry health insurance or the Affordable Care Act in its entirety is unconstitutional. Several bills
have been and will likely continue to be introduced in Congress to repeal or amend all or significant .
provisions of the Affordable Care Act. It is difficult to predict the full impact of the Affordable Care Act due



to its complexity, lack of implementing regulations and interpretive guidance, gradual and potentially delayed
implementation, pending court challenges, and possible repeal and/or amendment, as well as our inability to
foresee how individuals and businesses will respond to the choices afforded them by the Affordable Care Act.
As a result, it is difficult to predict the full impact that the Affordable Care Act will have on our revenue and
results of operations. : '

Expande;i Covérage | o

Based on the Congressional Budget Office (“CBO”) and CMS estimates, by 2019, the Affordable Care
Act will expand coverage to 32 to 34 million additional individuals (resulting in coverage of an estimated
94% of the legal U.S. population).-This increased coverage will occur through a combinatien of public
prograi expansion and private sector health insurance and other reforms.

Medicaid Expansion

The primary public program coverage expansion will occur through changes in Medicaid, and to a lesser
extent, expansion of the Children’s Health Insurance Program’ (“CHIP”) The most significant changes will
expand the categories of individuals eligible for Medicaid coverage and permit individuals with relatively
higher incomes to qualify. The federal government reimburses the majority of a state’s Medicaid expenses,
and it conditions its payment on the state meeting certain requirements. The federal government currently
requires that states provide coverage for only limited categories of low-income adults under 65 years old
(e.g., women who are pregnant, and the blind or disabled). In addition, the income level required for
individuals and families to qualify for Medicaid varies widely from state to state. -

The Affordable Care Act materially changes the requirements for Medicaid eligibility. Commencing
January 1, 2014, all state Medicaid programs are required to provide, and the federal government will
subsidize, Medicaid coverage to virtually all adults under 65 years old with incomes at or under 133% of the
federal poverty level (“FPL”). This expansion will create a minimum Medicaid eligibility threshold that is
uniform across states. Further, the Affordable Care Act also requires states to apply a “5% income disregard”
to the Medicaid eligibility standard, so that Medicaid eligibility will effectively be extended to those with
incomes up to 138% of the FPL. These new eligibility requirements will expand Medicaid and CHIP coverage
by an estimated 16 to 18 million persons nationwide. A disproportionately large percentage of the new
Medicaid coverage is likely to be in states that currently have relatively low income eligibility requirements.

As Medicaid is a joint federal and state program, the federal government provides states with “matching
funds” in a defined percentage, known as the federal medical assistance percentage (“FMAP”). Beginning in
2014, states will receive an enhanced FMAP for the individuals enrolled in Medicaid pursuant to the -
Affordable Care Act. The FMAP percentage is as follows: 100% for CYs 2014 through 2016; 95% for 2017,
94% in 2018; 93% in 2019; and 90% in 2020 and thereafter. :

The Affordable Care Act also provides that the federal government will subsidize states that create
non-Medicaid plans for residents whose incomes are greater than 133% of the FPL but do not exceed 200%
of the FPL. Approved state plans will be eligible to receive federal funding. The amount of that funding per
individual will be equal to 95% of subsidies that would have been provided for that individual had he or she
enrolled in a health plan offered through one of the Exchanges, as discussed below. l

Historically, states often have attempted to reduce Medicaid spending by limiting benefits and tightening
Medicaid eligibility requirements. Effective March 23, 2010, the Affordable Care Act requires states to at least
maintain Medicaid eligibility standards established prior to the enactment of the law for adults until January 1,
2014 and for children until October 1, 2019. States with budget deficits may, however, seek exemptions from

this requirement, but only to address eligibility standards that apply to adults making more than 133% of the
FPL. .

Private Sector Expansion

The expansion of health coverage through the private sector as a result of the Affordable Care Act will
occur through new requirements on health insurers, employers and individuals. Commencing January 1, 2014,
health insurance companies will be prohibited from imposing annual coverage limits, dropping: coverage,
excluding persons based upon pre-existing conditions or denying coverage for any individual who is willing to

10




pay: the: premiums for such coverage. Effective January 1, 2011, each health plan must keep its annual non-
medical costs lower than 15% of premium revenue for the group market and lower than 20% in the small
group and individual markets or rebate its enrollees the amount spent in excess of the percentage. In addition
effective September 23, 2010, health insurers are not permitted to deny coverage to children based upon-a-
pre-existing condition and must allow dependent care coverage for children up to 26 years old.

5 -

Larger employers will be subject to new requirements ‘and incentives to provide health insurance benefits
to their full time employees. Effective January 1, 2014, employers with 50 or more employees that do not
offer health insurance will be held subject to a penalty if an employee obtains coverage through one of the
newly created American Health Benefit Exchanges (“Exchanges”) if the coverage is subsidized by the
government. The employer penaltlcs w111 range from $2,000 to $3 000 per employee, subject to certain -
thresholds and conditions. ¢

As enacted, the Affordable Care Act uses various means to induce individuals who do not have health
insurance to obtain coverage. _By January 1, 2014, individuals will be required to maintain health insurance for
a minimum defined set of benefits or pay a tax penalty. The penalty in most cases is $95 in 2014, $325 in
2015, $695 in 2016, and indexed to 4 cost of living adjustment in subsequent years. The Internal Revenue
Service (“IRS”), in consultation with the Department of Health and Human Services (“HHS”), is respon31ble
for enforcing the tax penalty, although the Affordable Care Act limits the availability of certain IRS '
enforcement mechanisms. In addition, for individuals and families below 400% of the FPL, the cost of
obtaining health insurance will be subsidized by the federal government. Those with lower incomes will be
eligible to receive greater subsidies. It is anticipated that those at the lowest income levels will have the
majority of their premiums subsidized by the federal government, in some cases in' excess of 95% of the
premium amount. To facilitate the purchase of health insurance by individuals and small employers, each state
must establish an Exchange by January 1, 2014. Based on CBO and CMS estimates, between 29 and 31
million individuals will obtain their health insurance coverage through an Exchange by 2019. Of that amount,
an estimated 16 million will be individuals who were previously uninsured, and 13 to 15 million will be
individuals who switched from their prior insurance coverage to a plan obtained through the Exchange. The
Affordable Care Act requires that the Exchanges be designed to make the process of evaluating, comparing
and acquiring coverage simple for consumers. Health insurers participating in the Exchange must offer- a set of
minimum benefits to be defined by HHS. and may offer more benefits, and must offer at least two, and up.to -
five, levels of plans that vary by the percentage of medical expenses that must be paid by the enrollee: Each
level of plan must require the enrollee to share certain specified percentages of medical expenses up to the
deductible/co-payment limit. Health insurers may establish varying deductible/co-payment levels, up to the
statutory maximum (estimated to be between $6,000 and $7,000 for an individual). The health insurers must
cover 100% of the amount of medical expenses in excess of the deductible/co-payment limit. For example, an
individual making 100% to 200% of the FPL will have co-payments and deductibles reduced to about one-
third of the amount payable by those with the same plan with incomes at-or above 400% of the FPL.

Public Program Spending

The Affordable Care Act prov1des for Medlcare Medicaid and other federal healthcare program spénding
reductions between 2010 and 2019. The CBO estimates that these will include $156 billion in Medicare
fee-for-service market basket.and productivity reimbursement reductions for all providers, the majority of
which will come from hospitals; CMS sets this estimate at $233 billion. The CBO estimates also include an
additional $36 billion in reductions of Medicare and Medicaid DSH funding ($22 billion for Medicare and
$14 billion for Medicaid). CMS. estimates include an additional $64 billion in reductions of Medicare and
Medicaid DSH funding, with $50 billion of the reductions coming from Medicare.

Payments for Hospitals

Under the Medicare program, hospitals receive reimbursement for general, acute care hospital inpatient
services under the IPPS. CMS establishes fixed. IPPS payment amounts per inpatient discharge ‘based on the
patient’s assigned MS-DRG. These MS-DRG rates are updated each FFY, which begins October-1, using the
hospital market basket index, which takes into account inflation experienced by hospitais and other entities
outside the healthcare industry in purchasing goods and services.
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The Affordable Care Act provides. for three types of annual reductions in the market basket. The first is a
general reduction of a specified percentage each FFY starting in 2010 and extending through 2019. These .= .
reductions are-as.follows: FFY 2010, 0.25% for.discharges occurring on or after April 1,.2010; 2011 (0.25%);
2012 (0.1%); 2013 (0.1%); 2014 .(0.3%); 2015 (0.2%); 2016 (0.2%); 2017 (0.75%); 2018.(0.75%); and 2019
(0.75%). _ : _ A . . ) |

. The second type of reduction to the market basket is a “productivity adjustment” that will be
implemented by HHS beginning in FFY 2012. The amount of that reduction. will be the projected nationwide
productivity gains over the preceding 10 years. To determine the projection, HHS will use the Bureau of
Labor Statistics (“BLS”).10-year moving average of changes in specified economy-wide productivity (the ’
BLS data is typically.a few years old). The Affordable Care Act does not contain guidelines for HHS to use in
projecting the productivity figure. Based upon the latest available data, FFY 2012 market Basket reductions
resulting from this productivity adjustment are likely to range from 1% to 1.4%.

The third type of reduction is in connection with the value-]qised purchasing pfogfam discussed in more
detail below. Beginning in FFY 2013, CMS will reduce the IPPS payment amount for all discharges by the
following: 1% for 2013; 1.25% for 2014; 1.5% for 2015; 1.75% for 2016; and 2% for 2017 and subsequent
years. For each FFY, the total amount collected fr_om these reductions will be pooled and used to fund
payments to hospitals that sqtisfy”certain quality metrics. While some or all of these reductions may be
recovered if a hospital satisfies these quality metrics, the recovery amounts may be delayed.

If the dggregate of the three market basket reductions described above is more than the annual market
basket adjustments made to account for inflation, there will be a reduction in the MS-DRG rates paid to
hospitals. For example, for the FFY 2011 IPPS, the market basket increase-to account for inflation is 2.6%
and the aggregate reduction due to the Affordable Care Act and the documentation and coding adjustment is
3.15%. Thus, the rates paid to a hospital for inpatient services in FFY 2011 will be 55 bps less than rates paid
for the same services in the prior year. .. - T i S '

Quality-Bdsed Paymémf Adjustments and Réductions Sfor Inpd:ient Sérvices

The Affordable Care Act establishes or expands three provisions to promote value-based purchasing and -
to link payments to quality and efficiency. First, in FFY 2013, HHS is directed to ‘implement a value-based
purchasing ‘program for inpatient hospital services. This program will reward hospitals that meet:certain .-
quality' performance standards established by HHS. The Affordable Care Act ‘provides HHS considerable
discretion over the value-based purchasing program. For example; HHS will have the authority to determine
the quality performance measures, the standards hospitals. must-achieve in order to meet the quality
performance measures, and the methodology for. calculating payments to hospitals that meet the required
quality threshold. HHS will also determine how. much money each hospital will receive. from the pool of
dollars created by the reductions related to the value-based purchasing program as described above. Because
the Affordable Care Act provides that the pool will ‘be fully distributed, hospitals that meet or exceed the
quality performance standards set by HHS will receive greater reimbursement under the value-based
purchasing program than they would have otherwise. On the other hand, hospitals that do not achieve the
necessary quality performance will receive reduced Medicare inpatient ho_sgital payments.

Second, beginning in FFY 2013, inpatient payments will be reduced if .a hospital experiences ‘‘excessive
readmissions” within a 30-day. period of discharge for heart attack, heart failure, pneumonia or other .
conditions designated by HHS. Hospitals with what HHS defines as ffexcessive readmissions’ for these
conditions will receive reduced payments for all inpatient discharges, not just discharges relating to the =~
conditions subject to the excessive.readmission standard. Each hospital’s performanee will be publicly:
reported by HHS. HHS has the discretion to determine what “excessive readmissions” means, the amount of
the payment reduction and other terms and conditions of this program.

Third, reimbursement will be reduced based on a facility’s hospital acquired condition (“HAC”) rates. A
HAC is a condition that is acquired by a patient while admitted as an inpatient in -a hospital, such as a
surgical site infection. Beginning in FFY.2015, hospitals thatrank in the top.25% mationally of HACs for all
hospitals in the previous year will receive a 1% reduction in their total Medicare payments. In addition, .
effective July 1, 2011, the Affordable Care Act prohibits the use of federal funds under the Medicaid program
to reimburse providers for medical services provided to treat HACs. -
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- Outpatient Market Basket and Productivity Adjustment

Hospital outpatient services paid under OPPS are classified into APCs. The APC payment rates are
updated each calendar year based on the market basket. The first two market basket changes outlined -
above — the general reduction and the productivity adjustment — apply to outpatient services as well as
inpatient services, although these are applied on a calendar year basis. The _percentage changes specified in the
Affordable Care Act summanzed above as the general reduction for inpatients — e. g 0. 2% in 2015 — are the
same for outpatrents

Medlcare and Medi‘caid Disproportionaté Share Ho"sp'ital Payments

The Med1care DSH program provides for additional payments to, hospitals that treat a drsproportlonate
share of low-i -income patlents Under the Affordable Care Act, begmnmg in FFY 2014, Medicare DSH
payments will be reduced to 25% of the amount they otherwise would have been absent the new law. The
remalnmg 75% of the amount that would otherwise be paid under Medicare DSH will be effectively pooled,
and this pool w111 be reduced further each year by a formula that reflects reductions i 1n the national level of ,
uninsured who are under 65 years of age. In other words, the greater the level of coverage for the uninsured
nationally, the more the Medicare DSH payment pool will be reduced. Each hospital will then be pard out of -
the reduced DSH payment pool an amount allocated based upon 1ts Ievel of uncompensated care

It is difficult to predict the full impact of the Medlcare DSH reduct1ons .and CBO and CMS estimates
differ by $38 billion: The Affordable Care Act does not mandate what data source HHS. must use to determine
the reduction, if any, in the uninsured population nationally. In addition, the Affordable Care Act does not. -
contain a definition of ‘“‘uncompensated: care.” As a result, it is unclear how a hospital’s share of the Medicare
DSH payment pool will be calculated. CMS could use the definition of “uncompensated care” used in’
connection with hospital cost reports However, in July 2009, CMS proposed material revisions to the -
definition of “‘uncompensated ‘care” used for cost report purposes. Those revisions -would exclude certain
significant costs that had historically been covered, such as unreimbursed costs of Medicaid services. CMS has
not issued a final rule, and the Affordable Caré Act does not require HHS to use this definition, even if
finalized, for DSH purposes. How CMS ultimately defines “‘uncompensated care” for purposes of these DSH
funding provisions could have a material effect on a hospital’s Medicare DSH reimbursements.

In addition to Medicare DSH funding, hospitals that provide ‘care to a disproportionately high number
of low-income patients may receive Medicaid DSH payments. The federal government distributes federal
Medicaid DSH funds to each state based on a statutory formula. The states.then distribute the DSH funding
among qualifying hospitals. Although federal Medicaid law defines some, level of hospitals. that must receive
Medicaid DSH funding, states have broad discretion to define additional hospitals that also may qualify for
Medicaid DSH payments and the amount of such payments. The Affordable Care Act will reduce funding.
for the Medicaid DSH hospital program in FFYs 2014 through 2020 by the following amounts; 2014
($500 million); 2015 ($600 million); 2016 ($600 million); 2017 ($1.8 ‘billion); 2018 ($5 brlhon), 2019
($5.6 billion); and 2020 ($4 bllhon) How such cuts are allocated among the states and how the states -
allocate these cuts among providers, have yet to be determined.

Accountable Care Organizations.

The Affordable Care Act requires HHS to establlsh a Medicare Shared Savrngs Prograrn that promotes
accountability and coordination of ‘care through the creation of accountable care organizations (“ACOs”).
Beginning no later than January 1, 2012, the program will allow providers (including hospitals), physicians
and other designated professionals and suppliers to form ACOs and voluntarily work together to invest in
infrastructure and redesign delivery processes to achieve high quality and efficient delivery of services. The
program is intended to produce savings as a result of 1mpr0ved quality and operational. eﬂicrency ACOs that
achieve quality performance standards established by HHS will be eligible to share in a portion of the
amounts saved by the Medicare program. HHS has:significant discretion to determine key ‘elements of the
program, 1nclud1ng what steps providers must take to be considered an ACO, how to decide if Medicare
program savings have occurred, and what portion of such savings will be paid to ACOs. In add1t10n HHS will
determine to what degree hospitals, physicians and other eligible participants will be able to forrn and operate
an ACO without violating certain existing laws, including the Civil Monetary Penalty Law, the anti-kickback
provision of the Social Security Act (“the Anti-kickback Statute”) and the provision of the Social Security
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Act commonly known as “Stark law-’. However, the Affordable Care Act does not authorize. HHS to waive
other laws that may impact the abrhty of hospitals and other eligible participants to participate in ACOs, such
as antitrust laws.

Bundled Payment Ptlot Programs "

, The Affordable Care Act requrres HHS to estabhsh a five-year, voluntary natlonal bund]ed payment pilot
program for Medicare services beginning no later than January 1, 2013. Under the program, providers would
agree to receive one payment for services provided to Medicare patients for certain medical conditions or
episodes of care. HHS will have the discretion to determine how the program will function. For example,
HHS will determine what medical conditions will be included in the program and the amount of the payment
for each condition. In addition, the Affordable Care Act prov1des fora ﬁve—year bundled payment prlot
program for Medicaid services to begin January 1, 2012. HHS will select up to elght states to participate
based on the potentlal to lower costs under the Medicaid program while i 1mprov1ng care. State programs may
target partrcular categorres of beneficiaries, selected diagnoses or geographic regions of the state. The selected
state programs .will provide one ‘payment for both hosp1tal and physician services provrded to Med1ca1d
patients for certain episodes of inpatient care. For both pilot programs, HHS will determine the relationship
between the programs and restrictions in certain existing laws, including the Civil Monetary Penalty Law, the
Anti-kickback Statute, the Stark law and the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996
(“HIPAA’) privacy, security and transaction standard requirements. However, the Affordable Care Act does
not authorize HHS to waive other laws that may impact the.ability of hosprtals and other ehglble part101pants
to part1c1pate in the pilot programs,.such as antitrust laws D

Specmlty Hospital Lzmztatwns

Over the last decade, we have faced competition from hosprtals that have physrc1an ownership. The
Affordable Care Act prohibits newly created physician-owned hospitals from billing .for Medicare patients
referred by their physician owners. As a result, the new law will effectively prevent the formation of -
physician-owned hospitals after December 31, 2010. While the new law grandfathers existing physician-owned
hospitals, it does not allow these hospitals to increase the percentage of physician ownership and significantly
restricts thelr ability to expand services.

Impact of Affordable Care Act on the Company

The expansion of health insurance coverage under the Affordable Care Act may result in a material
increase in the number- of patients using our facilities who have either private or public program coverage. In
addition, a'disproportionately large percentage of the new Medicaid coverage is likely to be in states that
currently ‘have relatively low.income eligibility requirements. Further, the Affordable Care Act provides for a
value-based purchasing program, the establishment of ACOs and bundled payment p110t programs Wthh will
create possible sources of additional revenue.

However, 1t is difficult to predrct the size of the Jotential revenue gains to the Company as a result of
these elements of the Affordable Care Act, because of uncertainty surrounding a number of material factors,
including the following:

*  how many previously uninsured individuals will obtain coverage as a result of the Affordable Care
Act (while the CBO estimates 32 million, CMS estimates almost 34 million; both agencies made a
number of assumptions to derive that figure, including how many individuals will ignore substantial
subsidies and decide to pay the penalty rather than obtain health insurance and what percentage of
people in the future will meet the new Medicaid income eligibility requirements);

«  what percentage of the newly insured patlents will be covered under the Medlcard program ‘and what
' percentage will be covered by private health insurers; i

* . the extent to which states will enroll new Medrcard partlcrpants in managed care programs

* the pace at ‘which insurance coverage expands including the pace of driferent types of coverage
expansion;

»- the change, if any, in the volunie of inpatient and outpatient hosprtal serv1ces that are sought by and
provided to previously uninsured individuals;
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« the rate paid to hospitals by private payers for newly covered individuals, including those covered
through the newly created Exchanges and those who nnght be covered under the Medicaid program
under ‘contracts Wlth the state;

e the rate paid by state governments under the: Medlcald program for newly covered individuals;
¢ how the value-based purchasing and other quality programs will be implemented;

the percentage of individuals in the Exchanges who select the high deductible plans, since health
insurers offering those kinds of products have traditionally sought to pay lower rates to, hospitals;

e whether the net effect of the Affordable Care Act, including the prohibition on excluding individuals
based on pre-existing conditions, the requirement to keep medical costs lower than a specified
percentage of premium revenue, other health insurance reforms and the annual fee applied to all
health insurers, will be to put pressure on the bottom line of health insurers, which in turn might
cause them to seek to reduce payments to hospitals with respect to both newly insured individuals
and their existing business; and

+  the possibility that implementation of provisions expanding health insurance coverage will be
delayed or even blocked due to court challenges or revised or eliminated as a result of court
challenges and efforts to repeal or amend the new law.

On the other hand, the Affordable Care Act provides for significant reductions in the growth of Medicare
. spending, reductions in Medicare and Medicaid DSH payments and the establishment of programs where
reimbursement is tied to quality and integration. Since 42.0% of our revenues in 2010 were from Medicare
and Medicaid, collectively, reductions to these programs may significantly impact us and could offset any
positive effects of the Affordable Care Act. It is difficult to predict the size of the revenue reductions to
Medicare and Medicaid spending, because of uncertainty regarding a number of material factors, 1nc1ud1ng the
following:

¢ the amount of overall revenues we will generate from Medicare and Medicaid business when the
reductions are implemented;

¢ ~whether reductions required by the Affordable Care Act will be changed by statute prior to becoming
effective; ' »

»  the size of the Affordable Care Act’s annual productivity adjustment to the market basket beginning
in 2012 payment years; '

¢ the amount of the Medicare DSH reductions that will be made, commencing in FFY 2014;

¢  the allocation to our hospitals of the Medicaid DSH reductions, commencing in FFY 2014;

*  what the losses in revenues will be, if any, from the Affordable Care Act’s quality initiatives;

¢  how successful ACOs, in which we partmpate will be at coordlnatmg care and reducmg costs;

»  the scope and nature of potential changes to Medicare reimbursement methods, such as an empha31s
on bundling payments or coordination of care programs; and :

»  reductions to Medicare payments CMS may impose for “excessive readmissions.”

Because of the many variables involved, we are unable to predict the net effect on the Company of the
expected increases in insured individuals using our facilities, the reductions in Medicare spending and
reductions in Medicare and Medicaid DSH funding, and numerous other provisions in the Affordable Care Act
that may affect us. Fulthcr, it is unclear how federal lawsuits challenging the constitutionality of the
Affordable Care Act will be resolved or what the impact will be of any resulting changes to the law. For -
example, should the requirement that individuals maintain health insurance ultimately be deemed
unconstitutional but the prohibition on health insurers excluding coverage due to pre-existing conditions be
maintained, significant disruption to the health insurance industry could result, which could impact our
revenues and operations.
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Competition for Patients

 Our hospitals and other healthcare businesses operate in extremely compét_itive environments.
Competition among healthcare providers occurs primarily at the local level. A hospital’s position within the
~ geographic area in which'it operates is affected by a number of competitive factors, including, but not limited
to: :

« _ the scope, breadth and quality of services a hospital offers to its patients and physicians;

o whether new, competitive services require the receipt of a certificate of need or other similar
authorization; :

+ the number, quality and specialties of the physicians who admit and refer patients to the hospital;
¢ nuréés and other healthcare prdféssiqnals e;i_lployed by the_: ho:sﬁitél or on phe hospitai’é staff;

»  the hospital’s reputation;

o its managed care contracting relationships; _

e its location aﬁd the location and number of coﬂnipetitive:fécilitiesvand ‘other healthcare altématives;
« the physical condition of its buildings and improvements;

«  the quality, age and state-of-the-art of its medical equipment;:

e its parking or proximity to publié transportation;

+  the length 6f time it has beeﬁ, a part of the community;

« the relative convenience of the manner in which care is provided (for example, whether services are
" available on an outpatient basis and whether services can be obtained quickly); )

« the choices made by the physicians on the medical staffs of our hospitals; and

»  the charges for its services.

Accordingly, each hospital develops its own strategies to address these competitive factors locally. In
addition, tax-exempt competitors may have certain financial advantages not available to our facilities, such as
endowments, charitable contributions, tax-exempt financing, and exemptions from sales, property and income
taxes. In certain states, some not-for-profit hospitals are permitted by law to directly employ physicians while
for-profit hospitals are prohibited from doing so. )

We also face increasing competition from other specialized care providers, including outpatient surgery,
oncology, physical therapy and diagnostic centers, as well as competing services rendered in physician offices.
To the extent that other providers are successful in developing specialized outpatient facilities, our market
share for those specialized services will likely decrease. Some of our hospitals have developed specialized
outpatient facilities where necessary to compete ‘with these other providers. Physician competition also has
increased as physicians, in some cases, have become equity owners in surgery centers.and outpatient
diagnostic centers to which they refer patients. » . :

Competition for Professionals .

Our hospitals must also compete for professional talent. A significant factor in our future success will be
the ability of our hospitals to attract and retain physicians, as it is physicians who decide whether ‘a patient is
admitted to the hospital and the procedures to be performed. We seek to attract physicians by striving to '
employ excellent nurses, equipping our hospitals with technologically advanced equipment and an attractive, -
up-to-date physical plant, properly maintaining the equipment and physical plant, and otherwise creating an
environment within which physicians choose to practice. While physicians may terminate their association
with our hospitals at any time, we believe that by striving to maintain and improve the quality of care at our
hospitals and by maintaining ethical and professional standards, our hospitals will be better positioned to
attract and retain qualified physicians with a variety of specialties. K
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We also recruit physicians to the communities in which our hospitals are located. The ‘types, amount and
duration of assistance we can provide to recruited physicians are limited by the federal physician self-referral
(Stark) law, the Anti-kickback Statute, state anti-kickback statutes, and related regulations. For example, the
Stark law requires, among other things, that recruitment assistance can only be provided to physicians who-
meet certain-geographic and practice requirements, that the amount of assistance cannot be changed during the
term of the recruitment agreement, and that the recruitment payments cannot generally benefit physicians
currently in practice in the community beyond recruitment costs actually incurred. In addition to these legal
requirements, there is competition from other communities and facilities for these physicians, and this
competition continues after the physician begins practicing in one of our communities.

Many physicians today prefer to be employed, rather than operating their own practices or joining
existing medical groups. Our hospitals and affiliated entities employed substantially more physicians at the end
of 2010 than at the end of 2009. When employing office-based. physicians, we also often employ office
employees and other personnel necessary to support these physicians. We expect this, trend to continue.

We compete with other healthcare providers in recruiting and retaining qualified management and staff--
personnel responsible for the day-to-day operations of each of our hospitals, including nurses and other
non-physician healthcare professionals. In some markéts, the scarce availability of nurses and other medical
support personnel presents a significant operating issue. This shortage may require us to enhance wages and
benefits to recruit and retain nurses and other medical support personnel, recruit personnel from foreign
countries, and hire more expensive temporary personnel. We also depend on the available labor pool of
semi-skilled and unskilled employees in each of the markets in which we operate.

Employees

At December 31, 2010, we had approximately 22,400 employees, including approximately 5,650 part-
time employees. Nurses, therapists, lab and radiology technicians, facility maintenance workers and the
administrative staffs of hospitals are the majority of our employees. Additionally, we employ a number of
physicians. We are subject to federal minimum wage and hour laws and various state labor laws, and we
maintain a number of different employee benefit plans. Approximately 300 of our employees are subject to
collective bargaining agreements. We consider our employee relations to be genérally good. While some of
our hospitals experience union organizing activity from time to time, we do not currently expect these efforts
to materially affect our future operations.- . C : '

Government Regulation
Overview

All participants in the healthcare industry are required to comply with extensive government regulations
at the federal, state and local levels. Under these laws and regulations, hospitals must meet requirements for
licensure and qualify to participate in government healthcare programs, including the Medicare and Medicaid
programs. These requirements relate to the adequacy of medical care, equipment, personnel, operating policies
and procedures, maintenance of adequate records, rate-setting, compliance with building codes and.
environmental protection laws. If we fail to comply with applicable laws and regulations, we may be subject
to criminal penalties and civil sanctions, and our hospitals may lose their licenses and ability to participate in
Medicare and Medicaid. In addition, government regulations frequently change. When regulations change, we
may be required to make changes in our facilities, equipment, personnel and services so that our hospitals
remain licensed and qualified to participate in these programs. We believe that our hospitals are in substantial
compliance with current federal, state and local regulations and standards.

Acute care hospitals are subject to periodic_ inspection by federal, state and local authorities to determine
their compliance with applicable regulations and requirements necessary for licensing, certification and
accreditation. All of our hospitals are currently licensed under appropriate state laws and are qualified to
participate in the Medicaré and Medicaid programs. In addition, as‘of December 31, 2010, all of our hospitals
with the exception of Bluegrass Community Hospital, were accredited by the Joint Commission or HFAP.

’

Utilization Review _ _
Federal law contains numerous provisions designed to ensure that services rendered by hospitals to
Medicare and Medicaid patients meet professionally recognized standards and are medically necessary and
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that claims for reimbursement are properly filed. These provisions include a requirement that a sampling of
admissions of Medicare and Medicaid patients must be reviewed by quality improvement organizations, which
review the appropriateness of Medicare and Medicaid patient admissions and discharges, the quality of care
provided, the validity of MS-DRG classifications and the appropriateness of cases of extraordinary length of
stay or cost on a post-discharge basis. Quality improvement organizations may deny payment for services or
assess fines and also have the authority to recommend to HHS that a provider which is in substantial
noncomphance with the standards of the quality improvement organization be excluded from participation in
the Medicare program. Utilization review is also a requirement of most non-governmental managed care
organizations. :

Value-Based Purchasing

There is a trend in the healthcare industry toward value-based purchasing of healthcare services. These --
value-based purchasing programs include both public reporting of quality data and preventable adverse events
tied to the quality and efficiency of care provided by facilities. Governmental programs including Medicare
and Medicaid currently require hospitals to report certain quality data to receive full reimbursement updates.

In addition, Medicare does not reimburse for care related to certain preventable adverse- events. Many large
commercial payers currently require hospitals to report quality data and several commercml payers do not
reimburse hospitals for certain preventable adverse events.

The Affordable Care Act contains a number of provisions intended to promote value-based purchasing.
Effective July 1, 2011, the Affordable Care Act will prohibit the use of federal funds under the Medicaid
program to reimburse providers for medical- assistance provided to treat HACs. Beginning in FFY 2015,
hospitals that fall into the top 25% of national risk-adjusted HAC rates for all hospitals in the previous year -
will receive a 1% reduction in their total Medicare payments. Hospitals with excessive readmissions for
conditions designated by HHS will receive reduced payments for all inpatient discharges, not just discharges
relating to the condltlons subject to the excessive readmission standard.

The Affordable Care Act also requires HHS to implement a value-based purchasing program for inpatient
hospital services. The Affordable Care Act requires HHS to reduce inpatient hospital payments for all
discharges by a percentage beginning at 1% in FFY 2013 and increasing by 0.25% each fiscal year up-t0-2%
in FFY 2017 and subsequent years. HHS will pool the amount collected from these reductions to fund
payments to reward hospitals that meet or exceed certain quality performance standards established by HHS.
HHS will determine the amount each hospital that meets or exceeds the quality performance standards w111
receive from the pool of dollars created by these payment reductions.

Fraud and Abuse Laws

Participation in the Medicare and/or Medicaid programs is heavily regulated by federal statutes and -
regulations. If a hospital fails to comply substantially with the numerous federal laws governing the facility’s
activities, the hospital’s participation in the Medicare and/or Medicaid programs may be terminated and/or
civil or criminal penalties may be imposed. For example, a hospital may lose its ab111ty to participate in the
Medicare and/or Medicaid programs if it performs any of the following acts:

*  making claims to Medicare and/or Medicaid for services not provided or mlsrepresentlng actual
services. provided in order to obtain higher payments;

*  paying money to induce the referral of patients or purchase of items or services where such 1tems or
services are reimbursable under a federal or state healthcare program; or :

*  failing to provide appropriate emergency medical screening services to any individual who comes to
a hospital’s campus or otherwise failing to properly treat and transfer emergency patients.

HIPAA broadened the scope of the fraud and abuse laws by adding several criminal statutes that apply to
all health plans regardless of whether any payments by such plans are made by or through a federal healthcare
program. In addition, HIPAA created civil penalties for certain proscribed conduct, including upcoding and
billing for medically unnecessary goods or services and established new enforcement mechanisms to combat
fraud and abuse. These new mechanisms include a bounty system, where a portion of the payments recovered
is returned to the applicable government agency, as well as a whistleblower program. HIPAA also expanded
the categories of persons that may be excluded from participation in federal and state healthcare programs. .
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The Anti-kickback Statute prohibits the payment, receipt, offer or solicitation of anything of value, -
whether in cash or in kind, with the intent of generating referrals or orders for services or items covered by a
federal or state healthcare program. Violations of the Anti-kickback Statute are punishable by criminal and
civil fines, exclusion from federal and state healthcare programs, imprisonment and damages up to three times
the total dollar amount-involved. - I

The Office of Inspector General (“OIG™) of HHS is responsible for identifying fraud and abuse activities
in government programs. In order to fulfill its duties, the OIG performs audits, investigations and inspections.
In addition, it provides guidance to healthcare providers by identifying types of activities that could violate the
Anti-kickback Statute. The OIG has identified the following hospital/physician incentive arrangements as
potential violations: v C ) ‘ ' C

*  payment of any incentive by a hospital each time a phys_ician,réfers a patient to the -ho_spitf;ll;

*  use of free or significantly discounted office space or equipment;

* provision of free or significantly discounted billing, nursing or other. staff services;

' free training (other thanr"compliance training) for a physician’s office staff, including management
‘and laboratory technique ‘training; - I

*  guarantees which provide' that if a physician’s income fails to reach a predetermined level, the
hospital will pay any portion of the remainder;

*  low-interest or interest-free loans, or loans which may be forgiven if a physician refers patients to
* the hospital; R " : 5

. paymént of the costs for a_physician’s travel and expenses for conferences;

*  payment of services which require few, if any, substantive duties by .the physician or which are in
excess of the fair market value of the services rendered; or

*  purchasing goods or services from physicians at prices in excess of their fair market value.

We have a variety of financial relationships with physicians who refer patients to our hospitals, including
employment contracts, leases, joint ventures, independent contractor agreements and professional service
agreements. Physicians may also own shares of our common stock. We provide financial incentives to recruit
physicians to relocate to communities served by our hospitals. These incentives for relocation include
minimum revenue guarantees and, in some cases, loans. The OIG is authorized to publish. regulations -
outlining activities and business relationships that would be deemed not to Violate the Anti-kickback Statute.
These regulations are known as “‘safe harbor” regulations: Failure to comply with the safe harbor regulations
does not make conduct illegal, but instead the safe harbors delineate standards that, if complied with, protect
conduct that might otherwise be deemed in violation of the Anti-kickback Statute. We intend for all our
business arrangements to be in full compliance with the Anti-kickback .Statute and seek to structure each of
our arrangements with physicians to fit as closely as. possible within an applicable safe harbor. However, not
all of our business arrangements fit wholly. within safe harbors, so we cannot guarantee that these
arrangements will not be scrutinized by. government authorities or, if scrutinized, that they will be determined
to be in compliance with the Anti-kickback Statute or other applicable laws. If we violate the Anti-kickback
Statute, we would be subject to criminal and civil penalties and/or possible exclusion from participating in.
Medicare, Medicaid or other governmental healthcare programs.

The Stark law prohibits physicians from referring Medicare and Medicaid patients to selected types of
healthcare entities in which they or any of their immediate family members have ownership or.a compensation
relationship unless an exception applies. These types of referrals are commonly known as “self referrals.” A
violation of the Stark law may result in a denial of payment and require refunds to patients and the Medicare
program for all claims that were unlawfully submitted during the entire period that the violation existed, civil
monetary penalties of up to $15,000 for each violation, civil monetary penalties of up to $100,000 for
circumvention schemes, civil monetary penalties of up to $10,000 for each day that an entity fails to report
required information to HHS, and exclusion from participation in the Medicare and Medicaid programs and
other federal programs. In addition, violations of the Stark law could also result in penalties under the federal
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False Claims Act. There are ownership and compensation arrangement exceptions to the self-referral
prohibition. There are also exceptions for many of the customary financial arrangements between physicians
and facilities, including employment contracts, leases and recruitment agreements, and there is.a “whole
hospital exception,” which allows a physician to make a referral to a hospital if the physician owns an interest
in the entire hospital, as opposed to an ownership interest in a department of the' hospital.. The Affordable-Care
Act significantly modified the requirements of the whole hospital exception and placed a number of
restncnons on the ownership structure, operatlons and expansion of phys1c1an owned hosplta]s Two of our
facilities are subject to those requirements. We intend for our financial arrangements with physwlans to .
comply with the exceptlons included in the Stark law and regulatlons In recent years, CMS has issued a
number of proposed and final rules modifying the Stark law exceptions. While some changes have been
implemented, others remain in proposed form or have been delayed. Further, the Stark law and related
regulations have been subject to little judicial interpretation to date. We anticipate that there will ‘be further
changes in the future that will require us to-continue to modify our activities.. .. -

In addition to issuing new regulations, or applying new interpretations to. existing rules or regulations, the
federal government has also modified its approach for ensuring compliance with and enforcing penalties for
violations of the Stark law. In 2010, CMS also issued a “self- referral disclosure protocol” for hospitals and
other providers that wish to self-disclose potential violations of the Stark law and attempt to resolve those
potential violations and any related overpayment liabilities at levels below the maximum penalties and
amounts set forth in the statute. In light of the provisions of the Affordable Care Act that created potential
False Claims Act liabilities for failing to report and repay known overpayments to the federal government in a
timely manner, hospitals and other healthcare providers are encouraged to disclose potential viclations of the
Stark law to CMS. It is likely that self- disclosure of Stark law violations will continue in the future. We
cannot predict how CMS will resolve the issues reported through the self-referral dlsclosure protocol or if the
protocol will be modified in the future. :

Federal False Claims Act

The federal False Claims Act prohibits providers from, among other things, knowingly submitting false or
fraudulent claims for payment to the federal government. The federal False Claims Act defines the term
“knowingly” broadly, and while simple negligence generally will not give rise to liability, submitting a claim -
with reckless disregard to its truth or falsity can constitute the “knowing” submission of a false or fraudulent.
claim for the purposes of the False Claims Act. The “qui tam” or. “whistleblower” provisions of the False
Claims Act allow private individuals to bring actions under the False Claims Act on behalf of the government,
These private parties are entitled to share in any amounts recovered by the government, and, as a result, the
number of “whistleblower” lawsuits that have been filed against providers has increased significantly in recent
years. When a private party brings a qui tam action under the federal False Claims Act, the defendant will -
generally not be aware of the lawsuit until the government makes a determination whether it will intervene
and take a lead in the litigation. If a provider is found to be liable under the fedéral False Claims Act, the
provider may be required to pay up to three times the actual damages sustained by the government plus
mandatory civil rnonetary penalties of between $5,500 to $11,000 for each ‘separate false claim. The
government has used the federal False Claims Act to prosecute Medicare and other government healthcare ‘
program fraud such as coding errors, billing for services not provided, submlttmg false cost reports and
providing care that is not medically necessary or that is substandard in quality.

" Recent Changes in the Regulatory Environment

The Fraud Enforcement and Recovery Act 0f 2009 expanded the scope of the federal False Clalms Act
by, among other things, creating liability for knowingly and improperly avoiding or decreasing an obhgatlon
to pay money to the federal government. In addition, the Affordable Care Act created federal False Claims Act

20




liability for the knowing failure to report and réturn-an overpayment within 60 days of the identification of the
overpayment or the date by which a corresponding cost report is due, whichever is later. The Affordable Care
Act also provides that claims submitted in connection with patient referrals that result from violations of the

- Anti-kickback Statute constitute false clairs for the purposes of the federal False Claims Act, and some courts
have held that a violation of the Stark law can result in False Claims Act liability, as well.

The Affordable Care Act makes several significant changes to healthcare fraud and abuse laws, provides
additional enforcement tools to the government, increases cooperation between agencies by establishing
mechanisms for the sharing of information ahd enhances criminal and administrative penalties for
non-compliance. For example, the Affordable Care Act (1) prbvides $350 million in increased federal funding
over the next 10 years to fight healthcare fraud, waste and abuse; (2) expands the scope»of the RAC program
to include Medicaid; (3) authorizes HHS, in consultation with the OIG, to suspend Medicare and Medicaid °
payments to a provider of services or a-supplier “pending an investigation of a credible allegation of fraud;”
(4) provides Medicare contractors with additional flexibility to conduct random prepayment reviews; and
(5) requires prQVidérs to adopt compliance programs that meet certain specified requirements as a condition of
their Medicare enrollment. - - ' ' '

State Laws

.. Many of the states in which we operate have adopted laws similar to the Anti-kickback Statute and the
Stark law. These state laws are generally very broad in scope and typically apply to patients whose treatment
is covered by the: Medicaid program and, in some cases, to all patients regardless of payment source. In
addition, many. of the states in which we operate have false claims statutes that impose civil and/or criminal
liability for the types of acts prohibited'by the.federal False Claims Act or that otherwise prohibit the
submission. of false or fraudulent claims to the state government or-Medicaid program. Violations of these
laws are punishable by civil and/or criminal penalties and, in many cases, the loss of the facility’s license.
Although we believe that our operations and arrangements with physicians and other referral. sources comply
with the applicable state fraud and abuse laws, most of these laws have not been interpreted by any court or
governmental agency, and there can be no assurance that the regulatory authorities responsible for enforcing
these laws will determine that our-arrangements comply .with the applicable requirements.

“Emergency Medical Treatment and Active Labor Act ‘ ‘

- All of our facilities are subject to the. Emergency Medical Treatment and Active Labor Act ,
(“EMTALA”). This federal law requires any hospital that participates in the Medicare program to conduct an
appropriate medical screening examination of every person who presents to.the hospital’s emergency -
department for treatment and, if the patient is suffering from an emergency medical condition, to either -
stabilize that condition or make an appropriate.transfer of the patient .to a facility that can handle the
condition. The obligation to screen and stabilize emergency medical conditions or transfer exists regardless of
a patient’s ability to pay for treatment. Off-campus facilities such as specialty clinics, surgery centers and
other facilities that lack emergency departments or otherwise do not treat emergency medical conditions are
not generally subject to the EMTALA. They must, however, have policies in place that explain how the
location should proceed in an emergency situation, such as transferring the patient to the closest hospital with
an emergency department. There are severe penalties under the EMTALA if a hospital fails to screen or
appropriately stabilize or transfer a patient or if the hospital delays appropriate treatment in order to first
inquire about the patient’s ability to pay, including civil monetary penalties and exclusion from participation in
the Medicare program. In-addition, an injured patient, the patient’s family or a medical facility that suffers a
financial loss as a direct result of another hospital’s violation of the law can bring a civil suit against that
other hospital. CMS has actively enforced the EMTALA and has indicated that it will continue to do so in the
future. Although we believe that our hospitals comply with the EMTALA, we cannot predict whether CMS
will implement new requirements in the future and, if so, whether our hospitals will comply ‘with any new
requirements. : ‘ )

Pﬁvacy and Security Requirements

- We are subject to the privacy and security requirements.of HIPAA and the Health Information
Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act (“HITECH Act”), which was enacted as part of ARRA.
Among other things, the HITECH Act strengthened the requirements and significantly increased the penalties
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for violations of the HIPAA privacy and security regulations. The privacy regulations of HIPAA apply to all
health plans, all healthcare clearinghouses and healthcare providers that transmit health information in an
electronic form in connection with HIPAA standard transactions, Our facilities are subject to the HIPAA
privacy regulations. The privacy standards apply to individually identifiable information held or disclosed by a
covered entity in any form, whether communicated electronically, on paper or orally. These standards impose
extensive administrative requirements on us, require our compliance with rules governing the use and
disclosure of this health information, and require us to impose these rules, by contract, on any business
associate to whom we disclose such infénnéﬂoﬁ in order to perform functions on our behalf. They also create
rights for patients. in their health information, such as the right to amend their health information. In addition,
our facilities will éontinue to remain subject to any state laws that are more restrictive than the privacy
regulations issued under HIPAA. - ' '

We also are subject to the HIPAA security regulations that are designed to protect the confidentiality,
availability and integrity of health information. These security standards require us to establish and maintain
reasonable and appropriate administrative, technical and physical safeguards to ensure the integrity,
confidentiality and the availability of electronic health and related financial information. We believe that we
are in material compliance with the privacy and security requirements of HIPAA.

The HITECH A¢t also creates a federal breach notification law that mirrors protections that many states
have passed in recent years. This law requires us to notify patients of any unauthorized access, acquisition, or
disclosure of their unsecured protected health information that poses significant risk of financial, reputational -
or other harm to a patient. In addition, a new breach notification requirement was established requiring
reporting of certain unauthorized access, acquisition, or disclosure of unsecured protected health information
that poses significant risk of financial, reputational or other harm to a patient to the Secretary of HHS and, in -
some cases, local media outlets. On August 24, 2009, HHS issued regulations immiplementing certain of the -
requirements of the HITECH Act, including the breach notification requirements providing obligations for
compiling and reporting of certain information relating to breaches by providers and their business associates
(the “Interim Final Breach Rule”), effective September 23, 2009. HHS subsequently promulgated and
withdrew a final breach notification rulé for review, but it intends to publish a final data breach rule in the
coming months. Until such time as a new final breach rule is issued, the Interim Final Breach Rule remains in
effect. In addition, our facilities remain subject to any state laws that relate to the reporting of data breaches
that are more restrictive than the regulations issued under HIPAA and the requirements of the HITECH Act.

On July 14, 2010, HHS issued a notice of proposed rulemaking to modify the HIPAA privacy, security
and enforcement regulations: These changes may require substantial operational changes for HIPAA covered
entities and their business -associates, including, in part, new requirements for business associate agreements
and a transition period for compliance, new limits on the use and disclosure of health information for
marketing and fundraising, enhanced individuals’ rights to obtain electronic copies of their medical records
and restricted disclosure of certain information, new requirements for notices of privacy practices, modified
restrictions on authorizations for the use of health information for research, and new changes to the HIPAA
enforcement regulations. HHS has not yet released the final version of these rules; and, as a result, we cannot
quantify the financial impact of compliance with these new regulations. We could, however, incur expenses
associated with such compliance.” . : »

Violations of the HIPAA privacy and security regulations may result in civil and criminal penalties. The
HITECH Act significantly increased the penalties for violations by introducing a tiered. penalty system, with
penalties of up to $50,000 per violation with a maximum civil penalty of $1:5 million in a-calendar year for
violations of the same requirement. The HITECH Act also extended the application of certain provisions of
the security and privacy regulations to business associates and subjects business associates to civil and
criminal penalties for violation of the regulations. Under the HITECH Act, HHS is required to conduct
periodic compliance audits of covered entities and their business associates. The Secretary of HHS has issued
an interim final rule conforming HIPAA’s enforcement regulations to the HITECH Act’s statutory revisions.
This interim final rule also sets forth guidance on, among other things, how the tiered penalty structure will
reflect increasing levels of culpability and provides a prohibition on the imposition of penalties for any
violation that is corrected within a 30-day time period, as long as the violation was not due to willful neglect.
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~ This interim final rule became effective on November 30, 2009. The applicable state laws regulating the
privacy of patient health information could impose additional penalties.

The HITECH Act also ,aiuthorizes'State Attornéys General to bring civil actions seeking either an
injunction or damages in response to violations of HIPAA privacy and security regulations or the new data
breach law that affects the pﬁvacy'bf their state residents. We expect vigorous enforcement of the HITECH
Act’s requirements by HHS and State Attorneys General. Additional final rules relating to the HITECH Act,
HIPAA enforcement and breach notification are expected to be published in 2011. We cannot predict whether
our hospitals will be able to comply with the final rules or the financial impact to our hospitals in
implementing the requirements under the final rules if and when they take effect.

Red Flags Rule .

In addition, the Federal Trade Commission (“FTC”) issued a final rule, known. as the Red Flags Rule, in
October 2007 requiring financial institutions and businesses that maintain accounts that permit multiple
payments for primarily individual purposes. The Red Flag Program Clarification Act of 2010, signed on
December 18, 2010, appears to exclude certain healthcare providers from the Red Flags Rule, but permits the
FTC or relevant agencies to designate additional creditors subject to the Red Flags Rule through future
rulemaking if the agencies determine that the person in question maintains accounts subject to foreseeable risk
of identity theft. Compliance with any such future rulemaking may require additional expenditures in the
future.

Patient Safety and Quality Improvement Act of 2005

On July 29, 2005, the President signed the Patient Safety and Quality Improvement Act of 2005, which
has the goal of reducing medical errors and increasing patient safety. This legislation establishes a confidential
reporting structure in which providers can voluntarily report “Patient Safety Work Product” (“PSWP”) to
“Patient Safety Organizations” (“PSOs”). Under the system, PSWP is made privileged, confidential and
legally protected from disclosure. PSWP does not include medical, discharge or billing records or any other
original patient or provider records but does include information gathered specifically in connection with the
reporting of medical errors and improving patient safety. This legislation does not preempt state or federal
mandatory disclosure laws concerning information that does not constitute PSWP. PSOs will be certified by
the Secretary of the HHS for three-year periods after the Secretary develops applicable certification criteria.
PSOs will analyze PSWP, provide feedback to providers and may report non-identifiable PSWP to a database.
In addition, PSOs are expected to generate patient safety improvement strategies. We will monitor the
progress of these voluntary reporting programs and we anticipate that we will participate in some form when
the details are available. We anticipate that we'will participate as they are formed. ‘

Corporate Practice of Medicine and Fee-Splitting

Some states have laws that prohibit unlicensed persons or business entities, including corporations or
business organizations that own hospitals, from employing physicians. Some states also have adopted laws
that prohibit direct or indirect payments or fee-splitting arrangements between physicians and unlicensed
persons or business entities. Possible sanctions for violations of these restrictions include loss of a physician’s
license, civil and criminal penalties and rescission of business arrangements. These laws vary from state to
state, are often vague and have seldom been interpreted by the courts or regulatory agencies. We attempt.to
structure our arrangements with healthcare providers to comply with the relevant state laws and the few -
available regulatory interp_retatik;ns. ‘ '

Certificates of Need

The construction of new facilities, the acquisition or expansion of existing facilities and the addition of
new services and expensive equipment at our facilities may be subject to state laws that require prior approval
by state regulatory agencies. These certificate of need laws generally require that a state agency determine the
public need and give approval prior to the construction or acquisition of facilities or the addition of the new
equipment or services and allow competing healthcare providers to challenge the need for the facility, service
or equipment. We operate hospitals in ten states that have adopted certificate of need laws — Alabama,
Florida, Georgia, Kentucky, Louisiana, Mississippi, Nevada, Tennessee, Virginia and West Virginia. If we fail
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to obtain necessary state approval, we will not be able to-expand our facilities, complete acquisitions or add
new services at our facilities in these states. Violation of these state laws may result in the imposition of civil
sanctions or the revocation of hospital licenses. All other states in which we operate do not require a
certificate of need prior to the initiation of new healthcare services. In these other states, our facilities are
subject to competltlon from other prov1ders who may choose to enter the market by developlng new facﬂltles
or services.

Not-for-Profit Hospital Conversion Legislation

Many states have adopted legislation regarding the sale or other disposition of hospitals operated by
not-for-profit entities. In states that do not have such legislation, the attorneys general have demonstrated an
interest in reviewing these transactions under their general obligations to protect charitable assets. These
legislative and administrative efforts primarily focus on the appropriate valuation of the assets divested and the
use of the proceeds of the sale by the not-for-profit seller. Reviews and, in some instances, approval processes
adopted by state authorities can add additional time to the closing of a not- -for-profit hospital acquisition.
Future actions by state legislators or attorneys general may serlously delay or even prevent our ability to
acquire certain hospltals ‘ .

State Hospital Rate-Setting Activity

We currently operate two hospitals in West Virginia. The West Virginia Health Care Authority requires
that requests for increases in hospital charges be submitted annually. Requests for rate increases are reviewed
by the West Virginia Health Care Authority and are either approved at the amount requested, approved for
lower amounts than requested, or are rejected. As a result, in West Virginia, our ability to increase our rates to
compensate for increased costs per admission is limited and the operating margins for our hospitals located in
West Virginia may be adversely affected if we are not able to increase our rates as our expenses increase. We
can provide no assurance that other states in which we operate hospitals will not enact similar rate-setting .
laws in the future. s

‘Medical Malpractice Tort Law Reform

Medical malpractice tort law has historically been maintained at the state level. All states have laws
governing medical liability lawsuits. Over half of the states have limits on damages awards. Almost all states
have eliminated joint and several liability in malpractice lawsuits, and many states have established limits on
attorney fees. Recently, many states had bills introduced in their leglslatlve sessions to address medical.
malpractice tort reform. Proposed solutions include enacting limits on non-economic damages malpractlce
insurance reform, and gathering lawsuit claims data from malpractice i insurance companies and the courts for
the purpose of assessing the connection between malpractice settlements and premium rates. Reform
legislation has also been proposed, but not adopted at the federal level that could preempt addmonal state
legislation in this area.

Environmental Regttlation

Our healthcare operations generate medical wasté that must be disposed of in compliance with federal,’
state and local environmental laws, rules and regulations. Our operations, as well as our purchases and sales
of healthcare facilities, are also subject to compliance with various other environmental laws; rules and
regulations. Such compliance costs are not significant and we do not anticipate that such comphance costs will
be 51gn1ﬁcant in the future.

Regulatory Compliance Program

It is our policy to conduct our business with integrity and in compliance with the law. We have in place
and continue to. enhance a company-wide compliance program that focuses on .all areas of regulatory
compliance 1nclud1ng billing, reimbursement, cost reportmg practices and contractual arrangements with
referral sources.. ‘ , ‘
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This regulatory compliance program is intended to help ensure that high standards of conduct are
maintained in the operation of our business and that policies and procedures are implemented so that
émployees act in full compliance with all applicable laws, regulations and company pdlicies. Under the ,
regulatory compliance program, every employee and certain contractors. involved in patient care, coding and .
billing, receive initial and periodic legal compliance and ethics training. In addition, we regularly monitor our
ongoing compliance efforts and develop and implement policies and procedures designed to foster compliance.
with the law. The program also includes a mechanism for employees to report, without fear of retaliation, any
suspected legal or ethical violations to their supervisors, designated compliance officers in our hospitals, our
compliance hotline or directly to our corporate compliance office. We believe our compliance program is
consistent with standard industry practices. ' - " o '

The Audit and Compliance Committee of the Board of Directors oversees the Company’s compliance
efforts, and receives periodic reports from the Company’s compliance and audit services. groups, as well as
guidelines, policies and processes for monitoring and mitigating risk relating to the financial statements and
financial reporting processes, key credit risks, liquidity risks and market risks. In 2010, the Company created a
new Quality Committee, which plays asignificant role in evaluating clinical performance:-and industry
practices. T , : c : :

Risk Management and Insurance’

We retain a substantial portion of our professional and- general liability risks through a self insurance "
retention (“‘SIR”) insurance program administered in-house by our risk and insurance department with
assistance from our insurance brokers. For all claims made after April 1, 2009, .our SIR is:$5.0 million per
claim. For claims made before April 1, 2009, our SIR ranges from $10.0 million per claim to $25.0 million
per claim. Our SIR level is evaluated annually as a part of our insurance program’s renewal process. We -
maintain professional and general liability insurance with unrelated commercial insurance carriers to provide
for losses in excess of the SIR. ’ ‘ : : ’ : '

Our workers’ compensation program-has a $2.0 million deductible for each loss in all states except for
Wyoming. Workers’ compensation in Wyoming operates under a state specific program. :

We also. maintain directors’ and officers’, property and other types of insurance coverage with unrela;ted
commercial carriers. Our directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for current officers and directors
is a program that protects us as well as the individual director or officer. The limits provided by the directors’
and officers’ policy are based on mir_nerous factors, including the commercial insurance market. We‘mainﬁain
property insurance through an unrelated commercial insurance colr'l_lpan'y.‘We maintain large property insurance
deductibles with respect to our facilities in coastal regions because of the high wind exposure and the related
cost of ‘such coverage. We have three locations that are considered a high exposure to named-storm risk and
carry a deductible of 3% of their respective property values.-

‘We operate a captivé insurance compahy under the name Point. of Life Indemnity, Ltd. This captive

insurance company, which is licensed by the Cayman Islands Monetary Authority and is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, issues malpractice insurance policies to our employed physicians.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors.

There are several factors, some beyond our control that could cause results to differ significantly from
our expectations. Some of these factors are described below. Other factors, such as market, operational,
liquidity, interest rate and other risks, are described elsewhere in ‘this report (see, for-example, Part II,

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations). Any factor
described in this report could by itself, or together with one or more factors, adversely affect our business,
results of operations and/or financial condition. There may be factors not described in this report that could
also cause results to differ from our expectations.

We cannot predict the effect that healthcare reform and other changes in govemment programs may ‘
have on our business, financial condition or results of operations.

The Affordable Care Act dramatically alters the United States healthcare system and is intended to
decrease the number of uninsured Americans and reduce overall healthcare costs. The Affordable Care Act
attempts to achieve these goals by, among other things, requiring most Americans to obtain health insurance,
expanding Medicare and Medicaid eligibility, reducing Medicare and Medicaid payments, including DSH
payments to providers, expanding the Medicare program’s use of value-based purchasing programs, tying
hospital payments to the satisfaction of certain quality criteria, and bundling payments to hospitals and other
providers. The Affordable Care Act also contains a number of measures that are intended to reduce fraud and
abuse in the Medicare and Medicaid programs, such as requiring the use of RACs in the Medicaid program
expanding the scope of the federal False Claims Act and generally prohibiting physician-owned hospitals from
adding new physician owners or increasing the number of beds and operating rooms for which they are
licensed. Because. a majority of the measures contained in the Affordable Care Act do not take effect until
2013, it is difficult to predict the impact the Affordable Care Act will have on our facilities. In addition, there
have been a number of challenges to the Affordable Care Act, and some courts have ruled that the
requirement for individuals to carry health insurance or the Affordable Health Care Act in its entirety is
unconstitutional. Several bills have been and will likely continue to be introduced in Congress to repeal or
amend all or significant provisions of the Affordable Care Act. It is difficult to predict the full impact of the
Affordable Care Act due to its complexity, lack of implementing regulations and interpretive guidance, gradual
and potentially delayed implementation, pending court challenges, and possible repeal and/or amendment, as
well as our inability to foresee how individuals and businesses will respond to the choices afforded them by
the Affordable Care Act. Depending on further legislative developments, how the pending court challenges are
resolved, and how the Affordable Care Act is ultimately interpreted and implemented, it could have an adverse
effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our revenues will decline if federal or state programs reduce our Medicare or Medicaid payments or if
managed care companies reduce reimbursement amounts. In addition, the Jinancial condition of payors
and healthcare cost containment initiatives may limit our revenues and proﬁtabzlzty

In 2010, we derived 42.0% of our revenues from the Medicare and Medicaid programs, collectively. The
Medicare and Medicaid programs are subject to statutory and regulatory changes, administrative rulings,
interpretations and determinations concerning patient eligibility requirements, funding levels and the method
of calculating payments or reimbursements, among other things; requirements for utilization review; and
federal and state funding restrictions, all of which could materially increase or decrease payments from these
government programs in the future, as well as affect the timing of payments to our facilities.

We are unable to predict the effect of future government healthcare funding policy changes on our
operations. If the rates paid by governmental payors are reduced, if the scope of services covered by
governmental payors is limited or if we, or one or more of our subsidiaries’ hospitals, are excluded from
participation in the Medicare or Medicaid program or any other government healthcare program, there could
be a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

During the past several years, healthcare payors, such as federal and state governments, insurance
companies and employers, have undertaken initiatives to revise payment methodologies and monitor
healthcare costs. As part of their efforts to contain healthcare costs, payors increasingly are demanding
discounted fee structures or the assumption by healthcare providers of all or a portion of the financial risk
relating to paying for care provided, often in exchange for exclusive or preferred participation in their benefit
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plans. We expect efforts to impose greater discounts and more stringent cost controls by government and other
payors to continue, thereby reducing'the payments we receive for our services. In addition, these payors have
instituted policies and procedures to substantially reduce or limit the use of inpatient services. For example,
CMS has transitioned to full implementation of the MS-DRG system, which represents a refinement to the
existing diagnosis-related group system. Future realignments in the MS-DRG system could impact the margins
we receive for certain services. Furthermore, the Affordable Care Act provides for material reductions in the
growth of Medicare program spending, including reductions in Medicare market basket updates, and Medicare
DSH funding. Medicare payments in FFY 2011 for inpatient hospital services are expected to be slightly
lower than payments for the same services in FFY 2010 because of reductions resulting from the Affordable
Care Act and the MS-DRG implementation.

All of our hospitals are certified as providers of Medicaid services. Medicaid programs are jointly funded
by federal and state governments and are _administered' by states under an approved plan that provides hospital
and other healthcare benefits to qualifying individuals who are unable to afford care. A number of states,
howevet, are experiencing budget problems and have adopted or are considering legislation designed to reduce
their Medicaid expenditures, including enrolling Medicaid recipients in managed care programs and imposing
additional taxes on hospitals to help findnce or expand states’ Medicaid systems. The ARRA and the
Assistance Act include increased federal funding for Medicaid throﬁgh Tune 30, 2011. However, we are unable
to predict at this time how this will impact states’ ability to provide Medicaid coverage in the future, _
particularly in light of the expanded Medicaid eligibility requirements that become effective in 2014 as part of
the Affordable Care Act. It is possible that, despite Congress’s actions, budgetary pressures will force states to
resort to some of the cost saving measures mentioned above. These efforts could have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition, rg‘sults ‘of operations- or cash flows.

For example, one of our hospitals, Memorial Medical Center of Las Cruces, New Mexico (“MMC”),
received approximately $38.5 million during 2010 under the New Mexico Sole Community Provider Program
(the “SCPP”). While the funds made available to MMC (and other New Mexico hospitals that participate in
the SCPP) are not tied directly to the cost of actual services provided, MMC is required to provide an annual
report of its costs to Dona Ana County (the county primarily served by MMC).. Once desired funding levels
were established by Dona Ana County for 2009, the county submitted funds to the New Mexico Human
Services Department (the “NMHSD”), which in turn were combined with funds sent by other New Mexico
counties and then used by the NMHSD to request matching funds from the federal government. Once the
federal matching dollars We;k: made available to the state, the resulting sole community prbvid_er payment was
made under the SCPP directly to MMC (and other hospitals participating in the SCPP) by the NMHSD. The
payments made by the NMHSD to hospitals pursuant to the SCPP are based on formulas established with
respect to each participating hospital. The SCPP was created in 1993 and has resulted in significant payments
to MMC in prior years. Like miany other states, there is a general concern in New Mexico that the SCPP
cannot be sustained at current funding levels as a result of budget concerns and other factors. It seems likely,
as a result, that the SCPP will soon be reconstituted. We are not able to predict what changés may be made to
the SCPP, but any change in the SCPP is likely to reduce payments made to MMC.

We are subject to increasingly stringent governmental regulation, and may be subjected to allegations
that we have failed to comply with governmental regulations which could result in sanctions and even
greater scrutiny that reduce our revenues and profitability.

All participants in the healthcare industry are required to comply with many laws and regulations at the
federal, state and local government levels. These laws and regulations require that hospitals meet various
requirements, including those relating to hospitals’ relationships with physicians and other referral sources, the
adequacy and quality of medical care, equipment, personnel, operating policies and procedures, billing and
cost reports, payment for services and supplies, maintenance of adequate records, privacy, compliance with
building codes and environmental protection, among other matters. Many of the laws and regulations
applicable to the healthcare are complex, and, in public statements, governmental authorities have taken
positions on issues for which little official interpretation was previously available. Some of these positions
appear to be inconsistent with common practices within the industry but have not previously been challenged.
In addition, the monitoring of compliance with and the enforcing of penalties for violations of these laws and
regulations is changing and increasing. For example, in 2010, CMS issued a “self-referral disclosure
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protocol” for hespitals and other providers that wish to self-disclose potential violations of the Stark law and
attempt to resolve those potential violations and any related overpayment liabilities at levels below the
maximum penalties and amounts set forth in the statute. In light of the provisions of the Affordable Care Act
that created potential False Claims Act liabilities for failing to report and repay known overpayments and
return an overpayment within sixty (60) days of the identification of the overpayment or the date by which a
corresponding cost report is due, whichever is later, hospitals and other healthcare providers are encouraged to
disclose potential violations of the Stark law to CMS. It is likely that self-disclosure of Stark violations will -
continue in the future. Moreover, some government investigations that have in the past been conducted under
the civil provisions of federal law are now being conducted as cnmmal 1nvest1gat10ns under the Medicare
fraud and abuse laws.

R

The healthcare industry has seen a_ number of ongomg 1nvest1gat10ns related to patient referrals physician

_ recruiting practrces cost reporting and brll1ng practrces laboratory and home healthcare services, physician

ownership of hospitals and other healthcare providers, and joint ventures 1nvolv1ng hospitals and physicians.
Federal and state government agencies have announced heightened and coordinated civil and criminal
enforcement efforts. In -addition, the OIG (Wthh is responsible for 1nvest1gat1ng fraud and abuse activities in
government programs) and the U.S. Department of Justice penodlcally establish targeted enforcement
Initiatives that focus on specific billing practices or other areas that are highly susceptible to fraud and abuse.
The OIG reported savings and expected recoveries for federal healthcare programs of more than $25.9 billion
for FFY 2010 as a result of its enforcement activities. .

. Hosp1ta1s contmue to be one of 'the primary focal areas of the OIG and other governmental fraud and
abuse programs. In January 2005, the OIG issued Supplemental Compliance Program Guidance for Hospitals
that focuses on' hospital compliance risk areas. Some of the risk.areas highlighted by the OIG include correct
outpatient procedure coding, revising admission and drscharge policies'to reflect current CMS rules,
submitting ‘appropriate ¢laims for supplemental payments such as pass-through costs and outlier payments and
a general discussion of theé fraud and abuse risks related to financial relationships with referral sources. Each
FFY, the OIG also pubhshes a General Work Plan that provrdes a brief description of the activities that the
OIG plans to initiate or ‘continue with respect to the programs and operations of HHS and details the areas
that the OIG believes are prone to fraud and abuse. In addition, the claims review strategies used by the’
RACs generally 1nclude a review of h1gh dollar claims, 1nclud1ng inpatient hospital claims. As a result, a'large
majorrty of the total amounts recovered by RACs has come frorn hospltals The Affordable Care Act expands
the RAC program’s’ scope to mclude managed Medicare and to include Medicaid claims by requiring all states
to establish Pprograms to contract with RACs in 2011. In addrtlon CMS employs Medicaid Integrity
Contractors (“MICs”) to perform post-payment audits of Medrcald claims and 1dent1fy overpayments The
Affordable Care Act increases federal fundlng for the MIC program for FFY 2011 and later years. In addition
to RACs and MICs, the state Medrcald agencies and other contractors have also increased their review
activities.

The laws and regulations with which we must comply are complex and subject to change. In the future,
different interpretations or enforcement of these laws-and regulations could subject our practices to allegations.
of impropriety or illegality or could require us to make changes in our facilities, equipment, personnel,
services, capital expenditure programs and operating expenses. If we fail to comply with applicable laws and
regulations, we could suffer civil or criminal penalties, 1nclud1ng the loss of our licenses to operate our
hospitals and our ab111ty to partrc1pate in the Medicare, Medrcard and other federal and state healthcare
programs.

Finally, we are subject to various federal, state and local statites and ‘ordinances regulating the discharge
of materials into the environment. Our healthcare opérations generate medical waste, such as pharmaceuticals,
biological materials and disposable medical instruments that must be d1sposed of in compliance with federal,
state and local environmental laws, rules and regulations. Our operations ‘are also ‘subject to various other
environmental laws, rules and regulations. Envrronmental regulations also may apply when we renovate or
refurbish hospitals, particularly older facilities.
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We may continue to see the growth of uninsured and “patient due” accounts, and deterioration in the
collectability of these accounts could adversely aﬁ"ect our collections of accounts recetvable, results of
operations and cash flows.

The 'prirnarnyolleetion risks associated with our accounts receivable relate to the uninsured patient.
accounts and patient accounts for which the priniary insurance carrier has paid the amounts covered by the
apphcable agreemeiit, but patlent respons1b111ty amounts (deductibles and co-payments) remain outstanding.
The provision for doubtful accounts relates primarily to amounts due directly from patients. This risk has
increased, and will likely continue to increase, as more individuals enroli in high deductible insurance plans or
those with high co-payments or who have no insurance coverage. These trends will likely be exacerbated if
general economic conditions remain challenging or if unemployment levels in the communitiés in which we
operate rise. As unemployment rates increase, our business strategies to generate organic growth and to
improve admissions and ad]usted admlssmns at our hospltals could become more difficult to accomplish.

The amount of our:provision for doubtful accounts is based on our assessments of historical collection
trends, business and economic conditions; trends in federal and state governmental and private employer
health coverage and other collection indicators. A continuation in trends that results in increasing the
proportion of accounts receivable bemg comprised of uninsured accounts and deterioration in the collectability
of these accounts could adversely affect our collections of accounts recelvable results of operations and cash
flows. As enacted, the Affordable Care Act seeks to decrease, over time, the number of uninsured 1nd1v1duals
Among other things, the Aﬁordable Care Act will, begmmng in 2014, expand Medicaid and incentivize
employers to. oﬂer, and requ1re 1nd1v1duals to carry, health insurance or be subject to penalties. However, it is
difficult to predict the full impact of the Affordablé Care Act due to its complex1ty, lack of 1mplementmg
regulations and interpretive guidance, gradual and potentially delayed implementation, pending court
challenges, and possible repeal and/or amendment, as well as our inability to foresee how individuals and
businesses will respond to the choices afforded them by the Affordable Care Act. In addition, even after
implementation of the Affordable Care Act, we may continue to experience bad debts and be required to
provide uninsured discounts and charity care for undocumented aliens who are not permitted to enroll in a
health insurance exchange or government healthcare programs.

Controls designed to reduce inpatient services may reduce our revenues.

Controls 1mposed by Medicare, Medlcald and commercial thlrd-party payors des1gned to reduce
admissions and lengths of stay, commonly referred to as “utilization review,” have affected and are expected
to continue to affect. our facilities. Federal law contains numerous provisions designed to ensure that services
rendered by hospitals to Medicare and Medicaid patients meet professwnally recognized standards and are
medlcally necessary and that claims for reimbursement are properly filed. These provisions include a
requirement that a sampling of admissions of Medicare and Medicaid patients must be reviewed by quality
improvement organizations, which review the appropriateness of Medicare and Medicaid patient admissions
and discharges, the quality of care provided, the validity of MS-DRG classifications and the appropriateness of
cases of extraordinary length of stay or cost on a post-discharge basis. Quality improvement organizations
may deny payment for services or assess fines and also have the authority to recommend to HHS :that a
provider which is in substantial noncompliance with the standards of the quality improvement organization be
excluded from participation in the Medicare program. The Affordable Care Act potentially expands the use of
prepayment review by Medicare contractors by ehmmatmg statutory restrictions on their use, and, as a result,
efforts to impose more stringent cost controls are expected to continue. Utilization rev1ew isalsoa
requirement of most non-governmental managed care organlzatlons and other thlrd—par[y payors. Inpatient
utilization, average lengths of stay and occupancy rates continue to be negatively affected by payor-required
preadmission authorization and utilization review and by third party payor pressure to maximize outpatient
and alternative healthcare delivery services for less acutely ill patients. Although we are unable to predict the
effect these controls and changes will have on our operations, significant limits on the scope of services
reimbursed and on reimbursement rates and fees could have a material, adverse effect on our business,
financial posmon and results of operanons
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" The industry trend towards value-based purchasing may negatively impact our revenues.

There is a trend in the healthcare industry toward value-based purchasing of healthcare services. These
value-based purchasing programs include both public reporting of quality data and preventable adverse events
tied to the quality and efficiency of care provided by facilities. Governmental programs including Medicare
and Medicaid currently require hospitals to report certain quality data to receive full reimbursement updates.
In addition, Medicare does not reimburse for care related to certain preventable adverse events. Many large
commercial payors currently require hospitals to report quality data, and several commercial payors do not

reimburse hospitals for certain preventable adverse events.

The Affordable Care Act contains a number of provisions intended to promote value-based purchasing.
Effective July 1, 2011, the Affordable Care Act will prohibit the use -of federal funds under the Medicaid
program to reimburse providers for medical assistance provided to-treat HACs. Beginning in FFY 2015,
hospitals that fall into the top 25% of national risk-adjusted HAC rates for all hospitals. in the previous year
will receive a 1% reduction in their total Medicare payments. Hospitals with excessive readmissions for
conditions designated by HHS will receive reduced paymerits for all inpatient discharges, not just discharges
relating to the conditions subject to the excessive readmission standard. ‘ ’

The Affordable Care Act also requires HHS to implement a value¥ba$éd purchasing program for inpatient
hospital services. The Affordable Care Act requires HHS to reduce inpatient hospital payments for all
discharges by a percentage beginning at 1% in FFY 2013 and increasing by 0.25% each fiscal year up to 2%
in FFY 2017 and subsequent years. HHS will pool the amount collected from these reductions to fund
payments to reward hospitals that meet or exceed certain quality performance standards established by HHS.
HHS will determine the amount each hospital that meets or exceeds the quality performance standards will
receive from the pool of dollars created by these payment reductions. '

We expect value-based purchasing programs, including programs that condition reimbursement on patient
outcome measures, to become more common and to involve a‘higher percentage of reimbursement amounts.
We are unable at this time to predict how. this trend will affect our results of operations, but it could
negatively impact our revenues. :

The lingering effects of the economic recession could materially adversely affect our financial position,
results of operations or cash flows.

The United States economy recently emerged from an economic recession and unemployment levels
remain high. While certain healthcare spending is considered non-discretionary and may not be signiﬁcantly
impacted by economic downturns, other types of healthcare spending may be adversely impacted by such’
conditions. When patients are experiencing personal financial difficulties or have concerns about general
economic conditions, they may choose: o

*  to defer or forego elective surgeries and other non-emergent procedures, which are generally more
profitable lines of business for hospitals; or |

* -a high-deductible insurance plan or no insurance at ail, which increases a hospitals dependence on
self-pay revenue. Moreover, a greater number of uninsured patients may seek care in our emergency
Tooms. :

- We are unable to determine the specific impact of these economic conditions on our business at this time,
but we believe that the lingering effects of the economic recession could have an adverse impact on our
operations and could impact not only the healthcare decisions of our patients, but also the solvency of
managed care providers and other counterparties to transactions with us. ' '

The failure of certain employers, or the closure of certain manufacturing and other facilities in our
markets, can have a disproportionate impact on our hospitals. '

The economies in the non-urban communities in which our hospitals operate are often dependant on a
small number of large employers, especially manufacturing or other facilities. These employers often provide
income and health insurance for a disproportionately large number of community residents who may depend
on our hospitals for care. The failure of one or more large employers, or the closure or substantial reduction
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in the number of individuals employed at manufacturing or other facilities located in or near many of the non-
urban communities in which our hospitals operate, could cause affected employees to move elsewhere for
employment or lose insurance coverage that was otherwise available to them. The occurrence of these events
may cause a material reduction in our revenues and results of operations or impede our business strategies
intended to generate organic growth and improve operating results at our hospitals.

If we do not effectively attract, recruit and retain qualified physicians, our ability to dehver healthcare
services efficiently will be adversely affected.

As a general matter, only physicians on our médical staffs may direct hospital admissions and the
services ordered once a patient is admitted to a hospital. As a result, the success of our hospitals depends in
part on the number and quality of the physicians on the medical staffs of our hospltals the admitting practices
of those physicians and maintaining good relations with those phys1c1ans

The success of our efforts to recruit and retain quality physicians depends on several factors 1nc1ud1ng
the actual and perceived quality of services provided by our hospitals, our ability to meet demands for new
technology and our ability to identify and communicate with physicians who want to practice in non-urban
communities. In particular, we face intense competition in the recruitment and retention of specialists because
of the difficulty in convincing these individuals of the benefits of practicing or remaining in practice in non-
urban communities. If the non-urban communities in which our hospitals operate are not seen as attractive,
then we could experience difficulty attracting and retaining physicians to practice in our comimunities. We may
not be able to recruit all of the physicians we target. In addition, we may incur increased malpractice expense
if the quality of physicians we recruit does not meet our expectations. :

‘Additionally, our ability to recruit physwlans is closely regulated. For example, the types amount and
duration of assistance we can provide to recruited physicians are limited by the Stark law, the Anti-kickback
Statute, state anti-kickback statutes, and related regulations. For example, the Stark law requires, among other
things, that recruitment assistance can only be provided to physicians who meet certain geographic and
practice requirements, that the amount of assistance cannot be changed during the term of the recruitment
agreement, and that the recruitment payments cannot generally benefit physicians currently in practice in the
community beyond recruitment costs actually incurred by them. In addition to these legal requirements, there
is competition from other communities and facilities for these physicians, and this competition continues after
the physician is practicing in one of our communities.

"The profitability of our employed physicians will be affécted by changes in the ‘Medicare and Medicaid
payment rates.

In recent years, physician payment amounts have been determined on a year by year basis. If the SGR is
applied to. the physician fee schedule in January 2012 as required by current legislation, Medicare payments
will decrease by 24.9%. We believe that physician employment by acute care hospitals has become more
common as a result of actual and potential reductions in payment amounts for physician services. Our
experience in employing physicians is consistent with industry trends. Employed physicians could present
more direct risks to us than those presented by independent members of our hospitals’ medical staffs. The
combination of increased salary cuts and potential liabilities are significant and if this trend continues, could
have an adverse effect on our results of operations.

' Our hospitals face competition for staffing, which may increase labor costs and reduce profitability.

In.addition to our physicians, the operations of our hospitals are dependent on the efforts, abilities -and
experience of our management and medical support personnel, such as nurses, pharmacists and lab
technicians. We compete with other healthcare providers in recruiting and retaining qualified management and
staff personnel responsible for the day-to-day operations of each of our hospitals, including nurses and other
non-physician healthcare professionals. In some markets, the scarce availability of nurses and other medical
support personnel presents a significant operating issue. This shortage may require us to enhance wages and
benefits to recruit and retain nurses and other medical support personnel, recruit personnel from foreign
countries, and hire more expensive temporary or contract personnel. In addition, the states in which we
operate could adopt mandatory nurse-staffing ratios or could reduce mandatory nurse staffing ratios already in
place. State-mandated nurse-staffing ratios could significantly affect labor costs and have an adverse impact on
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revenues if we are required to limit admissions in order to meet the required ratios. If our labor costs increase,
we may not:be able to raise rates to offset these increased costs. We also depend on the available labor pool .
of semi-skilled and unskilled employees in each of the markets in which we operate. Because a significant
percentage of our revenue consists of fixed, prospective payments, our ability to pass along increased labor
costs is constrained. Our failure to recruit and retain qualified management, nurses and other medical support -
personnel, or to control our labor costs could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition or ,
results of operations. ' '

The loss of certain physicians can have a disproportionate impact on certain of our. hospitals.

“Generally, the top ten attending physicians within each of our facilit_ies represent a large share of our .
inpatient revenues and admissions. The loss of one or-more of these physicians — even if temporary — could
cause a material reduction in our revenues, which could take significant time to replace given the difficulty
and cost associated with recruiting and retaining physicians. oo

We may be subjected to actions brought by the government under anti-fraud and abuse provisions or -
by individuals on the government’s behalf under the False Claims Act’s “qui tam” or “whistleblower”
provisions. : )

- We are subject to the Anti-kickback Statute, which prohibits hcélthcarc service providers from paying or
receiving remuneration to induce or arrange for the referral of patients or purchase of items or services '
covered by a federal or state healthcare program. We are also subject to the Stark law, which prohibits a
physician from referring Medicare and Medicaid patients to selected types of healthcare entities in which they
or any of their immediate family ‘members have ownership or a compensation relationship unless an éxception
applies. If regulatory authorities determine that any of our hospitals’ arrangements violate the Anti-kickback -
Statute or Stark law, we could be subject to'a number of significant liabilities such as criminal penalties (for
violations of the Anti-kickback Statute), civil monetary penalties, and/or exclusion from participation in
Medicare, Medicaid or other federal healthcare programs, any of which could impair our ability to operate one
or more of our hospitals profitably.” - ’ ' '

The federal False Claims Act prohibits providers from, among other things, knowingly submitting false
claims for payment to the federal government. The “qui tam” or “whistleblower” provisions of the False
Claims Act allow private individuals to bring actions under the False Claims Act on behalf of the government.
These pﬁvate parties are entitled to share in any amounts recovered by the government, and, as a result, the ‘
number of “whistleblower” lawsuits that have been filed against providers has increased significantly in recent
years. Defendants found to be liable under the federal False Claims Act may be required to pay three times
the actual damages sustained by the government, plus mandatory civil penalties ranging between $5,500 and -
$11,000 for each separate false claim:. x S :

There are many potential bases for liability under the False Claims Act. The government has used the
False Claims Act to prosecute Medicare and other government healthcare program fraud such as coding errors,
billing for services not provided, submitting false cost reports, and providing care that is not medically
necessary or that is substandard in quality. The Affordable Care Act also provides that claims submitted in
connection with patient referrals that result from violations of the Anti-kickback Statute constitute false claims
for the purposes of the federal False Claims Act, and some courts have held that a violation of the Stark law
can result in False Claims Act liability, as well. In addition, a number of states have adopted their own false
claims and whistleblower provisions whereby a private party may file a civil lawsuit in state court. We are .
required to provide information to our employees and certain contractors about state and federal false claims -
laws and whistleblower provisions and protections. o '

Although we intend and will endeavor to conduct our business in compliance with all applicable federal .
and state fraud and abuse laws, many of these laws are broadly worded and may be interpreted or applied:in
ways that cannot be predicted. Therefore, we cannot assure you that our arrangements or business practices
will not be subject to government scrutiny or be found to be in compliance with applicable fraud and abuse
laws. - : . : .
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If our access to licensed information systems is interrupted or restricted, or if we are not able to
integrate changes to our existing information systems or information systems of acquired. hospitals, our
operations could suffer. - ceo ' S

Our business depends significantly on effective information systems to process clinical and financial
information. Information systems require an iongoing;commitmcnt of significant resources to maintain and
enhance existing systems and develop new systems in order to keep pace with continuing changes in
- information processing technology. We rely heavily on HCA-Information Technology and Services, Inc.,
(“HCA-IT”), for information systems. HCA-IT provides us with financial, clinical, patient accounting and
network information services. HCA’s primary business is to own and operate hospitals, not to provide
information systems. We do not control HCA-IT’s systems. If these systems fail or are interrupted, if our
access to these systems is limited in the future or if HCA-IT develops systems more. appropriate for the urban
healthcare market and not suited for our hospitals, our operations could suffer. Our existing contract with
HCA-IT, expires on December 31, 2017 (including a wind-down period) unless extended by the parties.

System conversions are costly, time consuming and disruptive for physicians and employees.- Some of our
hospitals have recently converted or are currently converting from the system provided by HCA-IT to another
third party information system. Implementation of such conversions are very costly and, if such conversions
occurred on a large scale, could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of
operations or cash flows.

- In addition, as new: information systems are developed in the future, we will need to integrate them into
our existing systems. Evolving industry and regulatory standards, such as HIPAA and meaningful use
regulations, may require changes to our information systems in the future. We.may not be able to integraté
new systems or changes required to. our existing systems or systems .of acquired:hospitals in the future.
effectively or on a cost-efficient basis. - ’ - C :

If we fail to eﬁeétively' and timely implemer}t,t_.‘elec_tfonic health record systems, our operations could be
adversely affected. B ) S

As required by ARRA, the Secretary of HHS is in the process of developing and implementing an
incentive payment program for eligible hospitals and healthcare professionals that adopt and meaningfully use
EHR technology. HHS intends to use the Provider Enrollment, Chain and Ownership System (“PECOS”) to
verify Medicare enrollment prior to making EHR incentive program payments. If our hospitals and employed
professionals are unable to meet the requirements for participation in the incentive payment program,
including having an enrollment record in.PECOS, we will not be eligible to receive incentive payments that
could offset some of the costs of implementing EHR systems. Further, beginning in FFY 2015, eligible
hospitals and professionals that fail to demonstrate meaningful use of certified EHR technology will be subject
to reduced payments from Medicare. System conversions to comply with EHR could be time consuming and
disruptive for physicians and employees. Failure to implement EHR systems effectively and in a timely
manner could have a material adverse effect on our financial position and results of operations.

We may have difficulty acquiring hospit@l& Vim favorable te'rméc.

One element of our business stratégy is expansion through the acquisition of acute care hospitals in non-
urban markets. We face significant competition to acquire other attractive non-urban hospitals, and we may
not find suitable acquisitions on favorable terms. Our primary competitors for acquisitions have included for-
profit and tax-exempt hospitals and hospital systems and privately capitalized start-up companies. Buyers with
a stratégic desire for any particular hospital — for example, a hospital located near existing hospitals or those
who will realize economic synqrgies — have demonstrated an ability and willingness to pay premium prices
for hospitals. Strategic buyers, as a result, can present a competitiv_e barrier to our acquisition efforts.

Given the increasingly challenging regulatory and enforcement environment, our ability ‘to acquire
hospitals could be negatively impacted if targets‘are found to have material unresolved compliance issues,
including obligations to self-report violations of law or outstanding obligations to pay amounts under the
voluntary self-referral protocol or other laws. We.could experience delays in closing or fail to close
transactions with targets that initially were attractive but became unattractive as a result of a poor compliance
program, material non-compliance with laws or failure to timely. address-compliance risks. -
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The cost of -an acquisition could result in a dilutive effect on our results. of operations, depending on’
various factors, including the amount paid for the acquisition, the acquired hospital’s results of operations,
allocation of purchase price, effects of subsequent legislation and limitations on rate increases. In the past, we
have occasionally experienced temporary delays in improving the operating margins or effectively integrating
the operations of our acquired hospitals. In the future, if we are unablé to improve the operating margins of
acquired hospitals, operate them profitably or effectively integrate their operations, we may be unable to
achieve our growth strategy. '

Even if we are able to identify an attractive target, we may not be able to obtain financing, if necessary,
for any acquisitions or joint ventures that we might make or may be required to borrow at higher rates and on
less favorable terms. We may incur or assume additional indebtedness as a result of acquisitions. Our failure - -
to acquire non-urban hospitals consistent with our growth plans could prevent us from increasing our
revenues. : ' : : S

In recent years, the legislatures and attorneys general of several states have become more interested in
sales of hospitals by tax-exempt entities. This heightened scrutiny may increase the cost and difficulty, or
prevent the completion, of transactions with tax-exempt organizations in the future. '

We may encounter difficulty operating and integrating acquired hospitals.

We may be unable to timely and effectively integrate any hospitals that we acquire with our ongoing
operations. We may experience delays in implementing operating procedures and systems in newly acquired
hospitals. Integrating an acquired hospital could be expensive and. time consuming and could disrupt our
ongoing business, negatively affect cash.flow and distract management and other key personnel. In addition,
acquisition activity requires transitions from, and the integration of, operations and, usually, information
systems that are used by acquired hospitals. We will rely heavily on HCA-IT and other third parties for
information systems integration as part of a contractual arrangement for information technology services. We
may not be successful in causing HCA-IT and other third parties to convert our newly acquired hospitals’
information systems in a timely manner.

If we acquire hospitals with unknown. or contingent liabilities, we céuld become liable for material
obligations. '

Businesses we have acquired, or businesses we may acquire may have unknown or contingent liabilities
for past activities of acquired businesses, including liabilities for failure to comply with healthcare laws and
regulations, medical and general professional liabilities, worker’s compensation liabilities, previous tax
liabilities and unacceptable business practices. Although we have historically obtained, and we intend to
continue to obtain, contractual indemnification from sellers covering these matters, any indemnification
obtained from sellers may be insufficient to cover material claims or liabilities for past activities of acquired
businesses. '

Other hospitals and outpatient facilities provide services similar to those which we offer. In addition,
Physicians provide services in their offices that could be provided in our hospitals. These factors increase
the level of competition we face and may therefore adversely affect our revenues, profitability and market
share. :

Competition among hospitals and other healthcare service providers, including outpatient facilities, has
intensified in recent years. We compete with other hospitals, including larger tertiary care centers located in
larger metropolitan areas, and with physicians who provide services in their offices which could otherwise be
provided in our hospitals. Although the hospitals with which we compete may be a signiﬁcan; distance away
from our facilities, patients in our markets may migrate on their own to, may be referred by local physicians
to, or may be encouraged by their health plan to travel to these hospitals. Furthermore, some of the hespitals
with which we compete may offer more or different services than those available- at our hospitals, may have
more advanced equipment or, may have a medical staff that is thought to be better qualified. Also, some -of the
hospitals that compete with our facilities are owned by tax-supported governmental agencies or not-for-profit
entities supported by endowments and charitable contributions. These hospitals, in most instances, are also
exempt from paying sales, property and income taxes. , :
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We also face very significant and increasing competitions from services offered by physicians (including
physicians on our medical staffs) in their offices and from other specialized care providers, including
outpatient surgery, oncology, physical therapy and diagnostic centers (including many in which physicians
may have an ownership interest). Some of our hospitals have and will seek to develop outpatient facilities
where necessary to compete effectively. However, to the extent that other providers are successful in
developing outpatient facilities or physicians are able to offer additional, advanced services in their offices, our
market share for these services will likely decrease in the future. '

Quality of care and value-based purchasing have. also. become significant trends and competitive factors
in the healthcare industry. In 2005, CMS began making public performance data relating to ten quality.
measures that hospitals submit in connection with their Medicare reimbursement. Since that time, CMS has on
several occasions increased the number of quality measures hospitals are required to report in order to receive
the full IPPS and OPPS market basket updates. In addition, the Medicare program no. lqhger reimburses
hospitals for the cost of care relating to certain preventable adverse events, and many private healthcare
payors have adopted similar_policies. If the public performance data become a primary factor in where
patients choose to receive care, and if competing hospitals have better results than our hospitals on those
measures, we would expect that our patient volumes could decline. ‘

Our revenues are especially concentrated in a small numbef of states whzch will make us partzcularly
sensitive to regulatory and economic changes in those states.

Our revenues are particularly ‘sensitive to regulatory and economic changes in states in which we
generate the majority of our revenues including Kentucky, Virginia, New Mexico, Tennessee, West Virginia,
Alabama, Arizona, Louisiana and Texas. The following table contains our revenues and revenues as a
percentage of our total revenues by state for each of these states for the years presented (dollars in millions):

Revenue Concentration by State

Amount . - % of Total Revenues

2010 2009 . 2008 2010 . 2009 2008
Kentucky .................... $544.8  $485:5 $465.0 16:7% 164% = 17.2%
Virginia . .................... 404.7 384.1 381.6 124 - 13.0 © 141
New Mexico . ................ R 295.4 - 288.0 245.7 9.1 9.7 9.1
Tennessee . ... .. e S 2939 .. 2255 - 2232 9.0 7.6 8.3
West Virginia . ................ 273.7 250.7 - 2434 8.4 8.5 9.0
Alabama ............... e 236.9 - 209.6 2032 . 13 7.1 .15
Arizona . ............. . 2167 1952 173.8 6.6 6.6 6.4
Louisiana ................... . 212.3 204.2 1946 6.5 69 7.2
Texas . ... . 148 2 139.9 1423 4.5 4.7 53

Accordlngly, any change in the current demographlc economic, competitive or regulatory conditions in
the above-mentioned states could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of
operations and/or prospects. Medicaid changes in these states could also have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

If we do not co:ntinually enhance our hospitals with the most recent teehnological advances in

diagnostic and surgical eqnlpment our ability to maintain and expand our markets may be adversely
affected. . .

Technological advances 1nc1ud.1ng with respect to computer-assmted tomography scanner (CTs), magnetic
resonance imaging (MRIs) and posuron emission tomography scanner. (PETs) equipment, continue to evolve.
In addition, the manufacturers of such equipment often provide incentives to try to increase their sales
including providing favorable financing to higher credit risk organizations. In an effort to compete, we must
continually assess our equipment needs and upgrade our equipment as a result of technological improvements.
We believe that the direction of the patient flow correlates directly to the level and intensity of such diagnostic
equipment.
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We have substantial indebtedness and we may incur significant amounts of additional indebtedness in
the future which could affect our ability to finance ‘operations and capital expenditures, pursue desirable -
business .opportunities or successfully operate our business in the future. : : :

As of December 31, 2010, our consolidated debt, excluding the unamortized discount of convertible debt
instruments, was approximately $1,651.7 million. We also have the ability to incur significant amounts of
additional indebtedness, subject to the conditions imposed by the terms of our credit agreement and the

~ agreements or indentures governing any additional indebtedness that we incur in the future. As of
December 31, 2010, revolving loans available for borrowing under our credit agreement were up to
$318.9 million, net of outstanding letters of credit of $31.1 million: Additionally, our credit agreement
contains uncommitted “accordion” features that permit us to borrow at a later date additional aggregate
principal amounts of up to $650.0 million under the term A and the term B loan components and up to
$300.0 million under the revolving loan component, subject to obtaining additional lender commitments and
the satisfaction of other conditions: Our ability to repay or refinance our indebtedness will ‘depend upon our
ability to monetize our interests in our hospital assets and our operating performance, which may be affected -
by general economic, financial, competitive, regulatory, business and other factors beyond our control.-

Although we believe that our future operating cash flow, together with available financing arrangements,
“will be sufficient to fund our operating requirements, our leverage and debt service obligations could have
important consequences, including the following: - o ) ' ' o

*  Under our credit agreement, we are required to satisfy and maintain specified financial ratios and
tests. Failure to comply with these obligations may cause an event of default which, if not cured or
waived, could require us to repay substantial indebtedness immediately. Moreover, if debt repayment
is accelerated, we will be subject to higher interest rates on our debt obligations as a result of these -
covenants and our credit ratings may be adversely impacted.

*  We may be vulnerable in the event of downturns and adverse changes in the general economy or our
industry. Specific examples of industry changes that could have an adverse impact on our cash flow
include the implementation by the government of further-limitations on reimbursement under .
Medicare and Medicaid.

*  We may have difficulty obtaining additional financing at favorable interest rates to meet our
requirements for working capital, capital expenditures, acquisitions, general corporate or other
purposes. :

*  We will be required to dedicate a substantial portion of our cash flow to the payment of principal
and interest on indebtedness, which will reduce the amount of funds available for operations, capital
expenditures and future acquisitions. .

*  Any borrowings we incur at variable interest rates expose us to increases in interest rates generally.

" »  Abreach of any of the restrictions or covenants in our debt agreements could cause a cross-default
under other debt agreéments. We 'may be required to pay our indebtedness immediately if we default
on any of the numerous financial or other restrictive covenants contained in the debt agreements. It
is not certain whether we will have, or will be able to obtain, sufficient funds to make these
accelerated payments. If any senior debt is accelerated, our assets may not be sufficient to repay

. such indebtedness and our other indebtedness. ’

* In the event of a default, we may be forced to pursue one or more alternative strategies, such as °
restructuring or refinancing our indebtedness, selling assets, reducing or delaying capital
expenditures or seeking additional equity capital. There can be no-assurances that any of these
strategies could be effected on satisfactory terms, if at all, or that sufficient funds could be obtained
to make these accelerated payments. B ‘ R
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Covenant restrictions under our senior secured credit Jacilities and our indenture will impose
significant operating and financial restrictions on us and may limit our ability to operate our business and .
to make payments on the notes and other outstanding indebtedness. The exceptions to the covenants in our
indenture may allow us to refinance subordinated indebtedness with senior indebtedness.

The credit agreement that governs our senior secured credit facilities and the indenture that will govern
the notes contain covenants that restrict our ability to finance future operations or capital needs, to take
advantage of other business opportunities that may. be in our interest or to satisfy our obligations under the
notes. These covenants restrict ouf ability to, gmbng other things: , ‘

*  incur or guarantee additional debt or extend credit;

. wpyay dividend‘élozr makc diéﬁibﬁtions on, or redeem or repu_rchase, our capifal stock or“certain
. other debt;
*  make 6ther restricted payments, including investments;
. dispose of assets;: . ) - ‘ . s
~*  engage in transactions with affiliates; '
*  enter into égreements restricting our subsidiaries’ ability to pay dividends;
. create liens on our assets or eng'ag_e in salg/le_asebac_:_k transac_tions;_ and

+  effect a consolidation or merger, or sell, transfer, lease all or substantially all of our assets.

The limitations in our credit agreement for our senior secured credit facilities, our indenture or other
instruments governing indebtedness that we may incur in the future may restrict our ability to repay existing
outstanding indebtedness. Subject to certain conditions, holders of the 3%% convertible senior subordinated
notes due 2014 and the 3% convertible senior subordinated debentures due 2025 may conveit their
securities for cash, and if applicable, shares in common stock prior to the maturation of the notes offered
hereby. Failure to repay the 3%4% convértible senior subordinated notes dué 2014 or 3%% convertible senior
subordinated debentures due 2025 upon maturity or upon conversion of the securities may resuit in a default.”

Subject to certain conditions, the provisions of our indenture may also allow us to refinance indebtedness

that is subordinated in right of payment to the notes with indebtedness that would rank pari passu with the
notes. ' ' ) '

We may be subject to liabilities because of malpracﬁce and related legal claims brdught against our
hospitals or our employed physicians.. If we become subject to these claims, we could be required to pay. ..
significant damages, which may not. be covered by insurance.

We may be subject to medical malpractice lawsuits and other legal actions arising out of the operations
of our owned and leased hospitals and the activities of our employed physicians. These ‘actions may involve
large claims and significant defense costs. In an effort to resolve one or more of these matters, we.may choose
to negotiate a settlement. Amounts we pay to settle any of these matters may be material. We maintain
professional and gereral liability insurance with unrelated commercial insurance carriers to provide for losses
in excess of our SIR amount. As a result, one or more successful claims against us that are within our SIR
amounts could have an adverse effect on our results of operations, cash flows, financial condition or liquidity.
Also, some of these claims could exceed the scope of the coverage in effect, or cdverage of particular claims
could be denied. In addition, we operate a wholly-owned captive insurance company under the name Point of
Life Indemnity, Ltd., which, issues malpractice insurance policies to our employed physicians.

Insurance coverage in the future may not continue to be available at a cost allowing us to maintain
adequate levels of insurance, with acceptable SIR level amounts. One or more of our insurance carriers may
become insolvent and unable to fulfill its obligation to defend, pay or reimburse us when that obligation
becomes due. In addition, physicians using our hospitals may be unable to obtain insurance on acceptable
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terms, which could result in these physicians not being able.to meet the minimum insurance requirements in
the applicable hospital medical staff bylaws or necessitate a reduction in the level of insurance required, to be
carried -under such bylaws.

Our revenues and volume trends maj; be adveréelj"aﬁected by certain factors over which we have no
control,

Our revenues and volume trends are dependent on many factors; including physicians’ clinical decisions
and availability, payor programs shifting to a more outpatient-based environment, whether or not certain
services are offered, seasonal and severe weather conditions, including the effects of extreme low
temperatures, hurricanes and tornados, earthquakes, current local economic and demographic changes, the
intensity and timing of yearly flu outbreaks. In addition, technological developments and pharmaceutlcal
improvements may reduce the demand for healthcare services or the profitability of the services we offer.

If our fair value declines, a material non-cash charge to earnings from impairment of our gobdwill
could result. -

As of December 31, 2010, we had approximately $1,550.7 million of goodwill. We expect to recover the
carrying value of this goodwill through our future cash flows. We evaluate annually, based on our fair value,
whether the carrying value of our goodwill is impaired. If the carrymg value of our goodwill is 1mpa1red we
may incur a material non-cash charge to earnings. :

Certificate of need laws and regulatzons regardmg ltcenses, ownersth and operation may impair our
Jfuture expansion in some states. o :

Some states require prior approval for the purchase, construction and expansion of healthcare facilities,
based on the state’s determination of need for additional or expanded healthcare facilities or services. Ten
states in-which we operate hospitals require a certificate of need for capital expenditures exceeding a
prescribed amount, changes in bed capacity or services, and for certain other planned activities. We may not
be able to obtain certificates of need required for expansion activities in the future. In addition, all of the
states in which’ we operate facilities require hospitals and most healthcare prov1ders to maintain one or more
licenses. If we fa11 to obtain any required cert1ﬁcate of need or license, our ability to operate or expand
operations in those states could be impaired.

' In 'stdtes without ce_i'uﬁcaié of need laws, competing providers of healthcare services are able to
expand and construct facilities without the need for significant regulatory approval.

In the seven states in which we operate that do not require certificates of need for the purchase,
construction and expansion of healthcare facilities or services, competing healthcare providers face low
barriers-to entry and expansion. If competing providers of healthcare services are able to purchase, construct
or expand healthcare facilities without the need for regulatory approval, we may face decreased market share
and revenues in those markets

Different interpretations of accounting prmczples could have a material adverse eﬁect on our results of
operations or financial condition. ' ' -

Generally accepted accounting principles are complex, contmually evolving and may be subject to vaned
interpretation by us, our independent registered pubhc accounting firm and the SEC. Such varied
interpretations could result from differing views related to specific facts and circumstances. Differences in
mterpretatlon of generally accepted accounting pr1n01ples could havc a matenal adverse effect on our results
of operations or ﬁnanmal condition.

Our stock price has been and may continue fo be volatile; any significant decline may result in
litigation.

- The trading price of our common stock has been and may continue to be subject to -wide fluctuations.
This may result in stockholder lawsuits, which could divert management’s time away from operations and
could result in higher legal fees and proxy costs.
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Our stock price may fluctuate in response to the results or our operations and to a number of events and
factors, including:

*  actual or anticipated quarterly variations in operating results, particularly if they differ from
’ _investors’ expectations;

- ¢ changes in financial estimates and recommendations by securities analysts;

*  changes in government regulations including those relating to reimbursement and operational
- policies and procedures;

the operating and stock price performance of other companies that investors may deem comparable;

v

*  changes in overall economic factors in our markets:

*  news reports relating to trends or events in our markets; and

*  issues associated with integration of the hospitals that we acquire.

~ Broad market and industry fluctuations may adversely affect the price of our common stock, regardless of
our operating performance. '

As a result of the above factors, we could be subjected to potential stockholder lawsuits. Such lawsuits
are time consuming and expensive. Among other things, such lawsuits divert management’s time and attention

- from operations. Such lawsuits also force us to incur substantial legal fees and proxy costs in defending our
position. . '

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.

We have no unresolved SEC staff comments.

39



Item 2. Properties.

The following table presents certain information with respect to our hospitals as of December 31; 2010:"

Real

Acquisition/Opening/  Licensed  Property
Hospital ) ) City ) Lease Date. | ~ Beds Status
Alabama - ' ‘ ' -
Andalusia Regional Hospital - *~ =~ " Andalusia -~ HCA Spin-Off®. - 100 Own
Lakeland Community Hospital Haleyville December' 1, 2002 - 50 © Own
Northwest Medical Center ‘ Winfield December 1, 2002 7 Own
Russellville Hdspita.l ' Russellville October 3, 2002 100 Own
Vaughan Regional Medical Center Selma " - * April 15, 2005 175 Own
Arizona . . . P o .
Havasu Regional Medical Center Lake Havasu City April 15, 2005 181 Oown®
Valley View Medical Center - : Ft. Mohave November 8, 2005 84 Own
Colorado i .
Colorado Plains Medical Center ‘ Fort Morgan © April 15,2005 50 Lease
Florida ) ‘ :
Putnam Community Medical Center . Palatka June 16, 2000 . 141 Own
. Georgia o o ’ i ' T -
R Rockdale Medical Center : ~ Conyers’ “February 1, 2009 " 146 Own
Kansas _ - s e L :
Western Plains Medical Complex ' Dodge City HCA Spin-Off® 99 Oown®
Kentucky
Bluegrass Community Hospital Versailles Janvary 2, 2001 - - 25 Own -
Bourbon Community Hospital Paris HCA Spin-Off® 58 Own
Clark Regional Medical Center Winchester . May 1, 2010 100 Lease
Georgetown Community Hospital Georgetown HCA Spin-Off® 75 Own
Jackson Purchase Medical Center Mayfield HCA Spin-Off® 107 Own
Lake Cumberland Regional Hospital Somerset HCA Spin-Off® 275 Own
Logan Memorial Hospital Russellville HCA Spin-Off® 75 Own
Meadowview Regional Medical Center Maysville HCA Spin-Off® 100 Own
Spring View Hospital Lebanon October 1, 2003 75 Own
Louisiana
Acadian Medical Center ‘ Eunice April 15, 2005 42 Own
Minden Medical Center Minden April 15, 2005 161 Own
River Parishes Hospital LaPlace July 1, 2004 106 Own
Teche Regional Medical Center ' Morgan City April 15, 2005 165 Lease
Ville Platte Medical Center : Ville Platte " December 1, 2001 67 Own
Mississippi ‘
Bolivar Medical Center Cleveland April 15, 2005 200 Lease
Nevada .
Northeastern Nevada Regional Hospital Elko April 15, 2005 75 Own
New Mexico
Los Alamos Medical Center Los Alamos April 15, 2005 47 Own
Memorial Medical Center of Las Cruces Las Cruces April 15, 2005 298 Lease
Tennessee
Athens Regional Medical Center Athens October 1, 2001 118 Own
Crockett Hospital Lawrenceburg HCA Spin-Off® 99 Own
Emerald-Hodgson Hospital Sewanee HCA Spin-Off® 41 Own
_ . Hillside Hospital Pulaski HCA Spin-Off® 95 Own
PR Livingston Regional Hospital Livingston HCA Spin-Off® 114 Own
SR Riverview Regional Medical Center North Carthage September 1, 2010 63 Own
Riverview Regional Medical Center South Carthage September 1, 2010 25 Own
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i ’ - *  Real
S L Ctse LT ©: . . Acquisition/Opening/ Licensed - . Property
Hospital ) ‘ City Lease Date = Beds Status

Southern Tennessee Medical Center . Winchester ~°  HCASpin-OF® 157  Own
Sumner Reg/iona.l_‘MedicaI Center o " Gallatin o ~ September 1, 2010 155 » Own
Trousdale Medical Center Hartsville Séptelﬁber 1,2010 25 Own
Texas
Ennis Regional Medical Center Ennis April 15, 2005 60 Lease
Palestine Regional Medical Center Palestine April 15, 2005 150 Own
Parkview Regional Hospital Mexia April 15, 2005 58 Lease
Utah .
Ashley Regional Medical Center ' Vernal HCA Spin-Off® -39 Own
Castleview Hospital Price HCA Spin-Off® 84 Own
Virginia
Clinch Valley Medical Center Richlands July 1, 2006 175 Own
Danville Regional Medical Center Danville July 1, 2005 290 Own
Memorial Hospital of Martinsville and Henry

County Martinsville -~ April 15, 2005 220 Own
Wythe County Community Hospital Wytheville June 1, 2005 100 Lease
West Virginia
Logan Regional Medical Center _ Logan December 1, 2002 140 Own
Raleigh General Hospital Beckley July 1, 2006 300 Own
Wyoming . '
Lander Regional Hospital Lander July 1, 2000 89 Own
Riverton Memorial Hospital Riverton HCA Spin-Off® _ 70 Own

5,915

(@) We were formerly a division of HCA and were spun-off as an independent publicly-traded company on
May 11, 1999.

(b) The hospital is owned and operated by a joint venture with physicians in which a LifePoint affiliate has a
controlling interest. The real property on which the hospital is located is owned by the LifePoint member
and leased to the joint venture.

We operate medical office buildings in conjunction with many of our hospitals. We own the majority of
these medical office buildings. These office buildings are primarily occupied by physicians who practice at our
hospitals. Our corporate headquarters are located in approximately 178,000 square feet of leased space in
Brentwood, Tennessee. Our corporate headquarters, hospitals and other facilities are suitable for their
respective uses and are generally adequate for our present needs.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

We are, from time to time, subject to claims and suits arising in the ordinary course of business,
including claims for damages for personal injuries, medical malpractice, breach of contracts, wrongful
restriction of or interference with physicians’ staff privileges and employment related claims. In certain of
these actions, plaintiffs request payment for damages, including punitive damages that may not be covered by
insurance. We are currently not a party to any pending or threatened proceeding, which, in management’s
opinion, would have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations.

In May 2009, our hospital in Andalusia, Alabama (Andalusia Regional Hospital) produced documents
responsive to a request received from the U.S. Attorney’s Office for the Western District of New York
regarding an investigation they are conducting with respect to the billing of kyphoplasty procedures.
Kyphoplasty is a surgical spine procedure that returns a compromised vertebrae (either from trauma or
osteoporotic disease process) to its previous height, reducing or eliminating severe pain. It has been reported
that other unaffiliated hospitals and hospital operators in multiple states have received similar requests for
information. We believe that this investigation is related to the May 22, 2008 qui tam settlement between the
same U.S. Attorney’s Office and the manufacturer and distributor of the product used in performing the
kyphoplasty procedure.
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Based on a review of the number of the kyphoplasty procedures performed at all of our other hospitals,
as part of our effort to cooperate with the U.S. Attorney’s Office, by letter dated January 20, 2010 we
identified to the U.S. Attorney’s Office four additional facilities -at which the number of inpatient kyphoplasty
procedures approximated those performed at Andalusia Regional Hospital. We have completed our rev1ew of
the relevant med1cal records and we are continuing to cooperate with the government’s mvestlgatmn

42



PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities. L _ o

Market Information for Common Sfock

Our common stock is listed on the NASDAQ Global Select Market under the symbol “LPNT.” The high
and low sales prices per share of our common stock were as follows for the periods presented: :

High - Low
2011 o R o .
First Quarter (through February 17, 2011). .. ... .. T $37.87 .$34.63
2010 o RS )
FirstQuarter. . . ........... ... . ... .. . $37.95 - $28.48
Second Quarter. . ...-.............. e 39.61 31.32
Third Quarter . . . .. ............... PP cee e 3676 29.33
Fourth Quarter . .. ........... R P 38.77 32.88
2009 T . N
First Quarter. . ... .. .. D Do 82506 $17.74
Second Quarter. . ............. P, 2988 1955
Third Quarter . . .. .......... et e e e e e 29.37 23.94
Fourth Quarter . ... ............. PP e oe. . 3399 2700

On February 17, 2011, the last reported sales price for our common stock on the NASDAQ Global Select
Market was $37.03 per share. ' : - TS A

Stockholders

As of February 11, 2011, there were 51,490,182 shares of our common stock held by 10,267 holders of -
record.

Dividends

We have never declared or paid cash dividends on_our common stock. We intend to retain future earnings
to finance the-growth and development of our business and, accordingly, do not currently intend to declare or
pay any-cash dividends.on our common stock. Our board of directors will evaluate our future earnings, results
of operations, financial condition and capital requirements in determining whether to declare or pay cash
dividends. Delaware law prohibits us from paying any dividends unless we have capital surplus or net profits

available for this purpose. In addition, our credit agreement and certain other indebtedness impose restrictions
on our ability-to pay dividends. L

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

None.

Recent Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Affiliated Purchasers

In August 2009, our Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to $100.0 million of outstanding
shares of our common stock either in the open market or through privately negotiated transactions, subject to
market conditions, regulatory constraints and other factors (the 2009 Repurchase Plan’). The 2009
Repurchase Plan expired in February 2011.

In connection with the 2009 Repurchase Plan, we repurchased approximately 0.4 million shares for an
aggregate purchase price, including commissions, of approximately $12.4 million at an average purchase price
of $34.54 per share for the three months ended December 31, 2010. We have designated the shares
repurchased under the 2009 Repurchase Plan as treasury stock.
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In September 2010, our Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to an additional
$150.0 million of outstanding shares of our common stock either in open market purchases, privately
negotiated transactions, accelerated share repurchase programs or other:transactions (the 2010 Repurchase
Plan”). The 2010 Repurchase Plan expires in March 2012. We are not obligated to repurchase any specific
number of shares under the 2010 Repurchase Plan. In connection with the 2010 Repurchase Plan, we entered
into a trading plan in accordance with the SEC Rule 10b5-1 to facilitate repurchases of our common stock
(the “2010 10b5-1 Trading Plan”). The 2010 lObS 1 Tradmg Plan‘became effective on Septernber 22,2010
and expired on November; 2;.2010. C IR

In connection with the 2010 Repurchase Plan, we repurchased approximately 1.2 million shares for an
aggregate purchase price, including commissions, of approximately $42.2 million at an avérage purchase price
of $34.99 per share for the three months ended December 31, 2010, 0.4 million shares of which was
purchased in accordance with the 2010 10b5-1 Trading Plan. We have designated the shares repurchased under
the 2010 Repurchase Plan as-treasury stock. :

Addltlonally, we redeem shares from employees for minimum statutory tax withholding purposes upon
vesting of certain stock awards granted pursuant to our Amended and Restated 1998 Long-Term Incentive
Plan (“LTIP”) and Amended and Restated Management Stock Purchase Plan (“MSPP”). We redeemed a
nominal number of shares of certain vested LTIP and MSPP shares for an aggregate price of approximately
$0.1 million during each of the three months ended December 31, 2010 and 2009. We have des1gnated these
shares as treasury stock:

Our repurchase act1v1ty under our. 2009 Repurchase Plan, 2010 Repurchase Plan 2010 10b5 1 Trading
Plan and the shares that we redeem from employees for minimum statutory tax withholding. purposes upon
vesting of certain stock awards granted pursuant to our LTIP and MSPP are more fully dlscussed in Note 8 to
our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this report.

The following table summarizes our share repurchase act1v1ty by month for the three months ended
December 31, 2010: S . P

i

Total Approximate

Number Dollar Value

of Shares of Shares .

Weighted Purchased as  that May Yet

Total . . = Average Part of a Be Purchased
Number of - Price " Publicly Under the

- Teooeun S Shares: . . Paid per . Announced Program -

Perlod Purchased Share Program (In millions)
October 1, 2010 to October 31, 2010. cere. 96,306 $33.96 -96,170  $154.8
‘November 1, 2010 to November 30, 2010 . .. 1,026,756 . $34.79 1,026,756 $119.r
- December 1, 2010 to December 31, 2010. ... -~ 443,011® " $3534 . . 439,600 $103.6.
Total. . ..... ... ... ... .. .. 1,566,073®  $34.90 1,562,526 $103.6

(a) Includes shares redeemed for tax withholding purposes upon vesting of certain previously granted stock -
awards under the LTIP and MSPP plans.
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table provides aggregate information as of December 31, 2010, with respect to shares of
common: stock that may be issued in accordance.with our ‘existing equity compensation plans, including our
LTIP, our Outside Directors Stock and Incentive. Compensation Plan (the:“ODSICP”) and our MSPP:

L ) . : ... Number of Securities_
Number of Securities -~ - ) Available for Future
to be Issued Upon . Weighted-Average -  Issmance Under Equity -

. Exercise of Exercise Price of Compensation Plans
Outstanding Options, Outstanding Options, - - (Excluding Securities
: . . ’ ‘ Warrants and Rights Warrants and Rights - - Reflected in Column @)
Plan Category . @ - (b) . (©
Equity Compensation Plans Approved by ' ' '
Security Holders. . . ............. 4,482,234 $31.109 3,867,755%
Equity Compensation Plans not" S :
Approved by Security Holders . . . . . . : None None None
Total .. ..., 4,482,234 : $31.10° . 3,867,755 -« -

(1) Includes the following:

* 4,470,488 shares of common stock to be iséued upon exercise of oufstandihg stock opﬁbns granted
in accordance with the LTIP; and : S : :

v *. 11,746 shares of common stook‘to be issued upon the vesting of deferred stock units outstanding in
- accordance with the ODSICP. ' o

(2) Upon vesting, deferred stock units and restricted stock units are settled for shares of common stock on a
one-for-orie basis. Accordingly, the deferred stock units and restricted stock units have been excluded for
. purposes of computing the weighted-average exercise price. :

(3) Includes the following: ' o
. 3,709,584 shares of common stock available for issuance in accordance wjfh the LTIP;
* . 068,873 shares of common stock available for issuance in accordance with the- ODSICP; arAld :

e 89,208 shares of common stock available for issuance in accordance with the MSPP. - -
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

The table below .contains our selected financial data for, or as of the end of, the last five years ended
- December 31, 2010. The selected financial data is derived from our consolidated financial statements included

elsewhere in this report. The timing of acquisitions and divestitures completed during the years presented
affects the comparability of the selected financial data. The selected financial data excludes the operations as
well as assets and liabilities of our discontinued operations in our consolidated financial statements.
Additionally, we have recognized certain transaction and debt retirement costs during certain of the periods
presented that affected the comparability of the selected financial data. You should read this table in
conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and related notes included elsewhere in this report and
in Part I, Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analyszs of Financial Condition and Results of Operatzons

Years Ended December 31,

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
_ . (In millions, except per share amounts)
Statement of Operations Data: :
REVENUES. . .. .....oovvennnn. .. $32624  $2962.7  $2,700.8  $2,5684  $2,336.5

Income from continuing operations attributable , o

to LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. stockholders . . . . 155.6 139.2 126.7 120.1 141.5
Income from continuing operations per share: .

Basic.................... e $ 298 $ 264 $ 241 $ 213 $ 254

Diluted. . . ........... ceeeieaeio.0 80291 0§ 259 0§ 237 0§ 209§ 251
Weighted average shares outstanding _ ; . . ,

Basic. ... 522 527 . 525 562 . 556

Diluted. . . ........................ © 535 53.8 535 - 572 56.3
Cash dividends declared per share.......... — — — — =
Balance Sheet Data (as of end of year)
Working capital - ... .................. $ 4988 $ 4859 $ 3762 $ 3736 $ 3777
Property and equipment, net.............. 1,668.6 - 14994 1,416.0 1,383:0 - 1,3054
Totalassets .. ....................... 4,152.4 3,873.3 3,680.3 3,635.9 3,638.3
Long-term debt, including amounts due within

one year but excluding unamortized discounts

of convertible debt instruments . ......... 1,651.7 1,502.2 1,516.7 1,517.1 1,668.5
Total LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. stockholders’

equity ...... ... ... ..., e 1,887.5 1,827.7 1,652.0 1,629.1 1,471.5
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

We recommend that you read this discussion together with our consolidated financial statements and
related notes included elsewhere in this report. Unless otherwise indicated, all relevant financial and statistical
information included herein relates to our continuing operations.

‘We make forward-looking statements in this report, other reports and in statements we file with the SEC
and/or release to the public. In addition, our senior management makes forward-looking statements orally to
analysts;, investors, the media and others. Broadly speaking, forward-looking statements include: projections of
our revenues, net income, earnings per share, capital expenditures, cash flows, debt repayments, interest rates,
operating statistics and data or other financial items; descriptions of plans or objectives of our management for
future operations, services or growth plans including écquisitions, divestitures, business strategies and
initiatives; interpretations of Medicare and Medicaid laws and regulations and their effect on our business; and
descriptions of assumptions underlying or relating to any of the foregoing.

In this report, for example, we make forward-looking statements, including statements discussing our
expectations about: future financial performance and condition; future liquidity and capital resources; future
cash flows; existing and future debt and equity structure, including the use of proceeds from the Company’s
recent debt issuance; our strategic goals; future acquisitions; our business strategy and operating philosophy,
including an evaluation of growth strategies for existing markets and for potential acquisitions; effects of
competition in a hospital’s market; costs of providing care to our patients; increasing risk of collection of
amounts due directly from patients; changes in interest rates; our compliance with new and existing laws and
regulations and the increasing costs associated with compliance; the impact of national healthcare reform; the
performance of counterparties to our agreements; effect of credit ratings; professional fees; increased costs of
salaries and benefits; industry and general economic trends; reimbursement changes; patient volumes and
related revenues; access to the HCA-IT information systems; future capital expenditures, including capital
expenditures related to information systems, the replacement hospital for Clark and the aggregate capital
commitment to' HighPoint; claims and legal actions relating to professional liabilities, governmental
investigations and other matters; and physician recruiting and retention, including trends in physician
employment. ' ‘

Forward-looking statements discuss matters that are not historical facts. Because they discuss future
events or conditions, forward-looking statements often include words such as “can,” “could,” “may,”
“should,” “believe,” “will,” “would,” “expect,” “‘project,” “estimate,” “seek,” “anticipate,” ““intend,”
“target,” “continue” or similar expressions. You should not unduly rely on forward-looking statements, which
give our expectations about the future and are not guarantees. Forward-looking statements speak only as of
the date they are made. We operate in a continually changing business environment, and new risk factors
emerge from time to time. We cannot predict such new risk factors nor can we assess. the impact, if any, of
such new risk factors on our business or the extent to which any factor or combination of factors may cause
actual results to differ materially from those expressed or implied by any forward-looking statement. We do
not undertake any obligation to update our forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances after
the date of this document or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events.

There are several factors, some beyond our control that could cause results to differ significantly from
our expectations. Some of these factors are described in Part L Item 1A. Risk Factors. Other factors, such as
market, operational, liquidity, interest rate and other risks, are described elsewhere in this section and Part II,
Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk. Any factor described in this report,
could by itself, or together with one or more factors, adversely affect our business, results of operations and/or
financial condition. There may be factors not described in this report that could also cause results to differ
from our expectations. :
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Overview

We operate general acute care hospitals in non-urban communities in the United States. At December 31,
2010, on a consolidated basis and including our recent: acquisition of HighPoint, effective September. 1, 2010,
we operated 52 hospital campuses in 17 states, having a-total of 5,915 licensed beds. We generate:revenues .
primarily through hospital services offered at our facilities. We generated $3,262.4 million, $2,962.7 and
$2,700.8 million dunng 2010, 2009 ‘and 2008, respectively, in revenues from continuing operations. In 2010
we derived 42.0% of our revenues from contlnulng operations from the Medicare and Medicaid programs
collectively. Payménts made to our hospitals piirsuant to the Medicare and- Médicaid programs for servicés
rendered rarely exceed our costs for such services. The hospital 1ndus11y is also enduring a penod where the"
costs of providing care are rising faster than reimbursement rates. As a result, we rely largely on payments
made by private or commercial payors; together with certain limited servicés provided to Medlcare rec1p1ents
to generate an operating profit. This places a prermum on eﬁic1ent operation; the ability to reduce or control
costs and the need to leverage the benefits of our organization across all of our hospitals.

Our hospitals typically provide the range of medical and sur'gieal"’services cornmonly available in
hospitals in non-urban ‘markets, although the services provided at’ any specific hospital depend on factors such
as community need for the service, whether physrcrans necessary to operate the service line safely are
members of the medical staff of that hospital, whether the service mlght be econormcally v1ab1e and any
contractual or cextlﬁcate of need restnctlons that might ex1st

Competitivé :'qnd Structural En‘viroiiment '

The environment in which our hospitals operate is extremely competitive. Many of our communities are -
experiencing slow growth, and'in some cases, population losses. The economies of our communities are also -
more sensitive to- econormc downturns in the'manufacturing sector than the Umted States generally

Our hospitals face compet1t1on from other acute care hospltals 1nc1ud1ng larger tertrary hospltals located,
in larger markets and/or affiliated with universities; specialty hospitals that focus on-one or a small number of
very lucrative service lines but that are not required to operate emergency departments; stand-alone centers at -
which surgeries or diagnostic tests can be performed; and physicians on the medical staffs of our hospitals. In
many cases, our competitors focus on the service lines that offer the highest margins. By doing so, our
competitors can potentially draw the best-paying business out of our hospitals. This, in turn, can reduce the
overall operating profit of our hospitals as we are often obligated to-offer service lines that operate at a loss or
that have much lower profit margins. We continue to see the shift of increasingly complex procedures from
the inpatient to the outpatient setting and have also seen growth in the general shift of lower acuity procedures
to physician offices and other non-hospital outpatient settings. These trends have, to some extent offset our
efforts to improve equ1valent admlsswn rates at many of our hospltals o o :

Our hospltals also face extreme competltlon in-their efforts to recruit and retain physwlans on their .

- medical staffs. It is-widely. recognized that the United States has a shortage of physicians in certain practice .
areas, including specialists such as cardiologists, oncologists, urologists -and orthopedists, in various areas of -
the country. This fact, and our ability to overcome these shortages, is directly relevant to our growth strategies
because cardiologists, oncologists, urologists and orthopedists are often the physicians in highest demand in
communities where our hospitals are located. Larger tertiary medical centers aré acquiring phys1cran ‘practices
and employ physicians in some of our communities. While physicians in these practices may continue to be
members of the medlcal staffs :of our hospltals they may be less likely to refer patlents to our hospltals over
time. :

We believe other key factors in our competition for patients is the quality of our patient care and the
perception of that quality in the communities where our hospitals are located, which may be influenced by,
among other things, the technology, service lines and capital improvements made at our facilities. The quality
of care, and our communities’ perception of that quality, may also be influenced by the skills and experience
of our non-physician employees involved in patient care.
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Business Strategy

In order to achieve growth in patient volumes, revenues and profitability given the competitive and

structural environment, we continue to focus our business strategy on the following: _
LI Targeted recruiting‘vofv pﬁmaiy éare physicians and physicians m key sp.ecialties;v:‘ _ N
* Retention of physicians and efforts to improve physician ‘satisfaction; L J
. _ Retentfon and, Where needéd, recruitniént of nénvphysicim‘-‘ﬁmpldyéés iﬁvol&éd in patient éaie and
efforts to improve employee satisfaction;

.*  Measurement and improvement of quality of patient care and perceptions of such quality in .
communities where our hospitals are located;- o o ' )
"+ Targeted investments in new technologies, new service lines and- capital improvements at our . -
facilities; . . . ' R SR oo P . .
*  Improvements in management of expenses and revenue cycle; and
*  Negotiation of improved reimbursement rates with non-governmental payors.

Strategic growth through acquisition and integration of hospitals and other healthcare facilities where
valuations are attractive and we can identify opportunities for improved financial performance through our.
management or ownership. - LT e LI co : C

Regulatory Environnient ..

Our business and our hospitals are highly regulated, and the penalties for noncompliance are severe. We

are required to comply with extensive; extremely complicated and overlapping government laws and -
regulations at the federal, state and local levels. These laws and regulations govern every aspect of how our
hospitals conduct their operations, from what service lines must be offered in order to be licensed as 4n acute
care hospital, to whether our hospitals may employ physicians, and:to how (and whether) our hospitals may
receive payments pursuant to the Medicare and Medicaid programs. The failure to comply with these laws and
regulations can result in severe penalties including criminal penalties, civil sanctions, and the loss of our
ability to receive reimbursements through the Medicare and Medicaid programs. A

Not only are our hospitals heavily regulated, but the rules, regulations and laws to which they are subject
often change, with little or no notice, and are’ often interpreted and applied differently by various regulatory -
agencies with authority to enforce such requirements. Each change or conflicting interpretation may require:
our hospitals to make changes in their facilities, equipment, personnel or services, and may- also require that -
standard operating policies and procedures be re-written and re-implemented. The cost of complying with such
laws and regulations is a significant component of our overall expenses. Further, this expense has grown in -
recent periods because of new regulatory requirements and the severity of the penalties associated with non-
compliance. Management believes compliance expenses will continue to grow in the foreseeable future.

Health Care Reform

The Affordable Care Act dramatically alters the United States healthcare system and is intended to
decrease the number of uninsured Americans and reduce overall healthcare costs. The Affordable Care Act
attempts to achieve these goals by, among other things, requiring most Americans to obtain health insurance,
expanding Medicare and Medicaid eligibility, reducing Medicare and Medicaid payments, including DSH *

payments, to providers, expanding the Medicare program’s use of value-based purchas_ing programs, tyinf;' '
hospital payments to the sati‘sfactionv'oﬁ :¢ér,tain quality critéri_a, and bundling payments to hospitals and other '
providers. The Affordable Care Act also contains a number of measures that are intended to reduce fraud and
abuse in the Medicare and Medicaid prdgraims, such as increased funding for fraud and abuse investigations
and enforcement, requiring the use of RACs in the Medicaid program, and generally prohibiting physician-
owned hospitals from adding new physician owners or increasing the number of beds and operating rooms for
which they are licensed. Because a majority of the measures contained in the Affordable Care Act do not take
effect until 2013, it is difficult to predict the impact the Affordable Care Act will have on our facilities.
Additionally, some courts have ruled that the requirement for individuals to carry health insurance or the
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Affordable Health Care Act in its entirety is unconstitutional. Several bills have been and likely will continue
to be introduced in Congress to repeal or amend all or significant provisions of the Affordable Care Act. It is
difficult to predict the full impact of the Affordable Care Act due to its complexity, lack of implementing
regulations and interpretive guidance, gradual and potentially delayed implementation, pending court
challenges, and possible repeal and/or amendment, as well as our inability to foresee how individuals and
businesses will respond to the choices afforded them by the Affordable Care Act. However, depending on how
it is ultimately interpreted and implemented, the Affordable Care Act could have an adverse eﬂ’ect on our
business, financial condition and reésults of® operations. - :

Medicare and Medicaid Reimbursement

Medicare payment methodologies have been, and can be expected to continue to be, s‘1gn1ﬁcantly revised
based on cost containment and policy considerations. CMS has already begun to implement some of the
Medicare reimbursement reductions required by the Affordable Care Act. These revisions will likely be more
frequent and significant as more of the Affordable Care Act’s changes and cost-saving measures become
effective. -

In addition, many of the states in Wthh we operate are facing budgetary chal]enges and have adopted, or
may be considering, legislation that is intended to reduce Medicaid coverage and program eligibility, enroll
Medicaid recipients in managed care programs; and/or impose additional taxes on hospitals to help finance or
expand their Medicaid programs. Such budget cuts, federal or state legislation, or other changes in the
administration or interpretation of government health programs by government agencies or contracted
managed care organizations could have a material adverse effect on our financial position and results of
operations. Congress has made an effort to address the financial challenges Medicaid is facing by recently
increasing the amount of Medicaid funding available to states through the ARRA and the Assistance Act,
which increased FMAP payments through June 30, 2011.. We ‘cannot predict if the increased FMAP payments
will be further extended or the impact that the phase-out’ of the mcreased FMAP payments will have on state
Medicaid programs in the future.

Adoption of Electronic Health Records

The HITECH Act was enacted into law on February 17, 2009 as part of ARRA. The HITECH Act
includes provisions designed to increase the use of EHR by both physicians and hospitals. We intend to
comply with the EHR meaningful use requirements of the HITECH Act in time to qualify for the maximum
available incentive payments. Our compliance will result in significant costs including professional services
focused on successfully designing and implementing our EHR solutions along with costs associated with the
hardware and software components of the project. We continue to_refine our budgeted costs and the expected
reimbursement improvements associated with our EHR initiatives. We currently estimate that at a minimum
total costs incurred to comply will be recovered through improved reimbursement amounts over the projected
lifecycle of this initiative. : : v v

Privacy and Secunty Regulations

We are subject to the privacy and security requlrements of HIPAA and the HITECH Act, which was
enacted as part of ARRA. Among other things, the HITECH Act strengthened the requirements and .
significantly increased the penalties for violations of the HIPAA privacy and security regulations. The privacy
regulations of HIPAA apply to all health plans, all healthcare clearinghouses and healthcare prov1ders that
transmit health information in an electronic form in connection’ with HIPAA standard transactions. Our
facilities are subJect to the HIPAA privacy regulations. The privacy standards apply to individually identifiable
information held or dlsclosed by a covered entity in any form, whether commumcated electromcally, on paper
or orally. These standards impose extensive administrative requirements on us, requ1re our compliance with
rules governing the use and disclosure of this health information, and require us to impose these rules, by
contract, on any business associate to whom we disclose such information in order to perform functions on
our behalf. They also create rights for patients in their health information, such as the right to amend thelr
health information. In addition, our facilities will continue to remain subject to any state laws that are more
restrictive than the: privacy regulations 1ssued under HIPAA '

We also are subject to the HIPAA security regulations that are designed to protect the conﬁdentlahty,
availability and integrity of health information. These security standards’ require us to establish and maintain
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reasonable and appropriate administrative, technical and physical safeguards to ensure the integrity,
confidentiality and the availability of electronic health and related financial information. We believe that we
are in material compliance with the privacy and security requirements of HIPAA.

The HITECH Act also creates a federal breach notification law that mirrors protections that many states
have passed in recent years. This law requires us to notify patients of any unauthorized access, acquisition, or
disclosure of their unsecured protected health information that poses significant risk of financial, reputational
or other harm to a patient. In addition, a new breach notification requirement was established requiring
reporting of certain unauthorized access, acquisition, or disclosure of unsecured protected health information
that poses significant risk of financial, reputational or other harm to a patient to the Secretary -of HHS and, in
some cases, local media outlets.. On August 24, 2009, HHS issued regulations implementing gertain of the
requirements of the HITECH Act, including the breach notification requirements providing obligations for
compiling and reporting of certain information relating to breaches by providers and their business associates
(the “Interim Final Breach Rule”), effective September 23, 2009. HHS subsequently promulgated and
withdrew a final breach notification rule for review, but it intends to publish a final data breach rule in the
coming month'st Until such tfime as a new final breach rule is iSsil_ed, the Inferim Final Breach Rule remains in
effect. In addition, our facilities remain subject to any state laws that relate to the reporting of data breaches
that are more restrictive than the regulations issued under HIPAA and the requirements of the HITECH Act.

On Jﬁly '14, 2010, HHS iésued a notice of proposed rillémakihg to modify the HIPAA priyécy, sec_:uﬁfy
and enforcement regulations. These changes may require substantial operational changes for HIPAA covered
entities and their business associates, including, in part, new requirements for business associate agreements

and a transition period for compliance, new limits on the use and disclosure of health information for
markéting and fundraising, enhanced individuals’ rights to obtain electronic copies of their medical records
and restricted disclosure of certain information, new requirements for notices of ‘privacy practices, modified
restrictions on authorizations for the use of health information for research, and new changes to the HIPAA
enforcement regulations. HHS has not yet released the final version of these rules, and, as a result, we cannot
quantify the financial impact of compliance with these new regulations. We could, however, incur expenses -
associated ‘with such compliance. : : : :

Violations of the HIPAA privacy and security regulations may result in civil and criminal penaltiés} The
HITECH Act significantly increased the penalties for violations by introducing a tiered penalty system, with
penalties of up to $50,000 per violation with a maximum civil penalty of $1.5 million in a calendar year for
violations of the same requirement. The HITECH Act also extended the application of certain provisions of -
the security and privacy regulations to business associates and subjects business associates to civil and
criminal penalties for violation of the regulations. Under the HITECH Act, HHS is required to conduct
periodic compliance audits' of covered entities and their business associates. The Secretary of HHS has issued
an interim final rule conforming HIPAA’s enforcement regulations to the HITECH Act’s statutory revisions.
This interim final rule also sets forth guidance on, among other things, how the tiered penalty structure will
reflect increasing levels of culpability and provides a prohibition on the imposition of penalties for any
violation that is corrected within a 30-day time period, as long as the violation was not due to willful neglect.
This interim final rule became effective on November 30, 2009. The applicable state laws regulating the
privacy of patient health information could impose .additional penalties. ;

The HITECH Act also anthorizes State Attorneys General to bring civil actions seeking either an
injunction or damages in response to violations of HIPAA privacy and security regulations or the new data
breach law that affects the privacy of their state residents. We expect vigorous enforcement of the HITECH
Act’s requirements by HHS and State Attorneys General. Additional final rules relating to the HITECH Act,
HIPAA enforcement and breach notification are expected to be published in 2011. We cannot predict whether
our hospitals will be able to comply with the final rules or the financial impact to our hospitals in
implementing the requirements under the final rules if and when they take effect.

Revenue Sources

Our hospitals generate revenues by providing healthcare services to our patients. Depending upon the
patient’s medical insurance coverage, we are paid for these services by governmental Medicare and Medicaid
programs, commercial insurance, including managed care organizations, and directly by-the patient. The
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amounts we are paid for providing healthcare services to our-patients vary depending upon the payor.
Governmental payors generally pay significantly less than the hospital’s customary charges for the services
provided. Insured patients are generally not responsible for any difference between customary hospital charges
and the amounts received from commercial insurance payors. However, insured patients are responsible for
payments not covered by insurance, such as exclusrons deductibles and co—payments

Revenues from governmental payors, such as Medicare and Medrcard are controlled by complex. rules
and regulations that stipulate the amount a hospital is paid for providing healthcare services. We must comply -
with these rules and regulations to continue to be eligible to participate in the Medicare and-Medicaid
programs. These rules and regulations are subject to frequent changes as a result of legislative and
administrative action and annual payment adjustments on both the federal and the state levels. These changes
will likely become more frequent and significant as the healthcare reform prov1s1ons of the Affordable Care
Act are implemented. o : : : :

Revenues from HMOs, PPOs and other private insurers are subject to contracts and other arrangements
that requrre us to discount the amounts we customarily charge for healthcare services. These discounted
arrangements often limit our ability to increase charges in response to increasing costs. We actlvely negotrate
with these payorts in an eﬂ'ort to maintain or increase the prrcmg of our healthcare serv1ces )

Self-pay revenues are primarily generated through the treatment of umnsured patlents Our hospltals have
experienced an increase in self-pay revenues during recent years as well as throughout 2010 as a result of a
combination of broad economic factors; including rising unemployment in many of our markets, reductlons in
state Medicaid budgets and i mcreasmg numbers of individuals and employers who choose not to purchase
insurance.

-In recent perlods our busmess has experrenced a shift in revenue from inpatient admissions to. outpatrent :
procedures. This trend has occurred due to a variety of factors including our strategic focus on improving our
emergency departments and diagnostic lines of business. In- addition, our hospitals, like those- of other hospital
companies, have experienced a shift from inpatient admissions. to outpatient observations for ‘a portion of our
patient population. We believe the reasons for this shift, include, but are not limited to, the continuing ..
competition from various providers and utrlrzatlon pressure by both govemmental programs and commercral
insurance payors.

For addltlonal 1nformat10n about our revenue sources, please also refer to the discussion above under the
subheadmg “Medlcare and Medicaid Relmbursement ” :

Results of Operations

- The following deﬁmtlons apply throughout the remammg portion of Managements Discussion and
Analysis of Financial.Condition and Results of 0peratzons -

Admissions. " Represents the total number of pat1ents admitted. (in the facility for a penod in excess of ‘
23 hours) to our hospitals and used by management and 1nvestors as a general measure of 1npatlent volume

bps. Bas1s point change.

Continuing operations. Continuing operat1ons 1nformat10n includes the results of our samé- hosprtal
operations and our recent HighPoint and Clark acquisitions but excludes the results of our hosprtals that have
previously been disposed. : :

’Eﬁ”ec’t’ive tax rate. Provision for income taxes as a percentage of income from contmumg operations
before income taxes less net income attributable to noncontrolling 1nterests

Emergency room visits. Represents the. total number of hosprtal-based emergency room visits.-

Equivalent admissions. Management and 1nvestors use equivalent admissions as a’ general measure of
combined inpatient and outpatient volume. We compute equivalent admissions by multiplying admissions
(inpatient volume) by the outpatient factor (the sum of gross inpatient revenue and gross outpatient revenue
and then dividing the resulting amount by gross inpatient revenue). The equivalent admissions computation

“equates” outpatient revenue to the volume measure. (admissions) used to measure 1npat1ent volume resulting
in a general measure of combined inpatient and outpatient volume.
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ESOP. Employee stock ownership plan. The ESOP was a defined contribution retirement plan that
covered substantially all of our employees. On December 31, 2008. the ESOP loan was repaid in full and all
remaining shares were released. Effective January 1, 2009, we began funding our defined contribution plan
entirely with cash. - : S -

- Medicare case mix index. Refers to the acuity or severity of illness of an average Medicare patient-at
our hospitals. .- T ' . :

Net revenue days outstanding. _Wé compute net revenue days outstanding by dividing. our-accounts _
receivable net of allowance for doubtful accounts, by our revenue per day. Our revenue per day is calcﬁlated
by dividing our quarterly revenues, including revenues for held for sale / disposed of hospitals, by the number
of calendar days in the quarter. : .

. N/A. Not applicable.

Outpatient surgeries. -Outpatient surgeries are those surgeries that do not require admission to our . |
hospitals. : ~

: Same-hospftal. Same-hospital information includes the results of our corporate office and the same
47 hospitals operated during the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009. Same-hospital, information
includes the results of Rockdale Medical Center, a 146 bed hospital located in Conyers, Georgia
(“Rockdale”), which we acquired effective February 1, 2009. Sanie—hospital_"infor_mation_ excludes the results
of HighPoint, which we acquired effective September 1, 2010, Clark, which we acquired effective May 1,
2010, and our hospitals that have previously been disposed.

Operating Results Summary

The following tables present summaries of results of operations for the three months ended December 31,
2010 and 2009 and for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 (dollars in millions):

Three Months Ended December-31,

2010 2009
. % of % of
L . T Amount Revenues Amount Revenues
REVEIUES . . .. ..o e $853.3 100.0%  $746.9 100.0%
Salaries and benefits . ..................... 3352 . 393 - 2959 - °39.6
Supplies. ... ........... AT 112.5 132 . 1049 14.0
Other operating expenses . .. ................ 161.0 18.8 ... 1323 17.8
Provision for doubtful accounts .-. .. ........... 1204 - . 14.1 94.3. 12.6
Depreciation and amortization. .. ............. . 393 4.7 - 36.9 5.0
Interest expense, net . . . . e e e e 30.9 3.6 - 26.0 - 3.5
Impairment charge. . . .i................... — — 1.1. - 0.1
. ' : ' 799.3 93.7 691.4 92.6
Income from continuing operations before income ’ . L
taxes . ... ... 54.0 6.3 55.5 74
Provision for income taxes . .. ............... 16.9 2.0 16.1 2.1
Income from continuing operations . ........... 37.1 - 43 -394 53
Less: Net income attributable to noncontrolling : o
interests .., ... ...... e HEVS A 0.8 0.1 = (0.8 (0.1)
Income from continuing operations attributable to ' ' e
LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. . . . ............ .. $363 42% $ 38.6 5.2%
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Years Ended December 31,

2010 .. - - 2009 R 2008

% of - .. %.of - . . % of
Amount Revenues Amount Revenues Amount Revenues
Revenues . . .............. R $3,2624 100.0% $2,962.7 100.0% $2,700.8 100.0%
Salaries and benefits. . .~ . . ... e 1,270:3 38.9 ©  1,1709 395 .1,065.4 394
Supplies. . .................... 443.0 13.6 409.1 13.8 372.6 13.8
Other operating expenses . ......... 605.2 18.6 538.0 18.2 499.8 18.5
Provision for dqubtful'accounts . ..... 4438 - 136 " 3754 127 - 3132 11.6
Depreciation and amortlzatlon e 1485 - * 4.5 143.0- 4.8 132.1 5.0
Interest expense, net. .. ... % . ..... 108.1 - 33 - 1032 35 1077 0 40
Debt extinguishment costs. . .. ... ... 24 0.1 — —_ — —
Impairment charges .............. — — 1.1 — 1.2 —

3,021.3 92.6 2,740.7 92.5 2,492.0 92.3

Income from continuing operatiéns T R : S
before income taxes ............ 241.1 74 222.0 7.5 2088 - 7.7

Provision for income taxes ......... 82.4 2.5 80.3 2.7 79.9 2.9

Income from contmumg operations. . .. 1587 49 1417 48 1289 48

Less: Net incomie attributable to B v ' o e
noncontrolling interests . . . . . . ... R C R I (15)) 2.5) 0.1) (2.2) 0.1)

Income from continuing operations
attributable to LifePoint Hospitals, Co . E ‘
Inc. ..... ... .. .. $ 155.6 48% ~$ 139.2 47% °$ 126.7 4.7%

For the Three Months Ended December 31, 2010 and 2009
- -Revenues

The following table shows our revenues and the key drivers of our revenues for the three months ended
December 31, 2010 and 2009:

Three Months Ended

December 31, Increase % Increase
; : 2010 2009 (Decrease) (Decrease)
Continuing operations: ' R
Revenues (dollars in mﬂhons) e $ 8533 $ 7469 $ 1064 - 143%
Admissions’. . . ....... ...... P 47,701 46,560 1,141 2.5
Equivalent admissions. . .. ................ 103,361 97,359 - 6,002 6.2 .
Revenues per equ1valent admission. . ......... $ 8255 $.7671 $ 584 - 76
Medicare case mix index. . ................ 1.26 1.31 - (0.05) . (3.8) -
Average length of stay (days). ... ........... .43 43 . —_ —_
Inpatient surgeries . . . . . e [ 13,375 13,354 21 0.2
Outpatient surgeries . . ... ....... 0 ....... 39,893 37,799 2,094 5.5
Emergency room visits . . . ................ 244,014 232,702 11,312 49
Outpatient factor . . . . . . e T 217 2.09 0.08 3.8
Same-hospital: o . » - S—_—
Revenues (dollars in mllhons) ..... . $ 7972 $ 7469 $ 503 . 67%
Admissions. . ... .............. .. .. .... 44,718 46,560 . (1,842) 4.0)
Equivalent admissions. . . ................. 96,154 97,359 (1,205) C(1.2)
Revenues per equivalent admission’. . ... ...... $ 8292 $ 7,671 $ 621. 8.1 .
Medicare case mix index. . ... ... e 1.32 131 001 - 0.8
Average length'of stay (days). .............. © 43 4.3 - -
Inpatient surgeries . ..................... 12,696 13,354 (658) 4.9)
Outpatient surgeries . . .. ................. 37,749 37,799 (50) 0.1)
Emergency room visits . . ... .............. 227,417 232,702 (5,285) 2.3)
Outpatient factor . . ..................... 2.15 2.09 0.06 29
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The following table shows the sources of our revenues by payor for the three months ended
December 31, 2010 and 2009, expressed as a percentage of total revenues, including adjustments to estimated
reimbursement amounts: . , :

Continuing } .
Operations : Same-Hospital
o ) 2010 2009 2010 2009
‘Medicare . ... .. .. [P L 29.6% “ 29.4% 29.7% 29.4%
Medicaid . .. ..... .. ... ... .. .. . . 11.1 107 10.9 107 -
HMOs, PPOs and other private insurers . . . . .. ... 433 45.3 43.3 453
Self-Pay......................... PR 15.0 13.7 15.1 137

Other. . ... e 1.0 ° 09 - 10° 0.9
e 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% - 100.0%

For the three months ended December 31, 2010, our revenues increased by $50.3 million, or 6.7% to
$797.2 million on a same-hospital basis as compared to $746.9 million for the same period last year. The
increase was the result of the impact of favorable commercial pricing, inclusive of improvements in our third
party payor contracting, an increase in our outpatient revenues, as evidenced by a 2.9% increase in our
outpatient factor to 2.15 from 2.09 as compared to the same period last year, an increase in the average acuity
of the service provided, as evidenced by a 0.8% increase in our Medicare case mix index to 1.32 as compared
to 1.31 for the same period last year and an increase in our self-pay revenues as further discussed in our
analysis of our provision for doubtful accounts for the three months ended December 31, 2010. As a result,
our revenues per equivalent admission on a same-hospital basis increased by 8.1% to $8,292 during the
three months ended December 31, 2010, as compared to $7,671 for the same period last year.

Certain changes have been made to our historical sources of revenues table above. Specifically, we
previously classified our revenues related to our owned physician practices as other revenue. In 2010 and for
all previously reported periods, we changed the classification of our revenues for our owned physician
practices from other to the respective payor classifications, as appropriate. This change had no impact on our
historical results of operations. These reclassifications reduced other revenue as a percentage of total revenues
and increased Medicare, Medicaid, HMOs, PPOs and other private insurers and self-pay as a percentage of
total revenues. We have determined that it is more appropriate to classify our owned physician practices
revenue by their respective payor classification. ' '

Expenses

Salaries and Benefits

The following table summarizes our salaries arid benefits, man-hours per ’equivalerlit' admission ‘and
salaries and benefits per equivalent admission for the three months ended December 31, 2010 and 2009:

Three Months Ended December 31,

% of % of
2010 Revenues 2009 Revenues Increase % Increase
Continuing operations:
Salaries and benefits (dollars in
millions) .................. $335.2 39.3%  $295.9 39.6% $ 393 13.3%
Man-hours per equivalent admission . 100.3 N/A 96.0 N/A 4.3 4.4%
Salaries and benefits per equivalent
admission. . ................ $3,233 N/A $3,055 N/A $178.0 5.8%
Same-hospital:
Salaries and benefits (dollars in
millions) . ................. $310.0 389%  $295.9 39.6% $ 14.1 4.8%
Man-hours per equivalent admission . 99.3 N/A 96.0 N/A 33 3.3%
Salaries and benefits per equivalent
admission. ... .............. $3,214 N/A $3,055 N/A $159.0 5.2%
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For the three months ended December 31, 2010, our salaries and benefits expense increased to
$310.0 million, or 4.8%; on a same-hospital basis as compared to $295.9 million for the same period last year.
This increase in our same-hospital salaries and benefits expense is primarily a result of the impact of an
increasing number of employed physrc1ans and their related support staff and the impact of compensation
increases for our employees

'On a same-hospital basis, the number of our employed physicians, including hospitalists increased by
15 to 311 from 296 from the prior year and the number of employed physicians, including hospitalists, and
their related support staff, increased by 48 to 974 from 926 from the same period last year. The i increase in
our employed physicians and their related support staff resulted in an increase of $3.2 million in our salaries
and benefits expense for the three months ended December 31, 2010 as compared to the same period Iast year.
As we continue to employ an increasing number of medical profess1onals including physrcrans we anticipate
that salanes and beneﬁts as a percentage of revenues will increase in future periods.

Supplzes

The following table summarizes -our supphes and supphes per equlvalent admrssmn for the. three months
ended December 31, 2010 and 2009: oo

' Three Months Ended December 31, -~ - ) !

o % of . .% of - ST
. o 2010 Revenues 2009 Revenues .. Increase % Increase

Contmumg operatrons : e : . R o

Supplies (dollars in Imlhons) . $1125 132%  $1049  14.0%  $7.6 - 1.4%

Supplies per equ1valent admrssron .. $1,089 N/A $1,074 N/A $15 1.4%
Same-hospltal ) , . oo _ o

Supplies (dollars in mrlhons). ee.... $105.5 132%  $1049 . 14.0% $0.6 . .0.6%

Supplies per equivalent admission ..  $1,097 . N/A $1,074 . N/A -.$23 . 22%

For the ‘three months ended December 31, 2010 our supplies expense increased to $105.5 million, or
0.6% on a same—hosprtal basis as compared to $104.9 million for the same period last year. This i increase in
our same-hospital supplies expense for the three months ended’ December 31, 2010 was prrmanly aresult of
an increase in our supplies expense per equivalent admission to $1,097, or 2.2%, as ‘compared to $1,074 for
the same period last year. Supplies per equivalent admission increased as a result of a higher utilization of
more expensive supplies, predominantly cancer related supplies, as well as an increase in our pharmacy
supplies expense. As a percentage of revenues, our same-hospital supplies expense decreased.to 13.2% for the
three months ended December 31, 2010 as compared to 14.0% for the same period last year, as a result of our
contmumg efforts to effectively manage our supply costs and increased synergies based on our participation in
a group purchasmg organization.
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Other Operating Expenses

The following table summarizes our other operating expenses for the three months énded’ December 31,
2010 and 2009 (dollars in millions): : o R ' S T
Co __._Three Months Ended December 31,

) % of ) % of Increase % Increase
. ) oL 2010 Revenues - 2009 Revenues  (Decrease)  (Decrease)
Continuing operations: , S
Professional fees. ... ... e $230.  27%  $188 L 25% - $42  29%
Utilities . . . ................. 13.7 1.6 12.1 16 . . 16 . . 119
Repairs and maintenance . . ... ... : 19.5 2.3 15.8 2.1 3.7 - 234
Rents and leases . ... .......... 7.0 0.8 51 .07 19 .. 392
Insurance . .................. 9.5 1.1 11.4 1.5 - (19 . (16.0)
Physician recruiting . . .. ... ... L. 6.5 0.8 6.2 0.8 03 . 5.8
Contract services. .. ........... 41.4 49 36.8 4.9 . . 4.6 -124
... Non-income taxes . . . . . e 177.. - 2.1 9.8 1.3 19 797
Other...................... 22.7 25 16.3 24 _64 38.6
$161.0 18.8%  $132.3 17.8% $28.7 - - " 21i6%
Same-hospital: Y
'Professional fees . . . . . e "$ 208, 26%.0 $ 18.8 25%-. $ 2.0 11.1%
Utilities . .. ................. 12.6 1.6 121 - 16 0.5 - -39
Repairs and maintenance . ........ 17.7 2.2 15.8 21 19. . 121
Rents and leases . . . . . .. e A 64 0.8 5.1 0.7 13 0273
Insurance . .................. 9.2 1.2 14 - 15 - 2.2) (18.9)
Physician recruiting . . ... ...... - 64 . 08 6.2 0.8 - 02 39
Contract services. . . ....,...... 39.4 4.9 36.8 49 26 6.9
Non-income taxes ............. 161 20 98 13 63 . 63.1 .
Other...................... 220 28 163~ 24 57 . 342
$1506 = 189%  $1323  17.8%  $183 . 13.8%

“For the three nonths ended December 31, 2010, our other operating éxpenses increased to’
$150.6 million, or 13.8% on a same-hospital basis as compared to $132.3 million for the same period last
year. This increase for the three months ended Decemiber 31, 2010 ‘was primarily a result of increases in
pro_fessi_dnal fees, contréct sei;vic_:_es, non-income taxes and other expenses, partially offset by a decrease in -
insurance expense. ' B o -

As-a shortage of physicians continues to become more acute, we have experienced increasing _
professional fees in areas such as’emergency room physician coverage and hospitalists. We' expect this trend
to continue and that professional fees as a percentage of reventes will increase in future periods. '

On a same-hospital basis, our contract services expense increased primarily as a result of increased
accounts receivable collection fees and ,f_egs‘rélatedlbto our conversion of the clinical and patient ac_cbunting
information system applications at certain hospitals. ' . o

Our non-income taxes iricfeased‘primarily as a result of increases in state provider taxes and property
taxes experienced at certain hospitals in various s‘tates.‘Fine_ilIy, our other expenses increased on a _
same-hospital basis as a result of additional legal expenses; training and implementation expenses from
various information system initiatives in our efforts to comply with the HITECH Act as well as additional
legal and consulting fees related to our recent acquisitions, including HighPoint, Clark and certain ancillary
service-line acquisitions. o ‘ -

. These increases were partially offset by a decrease in our insurance expense. Our insurance expénse
decreased compared to the same period-last year primarily because of favorable claim development for our
workers compensation claims and professional:and: general liability claims: experienced: during the current
period. : SO e » R
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Provision for Doubtful Accounts

The following table summarizes our provision for doubtful accounts and related key indicators for the
three months ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 (dollars in millions):

Three Months Ended December 31,

% of % of Increase % Increase
2010 . Revenues ' 2009 Revenues  (Decrease) (Decrease)
Continuing operations: ‘
Provision for doubtful accounts. ... $120.4 14.1% $ 943 12.6% $26.1 27.7%
‘Related key indicators:
Charity care write-offs .. ... ... - $ 180 21% $ 136 - 18% - :$ 44 312%
Self-pay revenues, net of charity : » o
care write-offs and uninsured ‘ . :
discounts. . ............ L. $1282 15.0% $102.5 13.7% $25.7 25.1%
Net revenue days outstanding (at ‘ ) ’
end of period) ............ " 41.8 N/A 40.1 N/A 1.7 - - 42%
Sarne—hospltal » : '
Provision for‘doubtful accounts . . . . - $111.7 14.0% $ 94.3 12.6% $17.4 18.4%
Related key indicators: : 4
Charity care write-offs . . ... .. . $163 - 2.0% $ 13.6 1.8% $ 27 19.2%
Self—pay revenues, net of charity : .
care write-offs and uninsured : »
discounts. ............... $120.3. 15.1% $102.5 13.7% $17.8 17.4%
Net revenue days outstanding (at . : - '
end of period) .......... . 39.9 N/A 40.1 N/A 0.2) (0.5%)

For the three months ended December 31, 2010, our provision for doubtful accounts increased by
$26.1 million, or 27.7%, to $120.4 million on a continuing operations basis and by $17.4 million, or 18.4%,
to $111.7 million on a same-hospital basis as compared to the same period last year. This increase was
primarily the result of increases in self-pay revenues during the three months ended December 31, 2010. Self-
pay revenues on a continuing operations basis increased by $25.7 million over the same penod last year and
represented 15.0% of revenues, as compared to 13.7% of revenues in the same period last year. Self-pay
revenues continued to increase for both our inpatient and outpatient services, which were primarily driven by
high levels of unemployment in the ma_]onty of our communities. Our increased provision for doubtful ,
accounts was partially offset by an increase in both up-front cash collections and cash collections related to
our insured receivables for the three months ended December 31, 2010, as compared to the same perlod Tast
year. The provision for doubtful accounts relates principally to self-pay amounts due from patients. The.
provision and allowance for doubtful accounts are critical accounting estimates and are further discussed in
Part II, Item 7. Management’s Dzscusszon and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,
“Critical Accounting Estimates.”

Certain changes have been made to our historical sources of reveriues. Spec1ﬁca11y, we prev10usly
classified our revenues related to ‘our owned physician practices as other revenue. In 2010 and for all
previously reported periods, we changed the classification of our revenues for our owned physician practlces
from other to the respective payor classifications, as appropriate. This change had no impact on our historical
results of operations. These reclass1ﬁcat10ns increased self-pay revenue in the table above. We have
determined that it is more appropriate to classify our owned phys101an practices revenue by their respectlve '
payor classification. "

Depreciation and Amortization -

For the three months ended December 31, 2010, our depreciation and amortization expense 1ncreased to
$39.3 million, or 6.6%, on a continuing operations basis as compared to $36.9 million for the same period last
year. Our depreciation and amortization expense increased primarily as a result of ‘our recent acquisitions of
HighPoint and Clark, capital improvement projects completed during 2010. as well as an‘increase in
amortization expense for certain non-compete agreements as a result of ancillary service-line acquisitions
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completed during 2010. Throughout 2010, we have experienced a‘significant increase in our spending related
to information systems as the result of various initiatives and requirements, including compliance with the
HITECH Act. We anticipate increasing our spending related to information systems during 2011 as comipared
to 2010 and prior years. As a result, we anticipate that our depreciation and amortization expense as a
percentage of revenues will increase in future periods. '

Interest Expense

Our interest expense increased by $4.9 million, or 18.5%, to $30.9 million, for the three months ended
December 31, 2010, as compared to $26.0 million for the same period last year. The increase in interest
expense for the three months ended December 31, 2010, as compared to the same period last year, was largely
attributable to an increase in our outstanding debt balance, excluding unamortized discounts 6f convertible
debt instruments, at December 31, 2010 to $1,651.7 million as compared to $1,502.2 million.at December 31,
2009 and increases in our applicable annual interest rates. Effective September 23, 2010, we issued $400.0
million of 6.625% Senior Notes in a private placement. The net proceeds from this issuance were used. to
repay $249.2 million of our outstanding borrowings under our Term B Loans and $6.0 million of our -
outstanding borrowings under our Province 7%% Notes. Interest on the 6.625% Sénior Notes is payable at an
annual fixed rate of 6.625% as compared to a vaﬁabl\e" rate under our Term B Loans, which for the three
months ended December 31, 2010, on a weighted average basis, was 3.06%. These increases were partially
offset by declines in interest expense attributable to our interest rate swap agreement. On November 30, 2010,
the notional amount of our interest rate swap decreased from $450.0 million to $300.0 million. As the notional
amount of our interest rate swap has continued to decline, a larger portion of our total outstanding debt has
become subject to floating interest rates that were lower than our fixed rate under the agreement of 5.585%
for the three months ended December 31, 2010 as compared to the same period last year. For a further
discussion of our debt and corresponding interest rates, see “Liquidity and Capital Resources — Debt.”

Provision for Income Taxes

Our provision for income taxes was $16.9 million, or 2.0% of revenues, for the three months ended
December 31, 2010, as compared to $16.1 million, or 2.1% of revenues, for the same period last year. The
effective tax rate increased to 31.8% for the three months ended December 31, 2010, compared to 29.4% for
the same period last year. '

A reconciliation of the federal income tax and statutory federal income tax rate to our provision for
income taxes and effective income tax rate, respectively, on income from continuing operations béfore income
taxes and including net.income from noncontrolling interests for the three months ended December 31, 2010
and 2009, giving effect to the net (reversal) accrual of interest. on the long-term income tax liability and the
expiration of the statutes of limitations on various income tax returns is as follows (dollars in millions):

Three Months Ended . . . Three Months Ended
Degember 31, " Increase . December 31, Increase
o : 2010 -~ 2009 - (Decrease) 2010 2009 (Decrease)
Federal income taxes . . ..... $18.7 $19.1 $(0.4) 35.0% 35.0% "~ —bps
State income taxes, net of ‘ ;
federal income tax benefits. . 0.8 0.7 01 1.7 1.2 50

Increase in valuation
allowances for deferred tax ; . : S
assets ... ...... e 1.8 1.2 0.6 3.3 2.1 120

Decrease in long-term income
tax liabilities due to statute : : ,
lapses and exam closures. . . (1.3) . 6.0) 47 (25 (10.9) 840

Decrease- in deferred income .
tax liabilities due to exam

closures. . . . .... .. cen @O — @8 @9 (490)

Other.................. (0.5 1.1 (1.6) 08 - .20 . (280
S - $16.9 $161 = $08 31.8% 29.4% .- 240 bps

;
|
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- For the Years Ended December 31, 2010 and 2009

Revenues

The following:table shows:our revenues and the key drivers of our revenues for the years ended
December 31, 2010 and 2009: e ' - :

Years Ended December 31,

Increase % Increase
TR , - 2010 2009 - - (Decrease) - (Decrease)
Continuing operations: T o . ‘
. Revenues (dollars in: millions). . . . .. .. $3,2624 $2,962.7 $.2997 -10.1%
“UAdmissions*. ... D 0 oL 188,875 0 188,147 C728 04
" “Equivalent-admissions . . . . /... ... 407,026 392,851 14,175 3.6
"Re\//enu"e"s per equivalent 'adnlission' 008 8015 8 7542 $ 473 6.3
" Medicare case mix index . . . . . Lo ©1.29 130 (0.01) (0:8)
Average length of stay (days)....... 44 43 01 2.3
Inpatient surgeries. ... ........... 53914 54599  (685) (1.3)
~ Outpatient surgeries. . . ~.......... 155,691 151,496 4,195 2.8
- - Emergency room visits. , .. ... ..... 952,499 935824 16,625 138
- . Outpatient factor. . ... . . .. U 216 .. 209 . 0.07 33
Safn'e—’ho'spi.talzy ' ‘ : '
Revenues (dollars in‘millions). ... ... § 3;168.1' - $2962.7 $ '205.4 6.9%
Admissions_ ., ....... e 183942 188,147 4205 (22
Equivalent admissions . . . . . . . .. ... 394372 392,851 1,521 7 04
Revenues per equivalent admission ... $ 8,033 $ 7,542 $ 491 -~ - 65 .
. Medicare case mix index . ......... . - 130, 1.30 —_— e
‘Averagelength of stay (days) . . . .. o 4.3 43 @ . — L=
“Inpatient surgeries. .. ... .. ... ... 52,743 - 54,599 (1,856) -(83.4).
Outpatient surgeries. . . ........... 151,411 151,496 (85) - ©.1)y
Emergency room visits. . . . ........ 921,074 - 935,824 (14,750) (1.6)
Outpatient factor. . .. ........... . 2,14 . 2.09 - 0.05 24

The following table shows the sources of our revenues by payor for the years ended December 31, 2010
and 2009, expressed as a percentage of total revenues, including adjustments to estimated reimbursement

amounts: : :
Continuing Operations - Same-Hospital
‘ . , 2000 - - 2009 2010 2009
~ Medicare ... ... ... e Lo 302% 0 301% 30.3% 30.1%
Medicaid . .. .......... P 11.8 106 . 11.7 106
HMOs, PPOs and other private insurers -, 424 45.1 42.4 - 451
Self-Pay....................... 14.6 132 14.6 132
Other. ........................ _ 10 _ 1.0 _ 10 .. _ 1.0
: ' 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

For the year ended December 31, 2010, our revenues increased by $205.4 million, or 6.9% to
$3,168.1 million on a same-hospital basis as compared to $2,962.7 million for the same period last year. Of
the $205.4 million ‘increase, $20.0 million relates to additional amounts we received from the state of Alabama
in connection with settlements for DSH payments and access payments, slightly offset by inpatient and '
s outpatient rate reductions as a part of Alabama’s new state plan amendment for Alabama’s fiscal year ended
A December 31, 2010. The additional $20.0 million we received from the state of Alabama corresponds ‘with an
Lo $11.7 million increase in our non-income taxes as discussed for changes in our other operating expenses for’
the year ended December 31, 2010 as compared to 2009. The remaining increase was the result of the impact
of favorable commercial pricing, inclusive of improvements in our third party payor contracting, and an
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increase in our self-pay revenues as further discussed in our analysis of our provision for doubtful accounts
for the year ended December 31, 2010. Our revenues per equivalent admissjon on a same-hospital basis '
increased 6.5% to $8,033 for the year ended December 31, 2010, as compared to $7,542 for the prior year. -

Certain changes have been made to our, historical sources of revenues table above. Specifically, we
previously classified our revenues related to our owned physician practices as other revenue. In 2010 and for
all previously reported periods, we-changed ‘the classification of our revenues for our owned physician
practices from other to the respective payor classifications, as appropriate. This change hadno impact on our
historical results ‘of operations. These reclassifications reduced other revenue as a percentage of ‘total revenues
and increased Medicare, Medicaid, HMOs, PPOs and other private insurers and self-pay as a percentage of -
total revenues. We have deterfnined that it i$ thore appropriate to classify our owned physician practices
revenue by their respective payor classification.

Expenses

Salaries and Benefits '

The following table summarizes our salaries and-benefits, man-hours per equivalent admission and
salaries and benefits per equivalent admission for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009;

v L .. Years Ended December 31, . »
% of ' L % of

2010 “Revenues 2009 Revenues  Increase ~ % Increase’
Continuing operations:
Salaries and benefits (dollars in ' S . '
millions) . ......... e $1,270.3 . 38.9% . $1,1709 . 395% . $99.4 8.5%
Man-hours per equivalent . co
admission .............. . 963 N/A 93.0 N/A 33 3.5%
Salaries and benefits per - - o
" ‘equivalent admission....... § 3,112 N/A $ 2972 N/A $ 140 47%
Same-hospital: ) \
Sdlaries and benefits (dollars in - - , :
millions) ... ............ $1,227.7 38.8%  $1,170.9 39.5%. . $56.8 - 4.8%
Man-hours per equivalent - : ' ' : . IR
admission ... ......... .. 95.9 N/A 93.0 N/A 29 -+ 3:0%
Salaries and benefits per - ' LT ‘
equivalent admission. . .. ... $ 3,104 N/A $ 2,972 NA  $132 - 45%

For the year ended December 31, 2010, our salaries'and benefits expense increased to $1,227.7 million,
or 4.8%, on a same-hospital basis as compared to $1,170.9 million for the prior year. This increase in our
same-hospital salaries and benefits expense is primarily a result of the impact of an increasing number of
employed physicians and their related support staff, higher employee medical benefit expenses and the impact
of corfipensation increases for our employees. The increase in our employed physicians and their related -
support staff resulted in an increase of $18.8 million in our salaries and benefits expense for the years ended
December 31, 2010 as compared to the prior year. As we continue to employ an increasing number of medical
professionals, including physicians, we anticipate that salaries and benefits as a percentage of revenues will
increase in future periods. Increases in our salaries and benefits expense were partially offset by reductions in
our contract labor expense, which is a component of salaries and benefits. ‘ ' '
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Supplies :

The following table suri

December 31, 2010 and 2009:

2010

Years Ended December 31,
% of o o %of
Revenues

félrizes our suppliés and suppliés'per equiVaiéIit adini:s"sion for the years ended

I - Revenues - 2009 - Increase % Increase
Continuing operations: A S e s
Supplies (dollars in millions) ... . $443.0 . . 13.6% . $409.1 . 13.8%- $339. . 8.3%
Supplies per.equivalent . T, e o .
admission . . .. e $1,088  N/A $1038 .. NA . $ 50  48%
Same-hospital: e
Supplies (dollars in millions) . ..  $431.1 13.6% $409.1 13.8% $22.0 5.4%
Supplies per equivalent ‘
admission ....... R $1,093 N/A $1,038 N/A $ 55 53%

For the year ended December 31, 2010, our supplies expense increased to $431.1 million, or 5.4% oii a
same-hospital basis, as compared to $409.1 million for the prior year. This increase in our same-hospital
supplies expense-for the years ended December 31, 2010 was primarily a result of an increase in our supplies
expense per equivalent admission to $1,093, or 5.3%, as compared to $1,038 for the prior year. Supplies per
equivalent admission increased as a result of a higher utilization of more expensive supplies in areas such as
orthopedics, cardiac devices and spine and bone as well as an increase in our pharmacy supplies expense.

Other Operating Expenses

" The following table summarizes our other operating expenses for the years ended December 31, 2010

and 2009 (dollars in millions):

Years Ended Decémber 31,

% of % of Increase - % Increase
. 2010 Revenues 2009 Revenues - (Decrease) - (Decrease)
Continuing operations:
Professional fees . .......... $ 829 2.5% $ 729 2.5% $10.0 - 13.8%
Utilities. . .. .............. 53.8 1.6 50.5 1.7 33 64
Repairs and maintenance. . . . . . 71.8 2.2 64.3 22 7.5 11.6
Rents and leases. . . ......... 27.0 0.8 26.4 0.9 0.6 2.3
Insurance ................ 42.8 1.3. 46.5 1.6 (3.7 (7.9)
Physician recruiting ......... 24.1 0.7 24.4 0.8 0.3) (1.0).
Contract services . ..... ... 156.5 4.8 145.5 4.9 11.0 16
Non-income taxes. . ......... : 65.9 2.0 40.8 14 1 25.1 614
Other ..................... 80.4 .27 66.7" 22 _13.7 20.3
' $605.2 18.6% $538.0 18.2% . $67.2 12.5%
Same-hospital: ' . ’
Professional fees ........... § 788 25%  $ 729 2.5% $ 5.9 8.1%
Utilities. . . . . e 52.1 1.6 50.5 1.7 1.6 32
Repairs and maintenance . . . . . . 69.1 2.2 64.3 2.2 4.8 7.4
Rents and leases. i . .. ... .. . 25.2 0.8 26.4 0.9 1.2) - 43)
Insurance ................ 422 13 46.5 1.6 4.3) 9.2)
Physician recruiting . ...... .. 239 0.8 244 0.8 (0.5) (1.6)
Contract services . .......... 153.2 4.8 145.5° 4.9 7.1 53
Non-income taxes. . ......... 62.5 2.0 40.8 1.4 21.7 53.1
Other . .................. 79.5 24 66.7 22 _12.8 19.0
$586.5 18.4% $538.0 18.2% $48.5 9.0%
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For the year ended December 31, 2010, our. other operating expenses increased-to-$586.5 million, or
9.0% on a same-hospital basis; as compared. to $538.0. million for the prior year. This increase in our. same-
hospital other operating expenses for.the year ended December 31, 2010 was primarily a result of increases in
professional fees, contract services, non-income taxes and other expenses.

As a shortage of physicians continues to become more acute, we have experienced increasing
professional fees in areas such as radiology, anesthesiology, emergency room physician coverage and 4
hospitalists. We expect this trend to continue and that professional fees as a percentage of revenues will
increase in future periods.. ‘ o : ’

On a same-hospital basis, our contract services expense increased primarily. as a result of increased
accounts receivable. collection fees and fees related to our conversion of the clinical and patient accounting
information system applications at certain hospitals.

Our non-income taxes increased primarily as a result of $11.7 million in provider assessments paid to the
state of Alabama under the new state plan amendment that is associated with the previously discussed
Alabama DSH and access payments and increases in state provider taxes and property taxes experienced at
certain other hospitals in various states. Finally, our other expenses increased on a same-hospital basis as a
result of additional training and implementation expenses from various information system initiatives in our
efforts to comply with the HITECH Act as well as additional legal and consulting fees related to our recent
acquisitions, including HighPoint, Clark and certain ancillary service-line ‘acquisitions.

Provision for Doubtful Accounts

The folIowing table suxhrnarizés our proviéion fo:'dbubtful accounts and related key indicators _'for‘tvhe
years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 (dollars in millions): :

Years Ended December 31,

% of % of Increase % Increase
2010 Revenues 2009 Revenues (Decrease) (Decrease)
Continuing operations:
Provision for doubtful accounts . - $443.8 13.6% . $3754  127% $68.4 . 18.2%
Related key indicators: : »
-Charity care write-offs . . . . . . $ 623 1.9% - $ 585 - 2.0% $ 38 6.4%
Self-pay revenues, net of .. : . ‘ :
charity care write-offs and : o : » :
uninsyred discounts . . . . . . $475.1 146%  $390.1 13.2% $85.0 21.8%
Net revenue days outstanding ' ’ ,
(at end of period). . . . .. .. 418 NA 401 NA 17 4.2%
Same-hospital: ., ~ : » : '
Provision for doubtful accounts .  $429.7 C13.6% - $3754- 12.7% = $54.3 14.5%
Related key-indicators: - v . - : A
Charity care write-offs . . . . . . -$ 60.4 1.9%  $ 585 20% - $ 1.9 3.1%
Self-pay revenues, net of ,
charity care. write-offs and , - ,
.uninsured discounts . . . . . . $462.0 146%  $390.1 132%  $71.9 18.4%
Net revenue days outstanding - v ' ‘
(at end of period). . ... ... 399  NA 40.1 N/A 0.2) (0.5%)

For the year ended December 31, 2010, our provision for doubtful accounts increased by $68.4 million,
or 18.2%, to $443.8 million on a continuing operations basis and by $54.3 million, or 14.5%, to
$429.7 million on a same-hospital basis as compared to the prior year. This increase was primarily the result
of increases in self-pay revenues during the year ended December 31, 2010. Self-pay revenues, ona
continuing operations basis, increased by $85.0 million over the prior year and represents 14.6% of revenues
as compared to 13.2% of revenues in the prior year. Self-pay revenues continued to increase for both our
inpatient and outpatient services which were primarily driven by high levels of unemployment in the majority
of our communities. Our increased provision for doubtful accounts was partially offset by an increase in both
up-front cash collections and cash collections related to our insured receivables for the year ended
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December 31,:2010; as compared to the prior year. The provision for doubtful accounts relates principally to
self-pay amounts due from patients. The provision and allowance for doubtful accounts are critical accounting
estimates and are further discussed in Part Ii, Item 7: Managements Discussion and Analyszs of Fi manczal
Condition and Results of Operations, ““Critical Accounting Estimates.” '

Certain changes have béen made to our historical sources of revenues. Spemﬁcally, we previously
classified our revenues related to ouf’ owned phys101an practlces as other revenue In 2010 and for all
previously reported periods, we changed the classification of our revenues for our owned physwlan practlces
from other to the respective payor classifications, as appropriate. This change had no impact on our historical
results of operations. These reclassifications: increased self-pay revenue in the table above. We have
determined that it is more appropriate to classify our owned phys1c1an practlces revenue by their respect1ve
payor classification. : B

Depreciation and Amo}‘tizatian

For the year ended December 31, 2010, our depreciation and amortization expense increased to
$148.5 million, or 3.8%, as compared to'$143.0 million for the prior year. Our deprec1at10n and amortization *
expense increased pnmanly as a result of our recent acqu1s1tlons of HighPoint and Clark, capital 1mprovement 7
projects completed during 2010 as well as an increase in amortization expense for ceértain non—compete ’
agreements as a result of ancﬂlary service-line acquisitions completed during 2010. Throughout 2010, we have
experienced a significant increase in our spending related to information systems as the result of various
initiatives and requirements, includirig compliance with the HITECH Act. We anticipate increasing our
spendmg related to information systems during 2011 as compared to 2010 and prior years. As a result, ‘we
anticipate that our depreciation and amortization expense as a percentage of revenues will increase in future
periods.

- Interest Expense

Our interest expense increased by $4.9 million, or 4.7%, to $108.1 for the year ended December-31, <
2010, as compared to $103.2 million for the prior year. The increase in interest expense for the year ended
December 31, 2010, as compared to the prior year was a result of an increase in our outstariding debt balance,
excluding unamortized discounts of convertible debt instruments, at December 31, 2010 to $1;651.7 million as
compared to $1,502.2 million at December 31, 2009 and as a result of increases in our applicable annual
interest rates. Effective September 23, 2010, we issued in a private placement $400.0 million of 6.625%'
Senior Notes. The net proceeds from this issuance were used to repay $249.2 million of our outstanding
borrowings under our Term B Loans and $6.0 million of our outstanding borrowings under our Province 7%2%
Notes. Interest on the 6.625% Senior Notes is payable at an annual fixed rate of 6.625% as compared to a '
variable rate under ‘our Term B Loans, which for the years ended December 31, 2010, on-a weighted average

~ basis, was 2.67%. These increases were offset by declines in interest expense attributable to our interest rate -

swap agreement. On November 30, 2010, the notional amount of our interest rate swap decreased from
$450.0 million to $300.0 million. As the notional amount of our interest rate swap has continued to decline, a
larger portlon of our total outstanding debt has become subject to floating interest rates that were lower than
our fixed rate under the agreement of 5.585% for the years ended December 31, 2010 as compared to the
same period last year. For a further discussion of our debt and corresponding interest rates, see “L1qu1d1ty and
Cap1ta1 Resources — Debt.”

Provision for Income Taxes :

Our provi_sion for inco_me taxes was $82.4 million; or 2.5% 'of,'revenues, for tﬁe year ended Decem_ber 31,
2010, as compared to $80.3 million, or 2.7% of revenues, for the same period last year. The effective tax rate
decreased to 34.6% for the years ended December 31, 2010, compared to 36.6% for the same: period last year.
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A reconciliation: of the federal income tax. and statutory federal income tax rate to.our provision for-
income taxes and effective income tax rate, respectively, on income from continuing operations before income
taxes and including net income from noncontrolling interests for the years ended December 31, 2010 and -
2009, giving effect to the net (reversal) accrual of interest on the long-term income tax liability and the .- -
expiration of the statutes of limitations on various income tax returns is. as follows (dollars in millions):

Years Ended December 31, Increase Years Ended December 31,

Increase
2010 2009 (Decrease) 2010 2009 (Decrease)
Federal income taxes . .. ...... . $833 - $768 $6.5 - 350% - 350% °  —bps
State income taxes, net of federal ' @ - T o R
income tax benefits.. ... ......+ 38 = 30" . 08" 1.6 14 - 20
Increase in valuation allowances . - SR SR ' " BN ’
for deferred tax assets. . ... ... 39 . .34 - 05 2160 1.5 10
Decrease in long-term income tax S EEEITIE :
liabilities due to tax accounting
method changes, statute lapses P L ' o ;
and exam closures.. . ........  (6.1) 42 - . 1.9 2.5) 1.9 - -(60)
Decrease in deferred tax liabilities - ., - : e
_ primarily due to exam closures. . 2.6) L= (2.6) (1.1) — . . (110)
Other................... . . _01 .13 (1.2) e 0.6 . _(60)
$824 .. .$80.3 $21 34.6% . . 36.6% (200).bps

ll

For the Years Ended December 31, 2009 and 2008
Rev'enue_g ' " o e

. The fbllowing:;able shows our ‘réi/eﬁugs and the ke)} dfive;}s bf o'ur‘, revenues for the years eridcd
December 31, 2009 and 2008; . o

" Years Ended December 31,

i Increase %. In}crea.sé
2009 - - 2008 - (Decrease) (Decrease)
Continuing operations: o

Revenues (dollars in millions) . . . . . . $2,962.7 $2,700.8 $ 2619 9.7%
Admissions . . ................. 188,147 188,713 (566) 0.3)
Equivalent admissions. . .......... 392,851 375,539 17,312 4.6
Revenues per equivalent admission. . .  $ . 7,542 $ 7,192 $ 350 49
Medicare case mix index. . .. . . e 130 - - 127 .. - - 0.03 24
Average length of stay (days). ...... -~ . 43 . - 43 .- = —
Inpatient surgeries . ....... e 254,599 54,775 (176) 0.3)
Outpatient surgeries . . ........... 151,496 145,041 6,455 4.5
Emergency room visits . ... ....... 935,824 873,862 61,962 7.1
Outpatient factor .. ............. 2.09 1.99 010 © 50

The following table shows the sources of our revenues by payor for the years ended December 31, 2009

and 2008, expressed as a percentage of total revenues, including adjustments to estimated reimbursement
amounts: o s '

Years Ende& December 31, .

2009 2008
Medicare . .. ... ... R e PO 30.1% - 31.7%
Medicaid . . ............... ... S : 10.6 - 9.7
HMOs, PPOs and other private insurers . .. ... .. ... PR 45.1 453
Self-Pay....................... 132 121
Other................... A, e - Lo _ 12
' 0 1000% 0 100.0% ¢
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Revenues for the year.ended December 31, 2009 were $2,962.7 million, an increase of $261.9 million, or
9.7%, over the prior year. Of this increase $117.6 million, or 44.9%, was attributable to our acquisition. of -
Rockdale, effective’ February 1, 2009. Including Rockdale, our:admissions for the year ended December 31,
2009 declined by 0.3% to 188,147 as compared to 188,713 in the prior year. We continue to experience
declines in our inpatient surgeries as well as a shift from inpatienit admissions to outpatient observations for a -
portion of our patient population. : :

“Despite our declining inpatient admissions, equivalent admissions increased for the year ended
December 31, 2009 by 4.6% to 392,851 as compared to 375,539 in the prior year. The equivalent admissions
improvement was primarily attributable to our Rockdale acquisition. Additionally, we experienced increases in
outpatient revenues in radiology, including CTs, MRIs and mammography procedures, increased utilization of -
our laboratory testing services which was primarily driven by an increase in our emergency room visits and
increases in our other higher reimbursement outpatient diagnostic services including cardiac catheterizations.
These increases contributed to an increase in our outpatient factor to 2.09 as compared to 1.99 in-the prior
year. Our revenues per equivalent admission increased 4.9% to $7,542 during the year ended December 31,
2009 as compared to $7,192 for the prior year. Similarly, these increases are the result of increases in our
higher reimbursement outpatient diagnostic services. Additionally, we have experienced increases in the
average' acuity of our services provided, as evidenced by a 2.4% increase in our Medicare case mix index to
1.30 as compared to 1.27 in the prior year, as well as favorable commercial pricing; including third party
payor contracting and Medicare’s. hospital market basket updates.

- Certain changes have been made to our historical sources of revenues table ‘above. Specifically, we
previously classified our revenues related to our owned physician practices as other revenue. In 2010 and .for
all previously reported periods, we changed the classification of our revenues for our owned physician
practices from other o the respective payor classifications, as approptiate. This change had no impact on our
historical results of operations. These reclassifications reduced other revenue as a percentage of total revenues
and increased Medicare, Medicaid, HMOs, PPOs and other private insurers and self-pay as a percentage of
total revenues. We have determined that it is more appropriate to classify our owned physician practices
revenue by their respective payor classification.

Expenses

Sﬁlaries and Benefits

The following table summarizes our salaries and benefits, man-hours per equivalent admission and-
salaries and benefits per equivalent admission for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008: -

Years Ended December 31,

' % of % of .
2009 Revenues 2008 Revenues Increase % Increase
Continuing operations: . . '

Salaries and benefits (dollars in
* millions) . ........ e $1,1709. - 39.5%  $1,065.4 39.4% $105.5 9.9%
Man-hours per equivalent ‘

admission .............. 93.0 N/A 93.0 N/A — —
Salaries and benefits per

equivalent admission . .. .... $ 2972 N/A $ 2,823 N/A $ 149 5.3%

For the year ended December 31, 2009, our salaries and benefits expense increased by $105.5 million to
$1,170.9 million, or 9.9%, as compared to $1,065.4 million for the prior year. Of this increase, $50.7 million,
or 48.0%, was attributable to our Rockdale acquisition. Additionally, our salaries and benefits expense
increased for the year ended December 31, 2009 as compared to the prior year as a result of annual
compensation increases for our employees, higher benefit expenses plus the impact of an increasing number of
employed physicians and. their related support staff.
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Our benefit expenses have increased as.a result of higher employee ‘medical benefit costs as well as an
increase in our retirement plan expenses. .Our retirement plan expenses, which increased by $7.2 million-
during the year ended December 31, 2009 as compared-to the prior year, was the result of an-absence of .
available ESOP share forfeitures, which reduced our required cash contributions to our defined .contribution -
retirement plan during the prior year.

Finally, the number of our employed physicians, including hospitalists, increased by 65 to 296 from
231 from the prior year and the number of employed physicians and their related support staff increased by
188 to 926 from 738 from the prior year. The increase in our employed physicians and their related support
staff resulted in an increase of $22.4 million in our salaries .and benefits expense for the year ended
December 31, 2009 as compared to the prior year. As we continue to employ an increasing number of medical
professionals, including physicians, we ant_i‘cipate‘t,hat salaries and benefits as a percentage of revenues will
increase in futuré periods. Increases in our. salaries and benefits expense were partially offset by improvements

in our contract labor expense, which is a component of salaries and benefits.

Supplies .

The following ﬁble suﬁunari-zes our supplies andv.s,upplies per eq_uivalént admission for _thé yearé ended
December 31, 2009 and 2008:

Years Ended December 31,

. % of % of
' t 2009 ‘Revenues - 2008 ~Revenues Increase. % Increase
Continuing operations: Co v : . : :
Supplies (dollars in millions) . . .  $409.1 .  13.8% - $3726 13.8% $36.5 9.8%
Supplies per equivalent ' ' I o
admission . .. . ...... .. . .$1,038 . N/A $ 989 N/A $ 49 5.0%

For the year ended December 31, 2009, our supplies expense increased by $36.5 mnﬁon to $409.1
million, or 9.8%, as compared to $372.6 million for the prior year. Of this increase, $18.6 million, or 51.0%,
was attributable to our Rockdale acquisition. Additionally, our supplies.per equivalent admission increased
5.0% to $1,038, as compared to $989 for the prior year. Supplies per equivalent ahd’mis'sioﬁ increased as a
result of a higher utilization of more expensive supplies in areas such as orthopedics, cardiac devices and
spine and bone. As a percentage of revenues, our supplies expense remained consistent at 13.8%.

Other Operating Expenses

The following table summarizes our other operating expenseé for the years ended Décéinber 31, 2009
and 2008 (dollars in millions): ‘ : ‘ . , : .
. = : ‘Years Ended Decémber 31,

. o % of % of " .Increase % Increase
L 2009 . Revenues 2008 _ Revenues (Decrease) (Decrease)
Continuing operations: : RO o ; : , :
Professional fees . .......... $.729 . 25% @ $.654 24% . $.15 11.4%
Utilities. . . . . P ... 505 17 515 L9 (1.0) (1.8)
Repairs and maintenance.. . . . . . 643 22 56.8 2.1 15 132
Rents and leases. . . . . . . . L. 26409 256 10 0.8 2.9
Insurance ................ = 465 1.6 23 16 @ 42 9.8
Physician recruiting ... ...... 244 0.8 1220 0.8 24 106
Contract services ........... 1455 4.9 136.3 50 9.2 6.7
Non-income taxes. . ......... 40.8 1.4 39.1 14 17 45
Other ... ovvee .. 66.7 22 60.8 23 .59 9.9
o $5380 182%  $4998  185%  $382 7.6%

- For the ‘year ended December 31, 2009, our other operating expenses increased to $538.0 million, or
7.6%, as compared to $499.8 million for the prior year. Of this increase, $17.8 million, or 46.6%, was -
attributable to our Rockdale acquisition. Of the remaining $20.4 million increase in other operating expenses,
the majority -was the result of increases in professional fees, repairs and maintenance, insurance, contract'
services and other expenses.

67



As:a shortage of physicians continues to-become more .acute, we have experienced increasing -
professional fees in areas such as radiology, anesthesiology, emergency room physician coverage and
hospitalists. We -expect this trend to continue and that. professronal fees as a percentage of revenues w111
increase in future periods. : : :

Our repairs and maintenance expense increased pnmanly as a result of an increase m new dlagnostlc
equipment covered under maintenance contracts, the hlgher cost of mamtammg equrpment as warrantres ‘
expire and a number of repair projects at many of our hospltals

The increase in our insurance expense during ‘the year ended December 31 2009, as compared to the
prior year, was the result of an increase in our reserves for professronal and general liability claims.
Spec1ﬁca11y, we have increased our estimated exposure on certam potential and outstandlng claims covered
under our professional and general hablhty Insurance program as well as ‘claims’ covered under our captlve
insurance company.

Our contract services expense increased primarily as a result of our Rockdale acquisition. Additionally,
other-expénses increased as a result of incredses in our charitable program expenses and legal fees.

Provision for Doubtful Accounts

. The following table summarizes our provision for doubtful accounts and related key indicators for the
years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 (dollars in millions):

Years Ended December 31,
% of % of Increase ' % Increase
. 2009 Revenues 2008 Revenues (Decrease) ... (Decrease)
Continuing, operations: , . o _ - k

Provision for doubtful accounts .  $3754  127%  $3132  11.6% = $622  19.9%

Related key indicators: ’ a o ‘ o S S ‘

Charity care write-offs. . .... $585 = 20% $53.7  20% $48  9.0%
Self-pay revenues, net of o - : o o e '
charity care write-offs and S o L
uninsured discounts . . . . . . $390.1° 13.2%  $325.8 121%  $643  197%

Net revenue days outstanding BN .
- (at end of period). . ... ... 40.1 N/A 424 NA Q. 3) 5.4)%

Our provision for doubtful accounts increased by $62.2 n‘ulhon or 19 9%, to $375 4 million for the year
ended December 31, 2009, as compared to $313.2 million in the prior year. Of this increase $21.9 million, or
35. 2%, was attributable to our Rockdale acquisition. The remalmng increase was primarily the result of an
increase in our self-pay revenues as there were significant increases in unemployment in most of our
communities within the past year. The majonty of our increases in self-pay revenues were the result of
increases in inpatient revenue as well as increases in outpatient revenue primarily driven by an increase in our
emergency room visits. This increase was partrally offsét by an increase in both up-front cash collections and
cash collections related to our insured receivables for the year ended December 31, 2009, as compared to the
prior year. The provision for doubtful accounts relates prmc1pa11y to self-pay amounts due from patients. The
provision and allowance for doubtful accounts are critical accountmg estimates and are further d1scussed in
Part II, Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analyszs of Fi manczal Condition and Results of Operatlons
“Critical Accounting Estimates.”

Certain changes have been made to our historical sources of revenues. Specifically, we previously =
classified our revenues related to our owned physician practices as other revenue. In 2010 and for all
previously reported periods, we changed the classification of our revenues for-our owned ‘physician practices
from other to the respective payor classifications, as appropriate. This change had no impact:on our historical
results of operations. These reclassifications increased self-pay revenue in the table above. We have
determined that it is more. appropriate to classify our owned physician practices revenue by their respective
payor classification. »
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Depreciation and Amortization

For the year ended December 31, 2009, our depreciation and amortization expense increased to
$143.0 million, or 8.3%, as compared to $132.1 million for the prior year. Of this increase, $5.2 million, or -
47.8%, was atlnb_utable to our Rockdale acquisition: Additionally, our depreciation and amortization expense:
increased as a result of capital improvement projects and upgrades of diagnostic equipment completed during
2009. As a percentage of revenues, our depreciation and amortization decreased slightly to 4.8% for the year
ended December 31, 2009 as compared to 5.0% for the prior year.

- Interest Expense

Our interest expense decreased by $4.5 million, or 4.2%, to $103.2 million for the year ended
December 31, 2009 as compared to $107.7 million for the prior year. The decrease in interest expense for the
year ended December 31,2009, as compared to the prior year was largely attributable to declines in interest
rates that favorably impacted our interest expense on our Term B loans. Additionally, as the notional amount
of our interest rate swap has continued to decline, a larger amount of our total outstanding debt has become
subject to floating interest rates that were lower for the year ended December 31, 2009 as compared to the
prior year. This decrease was partially offset by an increase in our convertible debt interest expense. For a
further discussion of our debt and corresponding 1nterest rates, see “L1qu1d1ty and Capltal
Resources — Debt.” : : .

Provision for Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes was $80.3 million, or 2.7% of revenues for the year ended December 31,
2009, as compared to $79.9 million, or 2.9% of revenues for the prior year. Our effective tax rate decreased to
36.6% for the year ended December 31; 2009, as compared to 38.7% for the prior year.

The following table summarizes our prov1s1on for income taxes and eﬁectrve tax rates for the penods
presented (dollars in mrlhons)

Years Enﬂed December 31, ,Increase ' Years Ended Decelriber 31, Increase ‘

‘ ' 2009 2008 (Decrease) 2009 2008 (Decrease)

Federal income taxes . ......... $76.8 $72.3 $45 35.0% 35.0% —"bps
State income taxes, net of federal o ,

income tax benefit . .. ....... 3.0 32 02 14 1.5 (10)
Increase in valuation allowances ‘

for deferred tax assets. . ..... » 34 5.0 (1.6) 1.5 24 90)
Decrease in long-term income tax

liabilities due to statute lapses o '

and exam closures . . ........ 4.2) (2.6) (1.6)" 19 (1.2) (70)
Other..................... 1.3 2.0 0.7 06 - 10 _(40)

h $80.3 $79.9 . $04 - - 36.6% 38.7% (210) bps

Dlscontmued Operations

A summary of our operating results of our discontinued operations for the years ended December 31,
2010, 2009 and 2008 were as follows (in millions, except for per share amounts):

. . . 2010 2009 2008
Revenues............. S e $(0.8) $171 $53.0
Loss from discontinued operations . . . .................. $(0.1) $ @7 $ (6.3)
Impairment charge. . . .............. e e — (17.1)
Losses on sales of hospitals ......................... — 0.4) (0.3)
Loss from discontinued operations. . . .................. $0.1)  $ (. $(23.7)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share from discontinued operations. .  $ — $(0.10) $(0.44)

From time to time, we evaluate our facilities and may sell assets which we believe may no longer fit
with our long-term strategy for various reasons. Please refer to Note 3 to our consolidated financial statements
inicluded in this report for a discussion of facilities that we have sold or identified for disposal in recent years.
Our results of operations, net of income taxes, of our previously sold facilities and those identified for
disposal are reflected as discontinued operations.
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In September 2008, we committed to plans to sell Doctors’ Hospital of Opelousas (“Opelousas”), a
171 bed facility located in Opelousas, Louisiana, and Starke Memorial Hospital (“Starke”), a 53 bed facility
located in Knox, Indiana. Effective May 1, 2009, we sold Opelousas for $1_3.7vmi‘11ion, including working -
capital and effective July 1, 2009, we sold Starke for $6.3 million, including working capital.. In connection
with our disposals of Opelousas and Starke, we recognized a loss on sale of ‘hospitals, net of income tax -
benefits, of $0.4 million during the year ended December 31, 2009.

In March 2007, we signed a letter of intent with a third party to terminate its existing lease agreement
and transfer substantially all of the operating assets and net working capital of Colorado River Medical Center
(“Colorado River™), a 25 bed facility located in Needles, California. Effective April 1, 2008, we terminated
our lease agreement-and transferred substantially all of the operating assets and working capital to a third
party. In connection with our disposal of Colorado River, we: recognized-a loss on sale of flospitals; net of
income tax benefits, of $0.3 million during the year ended December 31, 2008. :

During the year ended December 31, 2008 we recognized total impairment charges, net of taxes of
$17.1 million. These impairment charges included a $13.9 million charge for Opelousas and a $5.5 million’
charge for Starke. These charges were partially offset.by a reversal of the previously recognized impairment
charge of $2.3 million for Colorado River. We allocated goodwill to each of these facilities based on the ratio
of its estimated fair value to our estimated fair value.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
- Liquidity
Our priméry sources of liquidity'z'lre cash flows proi}ided by our operations"and-oﬁr debt 'Borrowings. We
believe that our internally generated cash flows and the amounts available under our debt agreements will be

adequate to seérvice existing- debt, finance inter’i_lal growth and fund capital expenditures and certain small to
mid-size hospital acquisitions: . - ' :

The following table presents summarized cash fow information for the years ended >December 31, 2010,
2009 and 2008 (in millions): '

2010 2000 2008
Net cash flows provided by continuing operations . . .. ... ... $3757 $3503 $ 346.6
- Less: Purchase of property and equipment. . .. .......... .. (168.7) (166.6)  (157.6)
Free operating cash flow. . ..................... .. ... 207.0 183.7 189.0
" Acquisitions, net of cash acquired . ... ... L L. L. (184.9) (81.4) (21.8)
Proceeds from borrowings .. ............ ... .. ... .. . 400.0 — 10.4
Payments on borrowings. . . . . P . (2552) . (13.5)° (10.1)
Repurchases of commion stock.". . . . . . e . AU -(152.1) - (3.D) (118.3)
Payment of debt issue costs . . . . . e (13.7) —_ —_
Proceeds from exercise of stock options . . ............... 20.4 10.8 3.6
Distributions to noncontrolling interests, net of proceeds . . .. .. 2.4) 4.2) 3.3)
Other. ............... e e e e 2.7 — - (8.6)
Cash flows from operations used in discontinued operations. . . . (1.6) 0.4) (12.5)
Cash flows provided by (used in) investing activities by ‘
discontinued operations. . ... ............... ... ..., = " 196 (5.8)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents | . ... ... AP $§ 202 $1115 $ 226

.The non-GAAP metric of free operating cash flow is an important liquidity measure for us. Our
computation of free operating cash flow consists of net cash flows provided by continuing operations less cash
flows used for the purchase of property and equipment.
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Our cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2010 were positively impacted by lower tax payments
as a result of the completion of our method change applications filed with the IRS during the third quarter, as
discussed in Note 5 to our accompanying consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this report.
In addition, our cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2010 were positively impacted by an increase in
our income from continuing operations and the timing and amount of cash payments made for interest and
salaries and benefits. These increases were partially offset by a decrease in our collection of accounts
receivable, as a larger percentage of our revenues were incurred later in the third and fourth quarters as
compared to the prior year.

Our cash flows provided by continuing operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2009 were
positively impacted by an increase in our income from continuing operations, a decrease in cash paid for
interest and an increase in both up-front cash collections and collections related to insured receivables as
compared to the prior year. These increases were partially offset by an increase in cash paid for income taxes
for the year ended December 31, 2009 as compared to the prior year.

We believe that free operating cash flow is useful to investors and management as a measure of the
ability of our business to generate cash and to repay and incur additional debt. Computations of free operating
cash flow may differ from company to company. Therefore, free operating cash flow should be used as a
complement to, and in conjunction with, our consolidated statements of cash flows presented in our
consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this report.

Capital Expenditures

We have also made significant, targeted investments at our hospitals to add new technologies, modernize
facilities and expand the services available. These investments should assist in-our efforts to attract and retain
physicians, to offset outmigration of patients and to make our hospitals more desirable to our employees and
potential patients.

The following table reftects our: capltal expendltures for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and
2008 (dollars in rnllhons)

o 2010 2009 2008
Capital projects. . . . .............................. $616 $108.6 $102.3
Routine ......... ... .. ... ... . .. . 56.7 49.3 515
Information systems. ......... e e 444 8.7 3.8
‘ - $168.7  $166.6  $157.6
Deprec1at10n expense e e e e e $145.9 $141.7 $130.9
Ratio of capital expenditures to deprematlon expense . ....... 116% 118%  120%

We have a formal and intensive re\_/iew procedure for the authorization of capital expenditures. The most
important financial measure of acceptability for a discretionary capital project is whether its projected
discounted cash flow return on investment exceeds our projected cost of capital for that project. We expect to
continue to invest in information systems, modern technologies, emergency room and operating room
expansions, the construction of medical office buildings for physician expansion and the reconfiguration of the
flow of patient care. Throughout 2010, we have experienced a significant increase in our spending related to
information systems as the result of various initiatives and requirements, including compliance with the
HITECH Act. We anticipate increasing our spending related to information systems during 2011 as compared

- t0 2010 and prior years. Additionally, as discussed in Note 2 and Note 10 to our accompanying consolidated

financial statements included elsewhere in this report, we have committed to invest an additional $60.0 million
in capital expenditures and improvements in HighPoint over the next 10 years and approx1mately $60.0
million to build and equip a new hosp1ta1 to replace the current hospital facility at Clark over the next

15 months. -
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Debt

An analysis and roll-forward of our long-term debt during 2010 is as follows (in millions):

Amortization -
Proceeds Conv(:atl‘;ﬁble
December 31, . Payments of from : Debt” N R December 31,
. o _ 2009 Borrowings _Borrowings _ Discounts _Other® 2010
Senior Secured Credit ' S
Agreement: '
Term B Loans .......... $ 692.9 $(249.2) $ — $ — $— $ 4437
Revolving Loans .. ... ... - — - == —
Province 7Y% Senior . ) o D
Subordinated Notes. . . . . . . 6.1 _ (6.0) — D —_ — 0.1
6.625% Senior Notes . . .. ... L — 400.0 = — 400.0
3% Notes. .. ........... 575.0° - - — a —_ —_ — 575.0
3Y4% Debentures. . . . . . U 225.0 — —_ — -_— 225.0
Unamortized discounts on ' ~ T o
* 3V4% Debentures and: - : :
3% Notes . . . ......... - (102.4) : —_ — 22.6 — (79.8)
Capital leases ... ... v . 32 -y 12— 49 - 79
$1,399.8  $(256.6) $4012 - - $22.6 $4.9 $1,571.9

(a) Represents the assumption of capital leases obligations in connection with certain acquisitionis completed
" during the year ended December 31, 2010.

We use leverage, or our total debt to total capitalization ratio, to make financing decisions. The following
table illustrates our financial statement leverage and the classification of our debt at December 31, 2010 and
2009 (dollars in millions): ' '

December 31, December 31, Increase .
2010 2009 " (Decrease)
Current portion of long-term debt . . ............. $ 14 $ 1.0 $ 04
Longtermdebt. ........................... 1,570.5 1,398.8 171.7
Unamortized discounts of convertible debt instruments . 79.8 102.4 _(22.6)
Total debt, excluding unamortized discounts of B
" convertible debt instruments. . .. ............ 1,651.7 1,502.2 149.5
Total LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. stockholders’ equity. . . . 1,887.5 - _1,827.7 59.8
Total capitalization. . . ..................... $3,539.2 $3,329.9 $209.3
Total debt to total capitalization. . ............... 46.7% 45.1% 160 bps
Percentage of:
~ Fixed rate debt, excluding unamortized discounts
of convertible debt instruments.. . . ......... " 73.1% 53.9%
Variable rate debt®. . ... ... ...... e - .26.9 46.1
—_— 100.0% 100.0%
Percentage of:’ , ‘ . o
Senior debt . ... . ..... [P . 516% 46.3%
Subordinated debt, excluding unamortized
~discounts of convertible debt instruments . . . . . 48.4 53.7

'100.0% - 100.0%

(a) The above calculation does not consider the effect of our interest rate swap. Our interest rate swap
mitigates a portion of our floating rate risk on our outstanding variable rate borrowings which converts’

B our variable rate debt to an annual fixed rate of 5.585%. Our interest rate swap decreases our variable

- ' rate debt as a percentage of our outstanding debt from 26.9% to 8.7% as of Deceriber 31, 2010 and from

46.1% to 16.2% as of December 31, 2009. Please refer to Note 7 to ‘our accompanying consolidated

financial statements included elsewhere in this report for a discussion of our interest rate swap agreement.
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-Credit Agreement
Terms '

Our credit agreement with Citicorp North America, Inc., as administrative ‘agent and the lenders time to
time party thereto, Bank of America, N.A., CIBC World Markets Corp., SunTrust Bank and UBSSecurities
LLC, as co-syndication agents and Citigroup Global Markets-Inc. as sole lead arranger and sole book runner,
as amended prov1des for Term B Loans, term A'loans (the “Term A Loans”) and Revolving Loans.

In February 2010 we amended our Cred1t Agreement to extend the maturity date of $443 7 million of
our outstanding Term B Loans from April 15, 2012 to Apnl 15, 2015 and the maturity date of the
$350.0 million of existing capacity available under our Revolving Loans from April 15, 2010 to December 15,
2012. If we do not refinance our outstanding 3%2% Notes at least 91 days prior to their current maturity date
of May 15, 2014, the extended portion of the Term B Loans will mature on February 13, 2014. For
consideration of the extension in maturity dates, the February 2010 amendment, among other things, increased
the applicable interest rates from an adjusted LIBOR plus a margin of 1.625% to an adjusted LIBOR plus a
margin of 2.750% for the extended Term B Loans and from an adjusted LIBOR plus a margin of 1.750% to -
an adjusted LIBOR plus a margin of up to 2.750% for the extended Revolving Loans. Additionally, the
amendment increased the unused credit capacity fee applicable to the Revolving Loans from 0.375% to
0.625% with a step-down to 0.500% if our total leverage ratio is less than 2.50:1.00. The remaining
$249.2 million outstanding under the Term B Loans, for which the maturity date and interest rate remained
unchanged, was repaid during the third quarter of 2010 out of the proceeds of the issuance of the 6.625%
Senior Notes. Accordingly, as of December 31, 2010, our outstanding $443.7 million in Term B Loans will
mature on February 13, 2014, assuming that we do not refinance our outstanding 3'2% Notes.

Additionally, Term B Loans are subject to additional mandatory prepayments with a certain percentage of
excess cash flow, as well as upon the occurrence of certain other events, as speciﬁcally described in our Credit
Agreement. Our Credit Agreement is guaranteed on a senior secured basis by our subsidiaries with. certain
limited exceptions and provides for the issuance of letters of credit up to $75.0 ‘million. Issued letters of credit
reduce the amounts available under our Revolving Loans.

Letters of Credit and Availability

- As of December 31, 2010, we had $31.1 million in letters of credit outstanding that were related to the
self-insured retention level of our general and professional liability insurance and workers’ compensation
programs as security for payment of claims. Under the terms of our Credit Agreement, Revolving Loans
available for borrowing were $318.9 million as of December 31, 2010.

Our Credit Agreement contains uncommitted “accordion” features that permit us to borrow at a later date
additional aggregate principal amounts of up to $400.0 million of Term B Loans, $250.0 million of Term A
Loans and $300.0 million of Revolving Loans, subject to obtaining additional lender commitments and the
satisfaction of other conditions.

Interest Rates

Interest-on the outstanding balance of the Term B Loans is payable at an adjusted LIBOR plus a margin
of 2.750%. Interest on the Revolving Loans is payable at our option at either an. adjusted base rate or an
adjusted LIBOR plus a margin. The margin on Revolving Loans subject to an adjusted base rate ranges from
1.00% to 1.75%, based on our total leverage ratio. The margin on the Revolving Loans subject to an adjusted
LIBOR ranges from 2.00% to 2.75% based on our total leverage ratio.

As of December 31, 2010, the appllcable annual interest rate under the Term B Loans was 3.04%, which
was based on the 90-day Adjusted LIBOR plus the applicable margins. The 90-day Adjusted LIBOR was
0.29% at December 31, 2010. The weighted-average applicable annual interest rate for the year ended
December 31, 2010 under the Term B Loans was 2 67%.

Covenants

Our Credit Agreement requires us to satisfy certain ﬁnan01a1 covenants 1ncludmg a minimum interest
coverage ratio and a maximum total leverage ratio. The interest coverage ratio can be no less than 3.50:1.00
and the total leverage ratio cannot exceed 3.75:1.00, both determined on a trailing four quarter basis. In
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addition, the Credit Agreement generally limits the amount we can spend on capital expenditures to no more
than 10.0% of annual revenues. We were in compliance with these covenants as of December 31, 2010.

In addition, our Credit Agreement contains customary affirmative and negative covenants, which among
other things, limit our ability to incur additional debt, create liens, pay dividends, effect transactions with our
affiliates, sell assets, pay subordinated debt, merge, consolidate, enter into acquisitions and effect sale
leaseback transactions. It does not contain provisions that would accelerate the ‘maturity dates upon a
downgrade in our credit rating. However, a downgrade in our credit rating could adversely affect our ability to
obtain other capital sources in the future and could increase our cost of borrowings.

6.625% Senior Notes

Effective September 23, 2010, we issued in a private placement $400.0 million of 6.625% unsecured
senior notes due October 1, 2020 with The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as trustee. The
net proceeds from this issuance were partially used to repay a portion of our outstanding borrowings under
our Term B Loans and a portion of our outstanding borrowings under our Province 7%% Senior Subordinated
Notes. We intend to use the remaining proceeds from the borrowings under our 6.625% Senior Notes for
general corporate purposes, which may include the repurchase of our outstanding common stock from time to
time pursuant to our 2009 Repurchase Plan and 2010 Repurchase Plan. The 6.625% Senior Notes bear interest
at the rate of 6.625% per year, payable semi-annually on April 1 and October 1, commencing April 1, 2011.
The 6.625% Senior Notes are jointly and severally guaranteed on an unsecured senior basis by substantially
all of our existing and future subsidiaries that guarantee our Credit Agreement.

We may redeem up to 35% of the aggregate principal amount of our 6.625% Senior Notes, at any time
before October 1, 2013, with the net cash proceeds of one or more qualified equity offerings at a redemption
price equal to 106.625% of the principal amount to be redeemed, plus accrued and unpaid interest, provided
that at least 65% of the aggregate principal amount of its 6.625% Senior Notes remain outstanding
immediately after the occurrence of such redemption and such redemption occurs within 180 days of the date
of the closing of any such qualified equity offering. '

We may redeem our 6.625% Senior Notes, in whole or in part, at any time prior to October 1, 2015 at a
price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the notes redeemed plus an applicable makewhole premium,
plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the date of redemption. We may redeem our 6.625% Senior Notes,
in whole or in part, at any time on or after October 1, 2015, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the
date of redemption plus a redemption price equal to a percentage of the principal amount of the notes
redeemed based on the following redemption schedule:

October 1, 2015 to December 31, 2016. . . .. ... ... 103.313%

October 1, 2016 to December 31, 2017. .. ... .. [P 102.208%
October 1, 2017 to December 31, 2018. . .. .. ... e e 101.104%
October 1, 2018 and thereafter .. .................... oo 100.000%

If we experience a change of control under certain circumstances, we must offer to repurchase all of the
notes at a price equal to 101.000% of their principal amount, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the
repurchase date. g

The 6.625% Senior Notes contain customary affirmative and negative covenants, which among other
things, limit our ability to incur additional debt, create liens, pay dividends, effect transactions with our
affiliates, sell assets, pay subordinated debt, merge, consolidate, enter into acquisitions and effect sale
leaseback transactions.

3¥2% Notes

Our 3%:% Notes bear interest at the rate of 3%% per year, payable semi-annually on May 15 and
November 15. The 3%% Notes are convertible prior to March 15, 2014 under the following circumstances:
(1) if the price of our common stock reaches a specified threshold during specified periods; (2) if the trading
price of the 3Y2% Notes is below a specified threshold; or (3) upon the occurrence of specified corporate
transactions or other events. On or after March 15, 2014, holders may convert their 32% Notes at any time
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prior to the close of business on the scheduled tradmg day immediately precedmg May 15, 2014, regardless of
whether any of the foregoing circumstances has occurred.

Subject to certain exceptions, we will deliver cash and shares of our common stock upon conversion of
each $1,000 principal amount of our 3% Notes as follows: (i) an amount in cash, which we refer to as the
“principal return”, equal to the sum of, for each of the 20 volume-weighted average price trading days during
the conversion period, the lesser of the daily conversion value for such volume- -weighted average price trading
day and $50; and (ii) a2 number of shares in an amount equal to the sum of, for each of the 20
volume-weighted average price trading days during the conversion period, any excess of the daily conversion
value above $50. Our ability to pay the principal return in cash is subject to important limitations imposed by
the Credit Agreement and the agreements or indentures governing any additional indebtedness that we incur in
the future. If we do not make any payments we are obligated to make under the terms of the 314% Notes,
holders may declare an event of default.

The initial conversion rate is 19.3095 shares of our common stock per $1,000 principal amount of the
3%2% Notes (subject to certain events). This represents an initial conversion price of approximately $51.79 per
share of the Company’s common stock. In addition, if certain corporate transactions that constitute a change
of control occur prior to maturity, we will increase the conversion rate in certain circumstances.

Upon the occurrence of a fundamental change (as specified in the indenture), each holder of the
314% Notes may require us to purchase some or all of the 3%2% Notes at a purchase price in cash equal to *
100% of the prlnc1pal amount of the 3%2% Notes surrendered ‘plus any accrued and unpald interest.

The indenture for the 314% Notes does not contain any financial covenants or any restnctlons on the
payment of dividends, the incurrence of senior or secured debt or other indebtedness, or the issuance or
repurchase of securities by us. The indenture contains no covenants or other provisions to protect holders of
the 3'2% Notes in the event of a highly leveraged transaction or other events that do not constitute a
fundamental: change.

3%4% Debentures

Our 3%4%-Debentures bear interest at the rate of 3Y4% per year, payable semi-annually on February 15
and August 15. The 34% Debentures are convertible (subject to certain limitations imposed by the Credit
Agreement) under the following circumstances: (1) if the price of our common stock reaches a specified
threshold during the specified periods; (2) if the trading price of the 3% Debentures is below a specified
threshold; (3) if the 3%4% Debentures have been called for redemption; or (4) if specified corporate
transactions or other specified events occur. Subject to certain exceptions, we will deliver cash and shares of
our common stock, as follows: (i) an amount in cash, which we refer to as the “principal return”, equal to the
lesser of (a) the principal amount of the 3V4% Debentures surrendered for conversion and (b) the product of
the conversion rate and the average price of our common stock, as set forth in the indenture governing the
securities, which we refer to as the “conversion value”; and (ii) if the conversion value is greater than the
principal return, an amount in shares of our common stock. Our ability to pay the principal return in cash is
subject to important limitations imposed by the Credit Agreement and the agreements or indentures governing
any additional indebtedness that we incur in the future. Based on the terms of the Credit -Agreement, in certain
circumstances, even if any of the foregoing conditions to conversion have occurred, the 3%% Debentures will
not be convertible, and holders of the 31/4% Debentures will not be able to declare an event of default under
the 3%4% Debentures.

The initial conversion rate for the 3%4% Debentures is 16.3345 shares of our common stock per $1,000
principal amount of 3%% Debentures (subject to adjustment in certain events). This is equivalent to a
conversion price of $61.22 per share of common stock. In addition, if certain corporate trarisactions that
constitute a change of control occur on or prior to February 20, 2013, we will increase the conversion rate in
certain circumstances, unless such transaction constitutes a public acquirer change of control and we elect to
modify the conversion rate into public acquirer common stock.

On or after February 20, 2013, we may redeem for cash some or all of the 3%% Debentures at any time
at a price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the 3%4% Debentures to be purchased, plus any accrued
and unpaid interest. Holders may require us to purchase for cash some or all of the 3V4% Debentures on
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February 15, 2013, February 15, 2015 and Febi'uary 15, 2020 or upon the occurrence of a fundamental
change, at 100% of the principal amount of the 3Y4% Debentures to be purchased, plus any accrued and
unpaid interest.

" The indenture for the 3%% Debéntures does not contain any financial covenants or any restrictions on
the payment of dividends, the incurrence of senior or secured debt or other indebtedness, or the issuance or
repurchase of securities by us. The indenture contains no covenants or other provisions to protect holders ‘of
the 3%4% Debentures in the event of a highly leveraged transaction or fundamental change.

Intere&t Ralt>ev Swap

We have an interest rate swap agreement with Citibank as counterparty that requires us to make quarterly
fixed rate payments to Citibank calculated on a notional amount of $300.0 million as of December 31, 2010 at
an annual fixed rate of 5.585% ‘while Citibank is obligated to make quarterly floating payments to us based on
the three-month LIBOR on the same referenced notional amount. We have designated our interest rate swap as
a cash flow hedge instrument, which is recorded in our consolidated balance sheets at its fair value in
accordance with ASC 815-10, “Derivatives and Hedging” (“ASC 815-10”), based on the amount at which it
could be settled, which is referred to in ASC 815-10 as the exit price. The exit price is based upon observable
market assumptions and ap'pro'priaté'_ valuation adjustments for credit risk. We have categorized our interest .
rate swap as Level 2 in accordance with ASC 815-10. Please refer, to Note 7 to our accompanying . o
consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this report for a further discussion of our interest rate
swap agreement. ' . S o : :

Liquidity and Capital Resources Outlook

We expect to increase our level of spending for capital expenditures in 2011 as compared to 2010. We
have large projects in process at a number of our facilities. We are reconfiguring some of our hospitals to
more effectively accommodate patient services, restructuring existing surgical capacity in some of our
hospitals to permit additional patient volume and a greater variety of services, and implementing various
information system- initiatives in our efforts to comply with the HITECH Act. For the year ended
December 31, 2010, we spent $40.8 million on information systems. We anticipate spending in excess of
$70.0 million on information systems in 2011. At December 31, 2010, we had uncompleted pr‘ojécts with an
estimated additional cost to complete and equip of approximately. $97.2 million. We anticipate funding these .
expenditures through cash provided by operating activities, available cash and borrowings available under our
Credit Agreement. : : ' )

QOur business strategy contemplates the selective acquisition of additional hospitals and other healthcare
service providers, and we regularly review potential acquisitions. These acquisitions may, however, require
additional financing. We regularly evaluate opportunities to sell additional equity or debt securities, obtain
credit agreements from lenders or restructure our long-term debt or equity for strategic reasons or to further
strengthen our financial position. The sale of additional equity or convertible debt securities could result in
additional dilution to our stockholders.- ‘ ‘

In connection with our acquisition of HighPoint, we have committed to invest $60.0 million in capital
expenditures and improvements over the next 10 years. Additionally, in connection with our acquisition of
Clark, we have committed to spend an additional approximate $60.0 million to build and equip a new hospital
to replace the current hospital facility over the next 15 months. ‘ ' ' ‘

We believe that cash generated from our operations and borrowings available under our Credit Agreement
will be sufficient to meet our working capital needs, the purchase prices for any potential facility acquisitions,
planned capital expenditures and other expected operating needs over the next twelve months and into the
foreseeable future prior to the maturity dates of our outstanding debt.
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Contractual ‘Obligations, Comnutments and Oﬂ'—Balance Sheet Arrangements

Contractual Obltgatzons '

We have various contractual obhgat1ons which are recorded as liabilities in our consolidated financial
statements. Other items, such as certain purchase commitments and other executory contracts, are not
recognized as liabilities in our consolidated financial statements but are required to be disclosed. For example,
we are required to make certain minimum lease payments for the use of property under certaln of our
operating lease agreerments.

The following table summarizes our significant contractual obligations as of December 31, 2010 and the
future perlods in which such obhgatmns are expected to be settled in cash (in nulhons) '

: : - Payment Due by Period o .
Contractual Obllgatlons L . Total . . 2011 2012-2013 2014 -2015. _After 2015

Long-term debt obligations® ) .......... $2,147.1 . $ 787 $138.4 $1,099.4  $ 830.6
Capital lease obligations ... gy T . 216 . 29 47 .. 36 .. 104
Operating lease obhgatlons e e . 586 17.5 0225 0 . 100 8.6
Other long-term liabilities . ... .. ... .. 1347 . 338 59.8 323 88
Purchase obligations®. . .. ... ........ 1,1704  203.6 1522 . 1179 6967
Total. . ......... . ... .. ..., $3,532.4 $336.5 $377.6 ‘ $1,263.2 '$1,555.1

(a) Included in long-term debt obligations are prm01pa1 and interest owed on our outstanding debt
obhgauons giving consideration to our interest rate swap. These obl1gat1ons are explained further in
‘Note 7 to our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this report. We used the 3.04%
effective interest rate at December 31, 2010 for our $443.7 million outstanding Term B Loans to estimate
interest payments on this variable rate debt instrument. The maturity date of the $443.7 million Term B
Loans is tontingent upon refinancing our outstanding 3%2% Notes beyond their current maturity date of
May 15, 2014.°In the event we do not refinance our 3%% Notes, the extended portion of the Term B
Loans mature on February 13, 2014. For purposes of the above table, we assumed that we would not
refinance our 3%2% Notes beyond their current maturity date and the $443.7 million Term B Loans would
mature on February 13, 2014. Our interest rate swap requires us to make quarterly interest payments at
an annual fixed rate of 5.585% while the counterparty is obligated to make quarterly floating payments to
us based on the three-month LIBOR on a decreasing notiopal amount. Our calculation for long-term debt
obhgat1ons includes an estimate for the net result of these payments between us and the | counterparty
using the difference between our required annual fixed rate of 5.585% and the three-month LIBOR in
effect as of December 31, 2010 of 0.294% based on the effective notional amounts for the indicated
period. Holders of our $225.0 million outstanding 3%4% Debentures may require us to purchase for cash
some or all of the 3Y2% Debentures on February 15, 2013, February 15, 2015, and February 15, 2020.
For purposes of the above table, we assumed that our 3%4% Debentures would be outstanding during the
entire term, which ends on August 15, 2025. These amounts exclude our unamortized convertible debt
diseounts and related non-cash amortization. :

(b) This reflects our future minimum operating lease paymnients. We ‘enter into operating leases in the normal
course of business. Substantially all of our operating lease agreements have fixed payment terms based
on the passage of time. Some lease agreements provide us with the option to renew the lease. Our future
operating lease obligations would change if we exercised these renewal options and if we entered into
additional operating lease. agreements. Please refer to Note 10 to our consolidated financial statements
included elsewhere in this report for more information regarding .our operating leases.

(c) Our reserves for self-insurance -claims and other liabilities balance was $121.3 million and our long—term
income tax liability balance was $18.5 million in our consolidated balance sheet as of December 31,
2010. The reserves for self-insurance claims and other liabilities balance included the $95.9 million long-
term portion of our reserves for self-insurance claims and $25.4 million related to other long-term
liabilities. In addition to the long-term potion of our reserves for self-insurance claims of $95.9 million,
the above table includes the current portion of our reserves for self-insurance claims of $32.8 million. We
have excluded the $18.5 million long-term income tax liability because of the uncertainty of the dollar
amounts to be ultimately paid as well as the timing of such amounts. Additionally, we have excluded a
portion of the other liabilities as they are non-cash liabilities. Please refer to ““Critical Accounting
Estimates — Reserves for Self-Insurance Claims” in this report for more information on our reserves for
self-insurance claims.
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(d) The following table summarizes our significant purchase obligations as of December 31, 2010 and the
future periods in which such obligations are expected to be settled in cash (in millions):

Payment Due by Period ‘

Purchase Obligations , "~ Total 2011 20122013 2014'-2015  After 2015
HCA-IT services® . ... ... ... $ 1990  $ 220 $ 46.3 $496 - $ 811
Capital expenditure obligations®. . 7914 744 57.7 51.0 608.3
Physician commitments® . . . . .. 18.0 18.0 e = —
GEMS obligations®™ . . ... ... .. 40.7 27.1 13.6 — —
Other purchase obligations®. . . . . 121.3 62.1 346 173 © 7.3
Total. .. .................. $1,1704  $203.6 $152.2  $117.9 ¢ $696.7

() HCAC-IT provides various information systems services, including, but not limited to, financial, clinical,
patient accounting and network information services to us under a contract that expires on December 31;.
2017, including a wind-down period. The amounts are based on estimated fees that will be charged to-
our hospitals with an annual fee increase that is capped by the consumer price index increase. We used a
5.0% annual rate increase as the estimated consumer price index increase for the contract period. These
fees will increase if we acquire additional hospitals and use HCA-IT for information system conversion
services at the acquired hospitals. '

()" We had projects under construction with an estimated additional cost to complete and equip of
approximately $97.2 million as of December 31, 2010. Because we can terminate substantially all of the
related construction contracts at any time without paying a termination fee, these costs are excluded from

: the above table except for amounts contractually committed by us. We are subject to annual capital

R ~expenditure commitments in connection with several of our facilities. R

' (8) In consideration for a physician relocating to one of the communities in which our hospitals. are located
and agreeing to engage in private practice for the benefit of the respective community, we may advance
certain amounts of money to that physician, normally over a period of one year, to assist in establishing
‘the physician’s practice. Our liability balance for contract-based physician minimum revenue guarantees
was $18.0 million at December 31, 2010 and depends upon the cash collections of a physician’s private
practice during-the guarantee period. ' T

(h) . General Electric Medical Services (“GEMS”) provides diagnostic imaging equipment maintenance and
- bio-medical services to us pursuant to a contract that expires on June 30, 2012. I

() Reflects our minimum commitments to purchase goods or services under non-cancelable contracts as of
December 31, 2010. :

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We had standby letters of credit -outstanding of approxifnately $31v.1 million as of December 31, 2010, all
of which relates to the self-insured retention levels of our professional and general liability insurance and
workers’ compensation programs as security for the payment of claims.

Rec‘éntly Issued Aééounting Pronouncements

In August 2010, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Accounting Standards Update -
(“ASU”) No. 2010-23, “Health Care Entities” (Topic 954): Measuring Charity Care for Disclosure,
(“ASU 2010-23"). ASU 2010-23 standardizes the basis of disclosure of charity care as cost and specifies the
elements of cost to be used in charity care disclosures. ASU 2010-23 is effective for our three month period
ended March 31, 2011. The adoption of ASU 2010-23 is not expected to impact our financial position, results
of operations or cash flows although additional disclosures will be required. " '
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Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect reported amounts and related disclosures. We
consider an accounting estimate to be critical if:

* it requires assumptions to be made that were uncertain at the time the estimate was made; and

*  changes in the estimate or different estimates that could have been made could have a material
impact on our consolidated results of operations or financial condition.

Our management has discussed the development and selection of these critical accounting estimates with
the audit committee of our Board of Directors and with our independent registered public accounting firm, and
they both have reviewed the'disclosure presented below relating to our critical accounting estimates. Our
critical accounting estimates include the following areas:

*  Revenue recognition/Allowance for contractual discounts;

*  Allowance for doubtful accounts and provision for doubtful accdunts;
*  Goodwill impairment analysis;

*  Reserves for self-insurance claims;

*  Accounting for stock-based compensation; and

¢ Accounting for income taxes. |

The following discussion of critical accounting estimates is not intended to be a comprehensive list of all
of our accounting policies that require estimates. We believe that of our significant accounting policies, as
discussed in Note 1 of our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this report, the estimates.
discussed below involve a higher degree of judgment and complexity. We believe the current assumptions and
other considerations used to estimate amounts reflected in our consolidated financial statements are
appropriate. However, if actual experience differs from the assumptions and other considerations used in
estimating amounts reflected in our consolidated financial statements, the resulting changes could have a
material adverse effect on our consolidated results of operations and our financial condition.

The discussion that follows presents information about our critical accounting estimates, as well as the
effects of hypothetical changes in the material assumptions used to develop each estimate.

Revenue Recognition/Allowance for Contractual Discounts

We recognize revenues in the period in which services are provided. Accounts receivable primarily
consist of amounts due from third-party payors and patients. Amounts we receive for treatment of patients
covered by governmental programs, such as Medicare and Medicaid, and other third-party payors such as
HMOs, PPOs and other private insurers, are generally less than our established billing rates. Accordingly, our
gross revenues and accounts receivable are reduced to net realizable value through an allowance for

" contractual discounts.

Approximately 84.4%, 85.8% and 86.7% of our revenues during the years ended December 31, 2010,
2009 and 2008, respectively, relate to discounted charges, which were comprised of the following sources (as
a percentage of total revenues): ' '

. ) o 2010 2009 2008
Medicare . .......... e e e e 30.2% 30.1% 31.7%
Medicaid . .. .......... ... ... . 11.8 10.6 9.7
HMOs, PPOs and other private insurers . ................ 424 45.1 45.3

Revenues are recorded at estimated net amounts due from patients, third-party payors and others for
healthcare services provided. For certain payors, such as Medicare, Medicaid, as well as some managed care
payors with which we have contractual arrangements, the contractual allowances are calculated by
computerized logging systems based on defined payment terms. For other payors, the contractual allowances
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are determined based on historical data by insurance plan. All contractual adjustments, regardless of type of
payor or method of calculation, are reviewed and compared to actual experience. '

We monitor our processés for calculating contractual allowances through:
*  review of payment discrepancy reports for logged payors;

. vanélysis of historical cohtractual allowance trends based on actual claims paid by HMOs, PPOs and
*other private insurers;- S o S

*  review of contractual allowance information reflecting current contract terms;

* . consideration and analysis of changes in charge rates and payor mix reimbursement levels; and

*  other issués that may impact contractual -allowances.

Medicare and Medicaid

The majority of services performed on Medicare and Medicaid patients are reimbursed at predetermined
reimbursement rates. The differences between the established billing rates (i.e., gross charges) and the
predetermined reimbursement rates are recorded as contractual discounts and deducted from gross.charges.
Under the Medicaid program’s prospective reimbursement systems, there is no adjustment or settlement of the
difference between the actual cost to provide the service and the predetermined reimbursement rates.

Discounts for retrospectively cost-based revenues are estimated based on historical and current factors
and are adjusted in future periods when settlements of filed cost reports are received. Final settlements under
these programs are subject to adjustment based on administrative review and audit by third party
intermediaries, which can take several years to resolve completely. Adjustments related to final settlements
increased our revenues by $4.9 million, $5.4 million and $7.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2010,
2009 and 2008, respectively. ' C o -

Because the laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex. and
subject to change, the estimates of contractual discounts we record could change by material amounts, A
significant increase in our estimate of contractual discounts for Medicare and Medicaid would lower our

earnings. This would adversely affect our results of operations, financial condition, liquidity and future access
to capital.

HMGOs, PPOs and Other Private Insurers

Amounts we receive for the treatment of patients covered by HMOs, PPOs and other private insurers
(collectively “‘managed care plans”) are generally less than our established billing rates. We include -
contractual ‘allowances as a reduction to revenues in our consolidated financial statements based on payor
specific identification and payor specific factors for rate increases and denials. For most managed care plans,

estimated contractual allowances are adjusted to actual contractual allowances as cash is received and claims.
are reconciled. o : :

If our overall estimated contractual discount pércentage on our managed care program revenues for the
year ended December 31, 2010 were changed by 1%, our after-tax income from continuing operations would
change by approximately $10.7 million, or diluted earnings per share of $0.20. This is-only one example of
reasonably possible sensitivity scenarios. The process of .determining the allowance requires us to estimate the
amount expected to be received based on payor contract provisions, historical collection data as well as other
factors and requires a high degree of judgment. It is impacted by changes in managed care contracts and other
related factors. A significant increase. in our estimate of contractual discounts for managed care plans would
lower our earnings. This would adversely affect our results of operations, financial condition, liquidity and
future access to capital. '

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts and Provision Jor Doubtful Accounts

Accounts receivable primarily consist of amounts due from third-party payors and patients. Our -ability to
collect outstanding receivables is critical to our results: of operations and cash flows. To provide for accounts
receivable that could become uncollectible in the future, we establish an allowance for doubtful accounts to
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reduce the carrying value of such receivables to their estimated net realizable value. The primary-uncertainty
lies with-uninsured patient receivables and deductibles, co-payments or other amounts due from individual
patients. o o , o

Our allowance for. doubtful accounts, included in our consolidated balance sheets as of December 31,
2010 and 2009 was $459.8 million and $433.2 million, respectively. Our provision for doubtful accounts;
included in our consolidated results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008,
was $443.8 million, $375.4 million and $313.2 million, respectively.

The largest component of our allowance for doubtful accounts relates to accounts for which patients are
responsible, which we refer to as patient responsibility accounts or self-pay accounts. These accounts include
both amounts payable by uninsured patients and co-paymenits and deductibles payable by insured patients. In
general, we attempt to collect deductibles, co-payments and self-pay accounts prior to the time of service for
non-emergency care. If we do not collect these patient responsibility accounts prior to the delivery of care, the
accounts are handled through our billing and collections processes. '

The approximate amounts and percentages of billed insured and uninsured (including self-pay,
co-payments, deductibles and Medicaid pending) gross accounts receivable (prior to allowance for contractual
discounts and allowance for doubtful accounts) in summarized aging categories are as follows for the périods
presented (in millions): - - ) .

December 31, 2010

Iﬁsured Receivables Uninsured Receivables ' Combined

. Percent of Percent of : Percent of

Amount Receivables Amount Receivables Amount Receivables
0to90days................ $434.1 85.1% $147.8 271% $ 581.9 - 55.1%
91 to 150 days .............. 40.5 - 79 90.8 16.6 131.31 ‘12.4
151t0360days.............. ’ 31.9 6.3 206.9 37.9 238.8 22.6
Over361 .................. _ 38 0.7 100.5 184 104.3 9.9

'$510.3° 100.0%  $546.0 100.0%  $1,056.3 - 100.0%

. December 31, 2009

. Insured Receivables Uninsured Receivables . Coinbined -,

Percent of Percent of ' Percent of
Amount Receivables Amount Receivables Anmount Receivables
0to90days.............. L. $369.6 87.9%  '$128.1 " 245% $497.7 52.8%
91to 150 days .......... .. 276 66 805 154 108.1 115
151 to 360 days. .............  19.1 45 2101 . 402 2292 243
Over 361 ..... e 4.1 1.0. 1039 . 199 108.0 11.4

© $420.4 100.0%  $522.6 100.0%  $943.0 100.0%

We verify each patient’s insurance coverage as early as possible before a scheduled admission or
procedure, including with respect to eligibility, benefits and authorization/pre-certification requirements, in
order to notify patients of ‘the amounts for which they will be responsible. We attempt to verify insurance
coverage within a reasonable amount of time for all emergency room visits and urgent admissions in
compliance with EMTALA. '

In general, we perform the following steps’ in collecting accounts receivable:

*  if possible, cash collection of deductibles, co-payments and self-pay-accounts prior to-or at the time
service is provided; : .

*  billing and follow-up with third party payors;
. éollecti"on calls;
. utilization of collection égencies; and

* + if collection efforts are unsuccessful, write-off of the accounts.

81



Our policy is to write-off accounts after all collection efforts have failed, which is generaily one year -
after the date of discharge of the patient. Patient responsibility accounts represent the majority. of our write-.
offs. All of our hospitals retain third-party collection agencies for billing and collection of delinquent accounts.
At most of our hospitals, more than one collection agency is used to promote competition and improve
performance results. The selection of collection agencies and the timing of referral of an account to a
collection agency vary among our hospitals.

We determine the adequacy of the allowance for doubtful accounts utilizing a number of analytical tools
and benchmarks. No single statistic or measurement alone determines the adequacy of the allowance.
Specifically, we monitor the revenue trends by payor classification on a month-by-month basis along with the
composition of our accounts receivable agings. This review. is focused primarily on trends in self-pay
revenues, accounts receivable, co-payment receivables, historic payment patterns and other‘factors such as
revenue days in accounts receivable. . o -

The process of determining our allowance for doubtful accounts requires us to estimate uncollectible self-
pay accounts. Our estimate of uncollectible self-pay accounts is primarily based on our collection history,
adjusted for anticipated changes in collection trends, if significant. Our estimate may be impacted by changes
in regional economic conditions, business office operations, payor mix and trends in federal or state
governmental healthcare coverage or other third party payors. If the actual self-pay collection percentage
would change by 1.5% from our estimated self-pay collection percentage for the year ended December 31,
2010, our after-tax income from continuing operations would change by approximately $4.7 million, or diluted
earnings per share of $0.09, and our net accounts receivable would change by $1.9 million at December 31,
2010. The resulting change in this analytical tool is considered to be a reasonably likely change that would
affect our overall assessment of this critical accounting estimate.

Goodwill Impairment Analysis

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the net assets of acquired
businesses. Our goodwill included in our consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2010 and 2009 was
$1,550.7 and $1,523.0 million, respectively. Please refer to Note 4 to our consolidated financial statements
included elsewhere in this report for a detailed rollforward of our goodwill.

In accordance with ASC 350-10,. “Intangibles — Goodwill and Other” (“ASC 350-10”) goodwill and
intangible assets with indefinite lives are reviewed by us at least annually for impairment. Our business
comprises a single operating reporting unit for impairment test purposes. For the purposes of these analyses,
our estimate of fair value are based on a combination of the income approach, which estimates the fair value
of us based on our future discounted cash flows, and the market approach, which estimates the fair value of us
based on comparable market prices. Our estimate of future discounted cash flows is based on assumptions and
projections we believe to be currently reasonable and supportable. Our assumptions take into account revenue
and expense growth rates, patient volumes, changes in payor mix, and changes in legislation and other payor
payment patterns. ‘ '

If we determine the carrying value of goodwill is impaired, or if the carrying value of a business that is
to be sold or otherwise disposed of exceeds its fair value, then we reduce the carrying value, including any
allocated goodwill, to fair value. During the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, we performed our
annual impairment tests as of October 1, 2010 and 2009, and did not incur an impairment charge. During the
year ended December 31, 2008, as a result of economic events and the decline in our stock price, we
performed goodwill impairment testing as of September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2008. We determined that
no goodwill impairment charge was required as a result of either analysis and haye continued to monitor the
relationship of our fair value to our book value as economic events and changes to our stock price occur. If
actual future results are not consistent with our assumptions and estimates, we. may be required to record
goodwill impairment charges in the future. :

Reserves for Self-Insurance Claims

We are subject to potential professional liability claims, employee workers’ compensation claims and
other claims. To mitigate a portion of this risk, we maintain insurance for individual professional liability
claims and employee workers’ compensation claims exceeding a self-insured retention level. For all claims
made after April 1, 2009, our self-insured retention level is $5.0 million per claim. For claims made before
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April 1, 2009, our self-insured retention level ranges from $10.0 million per claim to $25.0.million ‘per claim.
Our self-insured retention level is evaluated annually as a part of our insurance program’s renewal process. .

Additionally, as of December 31, 2010, our self-insured retention level for workers’ compensaﬁon claims
is $2.0 million per claim in all states in which we operate except for Wyoming. We participate:in a state’
specific program in Wyoming for our workers’ compensation .claims arising in this state. . )

Each year, we obtain quotes from various insurers with respect to the cost of obtaining insurance
coverage. We compare these. quotes to our most recent actuarially determined estimates of losses at various
self-insured retention-levels. Accordingly, changes in insurance.costs affect the self-insured retention level we
choose each year. As insurance costs have decreased in recent years, we have reduced our self-insured

retention levels. : ¢

Our reserves for self-insurance claims reflects the current estimate of all outstanding losses, including
incurred but not reported losses, based upon actuarial calculations as of the balance sheet date. The loss
estimates included in the actuarial calculations may change in the future based upon updated facts and
circumstances: Our expense for self-insurance claims coverage each year includes: the actuarially determined
estimate of losses for the current year, including claims incurred but not-reported; the change in the estimate
of losses for prior years based upon actual claims development experience as.compared to prior actuarial
projections; the insurance premiums for losses in excess of our self-insured retention levels; the administrative
costs of the insurance program; and interest expense related to the discounted portion of the liability.

Our reserves for professional liability claims are based upon quarterly actuarial calculations. Our reserves
for employee worker’s compensation claims are based ‘upon semiannual actuarial calculations. Our reserve
calculations. consider historical claims data, ‘demographic considerations, severity factors and other actuarial
assumptions, which are discounted to present value. We have discounted our reserves for self-insured claims -
to their present value using a discount rate of 3.15%, 3.6% and 4.0% at December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008,
respectively. As a result of the decreases in our applied discount rate our.self-insurance claims expense
increased by approximately $1.6 million, $1.2 million and $3.0 million which decreased our net income by
approximately $1.0 million; $0.8 million and $1.9 million and decreased our diluted earnings per share by
$0.02, $0.01 and $0.04 during the years ended December 31, 2010,-2009 and 2008, respectively. We select a
discount rate by considering a risk-free interest rate that corresponds. to the périod when the self-insured
claims are incurred and projected to be paid. g c

The following table provides information regarding our reserves for self_—inSured; clairhs at December 3‘1:,_
2010 and 2009 (in millions):

DecemBer 31, December 31,

‘ , v . 2000 2009
Undiscounted . . ...................... [P cee. o 81436 0 $1332
Discounted (as reported). . . . . . P e P $128.7 $119.3

The following table presents the changes in our reserves for self-insured claims for the years ended
December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 (in millions): '

2010 - 2009 2008
Reserve at the beginning of the period . . .. .............. $119.3 $103.2 $ 824
Increase for the provision of current year claims, including _

discontinued operations. . . . . e - 46.1 43.5 38.7
(Decrease) increase for the provision of prior. year claims,

‘including discontinued operations. .. ................. 3.7 25 7.4
Payments related to current year claims . ................ 4.0) 6.2) 3.3)
Payments related to prior year claims. . ................. (30.6) 249 (25.0)
Provision for the change in discountrate. . . .. ............ 1.6 1.2 . 3.0
Reserve at the end of the period . ..................... $128.7 $119.3 . $103.2
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As of December 31, 2010 and 2009; less than 1% of our reserves for self-insured claims represents
reserves. for settled and unpaid claims. Our average lag time between the settlement and-payment of a self-
insured claim ranges from 1 to 2 weeks.

Our estimated reserves for self-insured claims will be significantly affected if current and future claims
differ from historical trends. While we monitor reported claims closely and consider potential outcomes when
determining our reserves for self-insured claims, the complexity of the claims, the extended period of time to
settle the claims and the wide range of potential outcomes complicates the estimation process. In addition,
certain states have passed varying forms of tort reform which attempt to limit the amount of awards. If such -
laws are paSSed in the states where our hospitals are located, our loss estimates could decrease.

Our estimate of reserves for self-insured claims are based upon actuarial calculations and are significantly
influenced by key assumptions and other factors. These factors include, but are not limited to: historical paid
claims; trending of loss development factors; trends in the frequency and severity of claims, which can differ
significantly by jurisdiction as a result of the legislative and judicial climate in such jurisdictions; coverage
limits of third-party insurance and actuarial detérmined- statistical .confidence levels. Given the number of
assumptions and characteristics of each assumption considered in establishing the reserves for self-insured-
claims, it is difficult to compute the individual financial impact of each assumption or groups of assumptions.
Some of the assumptions are dependent upon the quantitative measurement of other assumptions, and * -
therefore are not accurately evaluated in isolation. For example, a change in the frequency. of claims
assumption is also affected by the estimated severity ‘of these claims resulting ‘in an inability to. properly
isolate and quantify the impact of a change in this assumption.

" Professional and general liability claims are typically resolved over an extended period of time, often as:
long as five years or more, while workers’ compensation claims are typically resolved in one to two years.
Our reserves for self-insured claims are comprised of estimated indemnity and expense payments related to
reported events and incurred but not reported events as of the end of the period. We have the ability to
reliably determine the amount and timing of payments based on sufficient history of our claims development;,
the use of external actuarial expertise and our rigorous review process. Actuarial payment patterns are based -
on our individual hospital historical data both prior to and after our. inception in 1999. The processes, :
performed by both external actuaries and our management, enable us to reliably determine the amount of our
ultimate losses as- well as the timing of the loss settlements such that discounting of the reserves for -.
self-insured claims is appropriate. Given the number of factors considered in establishing the reserves for self-
insured claims, it is neither practical nor meaningful to isolate a particular assumption or parameter of the
process and calculate the impact of changing that single item. ' S

Ultimately, from an actuarial standpoint, the sensitivity in the estimates of reserves for self-insured claims
is reflected in the various actuarial confidence levels. Our best estimate of our reserves for self-insured claims
utilizes a statistical confidence level that is 50%. Higher statistical confidence levels, while not representative
of our best estimate, reflect reasonably likely outcomes upon the ultimate resolution of related claims. Using a
higher statistical confidence level would increase the estimated reserves for self-insured claims. Changes in
our estimates of reserves for self-insured claims are non-cash charges and accordingly, do not impact our
liquidity or capital resources. ; . C

The assumptions included in the table below are presented for the sensitivity analysis (in millions):

December 31, 2010 reserve: ‘
Asreported. ... ................... e e L $128.7

With 70% Confidence Level .................. .. ... ... ... . P - -$139.8
With 80% Confidence Level . ........... A $148.1
With 90% Confidence Level .. ................. .. .. .. .. PR . $171.4
December 31, 2009 reserve: L _ _ .
Asreported. .. ... ... weeen.. . $1193
With 70% Confidence Level . ................ ... ... [ ... $126.8
‘With 80% Confidence Level . ..................... .. ... e $134.5
With 90% Confidence Level . ................... .. .. .. i - $155.7°

84




The combination of changing conditions and the extended time required for claim resolution results in a
loss estimation process that requires actuarial skill and the application of judgment, and such estimates require
periodic revision. As a result of the variety of factors that must be considered, there is i risk that actual
incurred losses may develop differently from estimates. During the year ended December 31, 2010, the results
of our quarterly and semi annually completed actuarial calculations resulted in a decrease in our self-insurance
claims expense by $3.7 million, which increased our net income by approximately $2.4 million, or $0.05 pér”
diluted share. The results of our quarterly and sémi annually completed actuarial calculations increased our -
self-insured claims expense by $2.5 million and $7.4 million, which decreased our net incomé by o
approximately $1.6 million and $4.5 million, or $0.03 and $0.08 per diluted share, during the years ended
December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. ’ : ' ‘ ‘ P P

Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation

We issue stock-based awards, including stock options and other stock-based awards (nonvested stock,
restricted stock, restricted stock units, performance shares and deferred stock units) to certain officers,
employees and non-employee directors in accordance with our various stockholder-approved stock-based.
compensation: plans.;We account for our stock-based awards in accordance with the provisions of
ASC-718-10,. “Compensation — Stock Compensation” (“ASC 718-10") and accordingly recognize
compensation expense over each of the stock-based award’s requisite service period based on.the estimated
grant date fair value. Our stock-based compensation from continuing operations, included in our consolidated
results of operations, was $22.4 million, $22.3 million and $23.4 million for the years ended December 31,
2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

The fair value of other stock-based awards is determined based on the closing price of our common stock
on the day prior to the grant date. Stock-based compensation expense for our other stock-based awards is
recorded equally over the vesting periods of such awards generally ranging from six months to three years.

We: estimate the fair value of stock options granted using the Hull-White II Valuation Model (“HW-II")
lattice option valuation model and a single option award approach. We use the HW-II because it considers
characteristics of fair value option pricing, such as an option’s contractual term and the probability of exercise
before the end of the contractual term. In addition, the complications surreunding the expected term of an
option are material, as indicated in ASC 718-10. Given our reasonably large pool of unexercised options, we
believe a lattice model that specifically addresses this fact and models a full term of exercises is the most
appropriate and reliable means of valuing our stock options. We ‘are amortizing the fair value on a straight-line
basis over the requisite service periods of the awards, which are the vesting periods of three years. The stock
options vest 33.3% on each grant anniversary date over three years of continued employment.

The following table shﬁWs the wéighted average assumptions we used to develop the fair value estimates
under our HW-II option valuation model and the resulting estimates of weighted-average fair value per share
of stock options granted during the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008:

. L . 2010 oo 2009 . 2008
Expected volatility ............. :39.9% -403% . 31.9%.
Risk free interest rate (range) . . . . . . 0.06% —3.69%. ~ 0.05% -3.58% . 0.09% — 3.89%
Expected dividends . . ......... .. — — —
Average expected term (years) . . ... 54 54 © 53
Fair value per share of stock options . i .
cgramted ...l 00 $11.22 $8.02 $8.14

Popﬁlation Stratification

In accordance with ASC 718-10, a company should aggregate individual awards into rélativel};
homegeneous groups with respect to exercise and post-vesting employment behaviors for the purpose of
refining the expected term assumption, regardless of the valuation technique .used to estimate the fair value. In
addition, ASC: 718-10 indicates: that a company may generally make a reasonable fair value estimate with as

few as one or two groupings. We have determined that a single employee population group is appropriate
based on an analysis of our historical exercise patterns; -
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Expected Volatility

Volatility is a measure of the tendency of investment returns to vary around a long-term average rate.
Historical volatility is an appropriate starting point for setting this assumption in accordance with
ASC.718-10. According to ASC 718-10, companies should also consider how future experience may differ
from the past. This may require using other factors to adjust historical volatility, such as implied volatility,
peer-group volatility and the range and mean-reversion of volatility estimates over various historical periods.
ASC 718-10 acknowledges that there is likely to be a range of reasonable estimates for volatility. In addition,
ASC 718-10 requires that if a best estimate cannot be made, management should use the mid-point in the
range of reasonable estimates for volatility. We estimate the volatility of our common stock at the date of
grant based on both historical volatility and implied volatility from traded options of our cqmmon stock,
consistent with ASC 718-10.

Risk-Free Interest Rate 7

Lattice models require risk-free interest rates for all potential times of exercise obtained by using a_grant-
date yield curve. A lattice model would, therefore, require the yield curve for the entire time period during-
which employees might exercise their options. We base the risk-free rate on the implied yield in effect at the
time of option grant on United States Treasury zero-coupon issues with equivalent remaining terms.

Expected Dividends

We have never paid any cash dividends on our common stock and do not anticipate paymg any cash
dividends in the foreseeable future. Accordingly, we use an expected dividend yield of zero.

Pre-Vesting Forfettures

Pre-vesting forfeitures do not affect the fair value calculation, but they affect the expense calculation.
ASC 718-10 requires us to estimate pre-vesting forfeitures at the time of grant and revise those estimates in-
subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates. We use historical data to estimate
pre-vesting forfeitures and record share-based compensatlon expense only for those awards that are expected
to vest. : :

We apply a dynamic forfeiture rate methodology over the vesting period of the award. The dynamic
forfeiture rate methodology incorporates the lapse of time into the resulting expense calculation and results in
a forfeiture rate that diminishes as the-granted awards approach its vest date. Accordingly, the dynamic
forfeiture rate methodology results in a more con51stent stock compensation expense calculation over the
vesting period of the award. )

Post-Vesting Cancellations

Post-vesting cancellations include vested options that are cancelled, exercised or expire unexercised.
Lattice models treat post-vesting cancellations and voluntary early exercise behavior as two separate
assumptions. We use historical data to estimate post-vesting cancellations.

Expected Term

ASC 718-10 calls for an extinguishment calculation, dependent upon how long a granted option remains
outstanding before it is fully extinguished. While extinguishment may result from exercise, it can also result
from post-vesting cancellation or expiration at the contractual term. Expected term is an output in lattice
models so we do not have to determme this amount.

The fair value calculations of our stock option grants are affected by assumptions that are believed to be
reasonable based upon the facts and circumstances at the time of grant. Changes in our volatility estimates can
materially affect the fair values of our stock option grants. If our estimated weighted-average volatility for the
year ended December 31, 2010 were 10% higher, our after-tax income from continuing operations would
decrease by approximately $0.5 million, or approximately $0.01 per diluted share.
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Accounting for Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets generally represent items that will result in a tax deduction in future years for which
we have already recorded the tax benefit in our income statement. We assess the likelihood that deferred tax
assets will be recovered from future taxable income. To the extent we believe that recovery is not probable, a
valuation allowance is established. To the extent we establish a valuation allowance or increase this allowance
we must include an expense as part of the income tax provision in our results of operations. Our deferred tax
asset balances in our consolidated balance sheets were $218.1 million and $223.3 million as of December 31,
2010 and 2009, respectively. Our valuation allowances for deferred tax assets in our consolidated balance
sheets were $57.9 million and $51.8 million as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

’

In addition, significant judgment is required in determining and ‘assessing the impact of ‘certain tax-related
contingencies. We establish accruals when, despite our belief that our tax return positions are fully
supportable, it is probable that we have incurred a loss related to tax contingencies and the loss or range of
loss can be reasonably estimated. We adjust the accruals related to tax contingencies as part of our provision
for income taxes in our results of operations based upon changing facts and circumstances, such as progress
of a tax audit, development of industry related examination issues, as well as legislative, regulatory or judicial
developments. A number of years may elapse before a particular matter, for which we have established an
accrual, is audited and resolved. :

The first step in determining the deferred tax asset valuation allowance is identifying reporting
jurisdictions where we have a history of tax and operating losses or are projected to have losses in future
periods as a result of changes in operational performance. We then determine if a valuation allowance should
be established against the deferred tax assets for that reporting jurisdiction. :

The second step is to determine the amount of the valuation allowance. We will generally establish a
valuation allowance equal to the net deferred tax asset (deferred tax assets less deferred tax liabilities) related
to the jurisdiction identified in step one of the analysis. In certain cases, we may not reduce the valuation
allowance by the amount of the deferred tax liabilities depending on the nature and timing of future taxable
income attributable to deferred tax liabilities.

In assessing tax contingencies, we apply the provisions of ASC 740-10, “Income Taxes”. We apply the
recognition threshold and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return and
follow the guidance on various matters such as derecognition, interest, penalties and disclosure. We classify
interest and penalties as a component of income tax expense.

During each reporting period, we assess the facts and circumstances related to recorded tax contingencies.
If tax contingencies are no longer deemed probable based upon new facts and circumstances, the contingency
is reflected as a reduction of the provision for income taxes in the current period.’

Our deferred tax liabilities exceeded our deferred tax assets by $53.6 million as of December 31, 2010,

~ excluding the impact of valuation allowances. Historically, we have produced federal taxable income. ,
Therefore, we believe that the likelihood of not realizing the federal tax benefit of our deferred tax assets is
remote. However, we do have subsidiaries with a history of tax losses in certain state jurisdictions and, based
upon those historical tax losses, we assumed that the subsidiaries would not be profitable in the future for
those states’ tax purposes. If our assertion regarding the future profitability of those subsidiaries was incorrect,
then our deferred tax assets would be understated by the amount of the valuation allowance of $53.6 million
at December 31, 2010.

The Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) may propose adjustments for items we have failed to identify as
tax contingencies. If the IRS were to propose and sustain assessments equal to 10% of our taxable income for
2010, we would incur approximately $10.9 million of additional tax payments for 2010 plus interest and
penalties, if applicable.
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Segment Reporting

We have five operating divisions as of December 31, 2010. Each of these operating divisions has similar
economic characteristics consisting of acute care hospitals in non-urban communities. We realign these
operating divisions frequently based upon changing circumstances, including acquisition and divestiture
activity. We consider these operating divisions as one operating segment, healthcare services, for segment
reporting purposes and for goodwill impairment testing in accordance with ASC 280-10, “Segment
Reporting™ (“ASC 280- 10), and ASC 350-10.

We have determined that our five operating divisions comprise one segment because of their similar
economic characteristics in' accordance with ASC 280-10 for the following reasons:

. * the treatment of patients in a hospital setting is the only matenal source of reventies for each of our
five operating divisions;

* the healthcare services provided by'each of our operating divisions are generally the same; -

¢  the healthcare services prov1ded by each of our operatmg divisions are generally prov1ded to similar
types of patients, which is patients in a hospltal sefting;

*-  the healthcare services are primarily provided by the direction of affiliated or employed physicians
and by the nurses, lab and radiology technicians, and others employed or contracted at each of our
hospltals and

¢ the healthcare regulatory env1ronment is generally similar for each of our five operating divisions.

" Additionally, as discussed in ASC 350-10, we-determined that our five operating divisions comprise one
reporting unit because of their similar economic characteristics in each of the following areas:

*  the way we manage our operations and extent to which our acquired facilities are integrated into our
existing operations. as a single reporting unit;

*  our goodwill is recoverable from the collective operatlons of our five operatmg divisions and not
" individually from one single operating division; -

*  our operating divisions are frequently realigned based upon changing circumstances, including
. acquisition and divestiture activity; and

* ' because of the collective size of our five operating divisions, each division benefits from its
" participation in a group purchasing organization.

Inﬂatlon _

The healthcare industry is labor—mtenswe Wages and other expenses increase during perlods of mﬂatlon
and when labor shortages in marketplaces occur. In addition, suppliers pass along rising costs to us in the
form of higher prices. Private insurers pass along their rising costs in the form of lower reimbursement to us.
Our ability to pass on these increased costs in increased rates is limited because of increasing regulatory and
competitive pressures and the fact that the majority of our revenues are fee-based. Accordingly, inflationary
pressures could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk.

Interest Rates

The followmg discussion relates to our exposure to market risk based on changes in interest rates:

Outstanding Debt

We have an interest rate swap to' manage our exposure to changes in interest rates. The interest rate swap
converts a portion of our indebtedness to a fixed rate with a notional amount of $300.0 million at -
December 31, 2010 at an annual fixed rate of 5.585%. Accordingly, we are slightly exposed to market risk
related to fluctuations in interest rates. The notional amount of the swap agreement represents a balance used
to calculate the exchange of cash flows and is not an asset or liability. Any market risk or opportunity
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associated with this swap agreement is offset. by the opposite market impact on the related debt. Qur interest
rate swap agreement exposes us to credit risk in the event of non-performance by Citibank. However, we do
not anticipate non-performance by Citibank.

- As of December 31, 2010, we had outstanding debt, excluding $79.8 million of unamortized discounts on
our convertible debt instruments, of $1,651.7 million, 26.9%, or $443.7 million, of which was subject to
variable rates of interest. However, our interest rate swap decreases our variable rate debt as a percentage of
our outstanding debt from 26.9% to 8.7% as of December 31, 2010.

Our Term B Loans, 6.625% Senior Notes, 3¥5% Notes and 3V4% Debentures are our long-term debt
instruments with carrying amounts different from their fair value as of December 31, 2010 and December 31,
2009. The carrying amount and fair value of these instruments as of December 31, 2010.and December 31,
2009 were as follows (in millions): : '

Carrying Amount Fair Value
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
1 2009 2010 2009
Term B Loans. . ................. $443.7 $692.9 $445.4 $673.8
6.625% Senior Notes . . . ........... $400.0 N/A $398.0 N/A"
3'2% Notes, excluding unamortized
discount . .................... $575.0 $575.0 $579.3 $536.2
3v4% Debentures, excluding unamortized
discount . . ................... $225.0 $225.0 $225.6 $206.2

The fair values of our Term B Loans, 6.625% Senior Notes, 3%2% Notes and 3%4% Debentures were
based on the quoted prices at December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009. Effective February 26, 2010, we
amended our existing Credit Agreement, as further described in Note 7 to our accompanying consolidated
financial statements included elsewhere in this report, and extended the maturity date and increased the
applicable interest rate for a portion of the Term B Loans. Additionally, effective September 23, 2010, we
issued our 6.625% Senior Notes, a portion of the proceeds from which were used to repay $249.2 million of
the outstanding borrowings under our Term B Loans.

Cash Balances

Certain of our outstanding cash balances are invested overnight with high credit quality financial
institutions. We do not hold direct investments in auction rate securities, collateralized debt obligations,
structured investment vehicles or mortgage-backed securities. We do not have significant exposure to changing
interest rates on invested cash at December 31, 2010. As a result, the interest rate market risk implicit in these
investments at December 31, 2010, if any, is low.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

Information with respect to this Item is contained in our consolidated financial statements beginning on
Page F-10 of this report.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

We did not experience a change in or disagreement with our accountants during the year ended
December 31, 2010.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.
Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of management, including
our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our
disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report pursuant to Rule 13a-15
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act™). Based upon that evaluation, our Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were
effective in ensuring that information required to be disclosed by us (including our consolidated subsidiaries)
in reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported on a
timely basis.
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Pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley ‘Act of 2002, we-have included a report of management’s -
assessment of the design and operating effectiveness of our internal controls as part of this report. Our
independent registered public accounting firm also attested to, and reported on, the effectiveness of internal
control over financial reporting. Management’s report and the independent registered public accounting firm’s
attestation report are included in our consolidated financial statements beginning on page F-2.of this report -
under the captions entitled “Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting” and “Report
of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.”

Changes in Internal Control Over Financiél Report_ing_

There has been fio change in our internal control over finaricidl reporting ‘during the fourth quarter ended
December 31, 2010 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control
over financial reporting.
~ Item 9B. Other Informat;'bn.

None.
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PART I
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance.

Executive Oﬂicérs

This information is incorporated by reference to the information contained under the caption _
“Compensation of Executive Officers — Executive Officers of the Company” included in our proxy statement
relating to our 2011 annual meeting of stockholders.

Code of Ethics

Our Board of Directors expects its members, as well as our officers and ein’ployees,_ to act ethically at all
times and to acknowledge in writing their adherence to the policies comprising our Code of Conduct, which is
known as “Common Ground,” and, as applicable, our Code of Ethics for Senior Financial Officers and Chief
Executive Officer (“Code of Ethics”). The Code of Ethics and Common Ground are posted on our website
located at www.lifepointhospitals.com under the heading “Corporate Governance.” We intend to disclose any
amendments to our Code of Ethics and any waiver from a provision of our code, as required by the SEC, on
our website within four business days following such amendment or waiver.

Directors

This information is incorporated by reference to the information contained under the caption “Proposal 1:
Election of Directors” included in our proxy statement relating to our 2011 annual meeting of stockholders.

Compliance with Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act

This information is incorporated by reference to the information contained under the caption “Additional
Information — Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” included in our proxy statement
relating to our 2011 annual meeting of stockholders.

Stockholder Nominees

This information is incorporated by reference to the information contained under the caption “Board of
Directors and Committees — Director Nomination Process” included in our proxy statement relating to our
2011 annual meeting of stockholders.

Audit and Compliance Committee

This information is incorporated by reference to the information contained under the caption “‘Audit and
Compliance Committee Report” included in our proxy statement relating to our 2011 annual meeting of
stockholders.

Item 11. Executive Compensation.

This information is incorporated by reference to the information contained under the captions
“Compensation Committee Report,” “Compensation Discussion and Analysis,” “Compensation of Executive
Officers,” and “Board of Directors and Committees — Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider
Participation,” and “Compensation of Directors,” included in our proxy statement relating to our 2011 annual
meeting of stockholders.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters.

This information is incorporated by reference to the information contained under the captions ““Security
Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” and “Compensation of Executive Officers —
Potential Payments upon Termination or Change in Control” included in our proxy statement relating to our
2011 annual meeting of stockholders.

Information concerning our equity compensation plans are included in Part II, Item 5. of this report under
the caption “Equity Compensation Plan Information.”
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Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.

This information is incorporated by reference to the information contained under- the captions “Corporate
Governance — Certain Relationships and Related Transactions”, “Corporate Governance — Independence of
Directors” and “Board of Directors and Committees — Committees of the Board of Directors” included in
our proxy statement relating to our 2011 annual meeting. of stockholders.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services.

This information is incorporated by reference to the information contained under the caption ‘“Proposal 2:
Ratification of Selection of Independent Registered Public Accountmg Firm” and “Fees and Services of the
Independent Registered  Public Accounting Firm” included in our proxy statement relatmg ‘to our 2011 annual
meeting of stockholders.
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Exhibit
Number

32 —

4.1 —

4.2 —

43 —

45 —

4.6 —

31—

44—

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules,
_ (é) Index bto Consolidated Finan_cial Stateme'nts,‘Financial Statement Schedules and Exﬁibits:
(1) Consolidated Financial Statements: _
See Item 8 in this report.

The consolidated financial statements required to be included in Part II, Item 8, Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data, begin on Page F-89 and are submitted as a separate
section of this report. SRR

Consolidaied Financial Statemeni S.chedulés;

All schedules are omitted because they are not applicable or not required, or because the
required information is included in the consolidated financial Statements or notes in this report.

(3) Exhibits:

Description of Exhibits

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation (incorporated by reference from exhibits
to the Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed by LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. on April 19,
2005? File No. 333-124151). '

Fourth Amended and Restated By-Laws of LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. (incorporated by
reference from exhibits to the LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K dated
December 15, 2010, File No. 000-51251).

Form of Specimen Stock Certificate (incorporated by reference from exhibits to the
Registration Statement on Form S-4, as amended, filed by Historic LifePoint Hospitals, Inc.
on October 25, 2004, File No. 333-119929). o \ '

Form of 3.25% Convertible Senior Subordinated Debenture due 2025 (incorporated by
reference from exhibits to the LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K dated
August 10, 2005, File No. 000-51251). '

Registration Rights Agreement, dated August 10, 2005, between LifePoint Hospitals, Inc.
and Citigroup Global Markets Inc. as Representatives of the Initial Purchasers (incorporated
by reference from exhibits to the LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K
dated August 10, 2005, File No. 000-5125 1). .

Amended and Restated Rights Agreement, dated February 25, 2009, by and between
LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. and American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, LLC
(incorporated by reference from exhibits to the LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. Current Report on
Form 8-K dated February 25, 2009, File No. 000-5125 1).

Subordinated Indenture, dated as of May 27, 2003, between Province Healthcare Company
and U.S. Bank Trust National Association, as Trustee (incorporated by reference from
exhibits to Province Healthcare Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended June 30, 2003, File No.-001-31320). '

First Supplemental Indenture to Subordinated Indenture, dated as of May 27, 2003, by and

- -among Province Healthcare Company and U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee,

relating to Province Healthcare Company’s 7%2% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2013
(incorporated by reference from exhibits to Province Healthcare Company’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2003, File No. 001-31320).
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Exhibit
Number

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

411

10.1

10.2

103

104

10.5

10.6

Description of Exhibits

Second Supplemental Indenture to Subordinated Indenture, dated as of April 1, 2005, by
and among Province Healthcare Company and U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee
(incorporated by reference from exhibits to Province Healthcare Company’s Current Report
on Form 8-K dated April 1, 2005, File No. 001-31320).

Indenture, dated August 10, 2005, between LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. and Citibank, N.A., as
Trustee (incorporated by reference from exhibits to the LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. Current
Report on Form 8-K dated August 10, 2005, File No. 000 51251).

Indenture, dated May 29, 2007, by and between LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. as Issuer and The
Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A., as Trustee (incorporated by reference from
exhibits to the LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 31, 2007,

File No. 000-51251).

Indenture, dated September 23, 2010, by and among LifePoint Hospitals, Inc., the
Guarantors (as defined therein) and Bank Of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A. as
trustee (including the Form of 6.625% Senior Notes due 2020) (incorporated by reference
from exhibits to the LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K dated
September 27, 2010, File No. 000-51251).

Registration Rights Agreement, dated September 23, 2010, by and among LifePoint
Hospitals, Inc., the Guarantors (as defined therein) and Barclays Capital Inc as
representative of the several initial purchasers (incorporated by reference from exhibits to
the LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K dated September 27, 2010,
File No. 000-51251).

Computer and Data Processing Services Agreement, dated May 19, 2008, by and between
HCA Information Technology Services, Inc. and LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. (incorporated by
reference from exhibits to the LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K dated
May 21, 2008, File No. 000-51251).

Comprehensive Service Agreement for Diagnostic Imaging and Biomedical Services,
executed on January 7, 2005, between LifePoint Hospital Holdings, Inc. and GE Healthcare
Technologies (incorporated by reference from exhibits to the Historic LifePoint Hospitals,
Inc. Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004, File

No. 000-29818).

Amended and Restated 1998 Long-Term Incentive Plan, as amended by the Amendment
dated May 13, 2008, the Amendment dated December 10, 2008, the Amendment dated
April 27, 2010, and the Amendment dated June 8, 2010 (incorporated by reference from
Appendix A and B to the LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. Proxy Statement filed April 29, 2010,
File No. 000-51251).*

Form of LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement (incorporated by
reference from exhibits to the LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2009, File No. 000-51251).*

" Form of LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. Restricted Stock Award Agreéement (incorporated by '

reference from exhibits to the LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2009, File No. 000-51251).*

LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. Executive Performance Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference
from Appendix C to the Historic LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. Proxy Statement dated April 28,
2004, File No. 000-29818).*

94



Exhibit
Number

10.7

10.8

10.9

1010

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

Description of Exhibits

First Amendment, dated December 10, 2008, to the LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. Executive
Performance Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference from exhibits to the LifePoint

‘Hospitals, Inc. Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008, File

No..000-51251).*

Form of LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. Perfor'manqe Award Agreement (incorporated by

reference from exhibits to the LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2009, File No. 000-5 1251).% - T

LifePoint Ho_spitals, Inc. Change in Control Severance Plan, as'amended’émd restated
(incorporated by reference from exhibits to the LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. Current Report on
Form 8-K dated December 16, 2008, File No. 000-51251).* '

LifePoint_ Hospitals, Inc. Amended and Restated Management Stock Purchase Plan, as

amended by the Amendment dated May 22, 2003, the Amendment dated May 13, 2008, the

Amendment dated December 10, 2008, the Amendment dated March 24, 2009, the
Amendment dated April 27, 2010, and the Amendment dated June 8, 2010 (incorporated by
reference from Appendix C and D to the LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. Proxy Statement filed -
April 29, 2010, File No. 000-51251).*

Form of éutside Directors Restricted Stock Agreement (incorporated by reference from

~ exhibits to the LifePoint Hospitals; Inc. Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter

ended March 31, 2006, File No. 000-51251).*

Amended and Restated LifePoint'HQspitals, Inc. Outside Directors Stock and Incentive
Compensation Plan, dated May 14, 2008 (incorporated by reference from Appendix F to

‘the LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. Proxy Statement filed April 29, 2010, File No. 000-5 1251).*

Amendment dated March 24, 2009, to the LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. Amended and Restated
Outside Directors Stock and Incentive Compensation Plan (incorporated by reference from

.exhibits to the LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter

ended June 30, 2009, File No. 000-51251).*

" Amendment dated April 27, 2010, to the LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. Amended and Restated

Outside Directors Stock and Incentive Compensatign Plan (incorporated by reference from
Appendix F to the LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. Proxy Statement filed April 29, 2010, File
No. 000-51251).* ‘ -

- Amendment dated June 8, 2010, to the LifePoint Hospitals,- Inc. Amended and Restated

Outside Directors Stock and Incentive Compensation Plan (incorporated by reference from

Appendix E to the LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. Proxy Statement filed April 29, 2010, File

No. 000-51251).%

Form of LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. Deferred Restricted Stock Award (incorporated by
reference from exhibits to the LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31’, 2009, File No. 000-51251).* ‘

LifePoint Hospitals Deferred Compensation Plan (incorporated by reference from exhibits

to the LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 15, 2009,
File No. 000-51251).* - '
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Exhibit
Number

10.18

10.19
10.20
1021
1022
10‘.2_3

10.24

10.25

10.26

1027

10.28

Description of Exhibits

- Credit Agreement, dated as of April ‘15,2005, by .and among LifePoint Hospitals, Inc., as

borfower, the lenders referred to therein, Citicorp North America, Inc. as administrative
agerit, Bank of America, N.A., CIBC World Markets Corp., SunTrust Bank, UBS Securities
LLC, as co syndication agents and Citigroup Global Markets, Inc., as sole lead arranger

- ..and sole bookrunner (incorporated by reference from exhibits to LifePoint Hospitals, Inc.
' Current Report on Form 8-K dated Apnl 19, 2005, Flle No. 000 51251)

Incremental Facility Amendment dated August 23, 2005, among LifePoint Hospitals, Inc.,
as borrower, Citicorp North America, Inc., as administrative agent and the lenders party.
thereto (mcorporated by reference from e)‘(hlbrts to LifePoint Hospltals Current Report on
Form 8-K dated August 23, 2005, File No. 000- 51251)

~Amendment No. 2 to the Credit Agreement, dated October 14, 2005 among LifePoint
J:Hospltals Inc. as borrower, C1t1corp North America, Inc., as admlnlstratlve agent and the’

lenders party thereto (incorporated by reference from exhibits to LlfePomt Hospitals’
Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 18, 2005, File No. 000- 51251)

Incremental Facility Amendment No. 3 to the Credit Agreement, dated June 30, 2006
among LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. as borrower; ‘Citicorp North America, Iric. as administrative
agent and the lenders party thereto. (incorporated by reference from exhibits to LifePoint

| Hospltals Current Report on Form 8- K dated June 30, 2006 File No 000 51251).

Incremental Facility Amendment No. 4 to the Credit Agreement dated September 8, 2006,
among LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. as borrower, Citicorp North America, Inc. as administrative
agent and the lenders party thereto (incorporated by reference from exhibits to LifePoint
Hospitals’ Current Report on Form 8-K dated September 12, 2006 Fﬂe No. 000-51251).

Amendment No. 5 to the Credit Agreement, dated as of May 11, 2007, among LifePoint
Hospitals, Inc. as borrower, Citicorp North Amerlca Inc., as administrative agent and the
lenders party thereto (incorporated by reference from exhibits to the LifePoint Hospitals,
Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 24, 2007, File No. 000-51251).

Amendment No. 6 to the Credit Agreement, dated as of April 6, 2009, among LifePoint .
Hospitals, Inc., as borrower, Citicorp North America, Inc., as admmlstratlve agent and
the lenders pa.rty thereto (incorporated by reference from exhibits.to the. LifePoint
Hospitals, Inc. Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009,

File No. 000-51251).

Mendment,No. 7 to 'the'_Credit Agreement, dated. as of February 26, 2010, among

. LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. as borrower, Citicorp North America, Inc. as administrative agent

and the lenders party thereto (incorporated by reference from exhibits to the LifePoint
Hospitals, Inc. Current Report on Form 8- K dated March 1, 2010, Flle No. 000- 51251)

" Amendment No. 8 to the Credlt Agreement dated as of September 17 2010 among

LifePoint Hospltals Inc. as borrower, Citicorp North America, Inc. as admlmstratlve agent
andvthe lenders party thereto (filed herewith).

7‘ ISDAY 2002 Master Agreement, dated as of June 1, 2006, between Citibank, N.A. and

LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. (incorporated by reference from exhibits to the LifePoint
Hospitals, Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K/A dated September 8, 2006, File
No. 000-51251).

Schedule to the ISDA 2002 Master Agreement (incorporated by reference from exhibits to
the LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. Current Report on Form 8 K/A dated September 8, 2006, File
No. 000-51251).
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Exhibit

Number Description of Exhibits

10.29 Confirmation, dated as of June 2, 2006, between LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. and Citibank,
N.A. (incorporated by reference from exhibits to the LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. Current
Report on Form 8-K/A dated September 8, 2006, File No. 000-51251).

10.30 Executive Severance and Restrictive Covenant Agreement, dated December 11, 2008, by
and between LifePoint CSGP, LLC and William F. Carpenter III (incorporated by reference
from exhibits to the LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2008, File No. 000-51251).* .

10.31 Form of Indemnification Agreement (incorporated by reference from exhibits to the
LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K dated August 29, 2008, File
No. 000-51251).

10.32 Recoupment Policy Relating to Unearned Incentive Compensation of Executive Officers
(incorporated by reference from exhibits to the LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. Current Report on
Form 8-K dated May 20, 2008, File No. 000-51251).

10.33 Purchase Agreement dated September 20, 2010 among LifePoint Hospitals, Inc., the
Guarantors party thereto, Barclays Capital Inc., as representative of the Initial Purchasers
named therein (incorporated by reference from exhibits to the LifePoint Hospitals, Inc.
Current Report on Form 8-K dated September 24, 2010, File No. 000-51251).

12.1 Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges '

21.1 List of Subsidiaries

23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

311 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer of LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer of LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002

32.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer of LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

322 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer of LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002

101.INS Instance Document**

101.SCH Taxonomy Extension Schema Document**
101.CAL Taxonomy Calculation Linkbase Document**
101.DEF Taxonomy Definition Linkbase Document**
101.LAB Taxonomy Label Linkbase Document®**
101.PRE Taxonomy Presentation Linkbase Document**
*  — Management Compensation Plan or Arrangement

*# — Furnished electronically herewith
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Management’s Report on In'ternal ‘Control Over Financial Reporting

.. Management of LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. is responsible for the preparation, integrity and fair presentation
of its ‘published consolidated financial statements. The financial statements have been .prepared in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and, as such, include amounts based on Jjudgments and
estimates made by management. The Company also prepared the other information included in the annual
report and is responsible for its accuracy and con51stency with the consolidated financial statements.’

Management is also respon31ble for estabhshmg and malntammg effectlve internal control over financial
reporting. The Company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
pertain to the Company’s ability to record, process, summarize and report reliable ﬁnan01a} data. The
Company maintains a system of internal control over financial reporting, which is designed to provide -
reasoriable assurance to the Company’s management and board of directors regarding the preparation of
reliable published financial statements and safeguarding of the Company’s assets. The system includes a
documented organizational structure and division of responsibility, established p011c1es and procedures, :
including a code of conduct to foster a strong ethical climate, which are communicated throughout the
Company, and the careful selection, training and development of our people.

The Board of Directors, acting through its Audit and Compliance Committee, is responsible for the
oversight of the Company’s accounting policies, financial reporting and internal control. The Audit and
Compliance Committee of the Board of Directors is comprised entirely of outside directors who are
independent of management. The Audit and Compliance Committee is responsible for the appointment and
compensation of the independent registered public accounting firm. It meets periodically with management,
the independent registered public accounting firm and the internal auditors to ensure that they are carrying out
their responsibilities. The Audit and Compliance Committee is also responsible for performing an oversight
role by reviewing and monitoring the financial, accounting and auditing procedures of the Company in
addition to reviewing the Company’s financial reports. Internal auditors monitor the operation of the internal
control system and report findings and recommendations to management and the Audit and Compliance
Committee. Corrective actions are taken to address control deficiencies and other opportunities for improving
the internal control system as they are identified. The independent registered public accounting firm and the
internal auditors have full and unlimited access to the Audit and Compliance Committee, with or without
management, to discuss the adequacy of internal control over financial reporting, and any other matters which
they believe should be brought to the attention of the Audit and Compliance Committee.

Management recognizes that there are inherent limitations in the effectiveness of any system of internal
control over financial reporting, including the possibility of human error and the circumvention or overriding
of internal control. Accordingly, even effective internal control over financial reporting can provide only
reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation’ and may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Further, because of changes in conditions, the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting may vary over time.

The Company assessed its internal control system as of December 31, 2010 in relation to criteria for
effective internal control over financial reporting described in “Internal Control — Integrated Framework”
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on its assessment,
the Company has determined that, as of December 31, 2010, its system of internal control over financial
reporting was effective.

The Company acquired one hospital effective May 1, 2010 and four hospitals effective September 1,
2010. The Company excluded all five of these hospitals from its assessment of and conclusion on the
effectiveness of its internal control over financial reporting. For the year end December 31, 2010, these
hospitals contributed approximately $94.3 million or 2.9% of the Company’s total revenues and, as of
December 31, 2010, accounted for approximately $225.0 million or 5.4% of its total assets.




The consolidated financial statements have been audited by the independent registered public accounting
firm of Emnst & Young LLP, which was given unrestricted access to all financial records and related data,
including minutes of all meetings of stockholders, the Board of Directors and committees of the Board,
Reports of the independent registered public accounting firm, which includes the independent registered public
accounting firm’s attestation report on the Company’s.internal ‘control over financial reporting, are also ’
presented Within'tﬁis document. - o I S I et

/s/ William F. Cérpenter I R /s/ Jeffrey S. Shenn‘an-:'-' MR
Chief Executive Officer and ' Executive Vice.President and . . -
Chairman of the Board. of Directors - : Chief Financial Officer

Brentwood, Tennessee -
February 18,2011 =




Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
The Board ofrDire‘ctp_rs and Stockholders of LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. |

We have audited LifePoint Hospitals,:Inc.’s (the ““Company”’) internal control over financial reporting as
of December 31, 2010, based on-criteria established -in. Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). The Company’s
management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of ‘internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying
Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility. is to-express an
opinion on the company’s internal control over financial reporting based ‘on our audit. . ‘

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary
in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
Jpurposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of -
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

As indicated in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting,
management’s assessment of and conclusion on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting
did not include the internal controls of five hospitals acquired during the year ended December 31, 2010,
which are included in the December 31, 2010 consolidated financial statements of LifePoint Hospitals, Inc.
and constituted $225.0 million and $167.1 million of total and net assets, respectively, as of December 31,
2010 and $94.3 million of revenues for the year then ended. Our audit of internal control over financial
reporting of the Company also did not include an evaluation of the internal control over financial reporting of
these five hospitals.

In our opinion, LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2010, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheets of LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. as of December 31, 2010
and 2009 and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each
of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2010 of LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. and our report dated
February 18, 2011 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Nashville, Tennessee
February 18, 2011
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of LifePoint Hospitals, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. (the
“Company”) as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the related consolidated statements of operations,
stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2010. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express dn
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonabie
assurance about whether the'ﬁnz_mcial statements are free of material misstatement, An' audit-includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as

well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. at December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the
consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2010, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted .accounting principles. -

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), LifePoint Hospitals, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2010, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of

Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 18, 2011 expressed an
unqualified opinion thereon. : ~ : ~

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Nashville, Tennessee
February 18,2011



'LIFEPOINT HOSPITALS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008_

‘(In millions, except per share amounts) -

‘ _ , . R o ‘ 2010 2009 2008
Revenues . . ... ... e e e e b P RN .. 83,2624 $2,962.7 . $2,700.8
Salaries and benefits. . .. .. .. ... L. 0. 12703 71,1709 T 1,0654
Supplies. ..ot e .. 4430 409.1 372.6
Other operating expenses . . . ... ... e .. .. .- 6052 _ 5380 . 499.8
Provision for doubtful accounts . . . . . . SN e 443.8 3754 N 313.2.
Depreciation and.amortization . . ... . ... .o oo e s e e - 1485 143.0 . 1321 .
Interest-expense, net. . . . ...... e e . 108.1 . 103.2 - .107.7 .
Debt extinguishment costs. . . . . . e e et 2.4 — —
Impairment charges . . ... ...... ... ... . . i — 1.1 . L2

3,021.3 2,740.7 2,492.0
Income from continuing operations before income taxes.-. . ..., ..... . - 2411 222.0 . 208.8
Provision for income taxes . ... ... e e e . s e o 824 30.3- 79.9
Income from continuing operations. . . . . . . e et e i 0 1587 - 14107 128.9
Discontinued operations, net of income taxes: : S T

Loss from discontinued operations . ............ e e e (0.1) @47 - (6.3)

Impairment charges. . . ... ...... e e e e e —_— .  (17..1)
" Losses on sales of hospitals . . ........... e e e e e C— 0.4) - (0.3)

Loss from discontinued operations . ....................... ©on . . B (23.7)
Net income. . . ........... e U e 158.6 136.6 105.2

Less: Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests. . . . . ... .. 3.1 2.5) 2.2)
Net income attributable to LifePoint Hospitals, Inc.. . . .. .......... $ 1555 % 134'.'1 - $ 103.0
Basic-earnings (loss) per share attributable to LifePoint Hospitals, Inc.

stockholders:

Continuing operations . . . ... ............. e $§ 298 $ 264 § 241

Discontinued operations. . . . .. ... . . i e —_— 0.10) (0.45)

Netincome . .............. P L. % 298 $ 254 $ 1.96
Diluted earnings (loss) per share:

Continuing Operations . . . . . . v vve ettt $§ 291 $ 259 $ 237

Discontinued operations. . . .. ........ . i —_ (0.10) 0.44)

NEtINCOME . . . oottt e e e e e e e e e e e e $ 291 $ 249 $ 193
Weighted average shares and dilutive securities outstanding:

BasiC . .o e 52.2 52.7 52.5

Diluted. . . ... ... 53.5 53.8 53.5
Amounts attributable to LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. stockholders:

Income from continuing operations, net of income taxes. . ........ $ 1556 $ 1392 $ 126.7

Loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes . . ........ 0.1 ;.1 23.7)
NEetinCome . . o oo it ettt e e ... % 1555 % 1341 $ 103.0
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LIFEPOINT HOSPITALS; INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
: - December 31,2010 .and 2009 o
(Dollars in millions, except per share amounts)

2010 2009
ASSETS
Current assets: »
Cash and cash equivalents . . ... ...... ... ... ... . .. . .. . $ 2074 $ 1872
Accounts receivable, less allowances for donbtful accounts of $459 8 and $433 2 at

December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively . . . ... ... .. e e 387.3 325.2
Inventories . . ... ........ ... .. .. ... ... e P - . .'846 75.3
Prepaid expenses . . ... ........ .. ... . . L e 139 12.0
Income taxes receivable . .. ................ . . .. . . e e 55 - -10.0
Deferred tax assets . . . . . . e B 99.7 121.3
Other currentassets. . . ... ............ ... .. .. . . | [ 247 23.1

- v » . . 823.1 . 754.1
Property and equipment ) : - :
Land .. .. ... ... .. .. T e e, -85.9 - 755
Buildings and mprovements. ... ........ e, e R I - X X - 1,377.0
Equipment . . . . ... ... .. .. .. . .. ... .. .. T, : 950.2 - 8409
Construction in progress (estimated cost to complete and equip after December 31, 2010 : :
is $97. 2) ........................ e 394 . 199
i : ) ) 2,608.4 2,313.3
Accumulated 'depreciation B T, e, . (939.8) (813.9)
’ : 1,668.6 1,499.4
Deferred loan costs, net . . . . . e R 272 23.0
Intangible assets, net . . . .. .. e e 73.1 68.6
Other. ....... e T . Lol 9.7 52
Goodwill . . . . . . P, T e PR 15507 1,523.0
Totalassets .. ............. ... G, $4,1524 $3,873.3
. : LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities: . . :
- ‘Accountspayable . . ... ... ...... ... ... .. T T S 1 ) $ 713
-‘Accrued salaries. . . ... ... ... ... . .. e e R e e e e e e s 1014 - 818
Interest rate- swap ......... e e e e, R : 7.9 —
Other current liabilities. . . .. .......... .. .. .. .. .. . . . .. 124.6 108.1
Current maturities of long-termdebt . . .. ... ... ... ... . . . .. DU 14 ) 1.0
, o C T 3243 - 2682
Long-term debt .. ... ... .. . e e e e e oo 11,5705 1,398.8
Deferred income tax liabihties ............... e e e e o222 176.9
Reserves for self-insurance claims and other liabilities. . . B e e 1213 135.3
Long-term income tax liability . . ... ... .. e e e e - 18.5. 51.3
Total liabilities ...... e e e e e e e e e e . 12,2458 2,030.5
Redeemable noncontrollmg 1nterests ............. e © 153 12.0
Equity: : : S . . .
" LifePoint Hospitals Inc. stockholders equity: i :
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value; 10,000,000 shares authonzed no shares 1ssued .......... . — —
Common stock, $0:01 par value; 90,000,000 shares authorized; 61,450,098 and ' '

60,262,399 shares issued at December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. . . e -, 06 0.6
“Capital in excess of par value .. .. ... ... e e e 1,2894 1,246.4
-Accumulated other comprehensnve loss. .. ... T T 4.0) (174

Retained earnings . . . . . -, HE T e 904.0 748.5
Common stock in treasury, at cost, 9 991,316 and 5,476,930 shares at December 31, 2010 and s I
2009, respectively . .. .. .. ... .. . . . ... " T (302.5) (150.4)
L " Total LifePoint Hospitals, Inic. stockholders equ1ty ......................... 1,887.5 - 1,827.7
S Noncontrolling- mterests. e, P, 3.8 3.1
A " Total equity ;.- .. ... ... e 1,891.3 1,830.8

Total liabilities and equity. . . ......... .. ... ... .. .. . . . .. . . . $4,152.4 $3,873.3
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LIFEPOINT HOSPITALS, INC.

CONSOL]])ATE_D STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008
(In millions) -

. 2010 2009 2008
Cash flows from operating activities:
NELINCOME . . v v v v e e ettt et e e e e e ettt e e $ 158.6 $1366 - $105.2
‘Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash pr0v1ded by operating : )
activities: .
Loss from discontinued operations . . ... ... ... ...t 0.1 .51 23.7
Stock-based compensation . . .......... e 224 - ‘223 234
“ESOP expense (non-cash portion) . . . . .. ...t i i — — .16
Depreciation and amortization . . . . ... ... .. o i e 148.5 143.0 - 132.1
Amortization of physician minimum revenue guarantees . . . . .. ...... 17.1 136 9.3
Amortization of convertible debt discounts . . .............. DU 22.6 : 211 19.7
Amortization of deferred loancosts. . . . .. ..., ..., 71 - 83 7.3
Debt extinguishment costs . .. ... ...... ... i 24 — =
“Deferred income tax benefit . ... ..... ... ... ... e (29.0) (7.2) T 4.5)
Reserves for self-insurance claims, net of payments . . . . . .. ........ 10.3 16.8 116
Increase (decrease) in cash from operating assets and liabilities, net of -
effects from acquisitions and dlvestltures o o .
- ’ * Accountsreceivable. . . .. .. ... L e (39.1) 3.5 - (11.2)
‘ Inventories and other current assets . . . ... ... ... ... 5.4) ©6.9) (2.0)
Accounts payable and accrued XPenSes. . . . . . ..o 13.2 (10.7) (11.1)
Income taxes payable /receivable. . . . . ... .. ... .. 48.8 9.9 26.2
Other. . . . e e e e e e e e (1.9) 1.9 3.3
Net cash provided by operating activities-continuing operations . . . . ... .. 375.7 350.3° ©346.6
Net cash used in operating activities-discontinued operations . . . . .. ... .. (1.6) 0.4) (12.5)
Net cash provided by operating activities. . . . . . ................. 374.1 3499 - 334.1
Cash flows from investing activities: . :
Purchase of property and equipment . . .. .................... (168.7) (166.6) (157.6)
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired. . . . ... ......... e e e e . (184.9) (81.4) (21.8)
Other . . . o e e e e e e e — 39- (5.9)
Net cash used in investing activities — continuing operations . . . . ... .... (353.6) (244.1) (185.3)
-Net cash provided by (used in) investing -activities — discontinued operatlons . — 19.6 (5.8)
Net cash used in investing activities . . . .. . e e e e e e et et (353.6) (224.5) - (191.1)
Cash flows from financing activities: . : : )
Proceeds from borrowings . . . ... ... oo 400.0 — 10.4
Payments on borrowings . ... ......... .. . . . . .. (255.2) (13.5) (10.1)
Repurchases of common stock . . .. ... ... e e e e e e - (152.1) B ENS) (118.3)
Payment of debt financing costs . . . .. ... ... .. L e (13.7) — -
Proceeds from exercise of stock options . . .. ............... e 20:4 10:8 - 3.6
Proceeds from employee stock purchase plans . . .. .............. 1.0 1.0 0.8
Distributions. to noncontrolling interests, net of proceeds . . . ... ... ... 2.4) 4.2) (3.3)
Proceeds from (purchase of) redeemable noncontrolling interests . . . . . . . 3.1 (0.8) 2.2
Capital lease payments and other . . . ... ... . vuiin et (t4) @) - (4.6)
Net cash used in financing activities — continuing operations . . . . . ...... - (0.3) (13.9) (119.3)
- Net cash used in financing activities — discontinued operatlons .......... - — L — (1.1
Net cash used in financing activities. . . . .. ...... ... ...... U .03 (13.9) (120.4)
Change in cash and cash equivalents . . . . . P NI 202 - 111.5 1226
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year. . . . . ... ... .. e 187.2 75.7 531
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year . .. . ... ... ..o v e $2074 $187.2 $ 757
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information: SN . ' C
: Interest PAYMENtS . . . . . v v v vttt e e e . $ 710 $ 761 $- 82.6
R Capitalized interest . .. .................. e L $ 08 $ - 1.1 $ 09
E $ 59.2

Income taxes paid, NEL . . . o v v v v vt e e e e e e $ 625 $ 754




LIFEPOINT HOSPITALS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
For the Years Ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008
(In millions)

. LiféPointHd'spitéis, Inc. Stockholders

Accumulated
Capital in  Unearned Other e
Common Stock Excess of ESOP Comprehensive Retained Treasury Noncontrolling
Shares = Amount. - Par Value Compensation (Loss) Income Earnings Stock ~ Interests Total
Balance at December 31, 2007.. . . 56.7 $0.6 $1,181.2 . $(3.1) - $(19.8) $511.4 $ (412) . $46 $1,633.7
Comprehensive income: . ‘ _ } ’ _ ( ' 7
Net income . .~ ... ., e - = = T = 1030 Y — 29 105.2
Net change in fair value'of = o T S e : C
interest rate swap, net of tax.- BN o - : A
benefitof $4.9. .. .. ... .. — — — — - (8.5) e — S— 8.5)
Total comprehensive income . . . . 96.7
Non-cash ESOP compensation - - )
earned . .. ............. — — 4.7 3.1 — —_ = — 7.8
Exercise of stock options and tax ,
effects of stock-based awards . . 0.2 C— 25 = — f— — — 2.5
Stock activity in connection with Co . e : e LT e e
employee stock purchase plan . . — — 08— =, . = .= = 0.8
_ Stock-based compensation. . . . ... 04 — . 234 — = — - 7 = 23.4
Repurchases of comrion stock, at ' o ' T v
CoSt.................. 3.9 — — — — — 1061y i = (106.1)
Cash distributions, to )
noncontrolling interests, net of S
proceeds . . . ............ _— = — — — — = (33 3.3
Balance at December 31, 2008. .. = 53.4 0.6 1,212.6 — (28.3) 6144 (147.3) | 35 1,655.5
Comprehensive income: o ' S : ' s
Net income . . ... ... .. .. - = g— — — 1341~ © 25 136.6
Net change in fair value of ' : ' St S o
interest rate swap, net of tax L ) : : s :
provision of $5.9 ... ... .. — — — — 10.9 — — — 109 -
Total comprehensive income . . . . _ 147.5
Exercise of stock options and tax . ‘ -
effects of stock-based awards . . 0.8 — 11.8 — — — — — 11.8
Stock activity in connection with o ' . o
employee stock purchase plan'. . — = 1.0 . — So— = = L = 1.0
Stock-based compensation. . . . . . 08 . — 223 — — — _ — 22.3
Repurchases of common stock, at ‘ P . ‘ . . v ‘ _ .
Cost. ........... e ©.2) — = — — — @3 — 3.1
Cash distributions to ‘ T ‘ . o ' ’ ‘
noncontrolling interests, net of . .
proceeds . .. ............ = i (1.3) — L — — — (2.9) 4.2)
Balance at December 31, 2009. .. 54.8 0.6 1,246.4 — (17.4) 748.5 (150.4) 3.1 '1,830.8

Comprehensive income:
Netincome . ............ — — J— . 1555 j— 31 158.6

: Net change in fair value of o R I

interest rate swap, net of tax - ‘ RN : :

o provision of $7.1 .. . ... . ‘ . : . 134 ° . - C— — 13.4

l
l

Total comprehensive income . . . . . _ 172.0
Exercise of stock options and tax

effects of stock-based awards . . 0.7 — 19.7 — — — — — 19.7
Stock activity in connection with o o A

employee stock purchase plan . . 0.1 — 1.0 — — — — — 1.0
Stock-based compensation: . . . ;. 04 = 224 — = = — — 22.4
Repurchases of common stock, at : : L L

Cost. ................. 4.5) — — — — — (152.1) — (152.1)

Cash distributions to
I noncontrolling interests, net of
£ ©oproceeds. ..............

. (0.1) — — — 4 . 2.5)
- Balance at December 31, 2010... 51.5°

$1,289.4 $ — - $ (40 $904.0 $(302.5) $38 $1,891.3
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-LIFEPOINT HOSPITALS, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -
: " December 31 2010 - -

Note 1. Organization and Sumniary_‘ of Slgmﬁcant Aecountmg Policies

Orgamzatwn

LlfePomt Hospltals Inc a Delaware corporat1on ‘acting’ through its subs1d1anes operates general acute
care hospitals in non-urban communities in the United States. Unless the-context otherwise indicates,
LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. and its subsidiaries are referred to herein as the “Company.” At December 31, 2010
on a consolidated basis, the Company operated 52 hospital campuses in 17 states. Unless noted. otherwise,
discussions in these notes pertain to the Company’s contmumg operations, which exclude the results of. those
facilities that have been previously disposed.

s

Principles of Consolidation

-The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and all
subsidiaries and entities controlled by the Company through the Company’s direct or indirect ownership of a -
majority interest and exclusive rights granted to the Company as the sole general partner or ¢ontrolling -
member of such entities. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions within the Company have
been eliminated in: consolidation.

Use of Estlmates

The preparatlon of ﬁnanc1a1 statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accountmg pnnc1ples
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the Company’s
accompanying consolidated financial statements and notes to consolidated financial statements. Actual results . 3
could differ from those estimates. :

Discontinued Operations

In accordance with the provisions of Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 360-10, “Property, _
Plant -and Equipment”, (“ASC 360-10"), the Company has presented the operating results, financial position
and cash flows of its previously disposed facilities as discontinued operations in the accompanying '
consolidated financial statements. The results of operations of these hospitals have been reflected as
discontinued operations, net of income taxes, in the accompanying consolidated statements of operatlons as
further described in Note 3.

General and Administrative Costs

The majority of the Company’s expenses are ““cost of revenue” items. Costs that could be classified as
“general and administrative” by the Company would include its corporate overhead costs, which were
$120.6 million, $100.2 million and $95.8 million for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, -
respectively.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

In accordance with ASC 825-10, “Financial Instruments”, the fair value of the Company’s financial
instruments are further described as follows.

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Accounts Receivable and Accounts Payable

* The carrying amounts reported in the accompanymg consohdated balance sheets for cash and cash
equivalents, dccounts receivable and accounts payable approximate fair value because of the short-term
maturity of these instruments.
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LIFEPOINT HOSPITALS, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2010

Note 1. Organization and-Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — (continued),. ..

Long-Term Debt , S - e 2L omiely s .

The Company’s term B loans (ilie'“Term B Loans™) under its credit agreement with Citicorp ‘North -
America, Inc., as administrative dgent ‘and the lénders time fo time party "thereto, Bank of America, N.A., -
CIBC World Markets Corp., SunTrust Bank and UBS Securities LLC, as ¢o-syndication agents and Citigroup
Global Markets Inc. as sole lead arranger and sole book runnér; as amended (the ““Credit Agreement”),
6.625% unsecured senior notes due October 1, 2020-(the *“6.625% Senior Notes”), 3Y5% convettible sénior
subordinated notes due May 15, 2014 (the “3%2% Notes”) and 3%4% convertible s‘éni‘ét‘-s'ubolrdinated
debentures due August 15, 2025 (the “3%4% Debeiitures™) are the ‘Company’s-long-term debt instruments
where.the carrying amounts are different from their fair value. The carrying-amount and fair value of these

instruments as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, were. as_follows (in nii}lion§):

Carr'y:fng Amount o Fair Vaiue

o o 2010 2009 2010 2009
Term B Loans. . . .............0....... . “sa437 $6929  $4454  $673.8
6.625% Senior Notes . .. ............ ... coe $4000. - N/A $3980 N/A
312% Notes, excluding unamortized discount. . . . ..  $575.0 . $5750 . $5793  $536.2

- 3%% Debentures, excluding unamdrti_ged discoﬁht $225.0 ..$2250.  $225.6  $2062

The fair values of the Company’s Terr B Loans, 6.625% Senior Notes, 3%4% Notes and3V4%
Debentures were based on the quoted prices at December 31, 2010 and 2009: Effective February 26,:2010; the
Company amended its existing, Credit Agreement, as further described in Note 7, and extended the maturity
date and increased the.applicable interest rate for a portion of the Term B Loans. A‘dditio‘nally, effective
September 23, 2010, the Company issued its 6.625% Senior Notes, a portion of the proceeds. from whichl were

used.to repay. $249.2 million._of the outstanding borrowings under the,'Con_,lpany’svTerm B Loans.

Interest Rate ‘Swap

The Company has désignated its interest rate swap as a cash flow hedge instrument, which is recorded ‘in
the Company’s accompanying consolidated balance sheets at its fair value. The fair value of the Company’s
interest rate swap agreement is determined in accordance with ASC'815-10, “Derivatives and Hedging”
(“ASC 815-10"), based on''the amount at which it could be seitled, which is referred to in ASC 815-10 as the
exit price. The exit price is'baséd upon observable market assumptions' and appropriate valuation adjustiments
for credit risk. The Company has categorized its interest rate swap as Level 2 in accordance with - R
ASC 815-10. o : o

The fair value of the Company’s interest rate swap at December 31, 2010 and 2009 reflects a liability of
approximately L$7.'9 million and $28.3 million, respectively. The interest rate swap is included as a current A
liability under the caption interest rate: swap at December 31, 2010 and as a long-term Hability included as a
component of reserves for self-insurance claims and other liabilities at December 31, 2009 in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Thie Company’s interest rate swap is further described in Note 7.
Revenue Recognition and Allowance Jor Contractual Discounts

The Company recognizes revenues in the period in which services are performed. Accounts receivable
primarily consist of amounts due from third-party payors and patients. Amounts the Company receives for .
treatment of patients covered by governmental programs such as Medicare and Medicaid and other third-party
payors such as health maintenance organizations, preferred provider organizations and other private insurers

are generally less than the Cérilpanvy’sv established billing rates. Accordingly, the revenues and accounts
receivable reported in the Company’s consolidated financial statements are recorded at the net amount
expected to be received. _ e _ N
‘The Company derives a significant portion of*its revenues from Medicare, ‘Medicaid and other payors that
receive discounts from its established billing rates. The Company must estimate the total amount of these.
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'LIFEPOINT HOSPITALS, INC.

‘NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2010

Note 1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting. Policies — (continued)

discounts to prepare its consolidated financial statements. The Medicare and Medicaid regulations and various
managed care contracts under which these discounts must be calculated are complex-and are subject to
interpretation and adjustment. The Company estimates the allowance for contractual discounts on a payor- -
specific basis given its interpretation of the applicable regulations or contract terms. These interpretations
sometimes result in payments that differ from the Company’s estimates. Additionally, updated regulations and
contract renegotiations occur frequently, necessitating regular review and assessment of the estimation process -
by management. Changes in estimates related to the allowance for contractual discounts affect revenues
reported in the Company’s accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

Self-pay revenues are derived primarily from patients who do not have any form of healthcare coverage.
The revenues associated with self-pay patients are generally reported at the Company’s gross charges. The
Company evaluates these patients, after the patient’s medical condition is determined to be stable, for their
ability to pay based upon federal and state poverty guidelines, qualifications for Medicaid or other
governmental assistance programs, as well as the local hospital’s policy for charity/indigent care. The
Company provides care without charge to certain patients that qualify under the local charity/indigent care
policy of each of its hospitals. For the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, the Company

~ estimates that services provided under its charity/indigent care programs approximated $62.3 million,

$58.5 million and $53.7 million, respectively, based on gross charges. The Company does not report a charity/
indigent care patient’s charges in revenues or in the provision for doubtful accounts as it is the Company’s
policy not to pursue collection of amounts related to these patients.

Cost report settlements under reimbursement agreements with Medicare and Medicaid are estimated and
recorded in the period the related services- are rendered and are adjusted in future periods as final settlements
are determined. There is a reasonable possibility that recorded estimates will change by a material amount in
the near term. The net adjustments to estimated cost report settlements resulted in increases to revenues of
approximately $4.9 million, $5.4 million and $7.1 million, increases to net income of approximately
$3.2 million, $3.4 million, and $4.4 million, and increases to diluted earnings per share of approximately
$0.06, $0.06 and $0.08 for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively. The net cost
report settlement due from the Company as of December 31, 2010, included in other current liabilities in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets, was approximately $4.1 million, The net estimated cost report
settlements due to the Company as of December 31, 2009, included in accounts receivable in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets, was approximately $1.9 million. The Company’s management
believes that adequate provisions have been made for adjustments that may result from final determination of
amounts earned under these programs

Laws and regulations govemmg Medicare and Medlcald programs are complex and subject to
1nterpretat10n The Company believes that it is in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations and is
not aware of any pending or threatened investigations involving allegatlons of potential wrongdoing that
would have a material effect on the Company’s financial statements. Compliance with such laws and
regulations can be subject to future government review and interpretation as well as 51gmﬁcant regulatory
action including fines, penalties and exclusion from the Medicare and Medicaid programs.

Concentration of Revenues

Dunng ‘the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, approximately 42.0%, 40.7% and 41.4%,
respectively, of the Company’s revenues related to patients participating in the Medicare and Medicaid
programs, collectively. The Company’s management recognizes that revenues and receivables from
government agencies are significant to the Company’s operations, but it does not believe that there are
significant credit risks associated with these government agencies. The Company’s management does not
believe that there are any other significant conceritrations of revenues from any particular payor that would
subject the Company to any -significant credit risks in the collection of its accounts receivable.
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LIFEPOINT HOSPITALS, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2010

Note 1. Organization and Summary of. Significant Accounting Policies — (continued)

Certain changes have been made to the Company’s historical sources of revenues. Specifically, the
Company previously classified its revenues related to its owned physician practices as other revenue. For the
year ended December 31, 2010 and for all previously reported periods, the Company changed the
classification of its revenues for its owned physician practices from other to the respective payor
classifications, as appropriate. This change had no impact on the Company’s historical results.of operations.
These reclassifications reduced other revenue as a percentage of total revenues and incréased Medicare,
Medicaid, HMOs, PPOs and other private insurers and self-pay as a percentage of total révenues. The"
Company’s manageme‘nt has determined that it is more appropriate to classify its owned physician practices
revenue by their respective payor classification.

The Company’s revenues are particularly sensitive to regulatory and economic changes in certain states
where the Company generates significant revenues. The following is an analysis by state of revenues as a
percentage of the Company’s total revenues for those states in which the Company generates significant
revenues for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008:

Hospitals in . Percentage of Total Revenues

. State as of
State December 31, 2010 2010 2009 2008
Kentucky . ................. 9 16.7% 16.4% 17.2%
Virginia . . ................. 4 12.4 13.0 141
New Mexico. . .............. 2 9.1 97 9.1
Tennessee. . ................ 10 9.0 7.6 83
West Virginia . ... ............ 2 84. - .. 85 : 9.0 |
Alabama ............. 5 73 7.1 7.5 . -
Arizona . ......... e 2 6.6 . 6.6: . 6.4
Louisiana. . ... ............. 5 65 . 6.9 72
Texas. ... coo i L 3

45 . 47 - 53

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and marketable securities with original maturities of
three months; or less. The Company places its cash in financial institutions that are federally insured in limited
amounts. ' - o ‘

Accounts Receivable and Allowance Jor Doubtful Accounts

Accounts receivable primarily consist of amounts due from third-party payors and patients. The
Company’s ability to collect outstanding receivables is critical to its results of operations and cash flows. To
provide for accounts receivable that could become uncollectible in the future, the Company establishes an
allowance for doubtful accounts to reduce the carrying value of such receivables to their estimated net
realizable value. The primary uncertainty of such allowances lies with uninsured patient receivables and
deductibles, co-payments or other amounts due from individual patients. o '

The Company has an established process to determine the adequacy of the allowance for doubtful
accounts that relies on a number of analytical tools and benchmarks to arrive at a reasonable allowance. No
single statistic or measurement determines the adequacy of the allowance for doubtful accounts. Some of the
analytical tools that the Company utilizes include, but are not limited to, historical cash collection experience,
revenue trends by payor classification and revenue days in accounts receivable. Accounts receivable are
written off after collection efforts have been followed in accordance with the Company’s policies.
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Note 1. Organization and Sumrhary of Significant Accounting Policies — (continued) =~ . 1

A summary of act1v1ty in the Company’s allowance for doubtful accounts is as follows (m rmlllons)

Addmons Accounts o

Balances at  Charged to ' Written Off, vBa’la‘nces at
Beginning of Costs.and:. :.- Netof - “End.of -
_ . _Year . Expenses® _Recoveries . Year ..
Year ended December 31 20_10. AR $433.2 $4427 $(416.1) f $459 8
Year ended December 31, 2009. . ... .. $374.4 $379.7 $(320.9) $433 2:

- Year ended December 31,2008....... . $376.3 . $3183 $(3202) .  $3744,

(a) Additions charged to costs and expenses include amounts related to the Company’s continuing and
discontinued operations in the Company’s accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Inventories -

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market and are comprised of purchased
items. These inventory 1tems -are pnmanly operating supplies used in the direct or indirect treatment of
patients. : - - :

Long-Lived Assets
Property and Equipment

Purchases of property- and equipment are recorded at cost. Property and equipment acquired. in’connection
with business combinations are recorded at estimated fair value in accordance with the acquisition method of
accounting as prescribed in ASC 805-10, “Business Combinations™ (“ASC 805-10"’). Routine maintenance
and repairs’are charged to-expense as incurred. Expenditures that increase capacities or extend useful lives are
capitalized. Fully depreciated assets are retained in property and equipment accounts until they are disposed
of. Allocated interest on funds used to pay for the construction or purchase of major caplta.l addltlons is
included in the cost of each capital addition. -

Depreciation is computed by.applying the straight-line method over the'estimated useful lives of
buildings and improvements and equipment. Assets under capital -leases are amortized using the-straight-line
method over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the assets or the lease term, excluding any lease
renewals, unless the lease renewals are reasonably assured. Useful lives are as follows:

Buildings and improvements (mcludmg those under capital leases) . . . . . . e v o 10=40
- Equipment™. .. .. .. A e e e e e s 3 =100
Equ1pment under capltal leases e e e e e e e e -3—5 :

Deprec1at10n expense was $145 9, $141 7 nulhon and $130 9 mllhon for the years ended December 31,
2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively. Amomzatlon expense related to assets under capital Ieases is, 1nc1uded in.
depreciation expense.
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Note 1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — (continued)

As of December 31; 2010, the majority of the Company’s assets under capital leases are primarily _
comprised of prepaid capital leases. The Company’s assets under capital leases are set forth in the following
table at December 31, 2010 and 2009 (in millions):

- ) o 7 , 2010 L2009
Buildings and improvements. . , . . .. .. e e 82216 T %2079
Equipment .......... T .- - 292 . 129.0

“ ' SR o . ' 250.8 236.9:
Accumulated amortization. . . . . ... ........... ke ie. o (58.8) : 48.7)
' S T ' ' - $192.0 $188.2

The.CQmpany evaluates its long-lived assets for possible impairment whenever circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount _qu the asset, or related group of assets, may not be recoverable from estimated future
cash. flows, in accordance with ASC 360-10. Fair value estimates are derived from estabﬁshed market values
of comparable assets or internal calculations of estimated future net cash flows. The Company’s estimates of
future cash flows are based on assumptions and projections it believes to be reasonable and supportable. The
Company’s assumptions take into account revenue and expense growth rates, patient volumes, changes in
payor mix and changes in legislation and other payor payment patterns. These assumptions vary by type of
facility. The Company incurred a $17.1 million impairment charge, net of income tax benefits, in discontinued
operations during‘thé year ended December 31, 2008, as further described in Note 3. Additionally, the
Company ihcurrt;d a $1.1 million and $1.2 million pre-tax impairment charge in continuing operations during
the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. These impairment charges relate to the
impairment of certain Qperating assets for which the Company considered its existing carrying amounts
exceeded the current estim_atgd fair values of these assets.

Deferred Loan Costs

The Company records deferred loan costs for expenditures related to acquiring or issuing new debt
instruments. These expenditures include bank fees and premiums as well as attorney’s and filing fees. The
Company amortizes these deferred loan costs over the life of the respective debt instrument using the effective
interest method.

. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

The Company accounts for its acquisitions in accordance with ASC 805-10 using the acquisition. method
of accounting. Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquired entity over the net amounts. assigned
to assets acquired and liabilities assumed. In accordance with ASC 350-10, “Intangibles — Goodwill and-
Other” (“ASC 350-10”), goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives are reviewed by the Company at .
least annually for impairment. The Company’s business comprises a single reporting unit for impairment test
purposes. For the purposes of these analyses, the Company’s estimates of fair value are based on a
combination of the income approach, which estimates the fair value of the Company based on its future
discounted cash flows, and the market approach, which estimates the fair value of the Company based on
comparable market prices. During the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Company performed its
annual impairment tests as of October 1, 2010 and 2009, and did not incur an impairment charge.

During the year ended December 31, 2008 as a result of certain economic events and a decline in the
Company’s stock price, the Company performed goodwill impairment testing as of September 30, 2008 and
December 31, 2008. The Company determined that no goodwill impairment charge was required as a result of
either analysis. =~ = - o - S

The Company’s intangible assets relate to contract-based physician minimum revenue guarantees, -
certificates of need and non-competition agreements. Contract-based physician minimum revenue guarantees -
and non-competition agreements are amortized over the terms of the agreements. The certificates of need have
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Note 1. Organization and Suminary of Significant Accounting Policies — (continued)

been determined to have indefinite lives and, accordingly, are not amortized. The Company’s goodwill and
intangible assets are further described in Note 4. ’

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes using the asset and liability method. Under this method,
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences
between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax
bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable
income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect
on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that
includes the enactment date. The Company assesses the likelihood that deferred tax assets will be recovered
from future taxable income. To the extent the Company believes that recovery is not likely, a valuation
allowance is established. To the extent the Company establishes a valuation allowance of increases this
allowance, the Company must include an expense within the provision for income taxes in the consolidated
statements of operations. The Company classifies interest and penalties related to its tax positions as a

component of income tax expense. Income taxes are further described in Note 5.

Point of Life Indemnity, Ltd. (“POLI”)

" The Company operates a captive insurance company under the name Point of Life Indemnity, Ltd. POLI,
which is approved by the Cayman Islands Monetary Authority and operates as a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, issues malpractice insurance policies to certain of the Company’s employed physicians. Fees
charged to these employed physicians are eliminated in consolidation: Through July 1, 2008, POLI insured
certain voluntary attending physicians for medical malpractice claims. Fees charged to these voluntary
attending physicians are included in revenues in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and
approximated $0.4 million during the year ended December 31, 2008. Reserves for the current estimate of the
related outstanding claims, including incurred but not reported losses, are actuarially determined and are
included as a component of the Company’s reserves for self-insurance claims and other liabilities in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2010 and 2009. '

Reserves for Self-Insurance Claims

Given the nature of the Company’s operating environment, it is subject to potential professional liability
claims, employee workers’ compensation claims and other claims. To mitigate a portion of this risk, the
Company maintains insurance for individual professional liability claims and employee workers’ compensation
claims exceeding a self-insured retention level. For all claims made after April 1, 2009, the Company’s self-
insured retention level is $5.0 million per claim. For claims made before April 1, 2009, the Company’s self-
insured retention level ranges from $10.0 million per claim to $25.0 million per claim. The Company’s self-
insured retention level is evaluated annually as a part of its insurance program’s renewal process.

Additiphally, as of December 31, 2010, the Com_pény’s self-insured retention level for workers’
compensation claims is $2.0 million per claim in all states in which it operates except for Wyoming. The
Company participates in a state specific program in Wyoming for its workers’ compensation claims arising in
this state.

The Company’s reserves for self-insurance claims reflects the current estimate of all outstanding losses,
including incurred but not reported losses, based upon actuarial calculations as of the balance sheet date. The
loss estimates included in the actuarial calculations may change in the future based upon updated facts and
circumstances. The Company’s expense for self-insurance claims coverage each year includes: the actuarially
determined estimate of losses for the current year, including claims incurred but not reported; the change in
the estimate of losses for prior years based upon actual claims development experience as compared to prior -
actuarial projections; the insurance premiums for losses in excess of the Company’s self-insured retention
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Note 1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies ~ (continued)

levels; the administrative costs of the insurance program; and interest expense related to the discounted
portion of the liability. The Company’s expense for self-insurance claims was approximately $47.1 million,
$51.2 million and $47.3 million for the years ended December 31, 2010,,2009 and 2008, respectively.

The Company’s reserves for professional liability claims are based upon quarterly actuarial calculations. -
The Company’s reserves for employee worker’s compensation claims are based upon semianniial actuarial -
calculations. These reserve calculations consider historical claims data, demographic ‘considerations, severity
factors and other actuarial assumptions, which are discounted to present value. The Company’s reserves for
self-insured claims have been discounted to their present value using a discount rate of 3.15%, 3.60% and
4.00% at December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively. As a result of the decreases in the applied discount
rate during the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, the Company’s self-insurance claims expense
increased by approximately $1.6 million, $1.2 million and $3.0 million which decreased the Company’s net
income by approximately $1.0 million, $0.8 million and $1.9 million, or $0.02, $0.01 and $0.04 per diluted
share, respectively. The Company’s management selects a discount rate by considering a risk-free interest rate
that corresponds to the period when the self-insured claims are incurred and projected to be paid.

Professional and general liability claims are typically resolved over an extended period of time, often as
long as five years or more, while workers’ compensation claims are typically resolved in one to two years.
Accordingly, the Company’s reserves for self-insured claims, comprised of estimated indemnity -and expense
paymients related to reported events and incurred but not reported events as of the end of the period, in¢lude
both a current and long-term component. The curtent portion of the Company’s reserves for self-insured -
claims is included in other cutrent liabilities and the long-term portion is included in reserves for
self-insurance claims and other liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

The following table provides information regﬁrding the classiﬁcatibn of the Company’s reserves for self-
insured claims at December 31, 2010 and 2009 (in millions):

2010 2009

$ 328 $ 31.1
Long-term portion . . . . .. .. R 95.9 88.2
~ $1287 ©$119.3

The combination of changing conditions and the extended time required for claim resolution results in a
loss estimation process that requires actuarial skill and the application of judgment, and such estimates require
periodic revision. As a result of the variety of factors that must be-considered, there is a risk that actual
incurred losses may develop differently from-estimates. The results of the Company’s quarterly and
semiannual actuarial calculations resulted in changes to its reserves for self-insured claims for prior years. As
a result, the Company’s related self-insured claims expense decreased by $3.7 million, which increased net
income by approximately $2.4 million, or $0.05 per diluted share for the year ended December 31, 2010. For
the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, as a result of the Company’s quarterly and semiannual actuarial
calculations, the Company’s related self-insured claims expense increased by $2.5 million and $7.4 million,
which decreased net income by approximately $1.6 million and $4.5 million, or $0.03 and $0.08 per diluted
share, respectively.

Self-Insured Medical Benefits

The Company is self-insured for substantially all of the medical expenses and benefits of its employees.
The reserve for medical benefits primarily reflects the current estimate of incurred but not reported losses
based upon one actuarial calculation as of the balance sheet date. The undiscounted reserve for self-insured
medical benefits was $17.2 million and $14.5 million at December 31, 2010 and 20009, respectively, and is
included in other current liabilities in the Company’s accompanying consolidated balance sheets.
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Note 1. Organization and Summ‘ary of Significant Accounting Policies — (continued)
Noncontrolling Interésts and Redeenzable Noheoniroiii:hé Interests

Noncontrolhng interests represent the port10n of equity in a subs1d1ary not attrlbutable d1rect1y or
1nd1rect1y, to a parent. The Company s.accompanying consolidated financial statements include all assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses at their consolidated amounts, which mclude the amounts attributable to. the
Company and the noncontrolling interest. The Company recogmzes as a separate component of equity and.
earnings the portion of income . or loss attributable to noncontrolling interests based on the portion of the ent1ty
not owned by the Company.

Certain of the Company s noncontrolhng interests include redemptlon features that cause these interests -
not to meet the requirements for classification as equity in accordance with ASC 480-10-S99- 3A,
“Class1ﬁcat10n and Measurement of Redeemable Securities.” Redemptlon of these interests would require the
dehvery of cash. Accordmgly, these redeemable’ noncontrolling 1nterests are class1ﬁed in the mezzamne SCCthIl
of the Company s accompanymg consohdated balance sheets

Segment Reporting .

- The Company has five operating divisions as of December 31, 2010. Each of these ﬁve operatmg
divisions has similar economic characteristics consisting -of acute care hospitals in non-urban communities.
The Company realigns these operating divisions frequently based upon changing circumstances, including .
acquisition and divestiture activity. The Company considers these five .operating .divisions as one operating .
segment, healthcare services, for segment reporting purposes and as one reporting unit-for goodwill
1mpa1rment testmg in accordance w1th ASC 280 10, “Segment Reportlng” (“ASC 280-10”) and ASC 350-
10 N o ) -

The Company has determined that its five operating d1v1s10ns comprise one segment because of their
similar economic characteristics in accordance with ASC 280-10 for the following reasons:

. the treatment of patients in a hospital settmg is the only material source of revenues for each of the
Company’s five operatmg divisions;

. vthe healthcare services prov1ded by each of the Company’s operatlng d1v1s1ons are generally the
same;

. the healthcare services prov1ded by each of the Company s operatmg divisions are generally
provided to similar types-of patients, which is patients in-a hospital setting;

‘ 02; ~ the healthcare services are pnmanly prov1ded by the direction of affiliated or employed physicians
" " and by the nurses, lab and radiology technicians, and others employed or contracted at each of the
Company’s hospltals and :

-+ . the healthcare regulatory env1ronment is generally smnlar for each of the Company s-five operating
-+ divisions.: S . . .

Additionally, in accordance with ASC 350-10, the Company has determined that its five operatlng
divisions comprise one reporting unit because of their similar economic characterlstlcs in each of the
following areas:

. .the way the Company manages its operatlons and extent to Wthh its acqu1red facilities are
integrated into its existing operations as a smgle reporting unit;

¢  the Company’s goodwill is recoverable from the collective operatlons of its five operatmg divisions
and not individually from one single operating division; -
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:# its operating. divisions are frequently realigned based upon changing. circumstances; including .
acquisition and divestiture activity; and ' : :

* .because of the collective size of its five operating divisions, each division benefits from its
_ participation in a group purchasing organization. ' '

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company issues stock options and other stock-based awards to certain officers,:employees and non-
employee directors in accordance with the Company’s various stockholder-approved stock-based :compensation
plans, as described in Note 9. The Company accounts for its stock-based awards in accordance with the . .
provisions va ASC 718-10 “Compensation — Stock Compensation”, (“ASC 718-107). In.accordance with
ASC 718-10, the Company recognizes compensation expense over each of the stock-based award’s requisite
service period based on the estimated grant date fair value.

Earrl_ings (Loss) Per Shqre (“EPS”)

Earnings (loss) per share is based on the weighted average number of common shares outstanding and
dilutive stock options; convertible notes, when dilutive, and nonvested shares. In addition, the numerator of
EPS, net income, is adjusted for interest expense related to the Company’s convertible notes, when dilutive, as
more fully discussed in Note 7 and Note 11. The computation of the Company’s basic and diluted EPS is set
forth in Note 11: - - - | R Y T S

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In August 2010, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Aécounﬁng Standards Update
(“ASU”) No. 2010-23, “Health Care Entities” (Topic 954): Measuring Charity Care for Disclosure, -
(“ASU 2010-23”). ASU 2010-23 standardizes the basis’ of disclosure of charity care-as cost and specifies-the
elements of cost to be used in charity care.disclosures. ASU 2010-23 is effective for.the Company’s three
month period ended March 31, 2011. The. adoption of ASU 2010-23 is not expected to.impact the Company’s
financial position, results of operations ‘or cash flows although additional disclesures will be required.

Note 2. Acquisitions :

HighPoint Health Systems ( “HighPoint”)

Effective September '1,.2010,~ the Company acquired Sumnqr ,Régjonal_' Health SyStems, subsequently
renamed HighPoint Health Systems, for approximately $145.0 million plus net working capital. HighPoint
includes Sumner Regional Medical Center, a 155 bed hospital located in Gallatin, Tennessee, Trousdale
Medical Center, a 25 bed hospital located in Hartsville, Tennessee and Riverview Regional Medical Center, a
two campus hospital system with a combined 88 beds in Carthage, Tennessee. The Company has committed
to invest an additional $60.0 million in capital expenditures and improvements in HighPoint over the next .~
10 years. The results of operations of HighPoint are included in the Company:§ results of operations .
beginning September 1, 2010. o L
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The- fair values assigned to-HighPoint’s assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of acqulsltlon
were as follows (in millions):

CUITENt @SSELS . . . . . .. . e e e e e e R, . $ 195
Property and equipment . . . . .......... ... ... .. ... ; 131.9
Other long-term assets . . . . .. ... v vttt 3.7
GOOAWLL . . . ..ot L 25.0
Total assets acquired, excluding cash.. . . ........... e e 1801
Current liabilities. . .-.. ... ...... ... ... ... ....... e SRR 9.9
Long-term liabilities. . . .. .. .. ... .. i 12.6.
Total Tiabilities assumed. . . .. ...... .. ... ... . 0. 22.5
Netassets acquired. . ... 0. . ... oo $157.6

Clark Regional Medical Center (“Clark”)

- Effective May 1, 2010, the Company acquired the operations, working capital and equipment of Clark, a
100 bed hospital located in Winchester, Kentucky, for approximately $10.1 million. In connection with this
transaction, the Company entered into a lease agreement for the existing Clark hospital. The Company has
committed to spend an additional approximate $60.0 million to build and equip a new hospital to replace the
current hospital facility. The Company began construction during the third quarter of 2010. The Company
anticipates opening the replacement hospital in approximately 15 months. The results of operations of Clark -
are included in the Company’s results of operations beginning May 1, 2010.

Rockdale Medical Center (“Rockdale’)

Effective February 1, 2009, the Company acquired Rockdale Medical Center, a 138 bed hospital located
in Conyers, Georgia, for approximately $82.6 million. Pursuant to the asset purchase agreement for Rockdale,
the Company has committed to spend no less than $4.0 million in each of the next three years and a total of
at least $30.0 million during.the next six years on capital expenditures and improvements following the date .
of acquisition. Through December 31, 2010, the Company has spent approximately $16.3 million. The results
of operations of Rockdale are included in the Company’s results of operations beginning February 1, 2009.

Ancillary Service-Line Acquisitions

The Company completed certain ancillary service-line acquisitions, 1nclud1ﬁg physician practlces totaling
$17.2 million, $4.8 million and $21.8 million durmg the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008,
respectxvely :

Note 3. Dlscon_tinued Operations

Facilities Idenﬁ'fied e

In September 2008, the Company’s management committed to plans to sell Doctors’ Hospital of _
Opelousas (“Opelousas™), a 171 bed facility located in Opelousas, Louisiana, and Starke Memorial Hospital
(“Starke™), a 53 bed facility located in Knox, Indiana. Effective May 1, 2009, the Company sold Opelousas
for $13.7 million, including working capital and effective July 1, 2009, the Company sold Starke for
$6.3 million, including working capital. In connection with the Company’s disposals of Opelousas and Starke,
it recognized losses on sales of hospitals, net of income tax benefits, of $0.4 million during the year ended
December 31, 2009.
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In-March 2007, the Company signed a letter of intent with a third party to terminate its. existing lease
agreement and transfer substantially all of the operating assets and net working capital of Colorado River )
Medical Center (“Colorado River”), a 25 bed facility located in Needles, California. Effective April 1, 2008,
the Company terminated its lease agreement and transferred substantially all of the operating assets and
working capital to a third party. In connection with the Company’s disposal of Colorado River, it recognized a
loss, net of income tax benefits, of $0.3 million during the year ended December 31, 2008,

Impact of Discontinued Operations

The results of operations, net of income taxes, of Opelousas, Starke and Colorado Rivér, as well as the
Company’s other previously disposed facilities are reflected in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements as discontinued operations in accordance with ASC 360-10.

Interest expense .was. allocated to. discontinued operations based on the ratio of disposed net assets to the
sum of total net assets of the Company plus the, Company’s total outstanding debt, The Company allocated to
diséontjnued operations interest expensé of $0.3 million and $1.2 million for the years ended December 31,
2009 and 2008, respéétively. There was no allocation of interest expense to discontinued operations for the
year ended December 31, 2010.

The revenues, loss before income taxes and loss net of income taxes, excluding ‘impairmen_t charges and
losses on sales of hospitals, of discontinued operations for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and
2008 were as follows (in millions):

2010 2009 2008
Revenues (adjustments) ... ............. ... .. $(0.8) $17.1 "$53.0°
Loss before income taxes . .. ................ .. $(0.2) $6.7) -$(12.2)
Loss net of income taxes ............ e $(0.1) $a7n $ 6.3)

Impairment Charges

During the year ended December 31, 2008 the Company recognized total impairment charges, net of
taxes of $17.1 million. These impairment charges included 2 $13.9 million charge for Opelousas and a ‘
$5.5 million charge for Starke. These charges were partially offset by a reversal of a portion of the previously
recognized'ifnpairrnént charge of $2.3 million for Colorado River. The Company allocated goodwill to each of
these facilities based on the ratio of its estimated fair value to the estimated fair value of thé Company.

Impairment — Opelousas

In connection with the Company’s commitment to sell Opelousas, the Company recognized an
impairment charge of $13.9 million, net of income taxes, or $0.26 loss per diluted share, for the year ended .
December 31, 2008. The impairment charge includes the impairment of property and equipment, allocated -
goodwill; inventory and certain intangible assets. : ,
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The followmg table sets forth the components of Opelousas lmpanment cha.rge during the year ended
December 31, 2008 (1n nnlhons) . :

Property andeqmpment ..... e ..... . . $10.0 .

Goodwill .. ................... L A S S PO . 37 A
Inventory . . ... ... ... ..o L oL PR SN DN B 0.6
Intangible @ssets . . . ... ... ... .. _ 05

. , 19.8
Income tax benefit. .-. .. ....... B (59

Impairment — Starke

In connection with the Company’s cornmitment to sell Starke, the Company recognized an: 1mpa1rn1ent
charge of $5.5 million, net of income taxes, or $0.10 loss per dlluted share, for the year ended December 31,
2008. The impairment charge includes the impairment of property and equ1pment allocated goodwﬂl and

. certain intangible assets. :

The following table sets forth the components of Starke’s impairment charge dunng the year ended _
December 31, 2008 (in millions):

Property and equipment . . . . .. ... ... ... P X -

Goodwill . . ................. e e e e e e e 29
Intangible assets . ... ... . R . 03
' - ' o 7.6

Income tax beneﬁt .............................................. _(2.D
$5.5

Impairment — Colorado River

In March 2007, the Company, through its indirect subsidiary, Prmc1pal Needles Inc (“PNI”), s1gned a
letter of intent with the Needles Board of Trustees of Needles Desert Communities. Hosp1ta1 (the “Needles '
Board of Trustees”) to transfer to the Needles Board of Trustees substantlally all of the operating assets and
net working capltal of Colorado River plus $1.5 rmlhon in cash, which approximated the net present value of .
future lease payments due under the lease agreement between PNI and the Needles Board of Trustees in
consideration for the termination of the existing operating lease agreement. Subsequently, in December 2007,
the Company entered into a definitive agreement with the Needles Board of Trustees that terminated the
existing lease agreement effective April 1, 2008, on which date. the Company transferred. Colorado River to
the Needles Board of Trustees. In connection with the signing of the.letter of intent in March 2007, the.
Company recognized an impairment charge of $8.7 million; net of income tax benefits for the year ended
December 31, 2007. The impairment charge related to goodwill impairment and the write-down of the
property and equipment and certain net working capital that was originally to be transferred to the Needles
Board of Trustees, for which the Company anticipated receiving no consideration. The Company recognized a
) , favorable impairment adjustment of ($2.3) million, net of income taxes, or ($0.04) per diluted share for the

S year ended December 31, 2008. The impairment adjustment relates to the reversal of a portion of the
IO previously recognized impairment charge for certain net working capital components that were ultimately
excluded from the assets transferred effective April 1, 2008.
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The following table sets forth the components of Colorado River’s impairment adjustment during the year
ended December 31, 2008 (in millions): ' ‘

Net working capital .-. . . ... ... B e e ’ $(3.6),
Income tax provision . . .. ... I I e, ) 1.3
T $(23)

Note 4. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

The following table presents the changes in the carrying amount of goodwill during the years ended
December 31,-2010 and 2009 -(in millions): - o coo o

Balance at December 31, 2008 . ................ e oo $1,5165
Acquisition of Rockdale . . . % .. ... .. oo 9.1
Write-offs of goodwill related to miscellarieous ancillary- service-line disposals, net :

of consideration for miscellaneous ancillary service-line acquisitions . . . . . S 2.6)

Balance at December 31,2009 ... .................... ... ... . ... .. 1,523.0

" Acquisition of Clark. ... ......... ... ... ... .. . . . ... e 1.3
Acquisition of HighPoint. . . .................... ... ... ... . . . 25.0
Acaquisitions of ancillary servit:e—lihes ........ e e, e 1.4

Balance at December 31, 2010 A P P e " $1,550.7

- The following table provides information regarding the Company’s intangible assets, which ére included
in the accompanying consolidated balance ‘sheets at December 31, 2010 and 2009 (in millions):

2010 2000

Amortized intangible assets:
Contract-based physician minimum revenue guarantees ‘ S
.. Gross carrying amount. .. .. ..... .. e e e L. $. 872 $ 775
Accumulated amortization . . ............. [ : (379 . (26.4)
Nettotal . .............; e el SHE . 49.3 51.1
Non-competition agreements SR
Gross carrying -amount. . . . . AU S e 29.3 1204
Accumulated amortization . . .. ......... ... .. .. .. T (12.0) 9.4)
Nettotal ......... ... ... .. ... ... ... ... .. .. . . 17.3 . 110
Total amortized intangible assets , ‘ , : 7
Gross carrying amount. . .. . . . . e L. 1165 979
Accumulated amortization . . . . . . . .. . e . - (49.9) . .(35.8)
Nettotal ............... D 66.6 62.1
Indefinite-lived intangible assets: o : . g
Certificates of meed . . . ............. .. ... .. ... .. . .. 6.5 6.5
Total intangible assets: : :
‘Gross CAITying amount. . . .. ...................... .. . ‘ 123.0 ' 104.4
-Accumulated amortization . ... ........... ... .. .. ... .. (49.9) (35.8)
Nettotal ........ ... ... ... .. ... .......... ... .. $ 73.1 $ 68.6
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Contract-Based Physician Minimum Revenue Guarantees

The Company has committed to provide certain financial assistance pursuant to recruiting agreements, or
“physician minimum revenue guarantees,” with various physicians practicing in the communities it serves. In
consideration for a physician relocating to one of its communities and agreeing to engage in private practice
for the benefit of the respective community, the Company may advance certain amounts of money to a
physician to assist in establishing his or her practice.

The Company accounts for its physician minimum revenue guarantees in accordance with the provisions
of ASC 460-10, “Guarantees” (“ASC 460-10"). In accordance with ASC 460-10, the Company records a
contract-based intangible asset and a related guarantee liability for new physician minimum revenue
guarantees. The contract-based intangible asset is amortized as a component of other operating expenses, in
the accompanying consolidated statements of operations, over the period of the physician contract, which
typically ranges from four to five years. As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Company’s liability for
contract-based physician minimum revenue guarantees was $18.0 million and $18.7 million, respectively.
These amounts are included in other cutrent liabilities-in the Company’s accompanying consolidated balance
sheets. -

Non-Competition Agreements

The Company has entered into non- -competition agreements with certain physicians and other individuals
which are amortized on a straight-line basis over the term of the agreements

In connection with the Company’s acquisitions of certain ancrllary service-lines completed during the
year ended December 31, 2010, the Company allocated $8.9 million of the purchase prices to non- competition
agreements. These non-competition agreements entered into in connection with the Company’s acquisitions
completed during the year ended December 31, 2010 have a weighted-average term of approximately
71 months.

Certificates of Need

The construction of new facilities, the acquisition or expansion of existing facilities and the addition of
new services and certain equipment at the Company’s facilities may be subject to state laws that require prior
approval by state regulatory agencies. These certificate of need laws generally require that a state agency
determine the public need and give approval prior to the construction or acquisition of facilities or the
addition of new services. The Company operates hospitals in certain states that have adopted certificate of
need laws.

Amortization Expense

Amortization expense for the Company’s intangible assets, including physician minimum revenue
guarantee expense in accordance with ASC 460-10, during the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and
2008 was $19.7 million, $14 8 million and $10.5 million, respectively.

Total estimated amortization expense for the Company s intangible assets during the next five years and
thereafter are as follows (in millions): »

$22.2
....................................................... . 186

2013 ......... e 126

SR : . el

1.4

53

<o
o
o\c"
o
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The provision for income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008 consists of the
following (in millions): - ‘ , , . - .

2010 2009 2008

Current: )
Federal.................... ... ... ... .. $37.6 $'882 T $69.0
State ........... e _ 45 __ 68 43

421 950 - 733

Deferred: o
Federal. . . .. .. e e 38.9 (14.5) 3.7
State ......... e _(2.5) _(36) @

36.4 8.1y 1.6 -

Increase in valuation allowance . . ............... _39 _ 34 . 50

Total .................... e $82.4 $ 80.3 $79.9

|

The increases in the valuation allowance during the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008
were primarily the result of a reduction in the Company’s state net operating loss carry forwards that A
management believes may not be fully utilized because of the uncertainty regarding the Company’s ability to
generate taxable income in certain states. Various non-hospital operating subsidiaries have state net operating
loss carry forwards in the aggregate of approximately $711.4 million (primarily in Alabama, Fl’orida,’llndiana
Louisiana, Pennsylvania, Tennessee, Virginia and West Virginia) with expiration dates through the year 2030.

The following is a reconciliation of the statutory federal income tax rate to the Company’s effective
income tax rate on income from continuing operations before income taxes and including net income or loss
from non-controlling interests for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008: '

2010 2009 2008
Federal statutory rate . . . ..................... 35.0% 35.0% 35.0% -
State income taxes, net of federal income tax benefit . . 1.6 1.4 - 1.5
Valuation allowance. . .................... .. . 1.6 1.5 24.
Income tax liability reversal . .............. cee 2.5) (1.9) 1.2)
- Otheritems, net . ........................ L (L 06 10
Effective income tax rate. . .. .............. . 346%  36.6%, 38.7%
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Deferred income. taxes result from temporary differences in the recognition. of-assets, liabilities, revenues
and expenses for financial accounting and tax purposes. Sources of these differences and the related tax effects
are as follows as of December 31, 2010 and 2009 (in millions):

2010 2009
Deferred-income tax liabilities: ‘ - L
Depreciation and amortization . . . ... ................. . $(227.3) $(183.4)
Amortization of convertible debt discounts. . .. .............. (32.3) (41.2)
Prepaid expenses . . .. .......... ..t (1.6) . (1.2)
Other......... e PO P - (10.5) (13
Total deferred income tax llabllltleS ............. e 271.7) (227.1)
Deferred income tax-assets:
Provision for doubtful accounts . . .......... e < 594 76.9 -
Employee compensation . . . . . i e ‘ 58.7 - 51.6
 Professional liability clalms e S e .. 387 , 36.0
Interest rate SWap. . ...... o R, . 27 99
Other..‘._., ......... . e ... 586 489
Total deferred income tax assets ........ B, . 218.1 2233
Valuation allowance ............................... (57.9 (51.8)
Net deferred income tax. assets ........................ 160.2 171.5
Net deferred i income tax l1ab111tles ...................... $(lll 5) $ (55.6)

The balance sheet class1ﬁcat10n of deferred income tax assets (liabilities) at December 31, 2010 .and 2009.
is as follows (in millions):

2010 2009
Current . .. ... e e e e S $ 99.7 o $1213
Longsterm ................c....... e e e e e o (211.2) (176.9)
Total ........ PP e $(111.5) $-(55. 6)

The Company filed apphcatlons with the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS™) that autornatlcally allowed
the Company to change its tax accounting method related to worthless accounts receivable durlng the year
ended December 31, 2010. As a result of this tax accounting method change, the Company reduced its long-
term income tax liability for unrecognized tax benefits and a related deferred tax asset by $29.2 million.
Additionally, the Company reduced its income tax provision by $4.5 million of related and previously accrued
interest expense.

Additionally, during the year ended December 31, 2010, the Company recorded the income tax impact of
its reconciliation of the income tax provision to the income tax return for its year ended December 31, 2009.
This resulted in an increase in the Company’s income taxes receivable by $53.4 million and net deferred
income tax liability by $52.3 million. These increases are primarily the result of method change applications
filed with the IRS during the year ended December 31, 2010.
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.'The following table provides a rollforward of the various tax balances from December 31, 2009 to
December 31, 2010 and reflects changes resulting from the Company’s tax accounting method changes,
interest accrual reversals, federal income tax impact of the income tax provision to income tax return
reconciliation and other items (in millions): ‘ ‘

Income o Deferred fLong-Térm
Taxes - ‘Income Income Tax
Receivable Taxes, Net Liability
Balance at December'31,2009 . .......... . ...% .~ $ 100 $(55.6) ©  $(51.3)
Adjustments resulting from tax accotinting method o o o
* change related to worthless accounts receivable .~ .. - - — ‘ 29.2) 29.2
Federal incotie tax impact of the incomé tax provision Coe : :
to income tax return reconciliation .. . . . . . L0 53.4 - (523) ¢ ' —
Other ................ R (0:6) (7.2) - (Lo
~ (Provision for) benefit from income taxes, net . . . .. . . (1227 354 © 49
R Income taxes paid, net . ...... S 65.4" (2.6) ~(0.3)
Balance at December 31,2010 . ........... S - $ 55 T$dILs) $(185)

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending liability for gross unrecognized tax benefits at December 31,
2010 and 2009 is as follows (in millions): -~ - ' ‘

2010 <. 2009

Balance at beginning of year. . . ............... e %423 - $ 482
Additions for tax positions of prior years . .. ................. 6.0 ‘ 08 .
Reductions for tax positions of ‘prior years . . . . . ... P (29.2) 32) .
Reductions for settlements with taxing authorities. . . ............ 0.4) ' ©04) -
Reductions for lapse of statutes of limitations . ................ 2.6) 3.1)
Balance at end of year. .. ................ ... S B (X $ 423

The components of the long-term income tax liability at Decembér_31, 2010 and 2009 are as follows
(in millions):" - S - o _ . :

2010 2009

Unrecognized tax benefits. . . ... .............. ... .. ... .. %161 - - $42.3
Accrued interest and penalties............. e e 2.4 9.0
$18.5 $51.3

Of the $16.1 million of gross unrecognized tax benefits at December 31, 2010, $1.5 million, if
recognized, would affect the Company’s effective tax rate. Included in the balance of gross unrecognized tax
benefits at December 31, 2010 are tax positions of $14.6 million for which the ultimate deductibility is highly
certain but for which there is uncertainty about the timing of such deductibility. Because of the impact of
deferred income tax accounting, other than for interest and penalties, the disallowance of the shorter

deductibility period would not affect the effective income tax rate but would accelerate the payment 'Q‘f cash to
the taxing authority to an earlier period. ' -
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The Company includes interest and. penalties as a component of its income tax expense. During the year
ended December 31, 2010, the Company recorded a net $4.1 million reduction of interest expense related to
unrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense, which is comprised of an interest benefit of $5.4 million
from the expiration of federal and state statutes of limitation, tax accounting method change related to
worthless accounts receivable, and settlements with taxing authorities and interest expense, of $1.3 million on
unrecogmzed tax benefits from prior years.

The Company’s U.S. Federal income tax returns for 2007 and beyond remain subject to examination by
the IRS. The IRS had examined the Company’s tax returns for. 1999, through 2003, with agreement on all
issues except for the Company’s tax accounting method of determining its bad .debt deduction. In.December
2009, the Company reached an agreement with the IRS on the final remaining issue regarding the
determination of its bad debt deduction. In March 2010, the Company executed Form 870, Waiver of
Restrictions on Assessment and Collection of Deficiency in Tax and Acceptance of Overassessment, in order to
close the IRS examination of the Company’s consolidated Federal income tax returns for 1999 through 2003.
The Form 870 reported a $2.6 million net tax refund due to the Company for all examined years. In addition
to the $2.6 million net tax refund, the Company had previously applied its 2002 federal income tax refund in
the amount of $6.6 million as a deposit against any potential settlement to forestall the tolling of interest on
any settlement beyond the March 15, 2003 deposit date. As a result of the IRS settlement being in a net tax
refund position, the Company was due a refund of the $6.6 million deposit. These two net tax refunds
combine to an amount of $9.2 million. Since the Company’s IRS examination refund exceeded $2.0 million,
the Joint Committee of Taxation reviewed the IRS examination results and issued a no change letter to the
Company in May 2010 that approved the $9.2 million net tax refund owed to the Company. In December
2010, the Company received the $9.2 million of tax refunds, plus $1.0 million of interest, from the IRS. The
previously extended statutes of limitation for the Federal tax returns for 1999 through 2003 expired on
December 31, 2010.

The explratlon of the statutes of limitation related to the various state income tax returns that the
Company and its subsidiaries file, varies by state. Generally, the Company’s various state income tax returns
for tax years 2005 and beyond remain subject to examination by various state taxing authorities. As a result of
the expiration of the statutes of limitation for specific taxing jurisdictions, the Company’s unrecognized tax
positions could change within the next twelve months by a range of zero to $4.0 million.

Note 6. Other Current Liabilities

The following table prov1des information regarding the Company’s other current liabilities, which are
included in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets at December 31, 2010 and 2009 (in millions):

. 2010 - 2009

Accrued interest . .. ........ e i PP $ 16.0 $ 93
Short-term portion of reserves for self-insurance claims. . . ... ..... ‘ 328 - 31.1
Reserves for self-insured medical benefits . . . . . . P 17.2 14.5
Physician minimum revenue guarantees 11ab111ty. e e 18.0 - 18.7
Estimated third party settlements . . .. .......... e PP 4.1 —
Other. . ... . 36.5 34.5

$124.6 $108.1
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~: The Company’s long-term debt consists of the following at December 31, 2010 and 2009 (in millions):

2010 ' 2009
Senior Borrowings: L
“Term B Loans . . ... ... . ceoa .8 4437 $ 6929
6.625% Senior Notes. . ......... L. e L '400.0 - ¢ —
' R ‘ 843.7 692.9
Subordinated Borrowings: ‘ »
314% Notes . . . . . e 575.0 575.0
3Ya% Debentures . .. ............... . ... . AU L 2250 2250
Unamortizéd discounts on 3% Notes‘and' 3V4% Debentures . .. . (79.8) (102.4)
Pr(‘)vince71/2%Nc)tes...v..........v..v....f ..... . o 0.1 6.1
720.3 703.7
Capital leases . ............. [ L 7.9 3.2
Totalllong-termde‘bt............,...’...v....i ..... 1,571.9 11,399.8
.Less: current portion. . . . ... .. B R .. 1.4 1.0

$1,570.5 $1,398.8

Maturities of the Company’s long-term debt at December 31, 2010, excluding unamortized discounts on
3%% Notes and 3%% Debentures are as follows for the years indicated (in millions):

2011 ... .. .. A o e A %14
2012 ... e FE . 1.1
2013 .o 0.9
2014 . e 1,019.3
2015 . 0.7
Thereafter .. ................. ....... 0. ... .. .. ... . 628.3
$1,651.7
Credit Agreement
Terms o

The Company’s Credit Agreement provides for Term B Loans, term A loans (the “Term A Loans’) and
revolving loans (the “Revolving Loans”). In February 2010, the Company amended its Credit Agreement to
extend the maturity date of $443.7 million of its outstanding Term B Loans from April 15, 2012 to April 15,
2015 and the maturity date of the $350.0 million of existing capacity available under its Revolving Loans
from April 15, 2010 to December 15, 2012. If the Company does not refinance its outstanding 3%% Notes at .
least 91 days prior to their current maturity date of May 15, 2014, the extended portion of the Term B Loans
will mature on February 13, 2014. For consideration of the extension in maturity dates, the February 2010
amendment, among other things, increased the applicable interest rates from an adjusted London Interbank
Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) plus a margin of 1.625% to an adjusted LIBOR plus a margin of 2.750% for the
extended Term B Loans and from an adjusted LIBOR plus a margin of 1.750% to an adjusted LIBOR plus a
margin of up to 2.750% for the extended Revolving Loans. Additionally, the amendment increased the unused
credit capacity fee applicable to the Revolving Loans from 0.375% to 0.625% with a step-down to 0.500% if
the Company’s total leverage ratio is less than 2.50:1.00. The remaining $249.2 million outstanding under the
Term B Loans, for which the maturity date and interest rate remained unchanged, was repaid during the
third quarter of 2010 out of the proceeds from the issuance of the 6.625% Senior Notes. Accordingly, as of

F-29



LIFEPOINT HOSPITALS, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2010
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December 31,-2010, the Company’s outstanding $443.7 million in Term B Loans will mature on February 13,
2014, assuming that it does not refinance its outstanding 3%% Notes.

Additionally, Term B Loans are subject to additional mandatory prepayments with a certain percentage of
excess cash flow, as well as upon the occurrence of certain other events, as specifically described in-the
Company’s Credit Agreement. The Company’s Credit Agreement is guaranteed on a senjor secured basis by
its subsidiaries with certain limited exceptions and provides for the issuance of letters of credit up to
$75.0 million: Issued letters of credit reduce the amounts available under the Company’s Revolvmg Loans.

Letters of Credit and Availability

As of December 31, 2010, the Company had $31.1 million in letters of credit outstanding that were
related fo the self-insured retention level of its general and professional liability insurance and workers’
compensation programs as security for payment of claims. Under the terms of the Company’s Credit
Agreement, Revolving Loans available for borrowing were $318.9 million as of December 31, 2010.

The Company’s Credit Agreement contains uncommitted ““accordion” features that permit it to borrow at
a later date additional aggregate principal amounts of up to $400.0 million of Term B Loans, $250.0 million
of Term A Loans and $300.0 million of Revolving Loans, subject to obtaining addmonal lender commitments
and the’ satlsfactlon of other conditions. :

Interest Rates

Interest on the outstanding balance of the Term B Loans is payable at an adjusted LIBOR plus a margin
of 2.750%. Interest on the Revolving Loans is payable at the Company’s option at either an adjusted base rate
or an adjusted LIBOR plus a margin. The margin on Revolving Loans subject to an adjusted base rate ranges
from 1.00% to 1.75%, based on the Company’s total leverage ratio. The margin on the Revolving Loans
subject to an adjusted LIBOR ranges from 2.00% to 2.75% based on the Company’s total leverage ratio :

As of December 31, 2010, the applicable annual interest rate under the Term B Loans was 3.04%, wh1ch
was based on the 90- day ad_]usted LIBOR plus the applicable margins. The 90-day adjusted LIBOR was -
0.29% at December 31, 2010. The weighted-average applicable annual interest rate for the year ended
December 31, 2010 under the Term B Loans was 2.67%.

Covenants

The Company’s Credit Agreement requires it to satisfy certain financial covenants, including a-minimum *
interest coverage ratio and a maximum total leverage ratio. The interest coverage ratio can be no less than
3.50:1.00 and the total leverage ratio cannot exceed 3.75:1.00, both determined on a trailing four quarter basis. -
In addition, the Credit: Agreement generally limits the amount the Company can spend on capital expenditures
to no.more than 10. 0% of annual revenues. The Company was in comphance with these covenants as of ,
December 31, 2010. :

In addition, the Company’s Credit Agreement contains customary “affirmative and negative covenants,
which among other things, limit the Company’s ability to'incur additional debt, create liens, pay dividends,
effect transactions with its affiliates, sell assets, pay subordinated debt, merge, coiisolidate, enter into
acquisitions and effect sale leaseback transactions. It does not contain provisions that would' accelerate the
maturity dates ‘upon a downgrade in the Company’s credit rating. However; a downgrade in the Company’s
credit rating could adversely affect its ability to obtain other capltal sources in the future and could increase
the Company s cost of borrowings. - ’ — : :

6.625% Semor Notes .

Effective September 23,2010, the Company issued ina pnvate placement $400 0'million of 6. 625%
unsecured senior notes due October 1,-2020 with The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as
trustee. The net proceeds from this issuance were partially used to repay a portion of the Company’s
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outstanding borrowings under its Term B Loans and a portion of its outstanding borrowings under its Province
7%:% senior subordinated notes due 2013 (the “Province 7Y2% Notes”). The Company intends to.use the
remaining proceeds from the borrowings under its 6.625% Senior Notes for general corporate purposes, which
may include the repurchase. of the Company’s outstanding common stock from time to time. The 6.625%
Senior Notes bear interest at the rate of 6.625% per year, payable semi-annually on April 1 and October 1,
commencing April 1, 2011. The 6.625% Senior Notes are jointly and severally guaranteed on an unsecured
senior basis by substantially all of the Company’s existing and future subsidiaries that guarantee the Credit
Agreement. - SR : ' A ’ o :

The Company may redeem up to 35% of the aggregate principal amount of its 6.625% Senior Notes, at
any time before October 1, 2013, with the net cash proceeds of one or more qualified equity offerings ata
redemption price equal to 106.625% of the principal amount to be redeemed, plus accrued and unpaid interest,
provided that at least 65% of the aggregate principal amount of its:6.625% Senior Notes remain outstanding
immediately after the -occurrence of such redemption and such redemption occurs within 180 days of the date
of the closing of any such qualified equity offering.

The Company may redeem its 6.625% Senior Notes, in.whole or in part, at any time prior to October 1,
2015 at a price equal to 100% of the-principal amount of the notes redeemed plus an applicable makewhole
premium, plus accrued and. unpaid interest, if any, to the date of redemption. The Company may redeem its
6.625% Senior Notes, in whole or in part, at any time on or after October 1, 2015, plus accrued and unpaid
interest, if any, to the date of redemption plus a redemption price equal to a percentage of the principal
amount of the notes redeemed based on the following redemption schedule:

e e 103.313%

Qctober 1, 2015 to September 30, 2016
,October 1, »201_6 to. September 30, 2017 . ................... .. 102.208%
.October 1, 2017 to September-30, 2018 . e e e e e e 101.104%
October 1, 2018 and thereafter . ... ... e e S 100.000% .

If the Company experiences a chahge of control under certain circumstances, it must offer to repurchase
all of the notes at"a price equal to 101.000% of their principal amount, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if
any, to the repurchase:date. ’ e e - e :

~ The 6625% Senior Notes contain customary aﬂirtnative_ and negative covenants, which among other
things, limit the Company’s ability to incur additional debt, create liens, pay dividends, effect transactions with

its affiliates, ‘sell assets, pay subordinated debt, mergé,' ponsblidate, enter-into acquisitions and effect sale
leaseback transactions. ' ' '

3Y2% thes .

The Company’s 3%2% Notes bear interest at the rate of 3%4% per year, payable semi-annually on May 15
and November 15. The 3%% Notes are convertible prior to March 15, 2014 under the following.
circumstances: (1) if the price of the Company’s common stock reaches a specified threshold during: specified
periods; (2) if the trading price of the 3%4% Notes is below a specified threshold; or (3) upon the occurrence
of specified corporate transactions or other events. On or after March 15, 2014, holders may convert their
3%2% Notes at any time prior to the close of business on the scheduled trading day immediately preceding
May 15, 2014, regardless of whether any of the:foregoing circumstances has occurred. '

‘Subject to0 certain exceptions, the Company will deliver cash and shares of our ‘common stock upon
conversion of each $1,000 principal amount of its-3%4% Notes as follows: (1) an amount in cash, which the
Company fefers to as the ““principal return”, equal to the sum of, for each of the 20 volume-weighted average
price trading days during the conversion period, the lesser of the daily conversion value for such
volume-weighted average price trading day and $50; and (ii) a number of shares in an amount equal to the

sum of, for each of the 20 volume-weighted average price trading days during the conversion period, any
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excess of the daily conversion value above $50. The Company’s ability to pay the principal return in cash is
subject to important limitations imposed by the Credit Agreement and the agreements or iridentures governing
any additional indebtedness that the Company incurs in the future. If the Company does not make any
payments it is obligated to make under the térms of the 3%2% Notes, holders may declare an event of default.

The initial conversion rate is 19.3095 shares of the Company’s common stock per $1,000 principal
amount .of the 3%2% Notes (subject to certain events). This.represents an initial conversion price of
approximately $51.79 per share of the Company’s common stock. In addition, if certain corporate transactions
that constitute a change of control occur prior to maturity, the Company will increase the conversion rate in
certain circumstances.

Upon the occurrence of a fundamental change (as specified in the indenture), each holder of the
3Y2% Notes may require the Company to purchase some or all of the 3%2% Notes at a purchase price in cash
equal to 100% of the principal amount of the 3%2% Notes surrendered, plus any accrued and unpaid interest.

The indenture for the 3%2% Notes does not contain any financial covenants or any restrictions on the
payment of dividends, the incurrence of senior or secured debt or other indebtedness, or the issuance or
repurchase of securities by the Corﬁpany The indenture contains no covenants or other provisions to protect
holders of the 3%2% Notes in the event of a highly leveraged transaction or other events that do not constltute
a fundamental change.

3Y4% Debentures

The Company’s 3%4% Debentures bear interest at the rate of 3%4% per year, payable semi-annually on
February 15 and August 15. The 3%4% Debentures are convertible (subject to certain limitations imposed by
the Credit Agreement) under the following circumstances: (1) if the price of the Company’s common stock
reaches a specified threshold during the specified periods; (2) if the trading price of the 3Y4% Debentures is
below a specified threshold; (3) if the 3V4% Debentures have been called for redemption; or (4) if specified
corporate transactions or other specified events occur. Subject to certain exceptions, the Company will deliver
cash and shares of its common stock, as follows: (i) an amount in cash, which the Company refers to as the

‘principal return”, equal to the lesser of (a) the principal amount of the 3%% Debentures surrendered for
conversion and (b) the product of the conversion rate and the average price of the Company’s common stock,

* as set forth in the indenture govermng the securities, which the Company refers to as the “conversion value”;

and (ii) if the conversion value is greater than the principal return, an amount in shares of the Company’s
common stock. The Company’s ability to pay the principal return in cash is subject to important limitations
imposed by ‘the Credit Agreement and the agreements or indentures governing any additional indebtedness that
the Company incurs in the future. Based on the terms of the Credit Agreement, in certain circumstances, even
if any of the foregoing conditions to conversion have occurred, the 3%4% Debentures will not be convertible,
and holders:of the 3%% Debentures will not be able to declare an event of defaunlt under the

3Y4% Debentures. ' '

The initial conversion rate for the 3%2% Debentures is 16.3345 shares of the Company’s common stock
per $1,000 principal amount of 3%% Debentures (subject to adjustment in certain events). This is equivalent
to a conversion price of $61.22 per share of common stock. In addition, if certain corporate transactions that
constitute a change of control occur on or prior to February 20, 2013, the Company will increase the
conversion rate in certain circumstances, unless such transaction constitutes a public acquirer change of
control and the Company elects to modify the conversion rate into public acquirer common stock.
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~ On or after February 20, 2013, the Company may redeem for cash some or all of the 3%4% Debentures at
any time at a price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the 3'4% Debentures to be purchased, plus any
accrued and unpaid interest. Holders may require the Company to purchase for cash some or all of the
3%% Debentures on February 15, 2013, February 15, 2015 and February 15, 2020 or upon the occurrence of
a fundamental change, at 100% of the principal amount of the 3¥4% Debentures to be purchased, plus any
accrued and unpaid interest. : ‘

The indenture for the 3%% Debentures does not contain any financial covenants or any restrictions on
the payment of dividends, the incurrence of senior or secured debt or other indebtedness, or the issuance or
repurchase of securities by the Company. The indenture contains no covenants or other provisions to protect
holders of the 34% Debentures in the event of a highly leveraged transaction or fundamental change.

Province 7%2% Senior Subordinated Notes (“Province 7Y2% Notes”’)

In connection with the Company’s merger with Province Healthcare Company in 2005, approximately
$193.9 million of the $200.0 million outstanding principal amount of Province’s 7Y2%. senior subordinated
notes due 2013 was purchased and subsequently retired. Additionally, during the third quarter of 2010 and in
connection with. the Company’s proceeds from the issuance of its 6.625% Senior Notes, described in more
detail within this note, the Company repaid $6.0 million of the outstanding principal of the Province 7v2%
Notes. The remaining $0.1 million outstanding principal amount of the Province 7Y% Notes bears interest at
the rate of 7% payable semi-annually on Juné 1 and December 1. The Company currently has the right to
redeem all or a portion of the Province 7Y% Notes at the current redemption prices, plus accrued and unpaid
interest. The Province 7/2% Notes are unsecured and subordinated to the Company’s existing and future
senior indebtedness. The supplemental indenture contains no material covenants Or. restrictions,

Debt Extinguishrrient Costs

In connection with the Company’s issuance of its 6.625% Senior Notes, its partial repayments of its
Term B Loans and its Province 7%% Notes, the Company recorded $2.4 million of debt extinguishment costs
or $1.5 million net of income taxes for the year ended December 31, 2010. The debt extinguishment costs
include $1.2 million of previously capitalized loan costs and $1.2 million of loan costs related to the issuance
of the 6.625% Senior Notes that the Company expensed in accordance with accounting guidance related to
modifications or exchanges of debt instruments. ‘ : '

)

Unamortized Discounts on Convertible Debt

Effective January 1, 2009, the Company adopted the provisions of ASC 470-20, “Debt with Conversion
and Other Options”, (“ASC 470-20") which specifies that issuers of convertible debt instruments should -
separately account for the liability and equity components in a manner that will reflect the entity’s
nonconvertible debt borrowing rate on the instrument’s issuance date when interest cost is recognized. The
Company’s 3% Notes and its 3%4% Debentures are within the scope of ASC 470-20. Therefore; the -
Company recorded the debt components of its 312% Notes and its 3V4% Debentures at fair value as of the
date of issuance and began amortizing the'resulting discount as an increase to interest expense over the
expected life of the debt. ‘
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The principal balance, unamortized discount: and net carrying balance of the Company’s convemble debt
instruments as of December 31, 2010 and 2009 were as follows (m rrulhons) : :

2010

I 2009
314% Notes: o -

Principal balance . . .. ............ v, $575.0 - $575.0

Unamortized discount. . . ............ .. ... .. (65. 5) ) (82.0)

Net carrying balance. . ... ... ... e 85095 T $493.0
:3Va% Debentures: . : : . . C : :

Principal balance .. . ................. e $225.0 $225.0

Unamortized discount. . . .............. ... ... .. ..... (14.3) (20.4)

Net carrying balance. . . ........... e e SN $210.7 $204.6

The Company is amortizing the discounts for its 3%4% Notes and 3%4% Debentures over the expected life
of a similar liability that does not have an associated equity component, in accordance with ASC 470-20. The
Company is amortizing the discount for its 3%2% Notes through May 2014, which is the maturity date of
these notes. In addition, the Company is amortizing the discount for its 3%4% Debentures through :
February 2013, which is the first date that the holders of the 3Y4% Debentures can redeem their debentures.

For the years ended December 31 2010 2009 .and 2008, the contractual cash interest expense and non-
cash interest expense (discount amortlzatlon) for the Company’s convertible debt instruments were as follows.
(in millions): -

2000 2009 2008

312% Notes: ‘
~ Contractual cash interest €XPense . . . ... .. ..., $20.1 $20.1 - $20.1
- :Non-cash interest-expense (discount amortization). . . _16.5 154 -143
Total interest expense . ... ........... e e e $36.6 $35.5 - $34.4
3%% Debentures: . ) )
Contractual cash interest expense . . ... ....... .. $73  $173 $.7.3
~ Non-cash interest expense (discount amortization). . . = ~61 . 57 .54
Total interest expense . . . . .................. 13.4 w . $12.7

Considering both the contractual cash interest expense and the non-cash amortization of-the discounts for
the 3'2% Notes and 32% Debentures, the effective interest rates for the years ended December 31, 2010,
2009 and 2008 were 6.38%, 6.17% and 5. 99%, respectlvely, for the 34% Notes and 5.95%, 5. 79% and .
5.63%, respectlvely, for the 3%4% Debentures.

Interest Rate Swap

The Company has an interest rate swap agreement w1th C1t1bank N.A. (*“Citibank’) as counterparty that
matures on May 30, 2011. The interest rate swap agreement requires the Company to make quarterly fixed
rate payments to Citibank calculated on a notional amount as set forth in the table below at an annual fixed
rate of 5.585% while Citibank is obligated to make quarterly floating payments to the Company based on the
three-month LIBOR on the same referenced notional amount. Notwithstanding the terms of the interest rate
swap transaction, the Company is ultimately obligated for all amounts due and payable under its Credit
Agreement.
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The following table. provides information regarding the notional amounts in effect for.the indicated date
ranges for the Company’s interest rate swap agreement: ‘

Notional

Amount
Date Range (In millions)
November 30, 2007 to November 28, 2008 . .. . ... . e e $750.0
November 28, 2008. to November 30, 2009. ... ... i 600.0
November:30, 2009 to November 30, 2010 .. .. ...... .. A S . 450.0
November 30, 2010 to May 30, 2011 . ... ... .. P e 300.0

The Company entered into the interest rate Swap agreement to mitigate the floating interest rate risk on a
portion of its outstanding borrowings under its Credit Agreement. In accordance with ASC 815-10 the.
Company is required to recognize all derivative instruments as either assets or liabilities at fair value in its .
balance sheets. In accordance with ASC 815-10, the. Company designates its interest rate swap as a cash flow

hedge. For derivative instruments that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges, the effective portion of
the vgain or loss on the derivative is reported as a component of other comprehensive income (“OCI””) and

reclassified into earnings in the same peridd or periods during which the hedged transactions affect earnings.
Gains and losses on the derivative representing either hedge ineffectiveness or hedge compornents excluded
from the assessment of effectiveness are recognized in current earhings. The Company assésses the

eifect_ive_né_ss of its interest rate swap on a quarterly basis. In connection with the Compahyj"s"(juartcrly
assessments for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2008, the Compa’ny‘determj,n’ed ‘,th‘e'.' hedge to be,
partially ineffective because the notional amount of the interest rate swap in effect at 'cer:tair’l 'q'uarterl’y‘ ' ;
assessment points exceeded the Company’s outstanding variable rate borrowings under its Credit Agreement.
The Company recognized an incréase in interest expense of approximately $0.1 million and $0.6 million
related to the ineffective portion of the Company’s cash flow hedge during the years ended December 31,
2010 and-2008. The Company completed its quarterly assessments during the year ended December 31, 2009
and determined that its cash flow hedge was effective.

As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the fair value and line item caption of the Cornpaﬁy’s vintérbe'st rate
swap derivative instrument were as follows (in millions): : : ‘ '

Balance Sheet Location 2000 2000

Derivative desighated as a hedging: -,
instrument under ASC 815-10: L S .
Interest rate swap. . .. ... e . Interest rate swap $79. .. $ —.
' B Reserves for self-insurance S e
- claims and other liabilities s — $28.3
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The following table shows the effect of the Company’s interest rate swap derivative instrument qualifying
and designated as a hedging instrument in cash flow hedges for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and
2008 (in millions):

Amount of gain (loss)
recognized in Income
on Derivative:
(Ineffective Portion and
Amount Excluded from
Effectiveness Testing)

Location of gain (loss)
recognized in Income
on Derivative
(Ineffective Portion and
Amount Excluded from

Amount of gain (loss)
recognized in OCI
on Derivative
(Effective Portion)

2010 2009 2008 Effectiveness Testing) 2010 2009 2008
Derivative in i ‘
ASC 815-10 cash
flow hedging
relationships: : . ,
Interest rate swap -$20.4 . - $16.8 $(13.4)  Interest expense, net $(O 1) $— $(0. 6) .

Smce the. Company s interest rate swap is not traded on a market exchange, the fair value is determined
using a valuation model that involves a d1scounted cash flow analysis on the expected cash flows. This cash ’
flow analysm reflects the contractual terms of the interest rate swap agreement, including the period to '
maturity, and uses observable market-based inputs, including the three-month LIBOR forward interest rate
curve. The fair value of the Company’s interest rate swap agreement is détermined by netting the discounted
future fixed cash payments and the discounted eéxpected variable cash receipts. The variable cash receipts are
based on the expectation of future interest rates based on the observable market three-month LIBOR forward
interest rate curve and the notional amount being hedged. '

The observable market three-month LIBOR forward interest rates used are as f_o]ldws:

Three-month

LIBOR
] Forward
- Settiement Date Interest Rates
February 28, 2011 . . ... ... ... . .. e 0. 29438%
May 30,2011 . ... .. .. . e e e 035152

In addition, the Company incorporates credit valuation adjustments to appropriately reflect both its own
and Citibank’s non-performance or credit risk in the fair value measurements. The interest rate swap
agreement exposes the Company to credit risk in the event of non-performance by Citibank. However, the
Company does not anticipate non-performance by Citibank. The majority of the inputs used to value its
interest rate swap agreement, including the three-month LIBOR forward interest rate curve and market
perceptions of the Company’s credit risk used in the credit valuation adjustments, are observable inputs
available to a market participant. As a result, the Company has determined that the interest rate swap
valuation is classified in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy, in accordance with ASC 820-10, “Fair Value
Measurements and Disclosures.”

Note 8. Stockholders’ Equity
Preferred Stock

The Company’s Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation provides that up to 10,000,000 shares
of preferred stock may be issued, of which 90,000 shares have been designated as Series A Junior
Participating Preferred Stock, par value $0.01 per share (““Series A Preferred Stock’). The Board of Directors
has the authority to issue preferred stock in one or more series and to fix for each series the voting powers
(full, limited or none), and the designations, preferences and relative, participating, optional or other special
rights and qualifications, limitations or restrictions on the stock and the number of shares constituting any
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series and the designations of this series, without any further vote or action by the stockholders. Because the
terms of the preferred stock may be fixed by the Board of Directors without stockholder action, the preferred
stock could be issued .quickly with terms calculated to defeat a proposed takeover or to make the removal of
the Company’s management ‘more difficult.
Preferred Stock Purchase Rights
Pursuant to the Company’s stockholders’ rights plan, which was amended and restated on February 25,

2009, each outstanding share of common stock is accompanied by one preferred stock purchase right. Each -
right entitles the registered holder to purchase froii the Company one one-thousandth of a share of Series A
Preferred Stock of the Company at a price of $125 per one one-thousandth of a share, subject to adjustment,

Each share of Series A Preferred Stock will be entitled, when, as and if declared, to a preferential
quarterly dividend payment in an amount equal to the greater of $10 or 1,000 times the aggregate of all
dividends declared per share of common stock. In the event of liquidation, dissolution or winding up, the
holders of Series A Preferred Stock will be entitled to a minimum preferential liquidation payment equal to
$1,000 per share, plus an amount equal to accrued and unpaid dividends and distributions on the stock,
whether or not declared, to the date of such payment, but will be entitled to an aggregate payment of
1,000 times the payment made per share of common stock. The rights are not exercisable until the rights
distribution date as defined in the stockholders’ rights plan. The rights will expire on February 25, 2019,
unless the éxpiration date is extended or unless the rights are earlier redeemed or exchanged.

The rights are designed to deter coercive takeover tactics and to prevent an-acquirer from gaining control
of the Company without offering a fair price to all of our stockholders. The Rights will not prevent a
takeover, but are designed to encourage anyone seeking to acquire the’ Company to negotiate with its Board of
Directors prior to attempting a takeover. ) : '

Common Stock

Holders of the Company’s common stock are entitled to one vote for each share held of record on all
matters on which stockholders may vote. There are no preemptive, conversion, redemption or sinking fund
provisions applicable to shares of the Company’s common stock. In the event of liquidation, dissolution or
winding up, holders of the Company’s common stock are entitled to share. ratably in the assets available for
distribution, subject to any prior rights of any holders of preferred stock then outstanding. Delaware law
prohibits the Company from paying any dividends unless it has capital surplus or net profits available for this
purpose. In addition, the Credit Agreement imposes restrictions on the Company’s ability to pay dividends.

Common Stock in Treasury and Repurchases of Common Stock

In November 2007, the Company’s Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to $150.0 million
of outstanding shares of the Company’s common stock either in the open ‘market or through privately
negotiated tfansactions, subject to market conditions, regulatory constraints and other factors (the “2007
Repurchase Plan”). The 2007 Repurchase Plan expired in November 2008.

In connection with the 2007 Repurchase Plan, the Company repurchased z-ipproximately 3.8 million shares
for an aggregate purchase price, including commissions, of approximately $103.7 million at an average
purchase price of $26.57 per share for the year ended December 31, 2008. The Company has designated the
shares repurchased under the 2007 Repurchase Plan as treasury stock. '

In August 2009, the Company’s Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to an additional
$100.0 million of outstanding shares of the Company’s common stock either in the open market or through
privately negotiated transactions, subject to market conditions, regulatory constraints and other factors (the
“2009 Repurchase Plan”). The 2009 Repurchase Plan expired on February 5, 2011.
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In connection with the 2009 Repurchase Plan, the Company repurchased approximately 3.0 million shares
for an aggregate purchase price, including commissions, of ‘approximately $100.0 million at an average
purchase price of $33.21 per share for the year ended December 31, 2010. There were no repurchases made in
accordance with the 2009 Repurchase Plan during the year ended December 31, 2009. The Company has
designated the shares repurchased under the 2009 Repurchase Plan as treasury stock.

In September 2010, the Company’s Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to an additional
$150.0 million of outstanding shares of the Company’s common stock either in open market purchases,
privately negotiated transactions, accelerated share repurchase programs or other transactions (the “2010
Repurchase Plan”). The 2010 Repurchase Plan expires in March 2012. The Company is not obligated to
repurchase any specific number of shares under the 2010 Repurchase Plan. In connection with the 2010
Repurchase Plan, the Company entered into a trading plan in accordance with the United States Securities and
Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) Rule 10b5-1 to facilitate repurchases of its common stock (the “2010 .
10b5-1 Trading Plan”). The 2010 10b5-1 Trading Plan became effective on September 22, 2010 and expued
on November 2, 2010.

In connection with the 2010 Repurchase Plan, the Company repurchased approximately 1.3 million shares
for an aggregate purchase price, including commissions, of approximately $46.4 million at an average
purchase price of $34.90 per share for the year ended December 31, 2010, 0.5 million shares of which was
purchased in accordance with the 2010 10b5-1 Trading Plan. The Company has des1gnated the shares
repurchased under the 2010 Repurchase Plan as treasury stock.

Shares authorized for repurchase, amounts repurchased through December 31, 2010 and remainihg
amounts available for repurchase as of December 31, 2010 in accordance with the 2010 Repurchase Plan and
2009 Repurchase Plan are as follows:

2010 Repurchase Plan 2009 Repurchase Plan

Weighted ' ' " - Weighted
Total Number Average Total Number Average
of Shares Price Paid of Shares Price Paid
Amount Repurchased  per Share Amount Repurchased per Share
(In millions)  (In millions) (In millions)  (In millions)
Amount authorized to o ’ o
repurchase. ... ......... "$150.0 ‘N/A N/A $1000 ° N/A N/A .
Less: Amount repurchased / ‘ ' ‘ ‘
thr(_)ugh December 31, 2010. 46.4 1.3 $34.90 100.0 3.0 $33.21
Remaining amount authorized :
to repurchase as of o
December 31, 2010. ... ... $103.6 N/A N/A $ — N/A . N/A

Additionally, the Company redeems shares from employees for minimum statutory tax withholding
purposes upon vesting of certain stock awards granted pursuant to the Company’s Amended and Restated
1998 Long-Term Incentive Plan (“LTIP”’) and Amended and Restated Management Stock Purchase Plan
(“MSPP”). The Company redeemed approximately 0.2 million, 0.2 million and 0.1 million shares of certain
vested LTIP and MSPP shares during the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 for an aggregate
price of approximately $5.7 million, $3.1 nulhon and $2.4 million, respectively. The Company has designated
these shares as treasury stock.
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Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Comprehensive income (Ioss) consists of two components: net income and other comprehensive income
(loss). Other comprehensive income (loss) refers to revenues, expenses, gains and losses that in accordance
with ASC 220-10 “Comprehensive Income,” are recorded as an element of stockholders’ equity but are
excluded from net income. a ‘ :

Changes in the fair value of the Company’s interest rate swap resulted in comprehensive gains (losses) of
$20.5 million, or $13.4 million net of income tax provision for the year ended December 31, 2010;
$16.8 million, or $10.9 million net of income tax provision for the year ended December 31, 2009; and
$(13.4) million, or $(8.5) million net of income tax benefits for the year ended December 31, 2008. _The.

Company’s interest rate swap agreement is further described in Note 7.
ESOP and Defined Contribution Plan

In 1999, the Company established an employee stock ownership plan (“ESOP”) as a defined contribution
retirement plan that covered substantially all of the Company’s employees. Upon establishment, the ESOP
purchased from the Company approximately 2.8 million shares of the Company’s common stock at its then -
fair market value of $11.50 per share. The purchase of the shares was primarily financed by the ESOP issuing
a promissory note to the Company, which the ESOP repaid in annual installments over the term of the loan.
The ESOP funded its repayments to the Company through the Company’s contributions to the ESOP. The
term of the loan concluded on December 31, 2008.

Prior to December 31, 2008, shares of the Company’s common stock acquired by the ESOP were held in
a suspense account and were allocated ratably to participant accounts as the loan was repaid. Reductions to
unearned ESOP compensation were made throughout the term of the loan as shares were committed to be
released to participant accounts at the ESOP shares’ original cost. Shares were deemed to be committed to be
released ratably during each period as the employees performed services. As shares were committed to be
released, the shares became outstanding for earnings per share calculations. As of December 31, 2008, all of
the approximately 2.8 million shares were released and accordingly, considered outstanding for purposes of
calcu_lating earnings per share. ' ' ‘ -

Prior to January 1, 2009, the Company’s defined contribution plan expense had two components: ESOP
common stock and cash contributions. Shares of the Company’s common stock were allocated ratably to
employee accounts at an approximate rate of 0.3 million shares per year. The defined contribution plan
expense amount for the ESOP common stock component was determined using the average market price of
the Company’s common stock released to participants in the defined contribution plan. The cash component
was determined by the difference between the Company’s required contributions under the plan and the fair
value of the Company’s common stock allocated and released to the plan. Duﬁng the year ended ‘
December 31, 2008, the Company utilized forfeitures in the plan to reduce its cash contributions for the year.
Effective January 1, 2009, the Company’s defined contribution plan was funded entirely with cash
contributions from the Company. :

The Company’s- defined contribution plan expense was $11.7 million, $15.9 million and $8.7 million for
the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively. The defined contribution plan expense tax
deduction attributable to the ESOP released shares was fixed at $3.2 million per year during the year ended
December 31, 2008. '

Note 9. Stock-Based Compensation

Overview

The Company issues stock-based awards, including stock options and other stock-based awards
(nonvested stock, restricted stock, restricted stock units, performance shares and deferred stock units) to
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certain officers, employees and non-employee directors in accordance with the Company’s various stockholder-
approved stock-based compensation plans. The Company accounts for its stock-based awards in accordance
with the provisions of ASC 718-10 and accordingly recognizes compensation expense over each of the stock-
based award’s requisite service period based on the estimated grant date fair value.

Effective June 8, 2010, upon stockholders’ approval, the Company amended its LTIP; Amended and _
Restated Outside Directors Stock and Incentive Compensation Plan (“ODSICP”) and MSPP and increased the
shares available for grant under each plan by an additional approximate 2.4 million, 0.1 million and
0.1 million shares, respeetiVely Of the 2.4 million increase in shares available for grant in accordance with
the LTIP, 1.4 million shares are available for issuance as stock options and 1.0 mllhon shares are available for
issuance as nonvested stock, restricted stock and performance shares.

Description of Stock-Based Compensation Plans
1998 Long-Term Incentive Plan

As of December 31, 2010, the Company is authorized to issue to its officers and employees
approximately 18.1 million shares of the Company’s commen stock in the form of stock options, nonvested"
stock, restricted stock and performance shares in accordance with the LTIP. -

The Company granted stock options to purchase 1,279,688, 926,215 and 1,134,125 shares of the
Company’s common stock to certain officers and employegs in accordance with the LTIP during the years
ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively. Options to purchase shares granted to the Company’s
officers and employees in accordance with the LTIP were granted with an exercise price equal to the fair
market value of the Company’s common stock on the day prior to the grant date. The options granted during
the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 become ratably exercisable beginning one year from the
date of grant to three years after-the date of grant and expire ten years from the date of grant.

The Company granted 427,250, 771,425 and 478,872 shares of nonvested stock awards to certain officers
and employees in accordance with the LTIP during the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008,
respectively. The nonvested stock awards granted during the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008
have cliff-vesting periods from the grant date of three years and ratable vesting periods beginning one year
from the date of grant to three years after the date of grant.

Of the nonvested stock awards granted during the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008,
317,000, 307,500 and 247,500 were performance-based. In addition to requiring continuing service of an
employee, the vesting.of these nonvested stock awards is contingent upon the satisfaction of certain financial
goals, spe01ﬁcally related to the achievement of targeted annual revenues and earnings goals within a three-
year period. In accordance with the LTIP, if these goals are achieved, the nonvested stock awards will cliff-
vest three years after the grant date. The performance criteria for performance-based nonvested stock awards
granted during the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 have been certified as met by the Compensation
Committee of the Company’s Board of Directors, however, these awards are still subject to continuing service
requirements and the three year cliff-vesting provisions. For purposes of estimating compensation expense for
the performance-based nonvested stock awards granted during the year ended December 31, 2010, the
Company has assumed that the performance goals will be achieved. If the performance goals are not met for
the performance-based awards granted during the year ended December 31, 2010, no compensation expense
will be recognized, and any previously recognized compensation expense will be reversed.

Notwithstanding the specific grant vesting requirements, nonvested stock awards and performance-based
awards granted under the LTIP become fully vested upon the death or disability of the participant.
Additionally, in the event of termination without cause of a participant, the nonvested stock awards and
performance-based awards otherwise subject to cliff-vesting become vested in a percentage equal to the
number of full months of continuous employment following the date of grant through the date of termination
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divided by the total number. of months in the vesting period, and in the case of performance-based awards,
only in the event that the performance goals are attained. »

Outside Directors Stock and Incentive Compensation Plan

As of December 31, 2010, the Company is authorized to issue to its non-employee directors
approximately 0.4 million shares of the Company’s common stock in the form of stock options, deferred stock
units and restricted stock units in accordance with the ODSICP.

The ODSICP provides the Company’s non-employee directors an opportunity to receive, in lieu of any
portion of their annual retainer (in multiples of 25%), a deferred stock unit award. A deferred stock unit
represents the right to receive a specified number of shares of the Company’s common stock. The shares are
paid, subject to the election of the non-employee director, either two years following the date of the award or
at the end of the director’s service on the Board of Directors, The number of shares of the Company’s
common stock to be paid as a deferred stock unit award is equal to the value of the cash retainer that the non-
employee director has elected to forego, divided by the fair market value of the Company’s common stock on
the date of the award.

The Company granted 27,475, 34,762 and 28,000 restricted stock units to its ndn-employ'ee directors in
accordance with the ODSICP during the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively. All of
the restricted stock units granted during the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 are fully vested
and are no longer subject to forfeiture. The non-employee director’s receipt of shares of the Company’s -
common stock pursuant to the restricted stock unit award is deferred until the first business day following the
earliest to occur of (i) the third,anniversary of the date of grant, or (ii) the date the non-employee director
ceases to be a member of the Company’s Board of Directors.

MSPP

As of December 31, 2010, the Company is authorized to issue to its officers and employees
approximately 0.4 million shares of the Company’s common stock in the form of restricted stock in
accordance with the MSPP.

The MSPP provides the Company’s officers and employees an opportunity to purchase shares of the
Company’s common stock at a 25% discount through payroll deductions over six-month intervals. The
Company granted 52,048, 57,748 and 39,716 shares of restricted stock to certain of its officers and employees
in accordance with the MSPP during the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively. The
restricted stock awards granted during the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 cliff-vest three
years from the grant date. ' ‘

Stock Options

Valuation

The Company estimated the fair value of stock options granted using the Hull-White IT (“HW-1I"") lattice
option valuation model and a single option award approach. The Company uses the HW-II because it
considers characteristics of fair value option pricing, such as an option’s contractual term and the probability
of exercise before the end of the contractual term. In addition, the complications surrounding the expected
term of an option are material, as indicated in ASC 718-10. Given the Company’s relatively large pool of
unexercised options, the Company believes a lattice model that specifically addresses this fact and models a
full term of exercises is the most appropriate and reliable means of valuing its stock options. The Company is
amortizing the fair value on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period of the awards, which is the.
vesting period of three years. The stock options vest 33.3% on each grant anniversary date over three years of
continued employment. ' .
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Note 9. Stock-Based Compensation ~ (continued)

The following table shows the weighted average assumptions the Company used to develop the fair value
estimates under its HW-II option valuation model and the resulting estimates:of weighted-average fair value
per share of stock options granted during the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008:

2010 2009 .. 2008

-, Expected volat111ty ...... w0 399% . 403% . - ..319%
Risk free interest rate (range). ..  0.06% - 3.69% 0.05% —3.58% 0.09% — 3.89%
_Expected dividends. . . ... .. .. = — —
* Avérage expected term (years) 54 54 53
Fair value. per share of stock B , . ; -
“options granted . . ... ... ... $11.22 880 $8.14

Population Stratification

" In accordance ‘with ASC 718-10, a company should aggregate individual awards into relatively
- homogeneous groups with respect to exercise and post-vesting employment behiaviors for the purpose of
refining the expected term assumption, regardless of the valuation technique used to estimate the fair value. In
addition, ASC 718-10 indicates that a company may generally make a reasonable fair value estimate with as
few as one.or two groupings. The Company has determined that a single employee populatlon group is
approprlate based on an analysis of the Company’s h1stonca1 exercise patterns.

’ Expected Volatility

Volatlhty is a measure of the tendency of investment returns to vary around a long -term average rate.
Historical volatility is an appropnate starting point for setting this assumption in accordance ‘with ,
ASC 718-10. According to ASC 718-10, companies should also consider how future experience may differ
from the past. This may require using other factors to adjust historical volatility, such as implied volatility,
peer-group volatility and the range and mean-reversion of volatility estimates over various historical periods.
ASC 718-10 acknowledges that there is likely to be a range of reasonable estimates for volatility. In addition,
ASC 718-10 requires that if a best estimate cannot be made, management should use the mid-point in the
range of reasonable estimates for volatility. The Company estimates the volatility of ‘its common stock at the
date of grant based on both historical volatility and implied volatility from traded options of its. common
stock, consistent with ASC 718-10.

stk F ree Interest Rate

Lattlce models require risk- free 1nterest rates for all potentlal times of exercise obtained by using a grant-
date yield -curve. A lattice model would, therefore, require the yield curve for the entire time penod durmg
which employees might exercise their options. The Company bases the risk-free rate on the implied yield in
effect at the time of option grant on United States Treasury zero-coupon issues with equivalent remaining
terms.

Expected Dividends

The Company has never paid any cash dividends on its common stock and does not anticipate paying
any cash d1v1dends in the foreseeable future. Accordmgly, the Company uses an expected d1v1dend yield of
Zero. ' ' :

Pre- Vevszing F orfeitures

Pre-vesting forfeitures do not affect the fair value calculation, but they affect the expense calculation."
ASC 718-10 requires the Company -to estimate pre-vesting forfeitures at the time of grant.and revise those :
estimates’in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates. The Company uses historical
data to estimate pre-vesting forfeitures and record share-based compensation expense only for those awards
that are expected to vest.
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Note 9. Stock-Based Compensation — (continued)

The Company applies a dynamic forfeiture rate methodology ‘over the vesting period of the award. The
dynamic forfeiture rate methodology incorporates the lapse of time into the resulting expense calculation. and
results in a forfeiture rate that diminishes as the granted awards approach its vest date. Accordingly, the
dynamic forfeiture rate methodology results in a more consistent stock-based compensation expense
calculation over the vesting period of the award. :

Post-Vesting Cancellations

Post-vesting cancellations include vested options that are cancelled, exercised or expire unexercised.,
Lattice models treat post-vesting cancellations and voluntary early exercise behavior as two separate
assumptions. The Company uses historical data to estimate post-vesting cancellations.

Expected Term

ASC 718-10 calls for an extinguishment calculation, dependent upon how long a granted option remains
outstanding before it is fully extinguished. While extinguishment may result from exercise; it'can also result
from post-vesting cancellation or expiration at the contractual term. Expected term is an output in lattice
models so the Company does not have to determine this amount.

. Stock Option Aciivity
- 'A summary of stock option activity during the year ended December 31,2010 is as follows:

Weighted
Weighted Weighted : ' Average
. ’ Average Average ) Aggregate. Remaining
Stock Options - - ‘N%ll!ll:::s()f E;?i‘gse . \I;az]‘ilre, Fag:o{?;lue . I\l;;lr::é?:)c ’COI’IIE::rflmal
' " (In millions) (In millions) (I years)
Outstanding at December 31, 2009 . . . . 4,223,676 . $30.47 . $10.70 $45.2 $18.0 . 657
Exercisable at December 31,2009 .. .. 2,535,946 ° $33.99 . $12.34 -~ $31.3 $ 49 5.21
Unvested at December 31, 2009....... 1,687,730 $25.19 $ 824 $13.9 $13.1 8.62
Granted . . . ... P -.-1,279,688 . $31.59 . $11.22 @ $144 = N/A N/A -
Forfeited (pre-vest cancellation) ." . .5 .. (184,754) $29.81 $10.35 - $(1.9) - N/A N/A
Exercised . ................... . (737,923) $27.67 $ 9.02 $©6.7) $ 54 N/A
Expired (post-vest cancellation) . . . . . . (110,199) $37.72 $13.46 $(1.5) N/A N/A
Vested . ... .. e - 768,904  $26.92  $ 843  $ 65 N/A N/A
Outstanding at December 31, 2010. . .. 4,470,488  $31.10 $11.08 ME $28.4 6.48
Exercisable at December 31, 2010 . . . . 2,456,728  $33.49 $12.05 $29.6 $11.2 4.73
Unvested at December 31, 2010. . . . .. 2,013,760 $28.20 $ 9.89 $19.9 $17.2 8.62

(a) The aggregate intrinsic value represents the difference between the underlying stock’s market price and
the stock option’s exercise price.

The total intrinsic value of stock options exercised during the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and
2008 was $5.4 million, $8.1 million, and $3.9 million, respectively. The Company received $20.4 million,
$10.8 million, and $3.6 million in cash from stock option exercises for the years ended December 31, 2010,
2009 and 2008, respectively. The actual tax benefit realized for the tax deductions from stock option exercises
totaled $0.6 million, $1.0 million and $1.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008,
respectively.
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Note 9. Stock-Based Compensation — (continued)

As of December 31, 2010, there was $11.7 million of total estimated unrecognized compensation cost
related to stock option compensation arrangements. Total estimated unrecognized compensation cost will be
adjusted for future changes in estlmated forfeitures. The Company expects to recognize that cost over a
weighted average period of 1.4 years.

Other Stock-Based Awards

The fair value of other stock-based awards is determined based on the closing price of the Company’s
common stock on the day prior to the grant date. Stock-based compensation expense for the Company’s other
stock-based awards is recorded equally over the vesting periods of such awards generally ranging from six
months to three years.

A summary of other stock-based award activity in accordance with the LTIP, ODSICP and MSPP during
the year ended December 31, 2010 is as follows:

Weighted - ' Aggregate

. N : Numberof = Average Total . Intrinsic

Other Stock-Based Awards Shares Fair Value Fair Value Value
(In millions) (In millions)

Outstanding at December 31,2009 . .............. 1,753,271 $25.87 $454 57.0
Granted. . . ........ .. .. .. 506,773 $29.41 14.9 N/A
Vested and exercised. . .. ..................... (561,629) $33.34 (18.7) (18.4)
Forfeited (pre-vest cancellation) . ........... e (91,758)  $23.11 2.1) N/A
Outstanding at December 31,2010 . .-... ... ... e 1,606,657 $24.57 $39.5 $ 59.0
Unvested at December 31,2010 . . ............... 1,516,420  $24.20 $ 36.7 $ 55.7

The Company received, $1.0 million, $1.0 million, and $0.8 million for the issuance of restricted stock in
accordance with the MSPP during the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008, respectively.

As of December 31, 2010, there was $14.9 million of total estimated unrecognized compensation cost
related to other stock-based awards granted in accordance with the LTIP, ODSICP and MSPP. Total estimated
unrecognized compensation cost will be adjusted for future changes in estimated forfeitures. The Company
expects to recognize that cost over a weighted average period of 1.7 years.
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Note 9. Stock-Based Compensation — (continued)
Summatj’ of Stoi;k-Based Compensation

The following table summarizes the activity in accordance with all 6f the Company’s stock-based
compensation plans for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008:

) R Deferred
. Stock
Stock Options Other Stock-Based Awards Units
Outstanding Outstanding Outstanding
Weighted . : Weighted
Shares Average Average
Available. Number of - Exercise - Number of = Grant Date - Number of
- for Grant Shares Price Shares Price Shares
December 31,2007 .......... - 2,946,347 4,128,563 $30.65 . 1,341,998 $37.17 9,819
Increase in shares available for v , _ _ o
grant. ................... 2,175,000 — S — - — L
Stock option grants. J (1,134,125) 1,134,125 26.10 — —_ -—
Other stock-based awards grants. . .  (546,411) — — 546411 2496 _
Deferred stock unit grants . . . . . . . (1,746) —_ — — — 1,746
Stock option exercises ......... . —  (230,210) 15.77 — — —
Other stock-based awards exercises. — — — (324,134) 4237
' Deferred stock units vested . . . . . . —_ _ —_ —_ —_ (1,983)
Stock option cancellations . . . . . .. 234,918 (234,918) 34.20 — — —
Other stock-based awards
cancellations .............. 102,454 — — (102,454) 33.72 —
December 31,2008 . ........ .. 3,776,437 4,797,560  30.13 - 1,461,821 31.68 9,582
Stock option grants. . .. ...... .. (926,215) 926,215 2224 — — —
Other stock-based awards grants. . . (863,935) — — . 863,935 20.71 —
Deferred stock unit grants . .. . . . . (1,464) e = — 1,464
Stock option exercises .. ....... — (746,822) .. 14.30 — — =
Other stock-based awards exercises. — — — (447,380) 34.44 —
Stock option cancellations.. . . . . . . 703,277  (753,277) 34.23 — — —
Other stock-based awards _ o . ,
" cancellations . ............. 125,105 — — (125,105) 27.56 —
December 31,2009 ........... 2,813,205 4,223,676 30.47 1,753,271 25.87 11,046
Increase in shares available for _ '
grant. . .................. 2,455,000 = — — — —
Stock option grants. . . . ........ (1,279,688) 1,279,688 31.59 — — -—
Other stock-based awards grants. . . 506,773y —_ —_ 506,773 29.41 -—
Deferred stock unit grants . . . . ... (700) : C—_— — — — 700
Stock option exercises .. . ....... — . (737,923) 27.67 — — —
Other stock-based awards exercises. — — — (561,629) . 33.34 —
Stock option cancellations . . . . . .. 294,953  (294,953) 32.77 —_ — —
Other stock-based awards _ : ,
cancellations . ............. 91,758 — — (91,758) 23.11 —
December 31,2010 ........... 3,867,7554,470,488 $31.10 1,606,657 $24.57 11,746

(a) Of the 3,867,755 shares available for grant as of December 31, 2010, 2,684,151 are available for. grant as
stock options in accordance with the LTIP; 1,025,433 are available for grant as other stock-based awards
in accordance with the LTIP; 68,873 are available for grant in accordance with the ODSICP; and 89,298
are available for grant in accordance with the MSPP.
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Note 9. Stock-Based Compensation — (continued)

The following table summarizes the Company’s total stock-based compensation expense as well as the
total recognized tax benefits related thereto for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 (1n
millions): . . . .

2010 2000 2008

Other stock-based awards ......................... $13.9 $15.5 $16.1
Stock options. . . ... ............. e e 8.5 6.8 _ 13
Total stock-based compensation EXPENSE . .. ............ - $224 $22.3 $23.4
Tax benefits on stock-based :c0mpeusation expense . ... ... . $90 $92 $93

The Compan}}' did not capitalize any stock-based compensation cost during the years ended December 31,
2010, 2009 or 2008. As of December 31, 2010, there was $26.6 million of total estimated unrecogmzed
compensation cost related to all of the Company’s stock compensatlon arrangements. Total estimated
unrecognized compensation cost may be adjusted for future changes in estimated forfeltures The Company
expects to recognize that cost over a welghted—average period of 1.6 years.

Note 10. Commitments and Contmgencles

Legal Proceedings and General Liability Claims

The Company-is, from time to time, subject to claims and. suits arising in the ord1nary course e of bus1ness
including claims for damages for personal injuries, medical’ malpractice, breach of contracts, wrongful
restriction of or interference with physicians’ staff privileges and employment related claims. In certain of
these actions, plaintiffs request payment for damages, including punitive damages that may not be covered by
insurance. The Company is currently not a party to any pending or threatened proceeding, which; in
management’s opinion, would have a material adverse effect on' the Company’s business, financial cond1t10n or
results of operations.

In May 2009, the Company’s hospital in Andalusia, Alabama (Andalusia Regional Hospit'al)' produced
documents responsive to a request received from the U.S. Attorney’s Office for the Western District of =
New York regarding an investigation they are conducting with respect to the billing of kyphoplasty
procedures. Kyphoplasty is a surgical spine procedure that returns a compromised vertebrae (either from -
trauma or osteoporotic disease process) to its previous height, reducing or eliminating severe pain. It has been .
reported that other unaffiliated hospitals and hospital operators in multiple states have received similar requests
for information. The Company believes that this investigation i$ related to the May 22, 2008 qui tam
settlement between the same U.S. Attorney’s Office and the manufacturer and d1stnbutor of the product used
in pelformmg the kyphoplasty procedure.

Based on a review of the number of the kyphoplasty procedures performed at all of the Company’s other
hospitals, as part of its effort to cooperate with the U.S. Attorney’s Office, by letter dated January 20, 2010 the
Company’s management identified to the U.S. Attorney’s Office four additional facilities at which the number
of inpatient kyphoplasty procedures approximated those performed at Andalusia Regional Hospital. The
Company’s management. has completed its review of the relevant med1cal records and is continuing to
cooperate with the government’s 1nvest1gat10n :
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Note 10. Commitments and Contingencies — (continued)

Physician Commitments

The Company has committed to provide certain financial assistance pursuant to recruiting agreements
with various physicians practicing in the communities it serves. In consideration for a physician’s relocating to
one of its communities and agreeing to engage in private practice for the benefit of the respective community,
the Company may advance certain amounts of money to a physician, normally over a period of one year, to
assist in establishing the physician’s. practice. The Company.has committed to. advance a maximum amount of
approximately: $30.0 million at December 31, 2010. The actual amount of such commitments to be
subsequently-advanced to physjci_anS' is estimated at $18.0' million and often depends.upon the. financial results
of a physician’s private practice during the guarantee period. Generally, amounts advanced under the recruiting
agreements may be forgiven pro rata over a period of 36 to 48 months contingent upon the physician
continuing to practice in the respective community. Pursuant to the Company’s standard physician recruiting
agreement, any breach or non-fulfillment by a physician under the physician recruiting agreement gives the
Company the right to recover any payments made to the physician under the agreement.

Capital Expenditure Commitments

The Company is reconfiguring some of its facilities to accomimodate patient services more effectively,
restructuring existing surgical capacity in some of its hospitals to permit additional patient volume: and a
greater. variety of services, and implementing various information system initiatives in its efforts to comply.
with the Health Information Technology for Economic and-Clinical Health Act. The Company has incurred
approximately $39.4 million in uncompleted projects as of December 31, 2010, which is included as
construction in progress in the Company’s accompanying consolidated balance sheet. At December 31, 2010,
the Comipany had ‘uncompleted projects with: an-éstimated cost to complete and equip of approximately -
$97.2 million. ‘As further discussed in Note 2, the Company has committed to invest an'additional
$60.0 million in capital expenditures and improvements in HighPoint over the next 10 years and
approximately $60.0 million to build and equip a new hospital to replace the current hospital facility at Clark
over the next 15 months. The. Company is subject to annual capital expenditure commitments in connection
with several-of its facilities. e

Development Agreement with the City of Ennis

The Company entered into a development agreement with the City of Ennis, Texas (the “Ennis '
Development Agreement”) during 2005 to construct a new hospital (“Ennis New”) to replace the existing
Ennis Regional Medical Center (“Ennis Old”). The Company leased Ennis Old from the City of Ennis. Under
the Ennis Development Agreement, the Company constructed and equipped Ennis New for approximately
$35.0 million, all of which was paid for by the Company. The construction was completed during July 2007
and the Company moved its operations from Ennis Old to Ennis New. Pursuant to the terms of the Ennis’
Development Agreement, the City of Ennis paid $14.7 million of the construction cost to the Company during
August 2007, which the Company recorded as a deferred income liability and has included in reserves for
self-insurance claims and other liabilities in the Company’s accompanying consolidated balance sheets. In
addition, the Company, as lessee, entered into a 40-year lease agreement (the “Ennis Lease Agreément”) with
the City of Ennis, the lessor. The Company is amortizing the $14.7 million deferred income liability straight-
line over the term of the Ennis Lease Agreement. As of December 31, 2010, the unamortized deferred income
liability was $13.2 million.
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Note 10. Commitments and Contingencies — (continued)
Acquisitions

The Company has historically acquired businesses with prior operating histories. Acquired companies
may have unknown or contingerit liabilities, including liabilities for failure to comply with healthcare laws and
regulations, medical and general professional liabilities, workers compensation liabilities, ‘previous tax -
liabilities and unacceptable business practices. Although the Company institutes policies designed to conform
practices to its standards following completion of acquisitions, there can be no assurance that the Company-
will not become liable for past activities that may later be asserted to be improper by private plaintiffs or
government agencies. Although the Company generally seeks to obtain indemnification from prospective
sellers covering such matters, there can be no assurance that any such matter will be covered by
indemnification, or if covered, that such indemmnification will be adequate to cover potential losses and fines.

Leases

The Company leases real estate properties, buildings, vehicles and equipment under cancelable and non-
cancelable leases. The leases expire'at various times and have various renewal options. Certain leases that
meet the lease capitalization criteria in accordance with ASC 840-10, “Leases”, have been recorded as an
asset and liability at the lower of the net present value of the minimum lease payments at the inception of the
lease or the fair value of the asset at the inception date. Intérest rates used in computing the net present value
of the lease payments are based on the Company’s incremental borrowing rate at the inception of the lease.
Rental expense of operating leases for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 was $27.0 million
$26.4 million and $25.6 million, respectively: - : : - :

?

Future minimum lease payments at December 31, 2010, for.those leases having an initial or remainiﬁg
non-cancelable lease term in excess of one year are as follows for the years indicated (in millions):

Capital )
Operating Lease )
) - . ) Leases Obligations Total
2011 .o, $17.5 $ 29 $20.4
2012 .. 13.0 2.6 15.6
2013 ... e e 95 Co21 11.6
2014 . ... [ 5.9 1.8 7.7
2015...'...".......‘.,;.- ............ PR S 440 - 1.8 - 59
Thereafter . .....................ooiienn... 8.6 104 © 190
- , ' " ' $58.6 $21.6 $80.2
Less: interest poftion e (13.7)
Long-term obligations under capital leases . ........... - 4 ‘ . $ 79
Tax Matters

See Note 5 for a discussion of the Company’s contingent tax matters.
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Note 11. Earnings (Loss) Per Share.

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share for the years
ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and.2008 (in millions, except per share amounts);. . Lo

2010 2000 2008

Numerator for basic and diluted earnings per share
-attributable to LifePoint Hospitals, Inc: ‘
Income from continuing operations . .. .............. $158.7 $141.7 $128.9
Less: Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests . . . G (2.5) 22
Income from continuing operations attributable t6 LifePoint S o
Hospitals, Inc. stockholders. . ........... e 155.6 139.2 1267 *
Loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes . - ©1n 6D (2317): :.
Net income attributable to LifePoint Hospitals, Inc . . ...... $155.5 $134.1 . $103.0
Denominator: V e 5
Weighted average shares outstanding — basic. . ......... 52.2 52.7 52.5
Effect of dilutive securities: stock options and other : o
stock-based awards .......... e . 1.3 11 100
Weighted average shares outstanding — diluted.. e . 535 538 535

Basic earnings (loss) per share attributable to LifePoint
Hospitals, Inc. stockholders:

Continuing operations . .............. B $298 $ 264 $ 241

Discontinued operations. . . . . ... e e S — 0.10) (0:45)
Netincome................................ $ 298 $ 2.54 $ 1.96
Diluted earnings (loss) per share:
Continuing operations . . . . . . B $ 291 $ 2.59 $237
Discontinued operations. . .. ..................... — (0.10) 0.44)
Net income. . . . . T e $291  $249  $ 193

The Company’s 3%2% Notes and 3%% Debentures are included in the calculation of diluted earnings per
share whether or not the contingent requirements have been met for conversion using the treasury stock
method if the conversion price of $51.79. and $61.22, respectively, is less than the average ‘market price of the
Company’s common stock for the period, Upon conversion, the par value is settled in cash, and only the
conversion premium is settled in shares of the Company’s common stock. The impact of the 32% Notes and
3V4% Debentures have been excluded because the effects would have been anti-dilutive for the years ended
December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008.

F-49



LIFEPOINT HOSPITALS, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2010

Note 12. Unaudited Quarterly Financial Information

The quarterly interim financial information shown below has been prepared by the Company’s
management and is unaudited. It should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial -
statements appearing herein (in millions, except per share amounts).

2010
" First " Second - . Third Fourth
Revenues. e A $786.2 - '$790.6 $832.3' " $853.3
Income from contmumg operations . . . ........... ... $442  $ 382 $392  $371
(Loss) income from discontinued operatlons net of mcome _ N o :
1. 04 01 .03 (0.1)
Netincome ................ e 43.8 383 - 395 370
Less: Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests - 09 07 07 (0.8)
Net inconie attributable to LifePoint Hospitals, Inc . . . . . o $429 $376 - $388°  °$362
Basic earnings (loss) per share attributable to LifePoint :
. Hospitals, Inc. stockholders: , I L -
: Continuing operations . ................... ... $082 35071 $074 $ 072
Discontinued operations e e e _(0.01) — — —
" Net income. . . . . e el e ... $0381 $071 $074 $ 0.72
Diluted earnings (loss) per share: attributablé to LlfePomt " :
Hospitals, Inc. stockholders®: :
Continuing operations . . ...................... $ 0.80 $069 - $0.72 $ 0.70
Discontinued operations’. . . . . e e .. (0.0D — L — —
Netincome. . . ... ....oviiiiiiineennnnnn.. . $0.79 $069 - $0.73 $ 0.70
2009
First Second ° Third 'Fourth
Revenues.-. . ...... T e $735.5 $735.3 $745.0 - - $746.9
Income 'from 'continuing operations . . . .............. $ 40.1 $ 295 $327  $394
Discontinued- operations: E
Loss from discontinued operations.. . . . . . [ (1.1) 2.1 ©.7) 0.8)
(Loss) gain on sales of hospitals ..... ............... — .. (0.6) — 0.2
Loss from discontinued operations . . . . . . . e ayn . .27hH 07 . (0.6) .
Net income . . ...... F "39.0 268 - 320 38.8
‘Less: Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests . -~ (0.6) 0.5 - ©6) - (0.8)
Net income attributable to LifePoint Hospitals, In¢ . . . . . . $384- $263 $ 314 ~$ 380
Basic earnings (loss) per share attributable to LifePoint
Hospitals, Inc. stockholders:
Continuing operations . ....................... $ 0.76 $ 0.55 $ 0.60 $ 0.72
Discontinued operations . . . .................... (0.02) (0.05) 0.01) (0.01)
Netincome. .................cc0uiiiinnn... $ 0.74 $ 0.50 $ 0.59 $ 0.71
Diluted earnings (loss) per share attributable to LifePoint
Hospitals,-Inc. stockholders:
Continuing operations . ....................... $ 0.74 $ 0.54 $ 0.59 $ 0.71
o Discontinued operations . . . .................... (0.02) (0.05) (0.01) (0.01)
S Netincome. . . ......... ... ..., $ 0.72 $ 049 $ 0.58 $ 0.70

(a) Total per share amounts may not add due to rounding.
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Note 13. Guarantor and.Noxi-Guaranter. Supplementary Information. .

B!

The Company’s 6.625% Senior Notes are jointly ‘and' séverally"gt‘zaranteed on an unsecured senior basis
by substantially all of the Company’s existing subsidiaries that guarantee the Company’s Credit Agreement.
The following presents the condensed consolidating ﬁnané’ieii' information for the parent issuer, guarantor
subsidiaries, non-guarantor subsidiaries, certain eliminations and the Company for the years ended
December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 and as of December 31, 2010 and 2009:

¢

LIFEPOINT HOSPITALS, INC.
- Condensed Consolidating Statements of Operations
- For the Year Ended December 31, 2010
T . (In. millions)

Parent : Non- B R :
Issuer Guarantors - . _Guarantors .+ .’Eliminations .. - ~Consolidated -
Revenues. . .. ... e $ — $2,961.9 $300.5 =8 .— .. ~$3,262.4
Salaries and benefits . . .. ... .. .. 2247 1,153.6 943 - 1 T e 0703
Supplies . . .. ... e — 392.7 503 — a3
Other operating expenses.. . . . . . . . 04 55718 . 470 S 05
Provision for doubtful accounts. . . . — 405.2 386 — 4438
Equity in (earnings) losses of B i Lo
affiliates. . ... .. .. S T 154y o — 2154 0 =
Dépreciation and amortization. . . . . — 134T 14:4 o=t 1485
Interest expense, net . ... ... ... L 41.2. 66.4 0.5 i e 7108.1
Debt extinguishment costs . . . . . . . 2.3 0.1 — DX W
Management (income) fees. . . . . . . — (8.6) 8.6 — T
(149.1) 2,701.3 2537 2154 -7 30213
Income (loss) from continuing , L
operations before income taxes . . 1491 . 2606 46.8 - ©154) - 2411
Provision for income taxes. . . . . .. (6.4) 88.8 — L gy
Income (loss) from continuing : - ' o
operations . . . ... e 155.5 171.8 468+ (2154) 1587
Discontinued operations, net of .
income taxes: '
Income (loss) from discontinued - : R R
" “Operations.. . . . . . o - ' ©0.1) — — 0.1)
Net income (loss)~ . ........... 155.5 171.7 46.8 215.4) 158.6
Less: Net income attributable to
noncontrolling interests. . . . . . — (0.8) 2.3) — 3.1
Net income (loss) attributable to
LifePoint Hospitals, Inc.. . . . . .. $ 1555 $ 1709 $ 445 $(215.4) $ 155.5

" F-51
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2010

Note 13. Guarantor and Non-Guarantor Supplementary Information — (continued)

LIFEPOINT HOSPITALS, INC.
Condensed Consolidating Statements of Operations
For the Year Ended December 31, 200

(In millions) ‘

Parent o Non- T -
_ Issuer Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated
Revenues. . ................. 5 — $2,691.2 $271.5 $ — $2,962.7
Salaries and benefits . . . ... ... . 22.3 1,058.8 - 89.8 — 1,170.9
Supplies . ......... e — -365.9 43.2 — 409.1
Other operating expenses. . . . . ... 04 -~ 4939 43.7 — 538.0
Provision for doubtful accounts. . . . — 343.5 31.9 — 3754
Equity in earnings-of affiliates .... - (188.7) == — 188.7 —
Depreciation and amortization. . . . . — 130:1 12.9 — 143.0
Interest expense (income), net. . . . . ) 38.2 65.8 (0.8) — 103.2
\ Impairment charge ............ : — 1.1 — — 1.1
Management (income) fees. . . . . _ 8.2) 8.2 — —
v (127.8) . 2,450.9 228.9 188.7 2,740.7
Income from continuing operations v .
before income taxes. ......... 127.8 240.3 42.6 (188.7) 222.0
Provision for income taxes. . .. ... (6.3)- 86.6 — — 80.3
Income from continuing operations . 134.1 153.7 42.6 (188.7) . 1417
Discontinued operations, net of : '
income taxes:
Income (loss) from discontinued
operations. .. ............ — @.7) — — 4.7
Gain (loss) on sales of hospitals . — (0.4) — — 0.4)
Income (loss) from discontinued ' _
operations. ... ........... — (5.1) — — (5.1)
Netincome ................. 134.1 148.6 42.6 (188.7) 136.6
Less: Net income attributable to
noncontrolling interests. . . .. . — (0.8) .7 — 2.5) .
Net income attributable to LifePoint

Hospitals, Inc.. . . . .......... $134.1 $ 147.8 $ 40.9 $(188.7) $ 134.1
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31; 2010

Note 13. Guarantor and Non-Guarantor Supplementary Information — (continued) .

LIFEPOINT HOSPITALS, INC.
Condensed Consolidating Statements of Operations
For the Year Ended December 31, 2008
(In millions)

- Parent ) Non- <
“Issuer - ‘Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated
Revenues. . ................. 5 — $2,452.1 $248.7 $ — $2,700.8 -
Salaries and benefits . .. .. .. ... . 234 956.3 85.7 — 10654
Supplies ....... e e — 334.5 38.1 — 372.6
Other operating expenses. . . . . . . i 03 456.8 42.7 — 499.8
Provision for doubtful accounts. . . . — 286.9 26.3 — 3132
Equity in earnings of affiliates . . .. (141.4) — — 1414 -
Depreciation and amortization. . . . . — 120.7 11.4 — 132.1
. Interest expense, net . . . ........ '17.4 90.0 0.3 — - 107.7
Impairment charge ............ R 1.2 - — 1.2
Manageinent (income) fees. . . . . . . - (8.6) 8.6 — -
» (100.3) 2,237.8 213.1 1414 .. 24920
Income from continuing operations o
before income taxes.......... 1003 2143 35.6 (141.4) 208.8
Provision for income taxes. . . . . . ) 2.7 82.6 — — 79.9 .
Income from continuing operations . . 103.0 131.7 35.6 - _(1414) , 128.:9:
Discontinued operations, net of
income taxes:
Income (loss) from discontinued :

‘operations. ... ........... ' - (6.3) — — (6.3)
Impairment benefit (charges). . . . — 17.1D) — — 11
Gain (loss) on sales of hospitals . — (0.3) — — . (03)
Income (loss) from discontinued o

operations. . ............. : — 23.7) — — 23.7)
Net income . . . . . B - 103.0 108.0 35.6 (141.4) 105.2
Less: Net income attributable to , '
noncontrolling interests. . . . . . — (0.8) (1.4) — 2.2)
Net income attributable to LifePoint
Hospitals, Inc.. . . ........... $ 103.0 $ 1072 $ 34.2 $(141.4) $ 103.0
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2010

Note 13. Guarantor and Non-Guarantor Supplementary Information - (continued) :
LIFEPOINT HOSPITALS, INC.
Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheets -
' December 31, 2010 :
(In millions)

, - Parent Issuer Guarantors Non-Guarantors  Eliminations Consolidated
ASSETS - ’ L
Current assets: ) : : . R
Cash and cash equivalents . . . . . . - % — $ 1971 $ 103 $ — $ 2074
Accounts receivable, net . ... .. B — 358.4 289 — - = 3873
Inventories . .............. — 75.9- 8.7 = . 846
Prepaid expenses . ........... — 13.6 - 03 Lo 139
Income taxes receivable. . . . .. .. 5.5 -— — —_ 55
Deferred tax assets . . . ........ 99.7 — — — - 99.7
Other current assets. . . ........ — 245 0.2 — 247
‘ 105.2 669.5 484 o= 8231 -
Property and equipment: , .
Land . .................. .- — 73.5 12.4 —_ 85.9.

" Buildings and improvements. . . . . — 1,399.8 133.1 — 1,532.9
Equipment . ............... — 883.7 66.5 - '950.2
Construction in progress. . . ... .. . — - 36.6 2.8 — 39.4

— 2,393.6 214.8 i— 2,608.4
Accumulated depreciation. . . . . . . — 868:6)- . (71.2) — . - (939.8)
: — 1,525.0 143.6 R 1,668.6
Deferred loan costs, net. . . . ... ... 272 — — R 27.2
Intangible assets, net . .......... — 50.5 22.6 — 73.1
Investments in subsidiaries. . . . .. .. 1,255.9 — — (1,255,9) ) —
Other ..................... — 7.7 20 o= 9.7 -
Goodwill . .. ................ — 1,413.2 137.5 — 1,550.7
Total assets . ............. $1,388.3 $3,665.9 $354.1 ©$(1,255.9) - $4,1524
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities: 7 '
Accounts payable . . . ......... $ — $ 830 $ 6.0 "% — "$ 890
Accrued salaries. . .. ......... — 96.0 54 — - 1014

Interest rate swap. . ........ .. 7.9 — — _ — 7.9
Other current liabilities . . . . . . o 16.0 962 - 124 — 124.6
Current maturities of long-term o

debt .. ................. — 14 — Y — 14
239 276.6 23.8 : — 3243
Long-termdebt.............. . 1,563.9 6.6 — ' — 1,570.5
Intercompany . ............... 2,316.7) 2,361.2 44.5) — —
Deferred income tax liabilities . . . . . 211.2 — — — 211.2
Reserves for self-insurance claims
and other liabilities. . . ... ... .. — 96.5 24.8 — 121.3
Long-term income tax liability . . . . . 18.5 — — — 18.5
Total liabilities . . .......... (499.2) 2,740.9 4.1 — 2,245.8
Redeemable noncontrolling interests . — — 15.3 — 15.3
Total LifePoint Hospitals, Inc.
B} stockholders’ equity . ......... 1,887.5 923.7 332.2 (1,255.9) 1,887.5
b Noncontrolling interests . ........ — 1.3 2.5 — 3.8
Total equity . . ............... 1,887.5 925.0 334.7 (1,255.9) 1,891.3
Total liabilities and equity . . . . . $ 1,388.3 $3,665.9 $354.1 $(1,255.9) $4,152.4
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2010

Note 13. Guarantor and Non-Guarantor Supplementary Information - (continued)

LIFEPOINT HOSPITALS, INC.
Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheets
: .December 31, 2009
(In mzllzons)

Parent Issuer Guarantors Non-Guarantors  Eliminations Consolidated

ASSETS - ' N = . :

Current assets: R
Cash'and cash equivalents . .".-. .. § = — $ 1784 $ 88 $ — $ 187.2
Accounts receivable, net . . . .. . . — 295.5 29.7 ¢ — 325.2
Inventories . ........... . ... — 674 79 — 753
Prepaid expenses . ... .. .. .. — 11.6 04 L = ' 12.0
Income taxes receivable. . . . . . . . 100 — — g - 100
Deferred tax assets . . . . . . e 121.3 — — oo— .. . 1213
Other current assets. . . .. ... ... — 22.9 0.2 , — . 23.1

- 131.3 -575.8 47.0 = : 754.1

Property and equipment: : : : C

Land ........ ... ... ... ... = 637 11.8 - o= 75.5

) Buildings and improvements. . . . . = 1,249.0 128.0 ' — 1,377.0
Equipment ... ... ... .. ... .. = 778.9 620 —_ 840.9
Construction in progress. . . . . . . . C— 19.5 04 = 19.9

— 2,111.1 S..2022 — 12,3133

Accumulated depreciation. . . . . . . — _(754.2) - (59.7) — 4813 9)

= 1,356.9 142.5 — '1,499.4

Deferred loan costs, net. . . .. ... .. 229 0.1 = — 230

Intangible assets, net . ... ... . — 51.7 16.9 — 68.6

Investments in subsidiaries. . . . . . . 1,040.5 ‘ —_ — (1,040.5) _ —

Other .. ... ... .......... .. . — .33 1.9 — 52

Goodwill . ............... . .. — 1,385.8 137.2 v — 1,523.0

Total assets . ............. $ 1,194.7 $3,373.6 $345.5 $(1,040.5) . $3,873.3

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current liabilities: . S : :
Accounts payable . ... ..... ... $ — $ 713 $ 60 — $ 773
Accrued salaries. . ... ... .. UL — 7.1 47 . — - 81.8
Other current liabilities . . . . . .. . 9.3 86.3 12.5 o — - 108.1
Current maturities of long-term . R . ‘

debt ................... — 0.8 .0.2 L — 1.0
‘ 9.3 235.5 234 B - 268.2

Long-termdebt............... 1,390.5 . 83 — — 1,398.8

Intercompany . ............ ... (2,289.1) 2,295.8 6.7 —— ‘ —

Deferred income tax liabilities . . . . . 176.9 — - I 176.9

Reserves for self-insurance claims , »
and other liabilities. . . . ... ... . 28.1 81.9 253 —_ .- 1353

Long-term income tax liability . . . . . 513 — — = .. 513

Total liabilities . . . ...... ... (633.0) 2,621.5 420 e e 2,030.5

Redeemable noncontrolling interests . - - . 12.0 L= 12.0

Total LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. ' - T ‘ S :
stockholders’ equity . ....... .. 1,827.7 750.8 289.7 :(1,040.5) 1,827.7

Noncontrolling interests . ... ... .. — _ 13 - 1.8 L — .34

Total equity . ................ 1,827.7 7521 291.5 (1,040.5) 1,830.8. "

= ~ Total liabilities and equity. . ... $1,1947 $3,373.6 $345.5 $(1,040.5) $3,873.3
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LIFEPOINT HOSPITALS, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2010

Condensed Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Cash flows from operating activities:
Netincome . . ........ e e e
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash

provided by operating activities:

Net (income) loss from discontinued operatlons .
Equity in earnings of affiliates. . . . ... ... ..
Stock-based compensation. . . . . . . e
Depreciation and amortization. . . . . . ... ...

Amortization of physician minimum revenue
guarantees . . . ... ... ... e

Amortization of convertible debt discounts. . . . .
Amortization of deferred loan costs. . . .. .. ..
Debt extinguishment costs. . . . ... ... .. ..
Deferred income tax benefit. . . . . . e e

Reserve for self-insurance claims, net of
PAYMENES. « . v v v v v e e e e

Increase (decrease) in cash from operating assets
and liabilities, net of effects from acquisitions
and-divestitures:

Accounts receivable. . . . ... ... ......
Ipventories and other current assets . . . ... .
Accounts payable and accrued expenses . . . . .
Income taxes payable/receivable . . . . . . . ..

Other . ... ... . ... ... ... .. ...
Net cash (used in) provided by operating

activities — continuing operations . . ... .. ...

Net cash used in operating activities — discontinued

.operations. . ... ... ...

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities. .
Cash flows from investing activities:

Purchase of property and equipment . . . . . ...

. Acquisitions, net of cash acquired. . : . ... ...
Net cash used in investing activities. .. . . .. ...
Cash flows from financing activities:

Proceeds from borrowings. . . . . ... ......
Payments of borrowings . . . . ... ... .....

-Repurchases of common stock . . ... ......

Payment of debt financing costs. . . .. ... ...
Proceeds from exercise of stock options . . . . . .
Proceeds from employee stock purchase plans .

Proceeds from (distributions to) noncontrolhng
CADEETESES . . . . . e e e e e e e

Purchase of redeemable noncontrolling interests . .

Change in intercompany balances with affiliates,
MEE . v e e e e

Capital lease payments and other . . . . ... ...

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities . .
Change in cash and cash equivalents. . . . . ... ...
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year . . . . .
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year . . . . . . ..

(In millions)

Note 13. Guarantor and Non-Guarantor Supplementary Information — (continued)
' LIFEPOINT HOSPITALS, INC.

Non-
Parent Issuer Guarantors Guarantors  Eliminations Consolidated

$ 1555 $171.7 $ 46.8 $(215.4) $.158.6
— 0.1 — — 0.4
(215.4) — — 2154 —
224 — — — 224
— 134.1 144 — 148.5

— 15.6 1.5 — 17.1

22.6 — — — 226 .

7.1 — — — 7.1
2.3 0.1 — — 2.4
(29.0) — — — (29.0)
— 10.8 0.5) —_ 10.3

— (39.9) 0.8 —_— (39.1)

— @ 0.7 — (5.4)

7.1 1.5 (1.4) — 13.2
48.8 — — — 48.8
0.2) (1.6) 0.1) — (1.9)
212 2937 60.8 — 375.7
— (1.6) — — (1.6)
21.2 292.1 60.8 — 374.1
— (160.6) 8.1) — (168.7)

— (172.1) (12.8) — (184.9)

— (332.7) (20.9) — (353.6)
400.0 — — — 400.0
(249.2) 6.0) - —_ (255.2)
(152.1) _ — — (152.1)
13.7) —_ — —_ 13.7
20.4 —_ — — 204
1.0 —_ —_ — 1.0
— 1.0 3.4 — 2.4

— — 3.1 —_ 3.1
(27.6) 5 (37.9) - -
— (1.2) 0.2) — (1.4)
21.2) 59.3 (38.4) — (0.3)
— 18.7 1.5 — 17202

— 178.4 8.8 — 187.2

$§  — $ 197.1 $ 103 $ — $ 2074
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LIFEPOINT HOSPITALS, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2010

Note 13. Guarantor and Non-Guarantor Supplementary Information — (continued)

LIFEPOINT HOSPITALS, INC.
Condensed Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2009
(In millions)

. Non- N
Parent Issuer Guarantors  Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated

Cash flows from operating activities:

Netincome . . ................ ... .. $134.1 - $1486 $426 $(188.7) - $136.6
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash o - - -
provided by operating activities:

Net (income) loss from discontinued operations . . —_ -51 S o= 51
Equity in earnings of affiliates. . . . . . .. .. .. (188.7) — — 188.7 -
Stock-based compensation. . . ... ... ... .. 223 — — = - 223
Depreciation and amortization. . . . .. ... ... — 130.1 129 e 1430
Amortization of physician minimum revenue C '

guarantees . . . . . ... ..., ..., L., — 12.7 0.9 — 136
Amortization of convertible debt discounts. . . . .. 21.1 . — — —_ 21.1

> * Amortization of deferred loan costs. . . . . . . . . 8.3 — — - . 83

Deferred income tax benefit. . . . ... ... . - (7.2) — — — (1.2
Reserve for self-insurance claims, net of ' ) o

payments. . . . ... ... ............ } — "10.2 6.6 - — 16.8

Increase (decrease) in cash from operating assets
and liabilities, net of effects from acquisitions
and divestitures: :

Accounts receivable. . . .. ... ... ... . — (1.5) .0) = 3.5)
Inventories and other current assets . . . . . . . . — (6.8) ©.1)" — 6.9)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses . . . . . (1.3) 7.7 (1.7) — (10.7)
Income taxes payable freceivable. . . . . .. . . " 99 — — = 9.9
Other .. ............. IR e (0.1) 3.7 . (1.7) — 1.9
Net cash (used in) provided by operating . .
activities-continuing operations . . . . ., ;.. . .. (1.6) 2944 57.5 — 350.3
Net cash (used in) provided by operating )
activities-discontinued operations . . . . . ... .. — (0.4) — — 0.4)
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities. . (1.6) 294.0 57.5 = 349.9
Cash flows from investing activities: ‘ o ‘ .
Purchase of property and equipment . . . . . . . . . —_ (157.5) ©.1) —_ (166.6)
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired. . ... ..., .. — (81.4) —_ = 81.49)
Other . . .................... . .. — 39 — — 3.9
Net cash used in investing activities-continuing ’ i
operations. . . ... ... ......... .. ... o —_ (235.0) 9.1) = (244:1)
Net cash provided by investing - '
activities-discontinued operations . . . . . ... .. — 19.6 — — 19.6
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities . . — (215.4) 9.1) — (224.5)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Payments of borrowings. . . .. ... ... .. .. (13.5) — — — (13.5)
Repurchases of common stock . ... ....... 3.1 — — —_ 3.1
Proceeds from exercise of stock options . . .. .. 10.8 — — — 10.8
Proceeds from employee stock purchase plans. . . 1.0 — — R 1.0
Distributions to noncontrolling interests . . . . . . — (1.6) 2.6) — “.2)
Purchase of redeemable noncontrolling interests . . — — - (0.8) o 0.8)
Change in intercompany balances with affiliates, o
met . .. ... e 6.4 375 (43.9) — C—_
Capital lease payments and other . . . . . ... .. — (3.8) (0.3) — 4.1)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities . . 1.6 32.1 (47.6) — ' (13.9)
. Change in cash and cash equivalents. . . . . ... ... — 110.7 0.8 — 111.5
' Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year. . . . . — 67.7 8.0- = ) 75.7
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year . . . . .- . . $ — $178.4 $ 88 $ - . -$187.2
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LIFEPOINT: HOSPITALS, INC:

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2010

Note 13. Guarantor and Non-Guarantor: Suppleméntary Information - (continued)
~ LIFEPOINT HOSPITALS; INC.
Condensed. Consolidating‘Statements of ‘Cash Flows
For:the year ended December 31, 2008
{In millions)
Parent Non- N
~ Issuer ‘. .Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated

Cash flows from operating activities: S S
Netincome . . . ... ... ... i it inies .. $103.0 $1080  $356 $(141.4) $ 105.2
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash R S :

provided by operating activities:

Net (income) loss from discontinued operations . . . 23.7 . — . — . 237
Equity in earnings of affiliates . . .. .......... (141 4) — = 1414 0 —
Stock-based compensation. . . .. .......... .. - 234 = — — 23.4
ESOP expense (non-cash portion) . . . . . . e 7.6 : — — — .16
Depreciation and amortization . . . ... .. .. — 1207 - 114 : — 132.1
Amortization of physician mmlmum revenue O T P
guarantees. v . . .. ... LSl Lo v— 8.6 0.7 — - 93
N -Amortization of convertible debt discounts . .. ... 1.19.7 — —_ c— 19.7
Amortization of deferred loan costs. . . ... .. ... 1.3 — L — 1.3
-Deferred income tax benefit. . . ... . .......... 4.5) — — = - (4.5)
Reserve for self-insurance claims, net of payments. . — 109 . 6.7 — 17.6

Increase (decrease) in cash from operating assets
and liabilities, net of effects from acquisitions and
divestitures: . o o

(19.7) 85 — (11.2)

Accounts receivable . . . ... ... ... ... ... — ‘
-.Inventories and other current assets . . ....... — 4.9) 2.9 S — 2.0)
- Accounts payable and accrued expenses... . 0.1 (7.8) . 4) ) , — (11.1)
. Income taxes payableirecelvable ..... - cee 26.2 — = 26.2
OEr. . o o e oo oo e P 0.9 26 ' (0.2) e ~ 33
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities — ' e ’ :
‘continuing operatlons .................... 2423 242.1 62.2 — 346.6
Net cash used in operating activities — discontinued . : ‘
OPErations . .. .. ... ...@ oo, e (12.5) L ) — - (12.5)
Net cash (used in) provided by operatmg activities . . . 423 229.6 622 ... — .. 33401
Cash’ flows from investing activities: - < '
Purchase of property and equipment . . . . . S — (137.9) 19.7) = (157.6)
Acquisitions, net of cash acqu1red ............ — (10.5) (11.3) -+ — (21.8)
Other ......... .. ... .. . ... e — (5.9 — — (59
Net cash used in investing activities — continuing ‘ : : .
LOPEIations . . . v v v i e — (154.3) (31.0) — (185.3)
Net cash used in investing activities — discontinued : : , , , ‘
JOPETAtioNS . ... . i (14.1) 8.3 e — T __ (58
Net cash used in investing actlvmes ............ (14.1) (146.0) (31.0) — (191.1)
Cash flows from financing activities: . . . ... .. ... .. o : :
“Proceeds from borrowings. . . . .. ........... 104 = L= — . 10.4
Payments of borrowings. . . .. ... .. ... . (10.1) — — — (10.1)-
. Repurchases of common stock . . . .. ......... (118.3) — — o — (118.3)
" Proceeds from exercise of stock options . . . . .. .. 3.6 _ == 3.6

=S
00 ¢
!
[e]
o]

Proceeds from employee stock purchase plans . . . .

“Distributions to noncontrolling interests . . . ... .. — (0.6) V) g — - (33
‘Proceeds from redeemable noncontrolling interests. . = — 22 —. 2.2
Change in intercompany balances with affiliates, net 85.4 59.9) - (25.5) . — - —
Capital lease payments and other . . . ......... — 0.2 48 . - — (4.6)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing s . -
-activities — continuing operatlons ............. (28.2) (60.3) (30.8) —_ (119.3)
Net cash used in financing act1v1tles — discontinued . . o
R g Toperations .. ... ... L oo C— (1.1) e — (LD
o Net cash provided by (used m) financing act1v1tles C (28.2) (61.4) " (30.8) ) — - _(120.4)
o Change in cash and cash equivalenfs . . . ... .. e — 22.2 04 — 22.6
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year.’. . .. . . L 45.5 1.6 — ‘53.1
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year . ......... § — $ 677 $ 80 -§ — $ 757
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SIGNATURES

. Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or'15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the =
registrant has§ duly caused this report to be signed'on its ‘behalf by the undersigned, ‘thereunto duly authorized,
in the City of Brentwood, State of ‘Tennessee, on February 18, 2011. - -~ =~ = -

- LIFEPOINT.HOSPITALS, INC. ,
. By: /s/ WILLIAM E. CARPENTER III

_ William F. Carpenter III
- Chief Executive Officer and .
Chairman of the Board of Directors

Pursuant to the requirements. of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this-report has been signed below
by the following persons on behalf of the registrant in the capacities and on the date indicated.

Name ‘ _ o - Tltle o 7 Date
/s/ WILLIAM F. CARPENTER I _ Chief Executive Officer and ' February 18, 2011
William F. Carpenter 11T - Chairman of the Board of Directors
(Principal Executive Officer)
/s/ JEFFREY S, SHERMAN ., .. . Chief Financial Officer . February 18, 2011
Jeffrey S. Sherman ~ -~~~ . - (Principal Financial Officer) :
/sl MICHAEL S. COGGIN . _ Chief Accounting Officr .~ February 18, 2011
Michael S. Coggin , - . (Principal Accounting Officer)
'/s/ GREGORY T. BIER .. Dirctor February 18, 2011
Gregory T. Bier ) » o , _ ' .
~/s/ RICHARD H: EVANS - - " Director - February 18, 2011
Richard H. Evans o ‘ ‘
// DEWITTBZELL,J)R __ ~ " Director - - -~ . February 18, 2011

DeWitt Ezell; Jr

~/s/ MICHAEL P. HALEY . Director . February 18, 2011
Michael P. Haley ‘ S L
/s/ MARGUERITE W. KONDRACKE © Director ' February 18, 2011
Marguerite W. Kondracke - o S

/s/ JOHN E. MAUPIN, IR, DDS "~ . - Director -~ - February 18, 2011
John E. Maupin, Ir, DD.S - - R ' ‘

/s/ OWEN G. SHELL, JR. Director: - © - February 18, 2011
Owen G: Shell, Jr.. = : .
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Exhibit
Number

3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2

43

44

45

4.6

4.7

48

4.9

4.10

Description of Exhibits

Amended and Restated Certlﬁcate of Incorporation (incorporated by reference from exhibits
to the Registration Statement on Form-S-8 filed by LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. on April 19,
2005, File No. 333-124151).

Fourth' Amended and Restated By-Laws of LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. (incorporated by
reference from exhibits to the LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K dated
December 15, 2010, File No. 000- 51251).

Form of Spec1rnen Stock Certificate (incorporated by reference from exhibits to the
Registration Statement on Form S-4, as amended, filed by Historic LifePoint Hospitals, Inc.
on October 25, 2004, File No. 333-119929).

Form of 3.25% Convertible Senior Subordinated Debenture ‘due 2025 (incorporated by

 reference from exhibits to the LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K dated

August 10, 2005, File No. 000-51251).

--Registration Rights Agreement, dated August 10, 2005, between LifePoint Hospitals, Inc.

and Citigroup Global Markets Inc. as Representatives of the Initial Purchasers (incorporated
by reference from exhibits to the LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K
dated August 10, 2005, File No. 000-51251).

Amended and Restated Rrghts Agreement, dated February 25, 2009, by and between
LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. and American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, LLC
(incorporatéd by reference from exhibits to the LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. Current Report on
Form 8-K dated February 25, 2009, File No. 000-51251). '

Subordinated Indenture; dated as of May 27, 2003, between Province Healthcare Company
and U.S. Bank Trust National Association, as Trustee (incorporated by reference from
exhibits to Province Healthcare Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended June 30, 2003, File No. 001-31320).

First Supplemental Indenture to Subordinated Indenture, dated as of May 27, 2003, by and
among Province Healthcare Company and U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee,
relating to Province Healthcare Company’s 7%2% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2013 -
(incorporated by reference from exhibits to Province Healthcare Company’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2003, File No. 001-31320).

Second Supplemental Indenture to Subordinated Indenture, dated as of April 1, 2005, by
and among Province Healthcare Company and U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee

- “(incorporated by reference from exhibits to Province Healthcare Company s Current Report

on Form 8-K dated April 1, 2005, File No. 001-31320).

. Indenture, dated August 10, 2005, between LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. and Citibank, N.A., as-

Trustee (incorporated by reference from exhibits to the LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. Current
Report on Form 8-K dated August 10, 2005, File No. 000-512571).

* Indenture, dated May 29, 2007, by and between LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. as Issuer and The

Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A., as Trustee (incorporated by reference from
exhibits to the LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 31, 2007,
File No. 000-51251).

Indenture, dated September 23, 2010, by and among LifePoint Hospltals Inc., the
Guarantors (as defined therein) and Bank Of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A. as
trustee (including the Form of 6.625% Senior Notes due 2020) (incorporated by reference
from exhibits to the LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K dated
September 27, 2010, File No. 000-51251).
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Exhibit
Number

4.11

10.1

10.2

10.3

104 -

10.5
10.6

10.7

10.8
10.9

10.10

10.11

Description of Exhibits

Registration Rights-Agreement, dated September 23, 2010, by and among LifePoint
Hospitals, Inc., the Guarantors (as defined therein) and Barclays Capital Inc as

. representative of the several initial purchasers (incorporated by reference from exhibits to

the LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K dated September 27, 2010,
File No. 000-51251).

Computer and Data Processing Services Agreement, dated May 19, 2008, by and between
HCA Information Technology Services, Inc. and LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. (incorporated by
reference from exhibits to the LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K dated
May 21, 2008, File No. 000-5 1251). ‘ o ‘

Comprehensive Service Agreement for Diagnostic Imaging and Biomedical Services,
executed on January 7, 2005, between LifePoint Hospital Holdings, Inc. and GE Healthcare
Technologies (incorporated by reference from exhibits to the Historic LifePoint Hospitals,
Inc. Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004, ’
File No. 000-29818). o '

Amended and Restated 1998 Long-Term Incentive Plan, as amended by the Amendment
dated May 13, 2008, the Amendment dated December 10, 2008, the Amendment dated
April 27, 2010, and the Amendment dated Junev_8, 2010 (_incorporated by reference from
Appendix A and B to the LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. Proxy Statement filed April 29, 2010,
File No. 000-51251).* o - B _

Form of LifePoint Hosoitals; Inc. Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement (incorporated by
reference from exhibits to the LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. Annual Report on Form 10-K for

~ the year ended December 31, 2009, File No. 000-51251).*

.Form of LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. Restricted Stock Award Agreement (incorporated by
_ reference\from exhibits to the LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. Annual Report on Form 10-K for

the year ended December 31, 2009, File No. 00045125_1).* ‘. _
LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. Executive Performance Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference

from Appendix C to the Historic LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. Proxy Statement dated April 28,
2004,.File No. 000-29818).* :

First Amendment, dated December 10, 2008, to the LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. Executive
Performance Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference from exhibits to the LifePoint
Hospitals, Inc. Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008,
File No. 000-51251).*

Form of LifePoint Hos_pitals, Inc. Performance Award Agreement (incorporated by

-reference from exhibits to the LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. Annual Report on Form 10-K for

the year ended December 31, 2009, File No. 000-51251).*
LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. Change in Control Severance Plan, as amended and restated

{(incorporated by reference from exhibits to the LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. Current Report on
-Form 8-K dated December 16, 2008, File No. 000-51251).%

LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. Amended and.Restated Management Stock Purchase Plan, as
amended by the Amendment dated May 22, 2003, the Amendment dated May 13, 2008, the
Amendment dated December 10, 2008, the Amendment dated March 24, 2009, the
Amendment dated April 27, 2010, and the Amendment dated June 8, 2010 (incorporated by
reference from Appendix C and D to the LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. Proxy Statement filed
April 29, 2010, File No. 000-51251).*

Form of Outside Directors Restricted Stock Agreement (incorporated by reference from
exhibits to the LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended March 31, 2006, File No. 000-51251).* : :
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Exhibit
Number

10.12

10.14

1015

10.16

- 10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.22

10.23

10.13

10.21 -+

Description of Exhibits

Amended and Restated LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. Outside: D1rectors Stock and Incentlve ‘
Compensation Plan, dated May 14, 2008 (lncorporated by reference from Appendix F to
the LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. Proxy Statement filed April 29, 2010, File No. 000-51251).*

" Amendment dated March 24, 2009, to the LifePoint Hosp1tals, Inc Amended and Restated

Outside Directors Stock and Incentive Compensation Plan (1ncorporated by reference from
exhibits to the LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. Quarterly Report on Form 10 Q for the quarter

~ ended -June 30; 2009, File No. 000-51251) *

Amendment dated April 27, 2010, to the LifePoint Hospltals Inc. Amended and Restated
Outside Directors Stock and Incentive Compensation Plan (incorporated by reference
from Appendix F to the LifePoint Hospltals Inc Proxy Statement filed April 29, 2010,
File No. 000-51251).*

Amendment dated June 8, 2010, to the LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. Amended and Restated
Outside Directors Stock and Incentive Compensation Plan (incorporated by reference
from Appendix E to the LifePoint Hospltals Inc Proxy Statement ﬁled Aprll 29, 2010,
File No. 000-51251).* -

Form of LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. Deferred Restricted Stock Award (inCorporated by
reference from exhibits to the LifePoint Hospltals Inc. Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2009, File No. 000-5 1251)*

LifePoint Hospitals Deferred Compensation Plan (mcorporated by reference from exhibits
to the LifePoint Hospltals Inc Current Report on Form 8- K dated December 15, 2009,

~ File No. 000- 51251).*

Credit Agreement, dated as of Apr11 15, 2005, by and among L1fePomt Hospitals, Inc., as
borrower the lenders referred to therein, Citicorp North America, Inc. as administrative
agent, Bank of Amerlca ‘N.A., CIBC World Markets Corp., SunTriist Bank, UBS Securities
LLC, as co syndication agents and Citigroup Global Markets, Inc., as sole lead arranger
and sole bookrunner (incorporated by reference from exhibits to LifePoint Hospitals, Inc.
Current Report on Form 8-K dated April 19, 2005, File No ‘000-51251).

Incremental Facility Amendment dated August 23, 2005, among LifePoint Hospitals, Inc.,
as borrower, Citicorp North America, Inc., as administrative agent ‘and the lenders party
thereto (incorporated by reference from exhibits to LifePoint Hospltals Current Report on
Form 8-K dated August 23, 2005, File No. 000-51251). :

Amendment No. 2 to the Credit Agreement, dated October 14, 2005, among LifePoint

Hospitals, Inc.- as borrower, Citicorp North America, Inc., as administrative agent and the
- lenders party thereto (incorporated by reference from exhibits to LifePoint Hospitals’

Current Report on Form' 8-K dated October 18, 2005, File No. 000-51251).

Incremental Facility Amendment No. 3 to the Credit Agreement, dated June 30, 2006
among LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. as borrower, Citicorp North Americé, Inc. as administrative
agent and the lenders party thereto. (incorporated by reference from exhibits to LifePoint
Hospitals’ Current Report on Form 8-K: dated June 30, 2006, File No. 000-51251).

Incremental Facility Amendment No. 4 to:the Credit Agreement, dated September 8, 2006,
among LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. as borrower, Citicorp North America, Inc. as administrative
agent and the lenders party thereto (incorporated by reference from exhibits to LifePoint
Hospitals’ Current Report on Form 8-K dated September 12, 2006, File No. 000-51251).

Amendment No. 5 to the Credit Agreement, dated as of May 11, 20'()7;i among LifePoint
Hospitals, Inc. as borrower, Citicorp North America, Inc., as administrative agent and-the
lenders party thereto (incorporated by reference from exhibits to the LifePoint Hospitals,
Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 24, 2007, File No. 000-51251).
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Exhibit
Number

10.24

10.25

10.26

10.27

10.28

10.29 °

10.30

10.31

10.32

10.33

12.1
21.1
23.1
31.1

31.2

321

L 322

Description of Exhibits

Amendment No. 6 to the Credit Agreement, dated as of April 6, 2009, .among LifePoint: -
Hospitals, Inc., as borrower, Citicorp North America, Inc., as administrative agent and

the lenders party thereto (incorporated by reference from exhibits to the LifePoint L
Hospitals, Inc. Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009, '
File No. 000-51251). R IR
Amendment No. 7 to the Credit Agreement, dated-as of February 26, 2010, among:.
LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. as borrower, Citicorp North America, Inc. as administrative-agent
and the lenders party thereto (incorporated by reference from exhibits to the LifePoint
Hospitals, Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 1, 2010, File No..000-51251).

Amendment No. 8 to the Credit Agreement, dated as of Sep.tr_emb'er217, 2010,.among
LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. as borrower, Citicorp North America, Inc. as administrative agent
and the lenders party thereto (filed herewith).

ISDA 2002 Master Agreement, dated as of June 1, 2006, between Citibank, N.A.
and LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. (incorporated by reference from exhibits to the
LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K/A dated September 8, 2006,
File No. 000-51251).

Schedule to the ISDA 2002 Master Agreement (incorporated by reference from exhibits to
the LifePoint Hospitals, In¢c. Current Report on Form 8-K/A dated September 8, 2006,
File No. 000-51251).

Confirmation, dated as of June 2, 2006, between LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. and Citibank,
N.A. (incorporated by reference from exhibits to the LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. Current
Report on Form 8-K/A dated September 8, 2006, File No. 000-51251).

Executive Severance and Restrictive Covenant Agreement, dated December 11, 2008, by
and between LifePoint CSGP, LLC and William F. Carpenter III (incorporated by reference
from exhibits to the LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2008, File No. 000-51251).*

Form of Indemnification Agreement (incorporated by reference from exhibits to the
LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K dated August 29, 2008,
File No. 000-51251).

Recoupment Policy Relating to Unearned Incentive Compensation of Executive Officers
(incorporated by reference from exhibits to the LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. Current Report on
Form 8-K dated May 20, 2008, File No. 000-51251).

Purchase Agreement dated September 20, 2010 among LifePoint Hospitals, Inc., the
Guarantors party thereto, Barclays Capital Inc., as representative of the Initial Purchasers
named therein (incorporated by reference from exhibits to the LifePoint Hospitals, Inc.
Current Report on Form 8-K dated September 24, 2010, File No. 000-51251).

Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges
List of Subsidiaries
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer of LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer of LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer of LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer of LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002
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Exhibit

Number _° . " Description of Exhibits
101.INS  — Instancé Document**: :

101.SCH — Taxonomy Extension Séhe_ma Document**

101.CAL . . — Taxonomy Calculatidn_ Linkbase Document**'
101.DEF  — Taxonomy Definition Linkbase Document**

101.LAB: — Taxonomy Label Linkbase Document**

101.PRE ~ — Taxonomy Presentation Linkbase Document**
*  — Managemnient Compénsation'Plari or Arrangement

** __ Furnished electronically herewith -

=\
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EXHIBIT 31.1

LIFEPOINT HOSPITALS, INC.
CERTIFICATION

L, William F. Carpenter III, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of LifePoint Hospitals, Inc.; .

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain,any untrue statement of .a material fact .or omit
to state a material fact necessary to- make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such.
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; R

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operauons and cash flows of- the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; . 3

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining -~ .
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and 1ntemal

control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for.the reglstrant
and have:

a) designed: such disclosure controls and, procedures or caused such disclosure controls. and
procedures to be designed under our stpervision, to ensure that material .information relating to the .
registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entjties,
particularly during the period in which. this report is being prepared; - - - e

b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such: internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our: supervision, to. provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial. statements for extemal purposes in-
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; e

- ¢)-evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures. and presented in
this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure.controls and procedures, as of the end
of the period covered by this report, based on such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, -or.is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal. control over financial reporting; and-

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based ©on our most recent evaluation .of
internal control over financial reporting, to.the. registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s
board of directors (or persons performing the-equivalent functions):

- a).all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of. internal control
over financial reporting: which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial - reporting. . :

/s/ William F. Carpenter III

William E Carpenter III
Chief Executive Officer and
Chairman of the Board of Directors

Date: February 18, 2011



EXHIBIT 31.2

LIFEPOINT HOSPITALS, INC.
CERTIFICATION

I, Jeffrey S. Sherman, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of LifePoint Hospitals, Inc.;"

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit
to state a material fact necessary to makeé the statements made, in light of the cucumstances under wh1ch such
statements were made, not misleading with fespect to the period covered by this report;"* :

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operatlons and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The régistrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure ‘controls -and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢) and 15d-15(e)) and internal
control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant
and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in
this ‘report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end
of the period covered by this report, based on such evaluation; and

-d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have discloéed based on our most recent evaluation of .
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s
board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):’

“a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control
- over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ Jeffrey S. Sherman

Jeffrey S. Sherman
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

Date: February 18, 2011



EXHIBIT 32.1

LIFEPOINT HOSPITALS, INC.

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Report of LifePoint Hospitals; Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2010, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission. on the date hereof (the
“Report™), I, William F. Carpenter III, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board of Directors .of the

Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Sec. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Sec. 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002, that;

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
- Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) To the best of my knowledge information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material
respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

/s/ William F. Carpenter III

William F. Carpenter I1I
Chief Executive Officer and
Chairman of the Board of Directors

Date February 18, 2011



EXHIBIT 32.2

LIFEPOINT HOSPITALS, INC.

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U'S.C. SECTION 1350,
|  AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

. In connection with the Report-of LifePoint Hospitals, Inc. (the “Company”’) on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 313-2010, as‘filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the
“Report”) I, Jeffrey S.” Sherman, Chief Financial Officer of the Company; certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Sec. |
1350, as adopted- pursiiant to Se¢. 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley-Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully comphes with the requ1rements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securmes
Exchange Act of 1934; and - § . ‘

(2) To the best of my knowledge information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material
.+ tespects, the financial condition and results of operatlons of the Company

>/s/ Jeifrey S. Sherman

Jeffrey S. Sherman
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

Date: February 18, 2011



